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China Everbright International Limited (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, collectively the “Group”), a
flagship company in the industrial investment sector of China
Everbright Group Ltd. (“China Everbright Group”), is listed on
the Mainboard of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(*HKEX”"). The Group is a leading player in China’s environmental
protection industry and the first one-stop integrated
environmental solution provider in the country. It leverages
talent, science and technology to develop all of its businesses,
namely envirotech, environmental energy, environmental
water (China Everbright Water Limited (“Everbright Water”) is
listed on the Mainboard of the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited), greentech, equipment manufacturing and
international business, etc. It also manages a large number of
industry-leading, world-class projects, in the areas of waste-
to-energy, water restoration, biomass integrated utilization,
hazardous waste treatment, photovoltaic energy, wind power,
environmental protection engineering, technological research
and development, environmental protection equipment
manufacturing, plus the planning and construction of
environmental protection industrial parks. The Group has a
business presence in over 80 counties and cities across 17
provinces and municipalities in China, as well as in Germany,
Poland, Vietnam and Singapore.

Under the leadership of an experienced and dedicated
management team and with strong support from China
Everbright Group, the Group will drive the next round of
development, further explore the environmental protection
market and develop new environmental protection projects, to
position itself as the industry leader in the domestic market and
in the global environmental protection sector in the future.
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Financial Highlights Bi&#i%

2015 Percentage

—E—RHF Change
HK$’000 BOk
BT T b=
(Restated)
(E#R)
RESULTS E
Revenue e 5 8,528,393 64%
EBITDA* BRFIS - BiE - TER
B p B A 3,754,449 35%
Profit attributable to equity holders  ZNA iz H A
of the Company R T 2,084,888 34%
Return on shareholders’ equity (%) BE&ESER(%) 12.46 3.64 ppt
Basic earnings per share BARER BT
(HK cents) (A 46.50 34%
FINANCIAL POSITION B AR
Total assets BEMTE 40,623,072 22%
Total liabilities BfE@E 21,202,531 40%
Equity attributable to equity holders AR AR IHFA A
of the Company FE(E 17,196,154 1%
Net asset value per share AARERFE AN
attributable to equity holders SREEFEEET)
of the Company (HK$) 3.835 1%
Gearing ratio (%) BEEBELE(%) 52 8 ppt
Current ratio (%) ENEL & (%) 182 -50 ppt

# EBITDA is the profit for the year before deduction of interest, taxation,
depreciation and amortisation.

* EBITDABRDBRFIE ~ FiIE  TERBEBIHAIRF] -

_——
-
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Corporate Milestones % AEHE

e Announced 2015 annual results, with profit from 06/201 6 ’_1

operations up by 33% YoY

s XABBRLAM_ZE-—HFELFEE  KERFH
533%iE &

Secured Dismantling, Redevelopment and
Upgradmg Project of Jiangsu Suzhou Waste-to-
energy Project

e Awarded Best Corporate Social Responsibility
Company and Best Investor Relations Company,

04/201 6 y—‘ and Mr. Chen Xiaoping, CEO of the Company,

was recognized as Asia’s Best CEO, at the sixth

* Completed the acquisition of Jiangsu Design Asian Excellence Recognition Awards 2016 by
and Research Institute of Energy Conservation Corporate Governance Asia
Engineering

e | aunched “Open Day” for public visiting, joining

o SERCUEE T AR EN A TR SRt B b hands with the public to develop environmental
and ecological awareness

s MEIfAsMNETHEAREEZN2EBIEA
I ERE!

o B(EMNEEBER)MAENBEEMEBARE [KIE
rEHEEERF ] [REREEBERAR ] K
NETTRBEZR N T REERZTR [ ENKEERE
WiTE

o RUATRFAMB » HAREFHEIRTEREXH

e |nvited by the International PPP Centre of

¢ Disclosed emission standards of operating Excellence at the United Nations Economic
waste-to-energy projects on a daily basis, Commission for Europe (UNECE) to lead the
continued to take the lead in promoting development of the United Nations’ PPP
information transparency in the industry standards on waste-to-energy projects

e Convened 2016 annual general meeting of the e Won the bid for Vietham’s Can Tho Waste-to-
Company energy Project

o BEEENFREAEAQEAHRISE £S5 © BESEPPPH LB - FEH S EAIHIEPPP
RBIIXRERERE RERIE

s AWM —T—NERFBFAS s PIEMBFHNREEIAR
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Announced 2016 interim results, with profit
attributable to equity holders up by 21% YoY

Completed the acquisition of Poland’s solid
waste treatment company, Novago sp. z 0.0.,
the largest Chinese acquisition in environmental
industry in Central and Eastern Europe

DT RNFLF¥FEE  BaBEEAEBGRT
1821 %EE
STk MBS R B8 [ BE BR 32 A ] — Novago sp. z 0.0.

A B R BURGR T I5 T &AM —EREERE

Included as a constituent stock of Hang Seng
Corporate Sustainability Index for the third
consecutive year

Added into Dow Jones Sustainability World
Index and Dow Jones Sustainability Emerging
Markets Index

EFE=—FRHMABEAFEEREOERBKMNK
L*ﬁLi%HﬁTFF%*E&iIﬁa%(& HEHT AT R AR B
R BB SR B

Received a financial support of RMB20 billion
from China Development Bank

The first self-developed 750-tonne/day grate
furnaces and gas purification systems were

put into operation at the Wujiang Waste-to-
energy Project in Jiangsu Province; the gas
emission levels of which are above the designed
standards, and have filled a void in China’s high-
capacity grate furnace manufacturing segment

ERRAZRTARE200E TSR
HEBTHEMTS0M, BREBMERFLRR
FREREIHSTAFBEER £ @RS
ZEERRTIEZ  ERBEEASEEENT=A

Signed an investment agreement for Vietnam’s
Can Tho Waste-to-energy Project, expanded
into solid waste treatment market in Southeast
Asia
FRAEZHEFENRESEEREHH
9 30 [ B B 38 T 55

CEER
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Chairman’s Statement =E&H%E

Carry forward the
spirit of CHINA EVERBRIGHT
Strive to establish a renowned

ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION brand

RN Ew SaRREE

Chairman xE
Cai Yunge #hE

It is my great honor to succeed Mr. Tang Shuangning as the Chairman of the board of directors of the Company
(the “Board”), and | look forward to continuing the work of creating value for society and the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”). | would like to take this opportunity to express my heartfelt thanks to Mr. Tang
Shuangning for his leadership, which has seen the Group achieve robust growth over the past decade.

In 2016, looming uncertainties around the world continued to overshadow the development of the global
economy, and amid a highly complex environment, China’s economy trod an arduous path. As a leading player in
China’s environmental protection industry, the Group has remained receptive to market trends and made evident
its determination to push ahead through the difficult times facing the country. With a bold vision, the Group has
continued to make solid progress and surmounted every challenge to deliver stellar results for the market and its
investors.

ANEFREEEEEERLREIARANESTS(EFSDIFRY  HERE/SHE  AARAKRR( KRR AIE
BE -BHEE ATFRTELAEEERERMIANELEELEREARNZHE |

TR -RNFERRERRTHEEEARIE XA PELEEGEEMNRETRENT - ERATPERRITENEED
¥ AEEERED  HRBR  BRZER  UBRBSEREERNT ATENREEXLT —OHEBNHNES -
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During the year under review, the Group was included into the Dow Jones Sustainability Emerging Markets Index,
which was an acknowledgement of its outstanding performance in sustainable development and its strong sense
of social responsibility. Furthermore, it was the only mainland Chinese and Hong Kong company selected to be a
constituent of the Dow Jones Sustainability World Index. The Company was also chosen as a constituent stock
of the Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability Index for the third consecutive year; and remained a constituent of
several important indices, such as the MSCI China Index, Hang Seng China-Affiliated Corporations Index and
Hang Seng China (Hong Kong-listed) 100 Index. The Group also won over ten accolades in mainland China,
including the Best Social Responsibility Brand, Top 10 Green Companies in China and the China Management
Science Award. It also maintained its leading position on the list of Top 10 Influential Solid Waste Treatment
Enterprises in China.

During the year under review, the Group received widespread recognition both at home and abroad for its
strengths in the energy from waste sector. During the year, it was invited by Columbia University to collaborate
on the development of global waste-to-energy project standards, and was also invited to lead the development
of the United Nations’ public-private-partnership standards on global energy from waste projects; both of which
have further expanded the Group’s influence and voice in the global market.

During the year under review, the Group continued to expand its geographical and business footprints. In
alignment with China’s “One Belt One Road” initiative, the Group secured Can Tho Waste-to-energy Project in
Vietnam and acquired Novago sp. z 0.0., a solid waste treatment company in Poland. During the year under
review, the Group obtained 44 new environmental protection projects, which commanded an investment of more
than RMB14.4 billion, setting another record in terms of both total number of new projects and total investment.
The Group has secured a total of 213 environmental protection projects, which are located across 17 provinces
and municipalities and in over 80 counties and cities across China so far. The total investment into these projects
amounted to over RMB53.2 billion, an increase of 36%. The Group’s strong project pipeline will ensure a
sufficient base from which to fuel the Group’s next round of development.

CEFERN AEEEREAFEZRNSEMSEEFAUNEERE Y LBEERH T HERRAEERER
AR > WIERTEAMMEEE - —RARMABBHAIFKERRENEY  EEF-FEMELTREZRD
EEBAOM] - AL IMSCIRRHEEH]  [BEEFBEPECLEEBNOBR IR MELFTE(EFE LH)10052
EEZRBOKME - lH AEBERANESTRESEEERER  FETESKEEELE  THREENSRE T
ZIRGE - WHBERTEBEBRTETARENILEEH -

CIEFER  ARBEE [BEZER IRENEESINBEAINENEZRA - FRZBEE At 5 K2R HIE 7
REBEARE  IBERGTEHE BB EGLIRPPPRE  E—PMATHERR LT ENMELE -

CEFER  AEEHOBEREIMEBRIATERER  BEEAR [—F K IBREE KRG EEFENRESE
BB ME#Novago Bl BB IR IA B - FRAHMIL44ERREHER REFBBARK 14487 - HEREERELRE
BIELHS - 2t - AEEBEEEBERNITEREED - 80ZE%KT - RESHERFIBA213MH - AREBARE
5321BTT * 1ER36% » AT —WMEREHR T REIEB#H#E
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Chairman’s Statement EfE{ &

During the year under review, the Group fully implemented a new management structure, and put in place 2
major systems, namely the ESHS management system and risk management system. Meanwhile, the Group’s
4 major business segments witnessed notable levels of growth via competing with each other. Revenue of core
businesses grew 64% to HK$13.971 billion, exceeding HK$10 billion. Profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company amounted to HK$2,784,863,000 (2015: HK$2,084,888,000), representing a growth of approximately
34% over 2015.

Given the Group’s continuous rapid and stable growth, satisfactory operating results, healthy financial position,
and its long-term sustainable development, the Board has proposed to pay the Shareholders a final dividend of
HK13.0 cents per share. Together with the interim dividend of HK7.5 cents per share in 2016, the total dividends
for the year amounted to HK20.5 cents per share (2015: HK18.5 cents per share).

I would like to extend my gratitude to the management and all staff members of the Group for their dedication
and outstanding contribution over the past year! My sincere thanks also go to all Shareholders, the Board, as well
as various circles of society from mainland China and Hong Kong, for their staunch support to the Group!

Dreams inspire hard work and practical action leads to success. Looking forward, the Group will remain as
ambitious as always, and will strive to foster new engines and drivers for growth. With the aim of improving the
ecosystem, and conserving clear water and blue skies, the Group will ensure smooth sailing as it strives to reach
its next level of success.

EREEERN  AEEXEHTHNEEEEUREWE [ESHSIMERESEMALER - MAXBREH2REIAR
RAES » FREEBIAEHBEA00ET AR » EHE130.718T » £ E64% : BRAATIERITA AJEG BT
2,784,863,0007C( — T — R4 : #B%2,084,888,0007T) * B - T — RIBR4I34% o

ARAEEREFRBROBRBY  REFNKLEEREEOPBRR  TEBIAKENRATHERR EFaH
ARRIRERAREER13.081 - ER-F— A FHHRESHR7.58 - 2FRER/ER2068II(ZF—0%F :
FA18.5%4l) °

ANEASEEEENZ2BBTBE - FONSNIHERERERRTRORS | A TARER NN BAHER
EEXgXE  AMEEBHERRALRTIROEN |

BREATLE EBRREARAK RERK  AEEG—WEE - WIZARRE - TEHSIZE - HENDELE RUSLERE
RIE - BRBKEXGWEM -

Cal YUNGE

FEE

Chairman

B

Hong Kong, 28 February 2017
B —E—+tFA=+N\H
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Chief Executive Officer’s Report 7B EHRE

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS %ol fE £

Operating Results &% % 4&

In 2016, with the global economy remaining weak, many countries encountered challenges such as low growth
rates, low interest rates, a decline in trade and a low-growth equilibrium. Various political and economic issues,
such as Brexit, the rise of protectionism and a strengthening US dollar, have increased uncertainty on the global
stage. China has made remarkable progress as part of its cross-century development and reform after years of
economic restructuring.

The year of 2016 was the inaugural year of China’s 13th Five-year Plan, in which green development remained a
top priority. Accordingly, the central government launched a series of focused and more specific environmental
protection policies which have had the effect of opening up unprecedented development opportunities for the
green low-carbon economy. These include the 13th Five-Year Plan for Eco-environmental Protection, 13th Five-
year Development Plan for Renewable Energy, 13th Five-year Development Plan for National Strategic Emerging
Industries, and the National Framework of the 13th Five-year Scientific and Technological Development Plan
for Environmental Protection, etc. Meanwhile, China also reformed its environmental management system, with
the Ministry of Environmental Protection of the PRC having established 3 departments dedicated to water, air
and soil protection to enhance the implementation of the prevention and control plans relevant to these areas.
This will improve the country’s environmental management and support China’s long-term goal of improving the
overall quality of its environment.

“ERF o EREEDNAKS - BIER - BNE  REZMESGNEZ AR T DEREHNE - ZEBIER
BHREIEDNRE  ITERSTLERRBERRENTERLERBN T HEN - PELBZFNRELEEN
B ERBERKAORE  wEKE - SBETLNERMES -

“EAERER A=A RENARZE  HREBRRKACERXBERRINET 2E - PRIBMAIFMBHEL S
MTt=e AIARRGERERS | [AIBARKRERIT=c AJHRE ] [TH= AIERBRUEFEERERRE ]
[BEIRRERET= e AIRRZERMABME 1T Z0AL  EAHHENRRBER - AR EIREESR T ZR1H
BRRM - HURE  BRTHRREEVRETHS  BRRFEHAZK - KR - DB=ZAREEEAR - AEH
ERCZEKR - KRR - DE=ZESAPDETHEE - BRARREEKY  UEARREEARNENRHER -
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The year of 2016 was also the first year of the Group’s next phase of development, the roots of which are
based on the country’s 13th Five-year Plan, and was also the first year during which the Group introduced a
new management structure to facilitate the concurrent growth of its 4 major business segments. During the year
under review, the Group’s management teams at all levels and staff members were committed to bold visions
which helped them overcome every challenge dutifully. With this, the Group achieved notable achievements
across all aspects of its development and concluded the year with exceptional results, which creates positive
momentum for the Group’s next round of growth.

In terms of business growth, thirteen years of exploration and development meant that during the first year of
the new round of development, the Group’s revenue surpassed RMB10 billion, making it the first solid waste
treatment enterprise in China’s environmental protection industry to deliver this level of annual revenue. It was
also an important year for the construction of the Group’s projects, with 2016 witnessing the highest number
of projects to commence and complete construction. During the year under review, the Group commenced the
construction of 39 projects, while completing the construction and commencing the operations of 23 projects,
with the number of project construction sites reaching as many as 62 at one stage. As a result, numerous
national and provincial high quality projects were completed, some of which now serve as hubs for environmental
protection education, popularisation of environmental science, demonstration sites for the circular economy, and
as industrial tourism attractions. So far, the Group has expanded its business into over 80 counties and cities
across 17 provinces and municipalities in China; while foraying into overseas markets such as Vietnam, Poland
and Germany. It has also explored new business areas, including the construction of sponge cities, river-basin
ecological restoration and the harmless treatment of animal carcasses, among others. During the year under
review, the Group fully developed the external sales market of its environmental protection equipment, with its
self-developed core equipment becoming one of the top picks in the environmental protection industry.

“EAFRAKEESER [+« AIBRRAIERFT —HBRENVRARBZE 12 AKEERANEERBEMTA
EBBABEFRERNE—F - QEE—F FAEESRERENEREIESEE  UBREBNSREEAT X7 @
TEHEBUSBERY - KRBT —RENKEE - ST HEENERAIET RIFBE -

WEBERE - ¢Elﬂﬁ+:¢m%%%§-E%—ﬁ%%ZE&%EﬁWéiE%k%'$%ﬁ%¢ﬁ%%§¥
FRSEWABHNEEREREGE - —T—A"FHRYAMTAEBEIRESN [ XF] FREKEIEFFAIEEY
BIFEEL & - CIEBEEAN $$Iﬁ%1@%ﬁawﬁvﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁamﬁ'EE@ RTh—E % E621(E - — it E
RMEAREBE TREERLE - —EAERRHE  RERBY  BREERGM T EREEHEEERK - ¥5REARES
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With regards to market expansion, the Group set new records in terms of the number and investment amount
of projects secured during the year under review. In total, 44 projects were secured which commanded
investment of approximately RMB14.4 billion. Throughout 2016, the Group also continuously pushed forward
the growth of its domestic business. Meanwhile, in the spirit of China’s “One Belt One Road” initiative, the
Group secured Vietham’s Can Tho Waste-to-energy Project (“Can Tho Project”) and Poland’s Novago sp. z 0.0.
Waste Treatment Project (“Novago Project”). Can Tho Project is the first overseas household waste-to-energy
project that the Group will be invested in, constructed and operated. Thanks to this development, the Group
will also be able to introduce its environmental protection technologies and core equipment abroad. The
agreement to secure Novago Project originated after Chinese President Xi Jinping’s visit to Poland, which saw
the two countries strengthen their cooperation on environmental protection and renewable energy areas. The
groundbreaking transaction was the largest acquisition by a Chinese company in central and eastern Europe’s
environmental protection industry, and lays a solid foundation for the Group’s future expansion in European
markets.

As for technological innovation, years of continuous efforts, commitment to independent R&D and collaborations
with institutions and research institutes as part of the development of its envirotech segment led to the Group
developing fully self-made grate furnaces, gas purification systems, leachate treatment systems and automated
control systems last year. Its first 750-tonne/day grate furnaces and gas purification systems were put into
operation at the Wujiang Waste-to-energy Project (“Wujiang Project”) in Jiangsu, the gas emission levels of
which are above the designed standard, and have filled a void in China’s self-developed high-capacity grate
furnace manufacturing segment for household waste incineration. In addition, the Group’s greentech business,
driven by innovation, has witnessed exponential growth and has expanded into various business areas over the
course of a few years, involving much hard work. From biomass direct combustion projects to electricity and
heat cogeneration projects and from hazardous waste landfill projects to hazardous waste diversified treatment
projects, it also initiated the urban-rural integration project model in China’s environmental protection industry.

RMSHRE  AEBREBEFERNEENHBELAEURKRELEFRARES S 2FAREEE 4 BREH
ARB144ET - BE—F AEBEANEBRFELE  RANBEERR [ —F K ZREE - 23 IESMEFENR
HEEB ([FHEEE B Novago sp. z 0.0.EEEEEIEE ([NovagolE B |) - FHIEE AREEEEIMNGE - R
MEEME—ELEFTRBEEIEE - NER T ALRERKEMERZOEENEING T - NovagolHE 2HEBEREFEE
MFHREREE  BRRERNERSIEARIAEELNE  FTEAEZEEZENMAAIENE - hE B P EAERPE
RARMHERAN—EWREIER - AASBERRE - PHBEBNTISIT T TRERNER -

fesialF L& > REMXBBAZFNRMIE  BEREEIMREESTHEANER  REERS  EREER
F;PRREEES  BERELENEREIEAEBE - FRAERTREE - 54750, ANESEMZRF LR
SEIHRTINRFHERE ([RTEB ) EEXARAEE - ERMESE2MENRTER B TEEARTELRE
HPRERENZR - I AEEGERFEBERANEDER  BENEEFNE S RAEVEEREEIR
BHE - HERLRHEINZTRE  HHRXAETERFRITERLME —BIRER  BRXK2RBEAERRE
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In terms of management, the Group attaches great importance to the establishment of long-term risk prevention
mechanisms. During the year under review, it implemented a more professional environmental, safety, health
and social responsibility (“ESHS”) management system and risk management system, which have promoted
the Group’s organic growth. By focusing on the ESHS management system and risk management system to
strengthen administration procedures, and by learning from advanced international managerial experience,
the Group managed to construct and operate projects in a standardised and sophisticated manner. The
implementation of the two systems, designed to disclose information, has enabled the Group to precisely control
and effectively prevent risks, while holistic efforts to promote the two systems have driven the Group’s organic
growth and brought out the full potential; laying a solid foundation from which the Group can evolve into an
international brand from a domestic one, as well as into an excellent enterprise from a common one.

As far as social responsibility is concerned, the Group embarked on its mission and fulfilled its responsibilities
as a conscientious environmental protection company. Through the construction and operations of numerous
environmental protection projects, it has made notable contributions towards improving the environment and has
become a role model for the environmental protection industry. During the year under review, the Group reached
its goal of implementing its “Four Steps” environmental information disclosure plan according to schedule and
in the spirit of being socially responsible. As part of this effort, it took the lead in disclosing all of its operating
waste-to-energy projects’ average gas emission levels on an hourly basis, and opening its operating waste-to-
energy projects to the public, which boosted the Group’s information transparency and disclosure standards,
and set a new benchmark for the environmental protection industry. The Group has always adhered to the
development philosophy of “Producing Quality Projects and Building a Quality Brand” as a key principle when
constructing all of its projects, and is committed to maintaining the stable operations of its various projects which
comply with discharge standards. As a result, the Group has received a high level of recognition from society and
the market. During the year under review, the Group received over 69,500 domestic and foreign visitors from all
walks of life to its environmental protection projects in total. Seeing is believing, and with that in mind, the visits
have helped the Group win the trust of different groups in society, in addition to receiving a great deal of praise
and acknowledgement from the international community.
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Thirteen years of exploration has paid off with the Group now a leading player in the international waste-to-
energy industry both in terms of size and sustainable development that has been globally recognised. During
20186, the Group was included in the Dow Jones Sustainability World Index for its remarkable performance in
sustainable development, and was the only mainland Chinese company and Hong Kong listed company to be
added to the 2016 index. The Group was also selected as a constituent stock of the Hang Seng Corporate
Sustainability Index for the third year running. Such achievements are a testament to the management’s
commitment to sustainable development with the Group serving as an example for its peers in China and Hong
Kong. In addition, Everbright Water, a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, was included as a constituent
stock of the MSCI China Small Cap Index. These honors demonstrate the extraordinary achievements of the
Group in terms of results performance, corporate governance and management quality, and the wide recognition
it has received from the investment community and society.

While it has consolidated its own development, the Group has also taken an active role in shaping the standards
of the environmental protection industry as a whole and successfully helping to establish relevant industrial
standards across the world. During the year, the Group was invited by the United Nations Economic Commission
for Europe International PPP (Public-Private Partnership) Centre of Excellence to lead the development of the
United Nations’ PPP standards on waste-to-energy projects. Meanwhile, it was invited by Columbia University
to promote the development of the World Bank’s guidelines for waste-to-energy projects, and was involved in
the development of over 10 technical guidelines and standards for environmental protection launched by the
Ministry of Environmental Protection of the PRC, the Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development of the
PRC, the National Development and Reform Commission of the PRC and the Ministry of Commerce of the PRC.
Furthermore, it successfully applied for permission to establish the first national key engineering laboratory for
waste incineration with Zhejiang University. All these have not only enabled the Group to improve the overall
development of the entire industry in collaboration with its peers, but also enhanced its influence within the
industry and internationally; further highlighting the Group’s commitment to corporate social responsibility.
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The Group has actively participated in and provided support to environmental protection charitable campaigns
globally. It has been the lead sponsor of the global environmental protection campaign Earth Hour for 3
consecutive years; it co-organised the Fourth World Environment Day with the China Ecological Civilization
Research and Promotion Association and Beijing Forestry University on 5 June 2016, which took place in
more than 100 universities in China and the outcome was very successful; and the Group has built up a good
reputation within society and among the public for its high level of commitment to its social responsibilities as
well as its management philosophy. During the year under review, the Group received awards, including Best
Social Responsibility Brand in China, being one of the Top 10 Green Companies in China, an Asian Excellence
Recognition Award, a Hong Kong Outstanding Enterprises Award and first place in the Top Ten Influential Solid
Waste Treatment Enterprises in China.

In terms of operating results, the Group continued to facilitate the independent operations of its 4 major business
segments during the year under review with outstanding performance. The Group’s revenue, profit before
tax and profit attributable to equity holders of the Company all registered satisfactory growth. The Group’s
construction service revenue hits a record high, as the management of projects at the preparatory stage was
strengthened and construction works were carried out steadily. The Group also saw continuous growth in
revenue from operation services as it continued to reduce costs, expand its income streams and enhance
efficiency. During the year under review, the Group’s consolidated revenue amounted to HK$13,971,204,000,
an increase of 64% over HK$8,528,393,000 in 2015. The EBITDA amounted to HK$5,051,261,000, an increase
of 35% over HK$3,754,449,000 in 2015. Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for 2016 was
HK$2,784,863,000, 34% more than HK$2,084,888,000 recorded in 2015. Excluding the gain on sale of listed
securities of HK$92,711,000 in 2015, profit attributable to equity holders recorded an increase of 40%. Basic
earnings per share of 2016 were HK62.12 cents, HK15.62 cents more than HK46.50 cents in 2015. The Group
has ready access to financing channels, with an abundance of cash on hand which continues to rise, and it
performed well in all financial indicators.
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During the year under review, the Group continued to expand its financing channels to boost its capital strength
and provide diverse, long-term and stable financial support for it to progress to its next stage of development,
and it also actively adjusted its foreign currency exposure in light of the Renminbi’s fluctuations. The Group
obtained new loan facilities of HK$18 billion in 2016 and also obtained various kinds of financial subsidies from
the PRC government totaling RMB230 million. In addition, during the year under review, the Group signed the
Strategic Cooperation Agreement to Provide Green Finance Support for Ecological Environment Construction
with China Development Bank Corporation (“CDB”). As part of the agreement, CDB will provide a total of RMB20
billion to the Group during the 13th Five-year Plan period. With abundant capital reserves, the Group is well
placed financially for its next round of development. As at 31 December 2016, the Group had cash and bank
balances of HK$7,037,597,000, a reasonable gearing level and a healthy financial position.

The Group remains dedicated to enhancing value for its Shareholders. To reward the Shareholders for their
support and taking into account the Group’s need to achieve long-term sustainable development, the Board has
proposed to pay a final dividend of HK13.0 cents per share to the Shareholders. The total dividends for the year
are to be HK20.5 cents per share (2015: HK18.5 cents per share).
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Environmental Protection Business B R %%

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had secured 213 environmental protection projects with a total investment
of approximately RMB53.212 billion and completed the construction of 130 projects, which commanded
around RMB25.681 billion in investment. A total 39 projects were under construction which commanded an
investment of about RMB14.462 billion. The projects in the preparatory stage commanded a total investment of
approximately RMB13.069 billion.

In 2016, the Group carried out construction works of 62 projects commanding a total investment of
approximately RMB19.378 billion. Among which, 23 projects completed construction and commenced
operations during the year under review, including 5 waste-to-energy projects, 1 food waste treatment project, 7
waste water treatment projects (4 of them completed construction but yet to commence commercial operation),
1 reusable water project (project completed construction but yet to commence commercial operation), 4
hazardous waste treatment projects and 5 biomass projects (completed construction and began to generate
revenue), commanding a total investment of approximately RMB4.916 billion. Meanwhile, as at 31 December
2016, 39 projects were under construction including 17 waste-to-energy projects, 1 food waste treatment
project, 5 waste water treatment projects, 1 sponge city construction project, 1 river training project, 2
hazardous waste treatment projects and 12 biomass projects, commanding a total investment of approximately
RMB14.462 billion.

During the year under review, the environmental energy, environmental water and greentech projects
generated a total revenue of HK$13,425,088,000, of which construction service revenue increased by 83% to
HK$8,987,199,000, operation service revenue increased by 31% to HK$2,854,444,000, and finance income
increased by 22% to HK$1,583,445,000 as compared with 2015. The proportions of the revenue are as follows:
construction service revenue 67 %, operation service revenue 21% and finance income 12%.
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Major financial data from the environmental energy, environmental water and greentech projects in 2016 is
summarised in the table below:

“EAREFRERER RRKBMRCRFIAR ZEZMBETENT

2015 (Restated)
Z5-1F (2§)
Environmental  Environmental
Energy Water Greentech
Projects Projects Projects Total
RRWEEE  BRKBER  RERRER ait

HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000
RETT AR AR AR

Revenue e
- Congtruction services  —EiER#% 3,715,228 591,890 608,731 4915849
-Operation senvices ~ —B2MRE 880,281 755,365 549,260 2,184,906
- Finance income — BB 806,087 467,89 18,690 1292672
5,401,59 1,815,150 1,176,681 8,303,427
EBITDA BHls - HE -
TEREHM
2 2670199 795,955 436,460 3000614

The Group dedicates equal importance to generating both economic and social benefits, committing itself
to the task of environmental protection and fulfilling its responsibilities to set new records in all of its energy
conservation and emission reduction indicators. During the year under review, the Group processed 9,007,000
tonnes of household waste and 98,000 tonnes of hazardous waste, 728,000 tonnes of agricultural waste and
generated 3,654,252,000 kWh of green electricity. This output can support the annual electricity consumption
for 3,045,000 households, and is equivalent to saving 1,462,000 tonnes of standard coal and can reduce carbon
dioxide (CO,) emissions by 3,864,000 tonnes. Meanwhile, the Group treated 1,148,279,000 m?® of waste water,
1,724,000 m?® of leachate produced from waste-to-energy plants and reduced COD emissions by 293,000
tonnes. Since the Group’s first environmental protection project commenced operation in 2005, it has processed
an accumulated 37,167,000 tonnes of household waste and 451,000 tonnes of hazardous waste, 2,450,000
tonnes of agricultural waste and generated 13,553,342,000 kWh of green electricity, which can fulfill the annual
electricity consumption for 11,294,000 households and is equivalent to saving 5,421,000 tonnes of standard
coal, reducing CO, emissions by 15,459,000 tonnes and preventing 1,761,934,000 trees from being cut down.
The Group has treated an accumulated 5,811,828,000 m? of waste water, 6,890,000 m? of leachate produced
from waste-to-energy plants and reduced COD emissions by 2,028,000 tonnes.

AEB—BEURBREUSRLCELEYETE  BTFTREEETES SRS EEZBAEL 2 & - A% E
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ENVIROTECH — - B3Rl
An innovative company needs to have the foresight to look to the future rather than only being satisfied
with its current achievements, and it must constantly innovate and be motivated rather than constricting
itself to the rules. The Group, which has leveraged innovation and reform to fuel its current phase of
development, always seeks to enhance its core competencies through technological innovation as part of its
transformation into a modern enterprise.

In early 2016, the Group recruited talent with expertise in technology from home and abroad as part
of a restructuring of the technology management team, which will strengthen the Group’s capacity for
technology-related R&D and innovation. This has helped to lay a good foundation for the establishment of
the Group’s technological R&D platform, which will spur the growth of other business segments. During
the year under review, the Group acquired Jiangsu Design & Research Institute and the Nanjing Science
and Technology Building, established Everbright Envirotech (China) Limited, entered a comprehensive
cooperation agreement with Zhejiang University, set up the Environmental Energy Research Center and
actively engaged in terms of international technological cooperation and exchange. Through organizational
restructuring, the envirotech business now comprises 3 research institutes in the fields of incineration
technology, environmental technology and electrical control technology, as well as an information control
center and a technical standards analysis and testing center. This, as well as its “R&D — Design and
Consultancy — Equipment Manufacturing” model will be a springboard for the Group’s next round of
development through technological innovation.

During the year under review, the acquisition of Jiangsu Design & Research Institute allowed the Group to
offer turnkey design solutions; leveraging these light assets will help to promote the Group’s development.
The Jiangsu Design & Research Institute not only has compiled feasibility reports and construction drawing
designs for internal projects, but also has secured a number of project design and external engineering
consultancy contracts with a total contract value of approximately RMB12.60 million during the year.
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In terms of equipment manufacturing, in accordance with the pace of construction for the Group’s projects,
the Group completed the production and commissioning of 18 sets of incinerators, 15 sets of gas purification
systems and 12 sets of leachate treatment systems during the year. Meanwhile, the Group has fully tapped
the external sales market and secured contracts for the external sales of 34 entire sets of equipment, the
total contract value of which amounted to approximately RMB581 million. The opportunities presented by
China’s “One Belt One Road” initiative and favorable policies for high-end equipment manufacturing have
successfully supported the Group’s move into the first-tier of the environmental protection equipment
manufacturing industry with its self-developed core equipment, helping the Group to raise the profile and
reputation of the “Made by Everbright International” brand.

In terms of R&D and collaboration with higher education institutions and research institutes, the Group has
adopted a “stepping out and bringing in” approach to enhance exchange and cooperation with entities
worldwide, which will provide the Group with a global perspective and improve its technology. During the
year under review, the Group successfully pushed forward with major R&D projects and was granted 37
patents, of which 10 were invention patents and 27 were utility invention patents. The Group will continue
to step up efforts to advance its R&D capabilities to achieve business growth, support its expansion and
develop sustainably.
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ENVIRONMENTAL ENERGY = + RREER
A. Environmental Energy B - B{REER

Environmental energy maintained its fast-paced growth momentum as well as its leading position
in the industry. With its strong sense of social responsibility, the business made a leap forward in
terms of information transparency and disclosure standards, which have set new benchmarks for the
environmental protection industry.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had 60 waste-to-energy projects, 2 methane-to-energy projects,
1 sludge treatment and disposal project, and 2 food waste treatment projects, with a total investment
of approximately RMB26.933 billion. These facilities are designed with an annual household waste
processing capacity of approximately 18,596,750 tonnes, which can generate annual on-grid electricity
of approximately 5,788,110,000 kWh. The annual sludge treatment capacity is approximately 18,250
tonnes, while the annual food waste treatment capacity is approximately 73,000 tonnes.

In 2016, the Group secured 14 waste-to-energy projects, which commanded a total investment of
approximately RMB6.445 billion, with an increase in designed daily household waste processing
capacity of 13,050 tonnes, boosting the total daily waste processing capacity to 50,950 tonnes, which is
the highest in the industry. New projects at home included the Jiangsu Jiangyin Waste-to-energy Project
(“Jiangyin Project”) Phase Ill (1,000 tonnes/day), Shandong Linshu Waste-to-energy Project (500 tonnes/
day), Shandong Laiyang Waste-to-energy Project (600 tonnes/day), Hunan Xiangxiang Waste-to-energy
Project (500 tonnes/day), Shandong Zouping Waste-to-energy Project (700 tonnes/day), Shandong
Fei County Waste-to-energy Project (600 tonnes/day), Shandong Weifang Waste-to-energy Project
(“Weifang Project”) Phase Il (500 tonnes/day), Shandong Jinan Waste-to-energy Plant Expansion Project
(750 tonnes/day), Henan Taikang Waste-to-energy Project (700 tonnes/day), Guangdong Boluo Waste-
to-energy Project Phase Il (350 tonnes/day), Jiangsu Wuxi Xidong Waste-to-energy Project Entrusted
Operation (2,000 tonnes/day), Jiangsu Changzhou Xinbei Waste-to-energy Project Phase Il (700 tonnes/
day), and the Dismantling and Redevelopment Project of the Jiangsu Suzhou Waste-to-energy Project
(“Suzhou Project”) (3,750 tonnes/day). The Group also won the Can Tho Project (400 tonnes/day), its
first overseas waste-to-energy project.
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The positive results of market expansion have been underpinned by the stable operations and
compliance with discharge standards of the Group’s operating projects. In light of the increasing
popularity of the Not-in-My-Back-Yard (NIMBY) phenomenon, the Group well recognises the importance
of increasing the transparency of its project operations, respecting the public’s right to know and
proactively welcoming public supervision to increase the general public’s understanding of the waste-
to-energy industry as well as resolve NIMBY issues. At the same time, the Group also looks to continue
strengthening its operational management standards by persistently putting pressure on itself. In
2015, the Group became the first company in the industry to disclose emission standards and the
environmental management information of its operating waste-to-energy projects as part of its “Four
Steps” disclosure plan. The Group carried out the plan as scheduled and successfully achieved its
goal of disclosing environmental impact assessments and publishing the average levels of its operating
waste-to-energy projects’ emission standards on a monthly, daily and hourly basis in less than one and
a half years. This set an example and new benchmark for the industry in terms of information disclosure.

Regarding operation management, all environmental protection projects of the Group comply with the
industry’s highest construction and operations standards. The gas emissions of the Group’s waste-to-
energy projects fully comply with the Euro 2010 Standard, while leachate after treatment is in line with
the national grade 1 emission standard. All project companies, through intercompany competition, have
optimised maintenance plans and the management of energy-intensive leachate treatment, induced
draft fans, circulating pumps and feed water pumps. The result of this has been a continuous increase
in aggregate average electricity generation per tonne of waste and a decline in the comprehensive
auxiliary power consumption rate. Such organic growth enables the Group’s projects to surpass all their
operation standard targets, and offers the environmental energy business enormous room to grow.
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In terms of project construction, the Group had 5 waste-to-energy projects and 1 food waste treatment
project that completed construction and commenced operations during the year, including the Hainan
Sanya Waste-to-energy Project (“Sanya Project”) Phase Il, Hunan Yiyang Waste-to-energy Project
(“Yiyang Project”), Wujiang Project, Shandong Tengzhou Waste-to-energy Project Phase |, Jiangsu
Pei County Waste-to-energy Project Phase |, and Shandong Laiwu Food Waste Treatment Project.
Yiyang Project is the Group’s first environmental protection project to commence operations in
Hunan Province, while Sanya Project Phase Il was able to commence operations 104 days ahead of
schedule, simultaneously ensuring the safety of construction on the premises and the maintenance of
Sanya Project Phase I's operations; establishing itself as another role model in terms of the duration
of construction. A total of 15 projects, comprising 14 waste-to-energy projects and 1 food waste
treatment project, commenced construction during the year, namely the Zhejiang Hangzhou Waste-to-
energy Project, Anhui Ma’anshan Waste-to-energy Project, Shandong Laiwu Waste-to-energy Project,
Jiangyin Project Phase lll, Nanjing Gaochun Waste-to-energy Project, Shandong Xintai Waste-to-energy
Project, Jiangsu Sugian Waste-to-energy Project Phase I, Henan Lankao Waste-to-energy Project,
Shandong Ju County Waste-to-energy Project, Hunan Yongzhou Waste-to-energy Project, Shandong
Zoucheng Waste-to-energy Project, Henan Xinzheng Waste-to-energy Project, Guangdong Huidong
Waste-to-energy Project, Weifang Project Phase Il and Jiangsu Sugian Food Waste Treatment Project.
These projects, together with Jiangsu Nanjing Waste-to-energy Project (“Nanjing Project”) Phase |l
and Shandong Pingdu Waste-to-energy Project, which were under construction during the year, are
expected to complete construction and commence operations between 2017 and 2018.

To ensure “high standards and first-class quality” of investment, construction, operation and
management of all its projects, the Group continues to shoulder the responsibility for setting industry
standards. With the successful application of grate furnace, gas emission purification and the third
generation leachate treatment technologies, newly completed waste-to-energy projects have achieved
significant results in operation standards and efficiency. The 750-tonne/day grate furnace installed
in Wujiang Project is China’s first homebuilt large-scale grate furnace and has filled the void in the
manufacturing of large-scale household waste incineration equipment in the country, which is also the
first dismantling and redevelopment project in waste-to-energy industry in China.
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The Group strives to integrate its projects with the surrounding environment and focus on building hubs
for environmental protection education, popularisation of environmental science, demonstration sites for
the circular economy, and industrial tourism attractions. During the year under review, Suzhou Project
was named National Environmental Science Hub; Weifang Project was awarded “National Outstanding
Construction Award 2016-2017”; Nanjing Project and Zhejiang Ningbo Waste-to-energy Project
received the provincial level AAA grade recognitions in terms of harmless treatment of household waste;
Jiangsu Pizhou Waste-to-energy Project was named the provincial environmental science education hub
and industrial tourism site; Shandong Shouguang Waste-to-energy Project was named the provincial
industrial tourist attraction; and Sanya Project was named the provincial environmental science
education hub. These honors not only reflect that the Group has earned recognition from different
stakeholders in the society, but also motivate the Group towards excellence.

During the year under review, the Group’s environmental energy projects processed a total of 8,933,000
tonnes household waste and generated a total on-grid electricity of 2,473,110,000 kWh, an increase
of 29% and 31% respectively as compared with 2015. Environmental energy projects contributed an
EBITDA of HK$3,299,687,000, an increase of 24% as compared with the previous year. Environmental
energy projects contributed the net profit attributable to the Group of HK$2,083,650,000, an increase
of 25% as compared with the previous year. The increase in profit was mainly due to the recognition of
construction service revenue and costs saved on various construction projects, as well as an increase in
the operation service revenue due to continued growth in operating projects’ processing volumes during
the year under review.
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Major operating and financial data of the environmental energy projects in 2016 is summarised in the
table below:

—E-NFERREFREACEEELHPKERDT ¢

2015
- wE
(Restated)
(BE#H)
Environmental energy projects BIREEREB

Waste processing volume (tonne) B ERIEE (HE) 6,928,000
On-grid electricity (MWh) HREE (JKRE) 1,883,669

EBITDA (HK$’000) BRAES - BIE TER
BRI BN OBETIT) 2,670,199

. Environmental Protection Industrial Parks 2 - BREXE

The Group actively encourages environmental protection. Under the principle of “Implementing Projects
with One Success Followed by Another”, the Group works closely with relevant local government
authorities to design and build environmental protection industrial parks, making full use of local
resources within the park, sharing infrastructure and optimising available land resources for planning of
various kind of environmental protection projects. The goal of this exercise is to make the comprehensive
recycling of solid waste as efficient as possible, enhance energy conservation and reduce emissions
efficiently, so as to make it easier for the governments and enterprises to implement a centralised
management system and ultimately achieve Nil Discharge in pollution. The parks are established as
modern environmental protection industrial parks and educational hubs for environmental protection.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had a total of 11 environmental protection industrial parks situated
in Suzhou, Changzhou, Sugian, Zhenjiang New District, Yixing, Lianyungang Xuwei New District, Nanjing
and Xinyi of Jiangsu Province, Weifang of Shandong Province, Ganzhou of Jiangxi Province and Lankao
County of Henan Province.
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ENVIRONMENTAL WATER =  IR{RKFHE

As at 31 December 2016, Everbright Water, of which the Group owns 74.72% and is listed on the mainboard
of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited, has 70 waste water treatment projects, 5 reusable
water projects, 1 sponge city construction project, 1 river training project, 2 waste water source heat pump
projects and 1 surface water BT Project, commanding a total investment of approximately RMB10.990
billion. The projects are designed to have an annual waste water treatment capacity of approximately
1,538,475,000 m?, a total annual reusable water volume of 29,784,000 m?, and are built to offer heating and
cooling services to an area of 312,000 m? via the waste water source heat pump projects.

In 2016, after a series of acquisitions and organic growth throughout the year, Everbright Water further
enhanced its market development model, which is based on the locational advantages of its existing
projects, and established 4 regional management centers in the east of Shandong, west of Shandong,
Jiangsu and Liaoning. The implementation of the regional management model aims to improve the
integration of resources and facilitate internal synergy in every region. Everbright Water has also expanded
into new business sectors, including river-basin ecological restoration projects and sponge city construction
projects among others, to promote the steady growth of business. Furthermore, the integration after
acquisition was progressed as scheduled, which raised the discharge and treatment standards of the
acquired projects to higher levels.

During the year under review, Everbright Water submitted an application to the Shanghai Stock Exchange
and the China Securities Regulatory Commission (“CSRC”) for a proposed issuance of RMB-denominated
corporate bonds of up to RMB2.5 billion (subject to the CSRC’s approval) in a single tranche or multiple
tranches in the PRC to support its sustainable development. Upon the grant of regulator’s approvals and the
completion of the relevant registration process, Everbright Water expects to gain more financial support and
to lay a solid foundation for its future business plans.
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In terms of market development, Everbright Water secured 12 new projects in total, which increased
the Group’s daily waste water treatment capacity by 485,000 m® and commanded a total investment of
approximately RMB2.465 billion; all of which helped to gradually increase Everbright Water’s market share
in the waste water treatment market. Newly secured projects include the Shandong Zhanggiu Waste Water
Treatment Project (Plant 1) (50,000 mé/day), Shandong Zhangqgiu Waste Water Treatment Project (Plant 2)
(40,000 m®/day), Shandong Qingdao Waste Water Treatment Project (Maidao Plant) Upgrading (“Maidao
Upgrading Project”), Jiangsu Xinyi City Waste Water Treatment Project (“Xinyi City Project”) (70,000 m3/day)
and Upgrading Project, Jiangsu Xinyi Economic Development Zone Waste Water Treatment Project (“Xinyi
Economic Development Zone Project”) Phase | (10,000 m3/day) and Expansion Project (10,000 m?/day),
Shandong Ju County Shudong Waste Water Treatment Project (“Shudong Project”) (20,000 m®/day),
Jiangsu Nanjing Pukou Economic Development Zone Industrial Waste Water Treatment Project (“Pukou
Project”) Phase | (10,000 m®/day) and Henan Sanmenxia Waste Water Treatment Project Phase | Upgrading
(“Sanmenxia Project Phase | Upgrading”). Furthermore, Everbright Water secured new projects in new
business sectors, including the Jiangsu Zhenjiang Sponge City PPP Project (“Zhenjiang Sponge City
Project”), which involves a series of ecological restoration projects and a waste water treatment project that
has a treatment capacity of 275,000 m3/day; and Jiangsu Nanjing Municipal Water PPP Project (“Nanjing
Municipal Water Project”), which involves a number of river training projects, as well as project operation and
maintenance. The Zhenjiang Sponge City Project is one of the 16 sponge city pilot projects which will receive
financial support from the central government of the PRC, as jointly announced by the Ministry of Finance,
the Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development, and the Ministry of Water Resources of the PRC.
The launch of the Nanjing Municipal Water Project, Everbright Water’s first river training project, signaled its
further expansion into new business areas.
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In terms of project construction, during the year under review, a total of 7 waste water treatment
projects and 1 reusable water project completed construction, namely the Shandong Jinan Waste Water
Treatment Project (Plant 1) Expansion, Shandong Jinan Xike Waste Water Treatment Project (Plant 4)
Phase I, Jiangsu Wuzhong Chengnan Waste Water Treatment Project Phase Il and Upgrading, which
have already commenced operations; Liaoning Dalian Liangjiadian Waste Water Treatment Project Phase
I which completed construction; Beijing Daxing Tiantanghe Waste Water Treatment Project Phase Il and
Upgrading, Liaoning Pulandian Waste Water Treatment Project Phase | Expansion, Sanmenxia Project Phase
| Upgrading, which completed construction and are now running in compliance with discharge standard;
also, Jiangsu Nanjing Pukou Reusable Water Project Phase |, which completed construction and is now
undergoing a trial run. As at 31 December 2016, there were 7 projects under construction, including Xinyi
City Project Upgrading, Xinyi Economic Development Zone Project Expansion, Maidao Upgrading Project,
Shudong Project, Pukou Project Phase |, Zhenjiang Sponge City Project and Nanjing Municipal Water
Project.

During the year under review, the Group’s environmental water projects treated waste water of
1,148,279,000 m?®, an increase of 28% as compared with 2015. The environmental water projects
contributed an EBITDA of HK$843,973,000, an increase of 6% as compared with 2015. The environmental
water projects contributed the net profit attributable to the Group of HK$271,363,000, a decrease of 15%
as compared with 2015. The decrease was partly due to an exchange loss of HK$48,710,000 arising from
borrowings pegged to the US dollar as the Renminbi depreciated against the US dollar and such borrowings
have been fully settled in 2016. Moreover, there were additional tax expenses (including corporate income
tax and deferred tax) resulted from changes in the tax calculations of a project pursuant to the requirements
of the local tax bureau.
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Major operating and financial data of the environmental water projects in 2016 is summarised in the table
below:

“E-RERFPKBEBE ZIRELEMBERNT

2015
—T—hF
Environmental water projects RRKEIEHE
Waste water treatment volume KRB E (T oK)
('000 m®) 899,163
EBITDA (HK$'000) BFE - BB TER

B AN (EETIT) 795,955
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Greentech, driven by business innovation, witnessed exponential growth and efficiently completed all the
preparation work for its spin-off listing. This has laid a solid foundation from which it can further expand and
grow in the market.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had a total of 63 greentech projects, including 32 biomass projects,
22 hazardous waste treatment projects, 7 solar energy projects and 2 wind power projects, commanding a
total investment of approximately RMB13.956 billion. The aggregate annual designed processing capacity
of agricultural waste was approximately 6,199,800 tonnes; annual processing capacity of household waste
was approximately 1,387,000 tonnes; annual processing capacity of hazardous waste was approximately
439,000 tonnes; the annual on-grid electricity generation was approximately 4,677,806,000 kWh; and the
annual heat supply was approximately 1,613,700 tonnes.

Greentech is committed to exploring and achieving breakthroughs across new business areas as it pursues
organic growth and opens up room for its development; all of which has enabled it to stand out and swiftly
capture considerable market share. The Group initiated a unique business model of integrated biomass and
waste-to-energy projects, and is the only company to employ such integrated business model in China so
far. This business model is expected to not only maximise environmental service output but also lower the
overall project costs, thereby increasing the overall investment returns of the relevant projects. As at the end
of 2016, the Group ranked fourth in terms of aggregate biomass power generation designed capacity and
third in terms of aggregate hazardous waste treatment designed capacity in China for projects in operation,
under construction or at the preparatory stage, which has been achieved while maintaining a high level of
operational efficiency and delivering economies of scale.

HRERREFAXRBRAIMNSIEER  BERXGERBENEREY  USREMTKOF LEMOBTREETE -
RT—TZEMS LME - MK HEREE TEREER -

HE_Z—R"F+A=1+—H AEEHLBEIEKECRRIEE ' BEQEEMEIEE  22@EEEEER
AR EEA R2EAREBIER - BIREHARME139.561E T » BRTIEEAFRIEEEFEZYA6,199,800I ma
FRR IR A4 SR 57 3 491,387,000 + 4F iz 38 /8 B% 49439,000E » F 4 E 85 494,677,806,000 T B i - FHEE L
1,613, 7000 °

MERFRENEFRBEETRRNSKRE - ERERRNER  TRRRNBR=ME ETH5LEFRE -
Tﬁfﬁ?%?ﬁ% AEEFRE THB - BEBREFREN  MARBATPEE ——REBL—BIEEBEANR

c ZEBBRATERATRERBEDL - XAIREEBKA  EMEMEENBRBRENR - BE_T—RF
f AEEMIRE EREMNEZBRENEDVELEEERATENS NP RFEREN - EEEERRIEEL N
JIMEE=  REFTELSHE  BRARUE -



36

Chi

China Everbright International Limited

PR ABERARAR

ef Executive Officer’s Report 1T AR RE

The Group secured 17 new greentech projects in 2016, reaching another record high, including 9 biomass
projects and 8 hazardous waste treatment projects, commanding a total investment of approximately
RMB4.569 billion. The increased agricultural waste treatment capacity was approximately 2,230,000 tonnes
per annum, the increased household waste treatment capacity was approximately 146,000 tonnes per
annum and the increased hazardous waste processing capacity was approximately 228,000 tonnes per
annum. These projects include: Henan Puyang Biomass Electricity and Heat Cogeneration Project, Tianjin Ji
County Biomass Direct Combustion Project, Hubei Shayang Biomass Direct Combustion Project, Sichuan
Zhongjiang Integrated Biomass and Waste-to-energy Project (Biomass), Henan Xiayi Integrated Biomass
and Waste-to-Energy Projects (Biomass), Henan Xiayi Integrated Biomass and Waste-to-Energy Projects
(Waste-to-Energy), Anhui Yu’an Biomass Electricity and Heat Cogeneration Project and Anhui Yeji Biomass
Electricity and Heat Cogeneration Project, Jiangxi Guixi Biomass Electricity and Heat Cogeneration Project,
Anhui Dingyuan Salt-based Chemical Industrial Park Hazardous Waste Integrated Treatment Project, Jiangsu
Nanjing Jiangnan Hazardous Waste Treatment Project, Jiangsu Kunshan Hazardous Waste Incineration
Project, Jiangsu Xinyi Hazardous Waste Landfill Project, Shandong Linshu Hazardous Waste Treatment
Projects, Shandong Zibo Hazardous Waste Incineration Project (Phase ll), Sichuan Mianzhu Hazardous
Waste Incineration Project and Jiangsu Xinyi Animal Carcass Harmless Treatment Project.

During the year under review, the Group set a new record for having 23 greentech projects under
construction. Among them, 9 projects completed construction within the year, including 4 hazardous
waste treatment projects that already commenced commercial operation, namely Jiangsu Guanyun
Hazardous Waste Landfill Project, Shandong Zibo Hazardous Waste Incineration Project Phase |, Jiangsu
Binhai Hazardous Waste Landfill Project and Jiangsu Xinyi Hazardous Waste Incineration Project; and 5
biomass projects completed construction, among which, Jiangsu Sucheng Biomass Heat Supply Project
has already commenced commercial operation, Jiangsu Xuyi Biomass Electricity and Heat Cogeneration
Project, Anhui Huaiyuan Biomass Direct Combustion Project, Anhui Dingyuan Biomass Direct Combustion
Project and Anhui Dangshan Integrated Biomass and Waste-to-Energy Project (Waste-to-Energy)
completed construction and began to generate revenue. 14 projects commenced construction during the
year, including 2 hazardous waste treatment projects and 12 biomass projects. All other projects under
construction are progressing well and are expected to complete construction and commence operations
between 2017 and 2018, providing an impetus for the greentech business’s rapid growth.
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During the year under review, the Group’s greentech projects provided a total on-grid electricity of
891,407,000 kWh, an increase of 74% as compared with 2015. The greentech projects contributed an
EBITDA of HK$1,020,204,000, an increase of 134% as compared with 2015. The greentech projects
contributed the net profit attributable to the Group of HK$660,522,000, an increase of 145% as compared
with 2015. The increase in profit was mainly due to the significant increase in both the construction service

revenue and the operation service revenue as compared with 2015.

OEFEEN #ERRSER S LEHR FHAEE891,407,000 T R - W - —RFEMN74% - 5 EIBRIEB FE
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Major operating and financial data of the greentech projects in 2016 is summarised in the table below:
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Waste processing volume (tonnes)
Biomass raw materials

processing volume (tonnes)
Hazardous waste

processing volume (tonnes)
On-grid electricity (MWh)
EBITDA (HK$’000)
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BUSINESS PROSPECTS #%&E £

To cope with a deteriorating ecological environment, an intensifying energy crisis and the increasingly complex
issue of climate change, countries around the world have introduced green policies which aim to facilitate
cooperation on a global scale and have kept the momentum of green development around the world going.
The enforcement of the Paris Agreement on Climate Change on 4 November 2016 has reshaped the global
landscape in terms of ecological restoration, and offers opportunities and presents challenges for the Group as
it seeks to develop from an ordinary company into an excellent company.

In China, the opening year of the 13th Five-year Plan has just come to a close, with 2016 seeing the introduction
of a raft of policies relating to environmental protection and alternative energy, which have undoubtedly outlined
a clearer development blueprint for the environmental protection industry that calls for more urgent action.
Looking forward to 2017, the Group will remain committed to its core value of “An enterprise is not only the
Creator of Wealth but also the Safeguard of Environmental and Social Responsibility” and will continue to
enthusiastically align itself with China’s overall development strategies to advance the progress of the “three
strategies” while at the same time focusing on driving the development of its 6 major business segments. The
3 national strategies refer to the “One Belt One Road” initiative, the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei region coordinated
development strategy and the Yangtze River Economic Belt development strategy; while the Group’s 6 major
business segments cover envirotech, environmental energy, environmental water, greentech, equipment
manufacturing and international business. At the same time, the Group will strive to further enhance its
management and operation standards as well as strengthen its awareness and measures for risk prevention,
which will facilitate the steady growth for all of its environmental protection businesses in an ever-changing
market environment. Leveraging on its comprehensive strengths, including self-developed technologies and
equipment, advanced management and harmonious relations with local communities, the Group will make use of
its talent and technologies to explore new business opportunities through multiple investment models, channels
and methods. This will provide the impetus for the Group’s next round of development in both the domestic and
overseas markets.

“Technology to drive Development” will be the major theme running through the Group’s innovations. During its
new round of development, the Group will particularly focus on in-house research and development, technology
imports, collaborations with institutions and research institutes, etc., in a bid to provide a strong driving force for
the future growth of the Group’s various business segments. For the environmental energy business, the Group
will seek to further consolidate its leading position in the domestic market by building on its strong advantages
in terms of technology, market potential and experience, while exploring more development opportunities in the
overseas market. As the government has rolled out a number of water restoration policies, the Group will also
seize the right opportunities to expand its technological capabilities and business reach, so as to drive further
development in its environmental water business. In terms of its greentech business, the Group will continue to
innovate and pursue organic growth in order to achieve rapid business growth. It will also look to carry forward
its separate listing in a steady manner.
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Going forward, China and the entire world are expected to place an increasingly greater emphasis on and input
more resources into environmental protection. The Group will continue to proactively shoulder its responsibilities
as the leading enterprise in the environmental protection industry. With an aim of achieving sustainable
development, the Group will continue to build and strengthen its core competitiveness. In order to realise long-
term growth, the Group will seek to uncover its full internal potential and strength, and keep abreast of the
opportunities in the industry and market. The Group will also continue to innovate in terms of its business models
and strengthen its risk prevention awareness and measures, as well as take a commercial and market-oriented
approach to management and operation. It takes these steps as it strives to help China and the world solve
environmental issues, improve the quality of urban environments, and ultimately make a greater contribution to
environmental restoration.

Thanks to the Chinese government’s favorable policies, which have created immense development potential
for the environmental protection industry, and with the backing of the strong capabilities of its parent company,
China Everbright Group, as well as the Group’s comprehensive strength and resources, the management of
the Company believes the Group will be able to reach new heights in 2017 as it sets sail into a new round of
development.
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T - NERABSEERAER #BITENRABEFNROES) - RERAREZRR  AEEHRAZELENEH
BORES  BITERTSEREE  TEHHESEHREH  mRRRHBERMEE  WBBEE(L  THE
MEEMES  EPFEDEE2REMARRERE  HNEUMREKY  SRFPAEFLERNER -

XERERBRIFARERREF TRERTENEABRRER - NESRFHENAEEHBRANE N SBEKRFTEN
EAEENGEABENRER  ARAEEEMEEASEERE_T—tFHENET  BRAM —HERON—EEE -

Financial Position B i k%

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s total assets approximately amounted to HK$49,531,728,000 with
net assets amounting to HK$19,845,208,000. Net asset value per share attributable to equity holders of the
Company was HK$3.879 per share, representing an increase of 1% as compared to HK$3.835 per share as at
the end of 2015. As at 31 December 2016, gearing ratio (total liabilities over total assets) of the Group was 60%,
an increase of 8 percentage points as compared to that of 52% as at the end of 2015.

RZE—RF+-A=+—"8 KEB P EEX A B®A49,531,728,0007T ° F &= A A& % 19,845,208,0007T °
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Financial Resources Bf i &R

The Group adopts a prudent approach to cash and financial management to ensure proper risk control and
low cost funds. It finances its operations primarily with internally generated cash flow and loan facilities from
banks. As at 31 December 2016, the Group had cash and bank balances of HK$7,037,597,000, representing an
increase of HK$364,185,000 as compared to HK$6,673,412,000 at the end of 2015. Most of the Group’s cash
and bank balance, representing approximately 89%, was denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi.
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Borrowing &&ikn

The Group is dedicated to improving banking facilities to reserve funding to support environmental
protection business development. As at 31 December 2016, the Group had outstanding borrowings of
HK$21,615,649,000, representing an increase of HK$5,794,983,000 as compared to HK$15,820,666,000 at
the end of 2015. The borrowings included secured interest-bearing borrowings of HK$10,487,107,000 and
unsecured interest-bearing borrowings of HK$11,128,542,000. The borrowings are mainly denominated in
Renminbi, representing approximately 46% of the total, and the remainder is mainly denominated in US dollars,
Hong Kong dollars and Euro. Most of the borrowings are at floating rates. As at 31 December 2016, the Group
had banking facilities of HK$33,514,000,000 of which HK$11,938,957,000 have not been utilised. The banking
facilities are of one to ten years terms.

REBRNRARTEREE  #BEESHEARRESNER R —R"F+A=+T—H XAEEHREEENK
WEEEH) B 21,615,649,0007T * R - — A FFK 2 H¥15,820,666,000 T i #5,794,983,0007T - ERXBIE
BEB G BEEEY10,487,107,00070 R EER 2 5H B2 EHEM11,128,542,0007T - AEBMEREEZUARK A
B HBER46%  ERBIEBEAETT BENEZE - 2EEHNRKBHEFTHEZHINE - R=ZF—<F+=A
=+—8 AEEZRTMERE AB33,514,000,0007T - E#E%11,038,957,000c &AM ABH 2 EEE - R1TH
Eh—E+F8-

Foreign Exchange Risks /ME & &

The Company’s financial statements are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, which is the functional currency of
the Company. The Group’s investments made outside Hong Kong (including mainland China) can incur foreign
exchange risks. The Group’s operations are predominantly based in mainland China, which makes up over
90% of its total investments and revenue. The Group’s assets, borrowings and major transactions are mainly
denominated in Renminbi, and as such, it forms a natural hedging effect. With this in mind, the Group also
pursues an optimal allocation of borrowings in different currencies while setting appropriate levels of borrowing
in non-base currencies, and adoption of proper financial instruments to closely manage foreign exchange risk.
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Pledge Of Assets & & i ##

Certain banking facilities of the Group were secured by revenue and receivables in connection with the Group’s
service concession arrangements, bank deposits, mortgages over property, plant and equipment and prepaid
land lease payments and equity interests of certain subsidiaries of the Company. As at 31 December 2016, the
aggregate net book value of assets and equity interests in subsidiaries pledged amounted to approximately
HK$22,795,276,000.
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Commitments &iE

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had purchase commitments of HK$4,393,106,000 outstanding in
connection to construction contracts.

R-E—RFE+-A=1+—8 AREREES MO ZREARLRE4,393,106,0007T °
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Contingent Liabilities {5 & &

As at 31 December 2016, the Company issued financial guarantees to 6 subsidiaries. The Board does not
consider it probable that a claim will be made against the Company under the guarantees. The maximum liability
of the Company as at 31 December 2016 for the provision of the guarantees was HK$2,344,072,000.

RIZBE-RFT-A=1+—0 ARFBROXMBLANELMBKER -EEERE  FEERIZIAEATKAER
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Business Acquisition £ # Uk EE

During the year under review, the Group acquired 97.12% equity interests of Novago Project at a total
consideration of approximately Euro119,458,000 or Polish zloty 525,087,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,022,102,000). The principal activities of the Novago Project involve the provision of solid waste treatment
service in Poland. Such acquisition was completed in August 2016.
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Internal Management A EE

Strengthening management and risk control have always been important duties during the business
development of a corporation. The Group adheres diligently to the management principle of “People-oriented,
Pragmatism, Creativity and Systematic Management” and is committed to building a comprehensive risk
management culture. With the efforts of the Risk Management Advisory Committee for investment projects, the
Engineering and Technology Management Committee and the Budget Approval Management Committee, the
Group has formulated strict regulations on investment in, and the construction and operation of environmental
protection projects.

During the year under review, the Group held management committee meetings on a monthly basis to review
all projects under construction and operation. In addition, the Group’s Internal Audit Department conducted
internal audits and ensured strict enforcement of various management systems to enhance internal management
standard. Since the beginning of this year, the Group has been focused on carrying out projects which are
currently under construction or at the preparatory stage, and went through formalities to ensure that all projects
meet their legal obligations during construction and operation. During the year under review, the Group
issued “Management Rules for Projects in the Preparatory Stage” and “Management Rules for Projects under
Construction” so that new projects can make reference to appropriate management guidelines and move
forward the projects in an orderly manner. Through standardized management practices, the Group intends to
improve its own overall operation procedures and management.
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Committed to maintaining safe and stable operations in compliance with discharge standards, and with the
goal of ensuring no major safety and environmental accidents, the Group encouraged the project companies
to compete with each other on conserving, enhancing efficiency, saving energy and controlling costs. The
comprehensive auxiliary power consumption rates of waste-to-energy projects, biomass projects and solar
energy projects, as well as the unit operating cost of waste water treatment projects, continued to decline,
contributing to an improvement in project efficiency.

AEBHEES 2R TEE  ERRIEARA ERFRESAZR2MRRERANRET - 2EMR(LHER &
FRIERN - LLRERE T % - LRI JEVPOLL RS - IR E - AMERERETREANGSMAEE - )57kERIEER
MEMELRADGE NE - /A THBE B S -

Human Resources A 1 &R

The Group highly values its human resources and puts great emphasis on staff training. It believes that realising
the full potential of its employees is crucial to its long term growth. The Group continued to improve its human
resources through internal training as well as local, overseas, and on-campus recruitment. During the year under
review, the Group held training sessions on ESHS, risk management and financial management to enhance the
overall quality of its staff. To facilitate the integration of newly recruited staff, the Group held 4 execution trainings
for more than 1,100 participants. A total of 36 managers and senior technical staff successfully completed the
Tsinghua University CEO Course (the 5th session). To ensure that employees’ development meets the objectives
of the Group’s sustainable development, the Group enriched its management level talent pool for its 4 core
businesses. Through competition and selection processes, staff members were highly motivated, and the
sessions allowed those who have passion and vision to grow and unleash their potential in the right job positions.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had approximately 6,000 employees. Employees within the Group are
remunerated according to their qualifications, experience, job nature, performance and with reference to market
conditions. Apart from a discretionary performance bonus, the Group also provides other benefits such as
medical insurance and a provident fund scheme to employees in Hong Kong.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties T EF B KR~ EM

During the year under review, the Group fully implemented its risk management system, as well as identified
and assessed risks faced by the Group. Due to changes in the external environment and the characteristics
of our business strategies and operations, key risks that the Group faced remained the same as those in
2015, including talent management, environmental and social responsibilities, peer competition, new business
investment and development risk, technology and innovation, and changes in environmental protection policies
and business models. Thanks to the implementation of effective management measures, the severity level and
impact of these risks have been receding.

Talent management risk mainly refers to the risk of failure in recruiting, retaining and developing sufficient talents
for continuous business development because of the Group’s rapid business development and huge demand
for talents while at the same time facing severe competition over environmental protection specialists from the
industry. During the year, the Group had completed adjustment of its remuneration system and enhancement
over its remuneration structure so as to ensure that staff remuneration can align reasonably with market standard
and maintain its competitiveness. The management structure and staff composition of the Group had been
enhanced and the talent pool of senior management had been strengthened. Systematic staff training has been
further enhanced to increase the overall effectiveness of training.

Environmental and social responsibility risk mainly refers to the risk of negative impacts over the construction
and operation of projects, as a result of exceeding environmental emission limit, safety incidents and materially
false or misleading articles from media. The Group had continued to formally disclose the environmental emission
data of all waste-to-energy projects during the year under review and be proactively subject to the supervision
of the general public. Through the organisation of on-site project visits and various environmental protection
promotion activities, and the increase in the public understanding on the technical operation of the projects, it
can remove general public’s queries and promote the Group’s enthusiasm over the execution of environmental
and social responsibility. The establishment of ESHS management system and risk management system, as well
as formulating the emergency incidents resolutions could help to effectively manage relevant risks.
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Competition risk refers to the risk of the Group’s capability in business development and the returns from
investment projects being affected, as a result of the severe competition from competitors throughout the
industry. The Group had, through continuous enhancement in construction design, upgrade of equipment
efficiency, enhancement in project management standard, improved the overall quality of projects and reduced
the construction and operation costs. Maintaining good cooperation relationship with government facilitated us
to obtain projects with better terms and conditions, and thus increase profitability. Participating in the formulation
of waste-to-energy industry standards, so as to raise the industry entrance barrier and build a constructive
competitive environment.

New business investment and development risk mainly refers to the risk of failure in developing new business
types and locations which affects the Group’s profitability. Technology and innovation risk mainly refers to the
risk of failure in satisfying business development needs through research and development and the introduction
of new technology, which affects the Group’s profitability. The Group had set up the International Business
Department during the year under review and introduced new talents in order to strengthen the development
of international businesses. The Group had also set up a specialised group for international investment projects
in order to thoroughly analyse the relevant investment risks, and develop risk mitigation measures and follow
up works. The previously introduced overseas technologies and the products from research and development
had been gradually applied on projects. The annual research and development plan had fully covered the
Group’s major areas of project development including biomass, urban-rural integration model, hazardous waste
treatment, etc.

Changes of environmental protection policy and business model risks mean the risks of failure in responding
timely and effectively to the changes in environmental protection policies and business models respectively,
which bring negative impact to the Group’s business. The Group has, from time to time, highly concerned with
those changes in external factors such as environmental protection policies and business models, and the
relevant impacts to the Group’s business development. Regular reports and discussions have been organised for
those relevant employees to implement the mitigation actions, enhance the internal control and arrange suitable
trainings, so as to timely and effectively respond to the external changes and avoid the risks involved.
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Environmental and Social Management RFHEHSERE

The Group established an environmental and social management system following Asian Development Bank’s
Safeguard Policy Statement and other internationally recognised practices, which defines concrete procedures
to ensure the environmental and social impacts of our activities are within the statutory limits. In 2016, the Group
fully implemented the ESHS management system. All the Group’s subsidiaries set up standardized operating
procedures and checklists for on-site work, which will more effectively align and strengthen system requirements
and operational practices, as well as improve the whole environmental and social management process.

The operating and environmental performance of the Group’s projects strictly adheres to relevant standards
and the requirements of their respective Environmental Impact Assessment Report. The Group also takes into
consideration the expectations of the neighboring communities. The key regulations and standards that are
highly relevant to the Group’s business include the Environmental Protection Law of the PRC, Production Safety
Law of the PRC, Labor Law of the PRC; Standard for Pollution Control on the Municipal Solid Waste Incineration
(GB18485-2014) and Directive 2010/75/EU and its relevant Annexes/Amendments (for environmental energy
projects), Emission Standard of Air Pollutants for Thermal Power Plants (GB13223-2011) (for biomass power
generation projects of greentech), as well as Discharge Standard of Pollutant for Municipal Wastewater
Treatment Plant (GB18918-2002) (for environmental water projects), etc. No breach of these regulations and
relevant environmental protection standards that has significant loss and impact to the Group was recorded in
2016.

Conforming to the national environmental management strategy in improving air quality and conserving
natural resources, the Group continuously monitors its emission data and resources usage, and publishes key
performance indicators on the website, LED display screens outside the plants, and its annual sustainability
reports. On 11 May 2016, the Group announced in a press conference in Beijing that it would disclose on a
daily basis the emission data of its operating waste-to-energy projects, including the daily average level of online
monitored flue gas emissions, daily test results of leachate treatment water quality, etc., proactively inviting
the public’s supervision. From 1 January 2017, the Group began disclosing the average hourly gas emission
levels of all of its operating waste-to-energy projects, which marks the completion of the Group’s “Four Steps”
environmental information disclosure plan. This important initiative has set an example for the industry in terms
of information disclosure, as well as reflects the Group’s continuous effort to enhance its operations and
management.
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OTHER INFORMATION Hth & #}

Loan Facilities with Covenants Relating to Specific Performance of the Controlling Shareholder
HAEBNERRRABITHEEEENGRENER

On 11 January 2012, China Everbright Environmental Energy Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, was granted a 5-year term loan facility of USD100 million from ADB. Under the said facility, it will be
an event of default if China Everbright Holdings Company Limited ceases to be the single largest Shareholder
holding at least 35% of the issued share capital of the Company. Upon the occurrence of the said event, (i) the
said facility, and (ii) a term loan facility of USD100 million granted by ADB on 3 September 2009 for a term of up
to 3 September 2019 (together with the said facility, the “ADB Facilities”), and (iii) all accrued interest and any
other amounts accrued under the ADB Facilities may become immediately due and payable and/or payable on
demand.

As at 31 December 2016, the circumstances giving rise to the obligations under Rule 13.18 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the HKEx (the “Listing Rules”) continued to exist.

RZFB——F—A+—H  SETAREXARRERERAR(ARBZ2ENBRR)REESERIEERITH
TERERBE - REZEFEE  WHBEXAKEERARITBRAEARACRITRARIE% 2 ARAINE
— AR - ABRCGENEE - W 4E Pl EIR - ((ZERBEE  RSHTR _FTNFAA=-ARENESHE
RIBELYR _ZE-NFAA=ZRBAR s EMERRE(EZERBEGEA [ RRITERBE]) - R(i)EBET
ERBREMB RN S R RIR R #ITERERE R 2 (E A E A FRIE AT 8L A 23 BNRS B B 1 /S R R RS AT ©

BE_T—AFT_A=1T—H0 BHELANBIMESLHARAT EHHRIDF1SABKETHANEHERE
BEENBREEFE

Final Dividend REI iR 2

The Board has proposed to pay a final dividend of HK13.0 cents per share (2015: HK 12.0 cents per share) to
the Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on Monday, 5 June 2017.
Subject to approval by the Shareholders of the final dividend at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company, dividend cheques will be dispatched to the Shareholders on or around Thursday, 29 June 2017.

EXSEARBERARSERIBOBW(ZE—0%F : ER12.081) - EFTR_FT—LFA AR (EH ) BIIEX
NERREMZER - FRREADBDRERFBEFAG LHERARE  REXEBSR-_Z—LFA-TAR(E
Him)ZAEH -

Closure of register of members E 1-iBF B Hi

The register of members will be closed from Friday, 19 May 2017 to Wednesday, 24 May 2017, both days
inclusive, on which no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to qualify for attendance of the annual general
meeting, all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
share registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong by no
later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 18 May 2017.

The register of members will also be closed from Thursday, 1 June 2017 to Monday, 5 June 2017, both days
inclusive, on which no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend,
all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share
registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong by no later
than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 31 May 2017.

AAABR-F—+EREATAB(EME)RE-"S—tERA-+MA(RH=)(ERME QEER)E 2R
EEEFM - REBEA SR RREARGBEERE - AHALERTAFAR AR RESER T —LFAA
FNB(ESM) FFUE= 1571 BREBEEN  EREEREXERAT I RNBFRSEBREERAT -
it AEBLEABE— BN+ ZHAMFL -+ -

ARATER —ZE—tFARNA-B(EHPMEE_T—+FARR(EH ) (EEMABRREERN)EEHERRE
FE - REHRTA A RBEARMBEERL - AFERBREBRN I ARARE 2ER  MRRLER_Z—+FH
A=1t—R((EH=)TFOR=+28 " $MBEEFPXRE ERBHMREZEARAZENBFREEEEERARA
A WU RBEEEEABR —BNAT=REMFL -+ -
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed Securities EEs BRI A AT 2 L% %
During the year under review, the Company bought back 1,000,000 ordinary shares on HKEx at an aggregate
consideration of HK$7,949,990. The aim of the buy-back was to enhance the value of the Shareholders. Details
of the buy-back are as follows:

REIBFERN » RNRRIALREEE7,049,000 7T FABE 22 AT 0] 8% 28 A 711,000,000/% @A - (ER A RIEBHENEA
TIRSRERZ - RIEABOT

May 2016
—E-XERA 1,000,000 7.99 7.78 7,949,990

All 1,000,000 ordinary shares bought back were cancelled on delivery of the share certificates during the year
under review. The aggregation consideration of HK$7,949,990 was paid out from the Company’s retained
profits.

Apart from the above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the listed securities of the Company during the year under review.

ZHE % 1,000,000 EBRERANFEARIMBRERTHE - REHEEK7,949,000 TEARRR ZREBFF
TAF e

R EXCPrAtsh - REBEFEER - ARRIKETAMBRRLERE HEXEOARR 2EF LHES -

“HEN XIAOPING

B /N

Chief Executive Officer
TTIEABE,

Hong Kong, 28 February 2017
B —E—+HF-_A=+NAR
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Love the Earth, Love the Planet we live in
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Adhering to our core value of “An Enterprise is not only the Creator of Wealth, but also the Safeguard of
Environmental and Social Responsibility”, we continued to promote our 4 major business segments of
envirotech, environmental energy, environmental water and greentech in 2016 with the intent to make
greater contributions to the environment. China’s emphasis on green development, ecological management
together with the construction of ecological civilization created tremendous opportunities for enterprises
in the environmental protection industry. Through innovative businesses, the Group cooperates with the
promulgated national regulations on environmental protection such as the 13th Five-Year Plan for Eco-
environmental Protection, the Opinions on Further Enhancement of Municipal Household Waste Incineration
Work, the 13th Five-Year Plan for Renewable Energy as well as the Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law
(Draft Amendment), striving to grasp the policy direction in time and seize for development opportunities, and
successfully navigated strong market competition.

The Group has formally implemented a new Environmental, Safety, Health and Social Responsibility (“ESHS”)
Management System and Risk Management System in 2016. The two-pronged approaches, designed to
disclose information, have strengthened management capabilities during day-to-day operations and controlled
risks by setting up a complete system that integrates pre-event risk identification, on-going risk inspections
and reviews, as well as post-event appraisals and evaluations, not only providing a platform for the Company’s
sustainable development, but also facilitating the Company to play a leading role in China and even the world.
Furthermore, during the year, the Company made it onto the list of the Dow Jones Sustainability Emerging
Markets Index, and was also selected to be included in the Dow Jones Sustainability World Index for the first
time, in which we are the only Mainland China and Hong Kong listed company that was added to the Dow Jones
Sustainability World Index.

“ERF AREBNERBTREME  BRRER REKBREERERUAEBRE - ACETERYE
MENEELE  FRNARFELEEFNAEE INZOEE  RRELMEEHEANER - PEURGEER -
ARRFAEMEERNARRNSEERRRSZRAROEFTRTAMARENERELS  AKRETURFMOEBRESE
A= e A JERRBEFRERS)  (FRE-T BT EEURREBETIFNER) (AIBLEERER [ += o
TIRED - ORBRFEEMERTER)) ELHRRBEK - BRSRHMBR T AMITEERESE - RANNOT SRS
Bt R o

AEER -_ZT-AFEAERT2HNRE L2 REKMEET(ESHS EERAUNARERRR - MAE
ERAEEET  UESREAER BY T -—EMSZNENFE  EhREEZ  FREXTENTERR - &L
BEEEAKY  RBELENRR TMEARKENAFHEXRER-—BARRNTE  EFPARABRKTEIE
BREAFEENBE  HAQRERERERABTERER - It ARFARSFEMEBIAIHERRTEEK
B FEARNLBERHAIKEERETEY  RAZERE ——HKLBENHTEARERTE LTRA -
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We believe that the voices of our stakeholders are valuable insights for our business developments, in making
ongoing and long-term strategic decisions. Therefore, throughout the project life cycle, we invite stakeholders,
including our investors, Shareholders, employees, governments, local communities, business partners and
suppliers, media, investment analysts and international business partners etc., on a regular basis to express
their views on issues that are relevant to our operational and environmental performance. We pursue effective
engagement and on-going dialogue with our stakeholders through collaborative, transparent and responsive
processes. From our stakeholder participation plan which involves all project companies, the views of
stakeholders are actively listened throughout the project lifecycle from the planning stage to the operation stage,
which helps us to identify high priority issues within all our project operations and the associated sustainability
concerns. The effectiveness of our stakeholder engagement activities is also evaluated at different project
phases to ensure higher efficacy.

This is a brief sustainability report in the annual report. The full version of sustainability report, in both Chinese and
English versions, will be available for public download on the websites of the Company (www.ebchinaintl.com) and
HKEx (www.hkexnews.hk) by end of May 2017.

BPREFNENBEERAARANERERFREMNER - APRFEMRHNRBIDRE - Fit - RMAEEE NS
ERMHEEMRESNELRMELENRERANSR - GEFNERRREE KR B8 BF - BHHRER -
BEBHMUER KB RESNERBEXEBEAS - RPBBABEL  EREMREENRBAEEAUDN
FOESENBEER - P RMERBQAANFNEL2EFED  HARVENREBR N EELERIOERKE
FOENER  UBSIMAELRATHNELAZENRIEINERAFEEEE - LAITRTRNIE B BEERHR
MESLEEHNERN  BIEZRTSHE -

REFAFOTHEREREELEBREORE - i HFERERENTERABEEPERA) IR - —+tF A
B R BT FE AN 2 Bl 48 v (www.ebchinaintl.com) B2 B 32 A7 48 U (www.hkexnews.hk) TN & °

1. ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE — * IR{RKIR

As a leading environmental protection enterprise in China, the Group has regarded building an environmental
friendly society as our responsibility and to pioneer in green production process and lifestyle. In 2016,
approximately 3,654 GWh of green electricity was produced from our waste-to-energy projects, biomass
power generation projects, methane-to-energy projects, solar energy projects and wind power projects,
supporting the annual electricity consumption for more than 3.045 million households. Compared to 2015,
there has been a significant increase in total electricity by 33%. We also persist in adopting advanced
technologies and high industry standards to improve the efficiency in resource utilization and environmental
performance.

ERBARENRRELE  ARENEZELERCE  BELAESTANEETANETE RIZT—XRF -
HPWAREERIRE - AMEEETEE AREEHEE AREEHEENMANEEBIEE & A IRELEE NK36.54
BTEE - a4 BEFRE—FER  R_T - AFNEEEAL EFK33%  HIE BRHRAEENRHL
METTREE - EMEAHERERREMRARRSA -
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1. ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE (continued) — ~ IRIRKRIE (&)
Green Electricity Generation by Types of Operation
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ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE (continued) — ~ IRIRFKIR (&)

All our energy generating projects adhere to stringent national and international pollution control
requirements: our waste-to-energy projects meet the Standard for Pollution Control on the Municipal Solid
Waste Incineration (GB18485-2014) and relevant emissions requirements as stipulated in the European
Industrial Emissions Directive (2010/75/EU); where our biomass power generation projects meet the
Emission Standard of Air Pollutants for Thermal Power Plants (GB13223-2011). We have also tightened
the flue gas emission standards, improve the resources utilization efficiencies and increase the operational
transparency of our businesses.

The Group has begun to disclose the emission standards of its operating waste-to-energy projects for the
previous day starting from mid-May 2016 and the hourly average level of gas emissions from 1 January
2017 on the environment management page of the Group’s official website, proactively accepting public
supervision and continue to lead in promoting information transparency in the industry. The disclosed
indicators include the level of online monitored gas emissions, the test results of leachate treatment water
quality and ignition loss rate of incineration residue, approved environmental impact assessment documents,
dioxin testing results, the test results of chelated fly ash and its ultimate treatment method, and a list of
third-party test institutions for bottom ash and fly ash testing. Through disclosing emission standards and
providing environmental management information of our operating projects, we emphasize the importance
of resources recycling following the waste treatment hierarchy of “Reusing before Incinerating, Incinerating
before Landfilling and Landfilling only when the material cannot be Reused or Incinerated”. We adopt a
synergistic approach in the environmental friendly treatment of medical waste and food waste. Majority of
the bottom ash generated from waste-to-energy projects was reprocessed for brick making. Meanwhile, all
fly ash and bottom ash generated from the biomass power generation projects were reprocessed for brick
making or for other applications.

All waste water generated during the operation is treated by on-site waste water treatment facilities
complying with the stringent national waste water discharge standards — Integrated Wastewater Discharge
Standard (GB 8978-1996), as well as the requirements described in the approved Environmental Impact
Assessment (EIA) report. In most of our waste-to-energy projects, all leachate generated was treated on-site
by our self-developed leachate treatment system and reused accordingly to achieve Zero Discharge.

RMETHBREEEYHETRSOBEAINGRIEHEK - AR BEEBE TS [ EEAIRTES R HIZE%E |
(GB18485-2014)MENEEC T HERIES ) (2010/75/EV) R RIFERIIZE - MMM EYEEEIEE AIFE [ AEBA
USRI HEBUZE |(GB13223-2011) » RIMETER S ERBEBIEE - BAERAAKRE - BMFEfIELEE &
HHRE o

AEER-_Z-AFRATEAEAKEETHANRREERBET AR —ASEL N REEHE BAHFRE
B UYR_FE-—LtF-A-BEREHERE  ITPRIAREE  THRALRTEAEENETEIRKFIL
E—FEIBITEEEERL - BEARRE - EREKERER  2RBEH/KESRANE - 1882098 X808
B ARRFHEBEXH - —BERBAUER RABECERASREERT EEMRRE=ZTTRAKE - B8
AACKRERBMBIRENREERES  RABAERNAER/ER - BRREREE [EANTE  EENT
12 FEERO T EENFERE MR - WEELR EFNRERAHBE T AIRRERE - BAHYLPHER
BFEANEBKENEE  AREERR : MAVEEEREELNRK  EEEFHERRBETAEEFE -

BAEEBELETEENMBSKTABANSKEERERIE - RS [N5KEE IR 2E |(GB 8978-1996)%F
BREE  UAREBRARANRREZEFERERINER - RPBRABO LB HEHB AEENZ BRRARK
e EMENZRREERS  L2RRXBMARRER - EMEBZRR [THEH] -
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ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE (continued) — ~ IRIRFKIR (&)

Furthermore, we continue to try our best to conserve and recycle water resources to ensure that the recycled
general industrial and domestic waste water can meet the Reuse of Urban Recycling Water — Water Quality
Standard for Industrial Uses (GB/T19923-2005) and the Reuse of Urban Recycling Water — Water Quality
Standard for Landscape Uses (GB/T 18921-2002) or other water reuse standards.

As for our Environmental Water business, great emphasis is laid upon proper treatment of sludge arising from
the waste water treatment plants. We treat our sludge in accordance with International Finance Corporation
(IFC)’'s General Environmental, Health and Safety Guidelines and other applicable laws and regulations.
In 2016, more than 81% of the total sludge generated from our projects was recycled. For sludge which
eventually needs to be disposed of at the landfill, we will reduce its water content and volume by dewatering
process onsite before to alleviate landfill burden and lower associated environmental impacts.

AN - FAIHSE B DN EIRFIA/KER - WEBR [Hm5/KBAEFA T EAKKE |(GB/T19923-2005) A &
[ 5K B AR A S8 IRE AKKE |(GB/T18921-2002) sk E b /K BIRIZE S — R T E M A ES/KBREBA -

ERFKBEBIE  ZERETKREMELTELNTEREBEY - AMREERESRAFIFON BAR
B RBENZ2ERIREMEREZRNRERESE - —Z—XF  BBRESZ/\+—HMERLEENSEKE
RBA ERNERBEEERERSR - ROSTETHKEE - UWHDES/KEMERE - ETREHRRENE
o AERHRENTE -

IIF

HEALTH AND SAFETY — -« f@FRHE%Z %

The Company upholds the principle that occupational health and safety is not only one of our core corporate
culture, but also our solemn commitment to every employee. In addition to the occupational health and
safety management systems certified under OHSAS 18001 (GB/T28001-2011) that have been implemented
at all our project companies, this year, we officially launched the ESHS Management System, setting an
important milestone of the Group in promoting health and safety. The system comprises management
standards to guide procedures such as auditing, incident investigation and handling as well as issue
identifications, it also safeguards our supply chain by incorporating environmental, social, health and safety
considerations into our contract requirements for contractors and suppliers.

BREERFEZE2EAQNACENHZLZ — NEEMUSMNEINEEEAE KRITTHEERRERZE
HEITEBR R MR FZFAOHSAS 18001 (GB/T28001-201 ) EREMN L2 ERE XN RAEAFEEXMAEME
MESHSEIEE BV TAEBERERFHELTE2MNETHRE - ZEZPEEZ  EWHAEKERE  SZELE
BERFMNEEEZE - MEMY  EERATRZACELERES  ERERE L BREIZEZHAAGHE
Sk SRR R 2 B FBUR TR B B I L rE g o
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HEALTH AND SAFETY (continued) — ~ @FE8E%Z %2 (&)

Through developing a set of clear safety production guidelines, we provide adequate tools and personal
protective equipment on project site and conduct regular safety inspections at our plants. To ensure our
employees are aware of the safety production guidelines, we offer regular health and safety trainings, and
held special seminars, lectures and competitions annually in the Production Safety Month to encourage their
participation. All our project companies have formed a safety management team, which includes the general
manager and other management officers, to supervise and manage all health and safety issues arising from
various stages of the project. The team is also responsible for organizing emergency drills and exercises to
increase the safety awareness of the employees as well as to prepare themselves for crisis.

AEBEBHEEWMNLELEERET  ARABRGREEEN T AMBEARERE - LR BRFIRREETTEH
MZ2RESHER - R THRREEHLZZEENRCERIARE  AATHETEREEL 2 WEBESF
MZE2EEARZHFRNME BEMEMARSASEMEENRAR - RMMENER ARHGREA KR
KEBNMEMEREEANREZEREN  AEEENERRAZ MTRROVERENLZE SR - T EHABZESER
MR FRETEZEEEANAEEERDNMRESENZE2ER

. CARING FOR THE COMMUNITY = * 1t [& =

To be an outstanding enterprise, we believe one must commit to conducting business in a socially
responsible manner. Therefore, the Group has endeavored to promote the education and community
caring activities regarding environmental friendliness, energy conservation and ecological protection. As
the city’s green guards, we are happy to serve as the council members to various environmental protection
associations in China, including the Chinese Society for Environmental Sciences, the Chinese Ecological
Civilization Research and Promotion Association and the China Association of Urban Environmental
Sanitation, and take part in the activities organized by these associations to further enhance our connection
with the community.

In 2016, the Group continues to co-organize the National Environmental Science Popularization Innovation
Competition with the theme “Love the Environment, Have a New Lifestyle”. Over 6,000 animations, comics,
short movies, drawings, and articles were collected and displayed in exhibition tours. We treat the promotion
of environmental protection as our own responsibility and actively take part in various environmental
technological activities, such as the National Science Popularization Day, China Ecological Forum, and
World Environment Day, promoting the latest environmental technology to the general public, while raising
the awareness on environmental protection. To support the World Environment Day, our Suzhou project
company participated in environmental protection activities organized by local communities, such as
“Environmental Walk”, to implement practices of healthy lifestyles and promote environmental protection. On
“Tree planting day”, employees from our project companies in Jinan, Ningbo, Yixing organized tree planting
activities. Apart from improving the environmental conditions of neighboring areas, we also increased the
employee’s participation and the sense of recognition on environmental protection activities. Furthermore,
employees from the headquarters and Shenzhen representative office have volunteered as a helper to involve
in the conservation of the Mai Po Natural Reserve with WWF’s Hong Kong branch, developing a deeper
understanding in ecological balance and biodiversity.

BIEE—REENCELAABEHSEENAE AR AKE—ERNNMEERE RRER - fgL - 45
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To promote ecological civilization in the society and educate the public on the uniqueness of the waste-to-
energy industry, we actively utilize our existing resources to promote environmental education by regularly
inviting international groups, government officials, investors, media, students and local residents to visit our
plants, allowing them to develop a deeper understanding on waste-to-energy process. We believe such
activities can enhance transparency and improve the interaction with our stakeholders, and cultivate the
interest of young generations in protecting the natural resources of our country. For example, during the year
under review, our Suzhou project company organized the “A Green Tour for Little Angels” on 1 June, inviting
teachers and students from local schools to visit our Suzhou waste-to-energy projects. Through improving
understanding on waste sorting and witnessing the waste incineration process, the environmental protection
awareness of the visitors was enhanced; our Changzhou waste-to-energy project welcomed a summer study
tour from Beijing Forestry University’s “The Green Tour for the Youth to Alleviate the Poor” program, the
students and lecturers had developed a deeper understanding on waste-to-energy through field visits and
introductions on waste incineration process. In 2016, our environmental protection projects have received
over 69,500 visitors from all walks of life in total.

BTHSERYPAES  BARE THNREETENRAEERES ARSI BEEEREEREHE -
BETHEEERERE - AT 885  HE BLENEHERSLEBETOERE  AATHEREEN
B2 - RPIAEELEHEIRE— S RARFNEHENBERZNEARIR  UHEHT—RYREERIRSE
BREAEDRK - flin - REBEFERN  AEEHFMNEERARNA—RENHE [\KEGEREZIKED - B8:F
B ERERMELEHNGEEEEE BRTHNRS NG 28 RRERE £ FTHAEREZH
BMNEMNURBEHEEFTERAMNERE [BKEKESFTIARLEZHERE  BANBERIUERET
BRENEHW2E  SKRPMENFRENEREEENTHNRY - Z2— A F  HMNRREE XEFHBB
69,500 K Bt EFAMNBERFAL °

PHILANTHROPY I « Rz )& B

The Company has always been enthusiastic in charitable activities. During 2016, the Company was awarded
with the 2015/16 “Caring Company” Logo by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service to recognize our
commitments to the community, employees and environmental care, signifying our care towards the
community development. Our major charitable activities include the following:

ARB—HAORADAES - AT —A"F  ARAEEEFBHLSRGH SHEE2015/16 [ B AR E 155 - A
KHARAEHE  BTRREBENETAE  SHEZURMARPEREHEZR I AN TEN—NEE - X
EREHEHEE

Everbright International Environmental Protection Charitable Foundation
KAREERRABESS

Everbright International Environmental Protection Charitable Foundation Company Limited was founded in
August 2013. It is mainly responsible for managing the Everbright International Environmental Protection
Charitable Foundation in Hong Kong, sponsoring and coordinating all charitable activities related to
environmental protection, environmental education, energy conservation, ecological preservation and
community caring, etc.

RABRRRABESEARAFANZFT—=ZF/\ALEFAKYL TREAREEFBANAABRRERADZES
ARBBAEMRBENAREE  BRERERE REHE SRR  LRRENLERMES -
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PHILANTHROPY (continued) IU « Rz & 8) (4&)

Everbright International Environmental Protection Charitable Foundation (continued)
KAEBERRABEESE(E)

In 2016, the foundation has been supporting World Wild Fund for Nature — Hong Kong’s Earth Hour for
the third consecutive year as the lead sponsor in Hong Kong. The theme of “Earth Hour 2016” Hong
Kong was “Sustainable Lifestyle for Future” and it called for people to change their lifestyles and give up
the unnecessary luxuries to help sustain the earth. The activity encouraged government departments,
companies, organizations, schools and individuals to turn off nonessential lights in their buildings, offices,
and facilities for an hour from 8:30 to 9:30 p.m. on 19 March 2016, as a symbol for their commitment to
the planet. Through different community engagement activities, we hope to demonstrate to the public how
different energy saving and recycling concepts can be integrated into our daily lives, and different methods
to reduce carbon footprint and combat climate change.

The foundation also supported Heifer International Hong Kong branch’s “Read to feed” fund raising program
(2016-2017). Through this program, we hope to develop reading habits among Hong Kong students, deepen
their understanding on poverty, environmental issues, and develop a sense of empathy. On the other hand,
we offered financial assistance to the poor farmers in mainland China, raising their living standard.

TR -RFENRARNERRRAGESEEEF-FENFAERBAZS IO (/K] REREA
ESSTENENEFEEYRE - RPNTEREBHNE MELRARK]  FEAMREAZTAABLT G
ELRERHEE  BRROEIIRE - A DEBBAEE - 27 A8 ERNEAE-_T-R"F=_ATA®BL
NE=Z+t2EAR=T2@RE T TVENRE  REERERFORD - BBEXK TRANEREZE  RAFLERAD
FREBHHERFRABRBANBSRARBTLENMD - WA R FUREHR R EIMEH RIRE(CHTE -

RABERRRAGESTROBEFEENXFERNGFEELD SRR [FHEBA IBESREE(2016-2017
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Everbright Environmental Protection Charitable Foundation

HKRBRRELEE

In mainland China, the Everbright Environmental Protection Charitable Foundation continues to provide
financial and psychological support to sanitation workers and their families in Suzhou who are experiencing
financial difficulties or critical illness. During the year under review, we have distributed the sixth and seventh
batches of donations to the workers in need as a support from the industry and society. As at the end of
2016, we have donated a total of approximately RMB3 million and the accumulated number of people being
benefited from the foundation has reached 688.
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4. PHILANTHROPY (continued) P8 ~ Rz &) (&)
Everbright International True Love School
HRERBOER
The Everbright International True Love School located in Dangshan has provided education opportunities
to 1,500 students and we have continuously encouraged our employees to be the acting teachers to
spread our cares. In 2016, we assigned splendid staffs to conduct lectures for fine art, English, music and
physical education subjects, etc. in the school. Our staffs have completed their teaching duties flawlessly
and developed close relationships with the students. We have set up a True Love Fund to provide the
students with financial support and recognise the outstanding students. Till the end of 2016, the True Love
Fund have sponsored more than 200 poor students with outstanding results. Also, we organized Everbright
International True Love School Summer Camp, inviting the teachers and students from the school to visit
our waste-to-energy project in Nanjing, increasing their awareness on the waste-to-energy process and
importance of environmental protection.

During the year under review, our Group was awarded with the Best Social Responsibility Brand Award in
the China Charity Festival. It serves as a recognition from the general public on our long term effort towards
philanthropy and environmental protection.
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Self-initiated Philanthropy Activities by Employees

ETEHEN L ARESE

During the year under review, our employees from project companies have been participating in philanthropy
activities through organizing activities, visits, and donations, improving the connections within the
community. During festivals such as Chinese New Year, Mid-autumn, Tuen Ng, and Chung Yeung festival,
our employees from project companies located in Sanya, Jiangyin, Suzhou, and Changzhou, etc. organize
visits to families with poor living conditions, the elderly and the sanitation workers, and donate necessities
and consolation money to them, which act as an expression of care and respect to the social vulnerable
groups and cooperation partners. Our project companies regularly organize donation activities such as
“Daily Donation for love” and “Daily Donation for Care”, providing scholarships to the poor students, financial
assistances to families in with financial problems, alleviating poverty.

REEFEAR  ZMSERENEIMEGE2EY 8 #EH  S2ERFLBAESELREEEY  MaRMRE
HEABEAT - SEFEH PR mT  ERFEREHA  BAR=E IR HMNEEMNFHHIER ARE
BMETHARTRERE  XLERRMERS  ERERENZFZARESHAE X LHARIEK : EHRA/FS
MRFEABMRE T AR EEM R BEARERMELRBDHENAERFNBLONEE - RMABETITA
ZEBEBEHRER [EL0—RAB] [BLO-BRIFHEIEY  RERSLRUDES - BEBEREMEAREK
B EPbfiERERER -



58 China Everbright International Limited
HEERBEFRER AR

PURSUING

A BETTER CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE STANDARD
ATEERBEREGFEKF
Corporate

Governance Report

TEER|E

Strive to maintain a High Standard of
Corporate Governance

BRSSP EXER



Annual Report 2016
S llsrn 09

The Group strives to maintain a high standard of corporate governance as it believes good corporate governance
practices are increasingly important for maintaining and promoting the confidence of the Shareholders. They are
crucial for the development of the Group’s business and protection of the Shareholders’ interests. The Group
upholds the management principle of “People-oriented, Pragmatism, Creativity and Systematic Management”,
and through a set of rules and regulations, has continuously strengthened internal control and risk management.
Furthermore, by full and timely public disclosure of information, the Group has maintained transparency and
accountability which also enhanced its corporate values. The Board meets regularly and has currently 6 Board
committees, namely Audit Committee, Risk Management Committee, Nomination Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Disclosure Committee and Management Committee. For project risk management, the Group has
set up a Risk Management Advisory Committee to monitor and assess risks regularly, boost related management
standards and evaluate investment projects. Regarding project technological risk management, the Group
has in place an Engineering and Technology Management Committee which is responsible for assessing the
technologies used in different investment projects. For project financial control, the Group insists on stringent
budget management, and has set up a Budget Approval Management Committee that focuses on monitoring
construction budgets. In addition, the Group has also set up an Internal Audit Department to perform internal
audits to bolster the Group’s management standards.

The Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules has been duly
adopted by the Board as the code on corporate governance practices of the Company.

The Company complied with the CG Code for the year ended 31 December 2016, except that:

(1) the then Chairman of the Board was unable to attend the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 17 May 2016 (“2016 AGM”) due to other business engagements. This constitutes a deviation from the
code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code which requires the chairman of the board to attend the annual general
meeting.

(2) a non-executive director of the Company was not appointed for a specific term. This constitutes a deviation
from the code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code which requires that all the non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term. The Board believes that the current arrangement will enable the Company to
have a greater flexibility to organize the composition of the Board to serve the needs of the Group. Pursuant
to the Company’s Articles of Association, subject to the manner of retirement by rotation of directors of the
Company (the “Directors”) as from time to time prescribed under the Listing Rules and notwithstanding any
contractual or other terms on which any Director may be appointed or engaged, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or if their number is not a multiple of 3, the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation, provided that every Director
(including those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement at least once every 3 years.
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The Board currently comprises 5 executive Directors, 1 non-executive Director and 4 independent non-executive

Directors.

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of the report are set out on page 93 of the annual report

and currently are follows:
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Name of Directors

Mr.

. Cai Yunge Nete !

. Chen Xiaoping

. Wang Tianyi

. Wong Kam Chung, Raymond
. Cai Shuguang

Tang Shuangning No2

. Fan Yan Hok, Philip

. Mar Selwyn

. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey

. Zhai Haitao

Notes &F :

1

Mr. Cai Yunge was appointed as the Vice-chairman and executive Director with effect from 10 November 2016 and was
subsequently re-designated as the Chairman of the Board with effect from 12 December 2016.
NET—ATHRREZEARTERHATE  HEh 22— R"FT_A+AREREREFTSERE -

ErBERERm_T—

Mr. Tang Shuangning was re-designated as a non-executive Director and ceased to be the Chairman of the Board with effect

from 12 December 2016.

Title

Chairman

Chief Executive Officer
General Manager
Chief Financial Officer

Deputy General Manager

Non-executive Director

Independent Non-executive
Director

Independent Non-executive
Director

Independent Non-executive
Director

Independent Non-executive
Director
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The Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the Group’s affairs. The Directors have disclosed to the
Company annually the number and the nature of offices held in public companies or organizations and other
significant commitments. The Board believes that the balance between executive Directors, non-executive
Director and independent non-executive Directors is reasonable and adequate to provide sufficient balances that
protect the interests of the Shareholders and the Group.

Independent non-executive Directors provide the Group with diversified experience and professionalism. Their
advices and views as well as participation in the Board and committee meetings bring independent view, advice
and judgment on issues relating to the strategy and development, business operation and performance, risk
control, conflict of interest etc, to ensure the Shareholders’ interests are taken into consideration.

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company, subject to the manner of retirement by rotation of
Directors as from time to time prescribed under the Listing Rules and notwithstanding any contractual or other
terms on which any Director may be appointed or engaged, at each annual general meeting, one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or if their number is not a multiple of 3, the number nearest to but not less than one-
third) shall retire from office by rotation, provided that every Director (including those appointed for a specific
term) shall be subject to retirement at least once every 3 years.

The position of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are held by separate individuals, with a view
to maintain an effective segregation of duties between the management of the Board and the day-to-day
management of the Group’s business and operation.

The Board meets regularly throughout the year. Under the lead of the Chairman, the Board is responsible
for approving and supervising the overall strategies and policies of the Group, approving annual budget and
business plans, assessing the Group’s performance and supervising the work of the management. All Directors
have access to board papers and related materials, and are provided with adequate information in a timely
manner. The Directors may, if necessary, seek legal or other independent professional advice at the expense of
the Company.
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In respect of regular Board meetings and audit committee meetings, the agenda is sent out to the Directors at
least 14 days before the meetings and the accompanying papers are sent at least 3 days before the meetings for
information.

As an integral part of good corporate governance, the Board has established the following committees with
specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with the respective committee’s authority and duties:
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The Audit Committee, currently comprising all 4 independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Mar
Selwyn (Chairman), Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip, Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey and Mr. Zhai Haitao, is primarily
responsible for reviewing the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, as well as
discussing and reviewing the internal control and financial reporting matters of the Group, etc. The terms of
reference of the Audit Committee are disclosed on the website of the Company.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee reviewed with the management, KPMG, the predecessor
auditors of the Company, and Ernst & Young, the existing auditors of the Company, including but not
limited to the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, significant audit matters such
as significant accounting estimates and judgmental areas, and discussed the Group’s internal control and
financial reporting matters, including review of the annual results for the year ended 31 December 2015 and
the interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2016 respectively.
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On 1 January 2016, the Company established the Risk Management Committee which currently comprises
Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip (Chairman), an independent non-executive Director, Mr. Mar Selwyn, an independent
non-executive Director, Mr. Wong Kam Chung, Raymond, the Chief Financial Officer, Mr. Cai Shuguang,
an executive Director, and Ms. Xu Nailing, the Deputy Chief Financial Officer. Its main duties are to provide
oversight of the Company’s risk management programs, and to review the effectiveness of management’s
processes for identifying, assessing, mitigating and monitoring enterprise-wide risks. The terms of reference
of the Risk Management Committee have been established in writing.

During the year under review, the Risk Management Committee reviewed the establishment of a risk
management system for the Group, 2016 risk management work plan, the risk management at all levels and
internal control reporting mechanism, the risk management policy and risk factors of the Company, 2017 risk
management work plan and the analysis report of 8 key risks of the Company in 2016, etc.
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The Nomination Committee currently comprises Mr. Zhai Haitao (Chairman), an independent non-executive
Director, Mr. Chen Xiaoping, the Chief Executive Officer, and 3 other independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip, Mr. Mar Selwyn and Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey. Its primary responsibilities
include making recommendations to the Board on appointment of Directors and assessing the qualifications
and competencies of the candidates, so as to ensure that all nominations are fair and transparent. The terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee are disclosed on the website of the Company.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee considered the change in Directors and
re-designation of Directors, reviewed the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board, assessed the independence of the independent non-executive Directors,
and discussed and made recommendation to the Board on the re-election of the retiring Directors at the
forthcoming 2017 annual general meeting of the Company, etc.
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The Remuneration Committee currently comprises Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey (Chairman), an independent
non-executive Director, Mr. Cai Yunge, the Chairman of the Board, and 3 other independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip, Mr. Mar Selwyn and Mr. Zhai Haitao. The terms of reference of
the Remuneration Committee, which are disclosed on the website of the Company, set out the duties of the
Remuneration Committee, including determining, with delegated responsibilities, the remuneration packages
of the individual executive Directors and senior management.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the remuneration adjustment proposal
for the directors and management of the PRC subsidiaries and 4 business segments of the Company, and
the remuneration proposal of the individual executive Directors and senior management.

The remuneration of all the Directors is set out in note 9 to the financial statements.
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The Disclosure Committee currently comprises Mr. Chen Xiaoping (Chairman), the Chief Executive Officer,
Mr. Wang Tianyi, the General Manager, Mr. Wong Kam Chung, Raymond, the Chief Financial Officer and
Ms. Poon Yuen Ling, the Company Secretary. The Board has delegated the day-to-day execution of its
continuous disclosure obligations to the Disclosure Committee to ensure the compliance of the Company
with its disclosure obligations. The terms of reference of the Disclosure Committee have been established in
writing.

During the year under review, no Disclosure Committee meeting was held.
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The Management Committee comprises Mr. Chen Xiaoping (Chairman), the Chief Executive Officer, Mr.
Wang Tianyi, the General Manager, Mr. Wong Kam Chung, Raymond, the Chief Financial Officer, Mr. Cai
Shuguang, an executive Director as well as Mr. Hu Yanguo, Mr. Qian Xiaodong and Mr. An Xuesong. The
Management Committee is responsible for the management of daily business operations, formulating and
implementing annual work tasks and medium-term development plans for the Group, etc. The Management
Committee is the decision-making body for day-to-day business activities and makes collective decisions on
major matters relating to the Group’s daily business operations, management and personnel matters, etc.
The terms of reference of the Management Committee have been established in writing.

During the year under review, the Management Committee held regular meetings. The Management
Committee reviewed and discussed, including but not limited to, the Group’s investment proposals on new
projects, changes in senior management personnel, performance appraisals, and status of financial budget
execution and the major works done and progress of each business segment, etc.
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The Board directs and approves the overall strategies of the Group. It is the ultimate decision making body of the
Company except for matters requiring the Shareholders’ approval in accordance with the Articles of Association
of the Company, the Listing Rules and other applicable laws and regulations.

The Board has delegated day-to-day business of the Group to the management. All committees established
under the Board have their specific terms of reference clearly defining their powers and responsibilities.
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The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties as set out below:

1. to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of Directors and senior management;

3. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and Directors; and

5. to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
The Board had performed the above duties during the year under review.
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The Company has formulated the board diversity policy aiming at setting out the approach on diversity of the
Board.

The Board recognizes the importance of having a diverse Board in enhancing the Board’s effectiveness and
corporate governance. A diverse Board includes and makes good use of differences in the skills, industry
knowledge and experience, education, background and other qualities of the Directors and does not
discriminate on the ground of race, age, gender or religious belief. These differences are taken into account in
determining the optimum composition of the Board and when possible should be balanced appropriately.
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The Nomination Committee of the Company has responsibility for identifying and nominating candidates for
approval by the Board. It takes responsibility in assessing the appropriate mix of experience, expertise, skills
and diversity required on the Board and assessing the extent to which the required skills are represented on the
Board and overseeing the Board succession.

The Nomination Committee is also responsible for reviewing and reporting to the Board in relation to Board
diversity.

Board appointments will be based on merits of the candidates and other objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates to join the Board will be, in part, dependent on the pool of candidates with the necessary
knowledge, experience, skills, educational background and other qualities. The final decision will be based on
the chosen candidate’s merits and contributions that he/she will bring to the Board.

The Board considers that Board diversity is a vital asset to the Company.

At present, the Nomination Committee has not set any measurable objectives to implement the Board diversity
policy. However, the Nomination Committee will consider and review the Board diversity policy, and set any
measurable objectives from time to time.
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Each newly appointed Director receives an induction package covering the statutory and regulatory obligation
of a director of a listed company. The Company continuously updates Directors with the latest developments
and changes to the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements and provides training to develop
and refresh the Directors’ knowledge and skills. During the year under review, a director’s induction training was
given to Mr. Cai Yunge who was appointed as the Vice-chairman and executive Director of the Company on
10 November 2016 and was subsequently re-designated as the Chairman of the Board on 12 December 2016.
Moreover, the Company provided Directors with monthly updates on the performance, position and prospects of
the Company. The Company also provided Directors with monthly analysis report on the Company’s stock price
performance and monthly journal of the Company.

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuing professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills as directors. The Company has prepared a training record in order to assist the Directors
to record the training that they have undertaken.

During the year under review, the Company organised trainings for Directors on the applications of paperless
solutions software for meetings as well as financial and tax considerations for outbound transactions. Individual
Director had also attended seminars and/or conferences or forums relevant to his profession and duties as
Directors. The Company also arranged project site visits for the newly appointed Director and the independent
non-executive Directors.

BEFZENEFTRES ARSI ARBRLTRARNEFEENREERELZ2EETNEN - ARAFERNESRR
HEFELTRAMEMEREERE RN ERMN - YREFIINBEREEFESTOMNBEMZEE - ROBEFER -
ARRRHEERERINTEAZRLE BN T RNFT+-ATHEZERARARATESRTRITIE  RER-F
—ANEFTZAT—BEREIA/REFEIRE - I ARFMEFRHABARARE - MAMAMSNEAEHREH -
ARRTRAEEEARBREBARBARERBENSTERSE - UEBAAT -

ARAEBMEE2NSEEEER  UWERTETHNEENHRBMNKREE - ARRISHEEIIRE - U ESLEME

Feosl -

REBFEAR  ARBREFTEREHEBRCERRTERE - URBIINMIBOMBE RHBEBZE BRI - ERE
FE2MTEBREEEXNETRBNBIRER LEHLARE - ARAYLTHNEETRBILFNITERIIAA
BEHEBASER -
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued) €& (4#&)
Training for Directors (continued) BB &3 (42)
Below is a summary of the training the Directors had received during the year under review:

REBEFER  EFMEINEIHENT

Type of trainings

Name of Directors E= e s l[Eepi
Executive Directors HITEF

Mr. Cai Yunge Nt B A,C,D,E
Mr. Chen Xiaoping PR/ S A,B,C
Mr. Wang Tianyi FTRERE AB,C
Mr. Wong Kam Chung, Raymond =i LA AB,C
Mr. Cai Shuguang BEREN A A.B,C
Non-executive Director FHITEF

Mr. Tang Shuangning Nt B o e c
Independent Non-executive Directors HUIIPITEF

Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip BB EAE ACD
Mr. Mar Selwyn BREEE A,C,D
Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey TR NS A,C
Mr. Zhai Haitao BEgRitE ACD
Notes 7t :

(1) Mr. Cai Yunge was appointed as the Vice-chairman and executive Director with effect from 10 November 2016 and was
subsequently re-designated as the Chairman of the Board with effect from 12 December 2016.
BRAREERA-Z—ARFT+ - ATHREZCANTESHREAER HER T X"F+ A+ -_HEEATRESSLR -

(2) Mr. Tang Shuangning was re-designated as a non-executive Director and ceased to be the Chairman of the Board with effect
from 12 December 2016.
HZZ—RE+-A+ZB FEEEREEREIRINTETRTBEEESS LR -



Annual Report 2016
—E-REFEFER 69

A: attending seminars/conferences/forums
HEEHE &%

B: giving talks at seminars/conferences
REXRE/&& LIRS

C: reading newspapers, journals and updates relating to the economy, environmental protection business or
director’s duties and responsibilities etc
FEAALE RREBAEFTBESZIHRE  THEEHEH

D: attending site visit arranged by the Company
SRR AR5 ZE R

E: director’s induction training
ERHEEI

The remuneration of the members of the senior management by band for the year ended 31 December 2016 is set
out below:

HE T XR"F+ A=+ BUIFESLETEBZHFMARNT
Remuneration bands (HK$) Number of persons A £k AR (B®IT)

$1,500,001 to $2,000,000
$2,000,001 to $2,500,000
$2,500,001 to $3,000,000
$3,000,001 to $3,500,000
$3,500,001 to $4,000,000

1,500,001t £2,000,0007T
2,000,001 7Tc%2,500,0007T
2,500,0017C%3,000,0007T
3,000,0017C%3,500,0007T
3,500,0017C%4,000,0007T

— a4 4 a4

Further particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid employees as required to be
disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the financial statements,
respectively.

RIBELDRBUMBAICARETHEURTLRRZSFHEERE ZE B - 2 RIENHBERRM TR0 -
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NUMBEROFBOARDMEEﬂNGSANDCOMMﬂTEEMEEﬂNGSANDATﬁNDANCE
RATE OF DIRECTORS EEghZER@ @AM LB EETHNEHFERH

The following shows the number of regular Board meetings and committee meetings held during the year under
review as well as the attendance rate of the Directors.

TRETOBEFEARARAMBITNENESTERZBEEEZRBULESTNHFE R -

Attendance rate HERXE

Risk
Board of Audit  Management Nomination  Remuneration ~ Management
Name of Directors Directors Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee
EEMA EXxg ®k%8% AkENEZEe REZEe  ¥HZEe  §EZEe
Execut ive Directors
Mr. Ca| Yunge Note 1 1/4 N/A N/A N/A 0/1 N/A
EpEihn NEH NEH NEH NEH
Mr. Chen Xiaoping 4/4 N/A N/A 2/2 N/A 11/12
BNTEE NEm @M @M
Mr. Wang Tianyi 4/4 N/A N/A N/A N/A 12/12
FRERE NEH NEH NEH NEH
Mr. Wong Kam Chung, Raymond 4/4 N/A 2/2 N/A N/A 12/12
AR E i@ @ @
Mr. Cai Shuguang 4/4 N/A 2/2 N/A N/A 12/12
3 NER TEA TEA
/\/on execuz‘/ve Director
3/4 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
NEm @M @M @M @M
Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip 4/4 3/3 2/2 2/2 1/1 N/A
BLBEE @M
Mr. Mar Selwyn 4/4 3/3 2/2 2/2 1/1 N/A
SRREE TEA
Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey 2/4 3/3 N/A 1/2 1/1 N/A
ALK FE s
Mr. Zhai Haitao 4/4 3/3 N/A 2/2 11 N/A
BRREE TEA TEA

Notes #* :

(1) Mr. Cai Yunge was appointed as the Vice-chairman and executive Director with effect from 10 November 2016 and was
subsequently re-designated as the Chairman of the Board with effect from 12 December 2016.
BAREERAZT—AF+-ATEREZERANTESRAER HEH T "F+ A+ AREAIRESFSIR -

(2) Mr. Tang Shuangning was re-designated as a non-executive Director and ceased to be the Chairman of the Board with effect
from 12 December 2016.
BT —A"F+-A+ZHE BEELERFATAIFNTESRTEEEEESER -
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The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer should be separate. The Chairman’s responsibility is
to manage the Board and the Chief Executive Officer’s responsibility is to manage the Company’s business. The
division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer is clearly established.

The main duties of the Chairman include providing leadership for and overseeing the functioning of the Board;
formulating overall strategies and policies of the Company; ensuring that all Directors are properly briefed on
issues arising at Board meetings and giving each Director an opportunity to express his view at Board meetings;
ensuring that Directors receive adequate information, which must be complete and reliable, in a timely manner;
ensuring that the Board works effectively and discharges its responsibilities; ensuring that all key and appropriate
issues are discussed by the Board in a timely manner; drawing up and approving the agenda for each Board
meeting, taking into account, where appropriate, any matters proposed by the other Directors for inclusion in
the agenda; taking responsibility for ensuring that good corporate governance practices and procedures are
established; encouraging all Directors to make a full and active contribution to the Board’s affairs and taking
the lead to ensure that the Board acts in the best interests of the Company; ensuring that appropriate steps are
taken to provide effective communication with Shareholders and that views of Shareholders are communicated
to the Board as a whole; and facilitating the effective contribution of Directors and ensuring constructive relations
between executive Directors and non-executive Directors.

The duties of the Chief Executive Officer include taking responsibility for the Group’s operation and management;
implementing decisions and plans approved by the Board; making day-to-day operational and managerial
decisions; and coordinating overall business operations.

TRETRESNBUEEE, - TFEEEEFENREETRANEEARREBNBERABMORER

ITFENIEREERFEETENETETEVE  HIEARABRBRBLER BREFE LMAEFHEENE
%WW%E&%E%§$E%$QQ%i§LEEﬁm%A'%%i%A&MWUﬁ ME - ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%
%ﬂﬁyﬁﬁﬁiAﬁ&%Lﬁ ARTEREEL  BMREFENRIMEEENEEFTHEATIH  ETALHES
REFEEHENZE  TEEBLT  E8BTRETREMEFESEMAG &WEH$E,EfEﬁﬁ$QEWEE
ﬂ%¢%am%ﬁ&&f SEFEESENRABEEEH  UNHFA BREFSTENAARAIREN R
BRFRIEESRBRFERREMBE  ULBRERREAIEZIEEEES  MeEfESHEZTSFLANE
Bl YHERKITEFEFRTEFT ZMEFERIENRRE -

ARAANBEEEEARENEENEE  RITEESNRERE  (FRAEEENARRE  RipHLERE
HES -
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The current 4 independent non-executive Directors hold office for a term until 31 December 2017. They are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

In accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Board is of the
view that all independent non-executive Directors are independent (except that for Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip under
Rule 3.13(7), he had been a non-executive Director prior to his re-designation as an independent non-executive
Director) and the Company has received an annual confirmation of independence from each of the independent
non-executive Directors pursuant to the Listing Rules.

Independent non-executive Directors are identified as such in all corporate communications containing names of
the Directors. An updated list of the Directors identifying the independent non-executive Directors and the roles
and functions of the Directors is maintained on the website of the Company.

AROUBYFRTEENEHEEZE " T—tF T+ -_A=T—H1L - BELAETARANERAUBAREBERER
BEEEZIRTE -

Zl

RIFLEMRAUNESASGABE 2B LMRES EFER/EBE A TEFTHRBILAL(BRRE EHMRAIE3.13(7)
k- SECBEERERBIABUIFATESNAERTESSIN)  MEZBIUFATEFERELMRAUNKERAR
AlRHAEBE LN FEERE

ARBPEMBREESHENARRAT  CHENRBBILIFNTESZSN - ARAZEFEFTLECHRARFN
BuhA - ERBYIFMTEESORIIREETAC LB -

The Group has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct for securities transactions by the
Directors. Having made specific enquiries to the Directors, all Directors confirmed that they had complied with
the required standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2016.

AEBERA ETRAME T AECETETAERETESRZNTETIND(BRETUINERERTETARAFLR
SEENIEL - BRAMAESFELREERR  MAEFHBRERBE T R"F+ A=t "RHLFER—EBEE
SRS AT E MR E ©
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The Company Secretary is accountable to the Board for ensuring that Board policy and procedures are followed
and Board activities are efficiently and effectively conducted. The Company Secretary is a full time employee of
the Company. Although the Company Secretary reports to the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive
Officer, all Directors may call upon the Company Secretary for assistance and advice at anytime in respect to
their duties so as to ensure effective operation of the Board and the committees thereunder. The Company
Secretary advises the Board on governance matters and facilitates the induction and professional development
of Directors. For the year under review, the Company Secretary has obtained the practitioner’s endorsement
certificate for 2016/17 issued by The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and confirmed she had taken
no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

NRAMENEFESRE  URREBTESFSRRNER  UNEFSEBERXREMHET - RAMERRRAE
BES HALNFMERETSIFRTRATHER E2REFOERERARANEREEHFEFECNERR
HE MREFEMETEBZEQAAMEE - ARANERENEAFERNESTRHER  YAEESNEG[R
REZXEHR NEBEFE  ARWECRGARTEFAWELASHLN2016M7TFENAXMETELRBEREDER
AOR+R/NFHEREERE -

During the year under review, there was no change in the Company’s constitutional documents.

REEFE  ARANARERETEZS -

It is the auditors’ responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on their audit, on the Company’s financial
statements and to report their opinions solely to the Company, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”), and
for no other purpose. They do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of the independent auditor’s report.

The external auditors of the Company for the year under review were Ernst & Young, who was appointed at the
2016 AGM in place of the retiring auditors, KPMG. Apart from the provision of annual audit services, Ernst &
Young also carried out interim review of the Group’s results and provided other services in connection with the
requirements under the Listing Rules and the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance.

RHMZBERREBEREEZTENER  HUBBRXELBYER  YRBREBZIFE BT _EQFEMNT A
AMEDI ) 405G R E - WARAHER —EERBIELRSE - B2 ZMESTAIREEMA S - KA 0B
UZBMBENAT  HEMEMATARSIAERT -

REBFERN  ARBZINEZBRMRLKEAMEHM(N_F-A"FRRBFAG LERT  UWERREZEEE
FEEREERA) - BEBFRUEEZIREIN - ZoKE AN F 7P IR B A S B o P B4 Mol AR BIR IR LW &P &
B BRI BUAR DR AR TE M 1R R E Mo AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2016, Ernst & Young, the external auditors, received the following remuneration
from the Group in connection with the provision of audit and non-audit services to the Group:

BE_Z—R"FT_A=1t—"BLFER  INEXHRMLKEAMELEARRBHREZNIFEZRE TASE MR T
SN -

2016
—E-REF
HK$’000
BT T
Financial statements audit services and MR BFIZRE &
interim review services R EI B E B RTS 4,040
Other services H b AR 7%
— assurance services in connection with the requirements — IR B S R RS &7
under the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance B RARE N ZE RS 6
- due diligence, tax advisory and —RRALT  BBHAR
other services H M0 AR 75 474
4,520

The Board has full responsibility for the Group’s risk management and internal control systems, which include
the establishment of a defined management structure with specified limits of authority. The systems are
designed to help the achievement of business objectives of the Group, safeguard assets against unauthorized
use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of reliable financial
information for internal use or for publication and ensure compliance with relevant legislations and regulations.
The risk management and internal control systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risks of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

EXerRAEARENRREENAMEZERS  BEMNTEERBLAENERNANGHAEEEREKER - R
EREEAMARGRECAILE  BRTALBS A LENRHAT SNV B EMEADERASEINER - WERET
BREDIERR - BREERANEZERGEEEEMIDERAREEXNESKBENRR - MAERATAE(EXIFRY)
RETGHREXKRERAMKER -
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The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems. This review covered all material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management functions, and also considered the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions, and their training programmes
and budget. The Risk Management Department reports to the Company’s Risk Management Committee on the
internal control of key risks. Any internal control weaknesses detected by the Internal Audit Department of the
Company is reported to the Audit Committee members and the management of the Company. Accordingly, the
management takes remedial actions and the Internal Audit Department subsequently follows up and reviews
whether the remedial actions in place are adequate.

EXgCRMASERAREENATEZEZSFNERE - ZFRITBEMEEENERE BHIEMKER  ELER
T AHEENREREIEDE  YEBARRER:  REEA RV BERBE I ANER BETEERERES

W ARBTAEINBZIRELEHEREREARR - AREESNIZRAROABZEHBELRNARRNEAREESR
BgR®  MEBRREMARRAMEZNIE > AMBAHBEANARANEZZECGZBENEEEER - BRIt - &
BEEYSREMERNMEEEIANBETHERRELEZABMLERELSEE -

The key procedures that the Board has established to provide effective internal controls are as follows:

REHEROAGERE BB T TIEERF

An appropriate organisational structure is in place with defined operating policies and procedures as well as
responsibility and reporting lines.

AEBECHIFI A BEARERE  BRFARBENELBRMEF  BERER -

The executive Directors and senior management are delegated with respective levels of authorities to carry
out the corporate strategies, policies and the related matters formulated by the Board, and also based on
related internal control requirements of the existing policies and procedures to execute.

HNTEZLEMEEARERABERUARTESTSHFINOERE  BRRREAEEE - XREREHEERE
RAEBABIEHIRERITSE -

The Group implements budget management, and financial budget is executed upon approval by the Board.
Relevant procedures have been established to assess, review and approve major capital and recurrent
expenditures, and regular review and comparison between operating results and the budget are made.

The Group has established appropriate internal control procedures to ensure the keeping of complete
and accurate accounting and management records on a timely basis. Examination and review are carried
out regularly to ensure that the financial statements are properly prepared in conformity with the generally
accepted accounting principles, the Group’s accounting policies and the applicable laws and regulations.

AEBETHEETE  VHBERESFSURERNT - ARECFZARRFAFE - R AR EENELRE
FEEMET T YESRR B RE A RERE -

ARECRVEENAMELEERF  BEREE - EEMEFLESTREEEHN - ERETRS NEL - BRRM
BHRERORENT A —RRBAWEER - ARESEHER - USBERAER AR -



76 China Everbright International Limited
HEERBEFRER AR

Corporate Governance Report 2B 88 E

The Group has its Internal Audit Department, which has regularly conducted internal audits to review whether
the internal control procedures are being implemented appropriately.

AREEBRAANMEE - TEMETABRS AR ARETEFEENERT -

The Company has established a whistleblowing policy and system for employees of the Company to raise
concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other matters.

In order to achieve effective step-by-step management, the Company has set up 3 lines of defence in risk
management and internal control: The first line of defence includes business segments, regional centers and
project companies. They are responsible for continuous identification, assessment, monitoring and report of risks
in operating process and implementation of risk management and internal control specific process. The second
line of defence includes functional departments of the headquarter, functional departments in all segments and
Risk Management Department. They are responsible for the regular review of overall risk level and effectiveness
of control measures in key risks. The third line of defence is Internal Audit Department which is responsible for
the regular review on risk management and the follow up actions taken in enhancing internal control.

Adherence to the principle of “Up-and-Down Coordination and Cross-segmental Cooperation”, the Group has
strengthened its risk management through promotion of risk management system and establishment of the risk
management working network. The Risk Management Committee under the Board takes accountability on risk
management, and reviews the corporate risk management and internal controls at least twice a year. During the
year under review, the Risk Management Committee reviewed the establishment of a risk management system
for the Group, 2016 risk management work plan, the risk management at all levels and internal control reporting
mechanism, the risk management policy and risk factors of the Company, 2017 risk management work plan
and the analysis report of 8 key risks of the Company in 2016, etc. The Risk Management Department of the
Company is responsible for the implementation of the risk management system and evaluates the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems through on-site assessment and risk information collection,
etc.

ARBHETRRBRLER  BEAIBETRMBGER  AMEENE M T EAAERENTEETARLEL

ARRRITERERNABEEN=ENRAKER  ERERNEREE  F-BNROESEBRN - BT
LREE AT - BESELBESOERSEES  F  BERER RRARERERAEABRE  EoE0RE
BEBEHT  SRABEBFINARETEH  AATHIEEROARSE  BOBREARE FEEOERYE ;B
ZERHRARANBEH - BETHERARTENNLBENEEER -

ARBATETEE  AERE IREERNEEEERAREER R  EYRREE TERE  BITRAREEKE - K
AREEFETRAREEZES  HRAREETHFAS  8FTPRMAERREEBERMAMEITETRE - B
CEFEAN RREEZZBEEZASENAREEREZERTHE — - "FRAREETIEFHE  SERAREER
NEEEEREY AARMNERERSEREARESR —T—tFRRBER IS URBEHAQXTN T —RF
NREZRBAMTBEEFEE - ARRRAREEBAENTAREECREANTIF - BARSERAN - REMRKSE
FHA 0 FHERREEMAMEZ RSN
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In 2016, the Company completed the establishment of the risk management system based on the characteristics
of risk management and operational management needs, in order to clearly define the overall requirements of risk
management, management processes and functional division of labor, and to maintain a smooth risk reporting
channel. At the same time, for risk identification, the Group adopts the risk inventory mechanism by assessing
the risks of the project operations and constructions and setting out a list of risk factors of the Company.
Each business segment further forms the segment level risk factor list according to their own characteristics.
The Company uses the risk matrix, and determines unified risk parameters for the type and degree of risk
assessment. Following the risk management system, the Company has established risk control plan for the
major risks faced by the Company during the year. The risk control plan includes specific objectives, responsible
departments, management and business processes involved, resources for required conditions and methods,
process supervision and management requirements, etc. The Company has continued to carry out risk control
measures, and assessed the effectiveness of the control measures. The overall major risks were effectively
controlled and the risk level has continued to decrease and it is considered that the risk management and internal
control systems of the Company are effective and adequate.

The Company attaches great importance to risk awareness and risk management capability. During the
year, the Company conducted various risk management trainings, strengthened on-site risk verification and
developed risk self-assessment tools and risk event collection tools to enhance the standardization level of risk
management.

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and dissemination of inside information, the
Company has established a Disclosure Committee and the Board has delegated the day-to-day execution of
its continuous disclosure obligations to the Disclosure Committee. Moreover, the Company has formulated
an inside information reporting policy to ensure that potential inside information can be promptly identified,
assessed and escalated, if necessary, for the attention of the Disclosure Committee and/or the Board to decide
about the need for disclosure.

—T-RF ARTARBEEAREEFHNELEEFTEZCNRIAREENE  UREAREEERER  EERIE
MBS T  FHEGENERERRBE FNRKABSEEEREETRARNSE BANELEENEREENRRS
B BYTARBERREZBRRE  SXBRARBEESEH  E-—FPEARREAARZRSLE - AFKRARARE
- WHEES-—HNRBR2EERARTERUNZRETELNG HRERNFEIERAR  ARFRERREREEE
- GIEHENRREESR  RREZSRBEABRE AWM APENEERERRE  PAFOKE - F
BEER EREENERERS ARARBFERRRAREZERIE  UHERERRETHE  BELIER
fRISRI AR RBOKERERE  YR/ARFAREEMAMEZHEERIRTRE

ARRREERRREZMARERENNEN  FAREZREEVANRRERE - #cRRBRRSRETIIE Rk
MERREFIAMRREHCRETR  RARBRERNRENLKTE -

BRRENEMAREENREFMAREE  ARAREREZES  EFVREREZESRERERESEEN
BERITIE - I - RAFHET AREESREFRARFREENAREL L FIARA - FFERELERRRE
REZEGR /' XEFE  UERATREREELRE -
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The Directors confirm that they are responsible for the preparation of the Group’s financial statements.

The Finance Management Department of the Company is taken charge by the Chief Financial Officer. With the
assistance of the Finance Management Department, the Directors ensure that the Group’s financial statements
have been properly prepared in accordance with relevant regulations and applicable accounting principles.

A statement by Ernst & Young, the auditors of the Company, about their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements of the Group is included in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 100 to 108.

ESERBRREAREM BRI AEEREL -

ARRMMBHEENRYBREAREE AV BEERTNHE T EFERAKEMBRENRRTBRESR R
Mz 'Rt R -

ARBEBMZKETMEBAAAEEMERRAEZPRETEAIENFEI100EEE108E 2 B R MRS
WO

The Company recognizes the importance of good communications with the Shareholders and the investment
community and also recognizes the value of providing current and relevant information to Shareholders and the
investors. The Board has established a Shareholders’ communication policy setting out the principles of the
Company in relation to the Shareholders’ communication, with the objective of ensuring the Shareholders and
investors are provided with ready, equal and timely access to current and relevant information about the Group.

The Company maintains on-going dialogue with Shareholders to communicate with them through annual general
meetings or other general meetings and encourage their participation in such general meetings.

Notices of Shareholders’ meetings which contain agenda, proposed resolutions and postal voting form, are sent
to the registered Shareholders by post.

All registered Shareholders are entitled to attend annual and extraordinary general meetings, provided that their
shares have been recorded in the Register of Shareholders.

ARRHAERREREERFRIFBBNEEZN SR ARRRREERHEMNLAEEANEE EES
ETBRRBABE  JHARRARBRREBM R - §EBRRRREKRESE - EREEK - HE ERNARE R
FTAARAE R o
ARAREEBRRBAFASGRAMRRASHERR -—ERFEBLZBHRELARRAE -

BLBRRABES RUBMBERASEE - AGBETHAHE  RENRBRRBERERRS -

EAECHROBRLERRBEFAE MERFHIAE - EREFHNRMDVUACELRRRAMA
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Annual and interim reports offer comprehensive operational and financial performance information to
Shareholders and the annual general meeting of the Company provides a forum for Shareholders to exchange
views directly with the Board, which together help enhance and facilitate communication with Shareholders.
Shareholders who are unable to attend a general meeting may complete and return to the Company’s Share
Registrar the proxy form enclosed with notice of meeting to give proxy to their representatives, another
Shareholder or chairman of the meeting.

FERTHBRERBEREHEL LM BEERANFREMARARFANBRBFAGARREHEEETERNEEER
BERNKE  EHEPRINEMNEERRRAEAE -  REHFERRASGHRRAEZBHINASBENRRZERR
YU REARBRMDBFRE  NWEERFEZARREAS - BRRIAAGEFEREENNE

Pursuant to section 566 of the Companies Ordinance, the members of the Company representing at least 5% of
the total voting rights of all the members having a right to vote at general meetings may request the Directors to
call a general meeting. The request must state the general nature of business to be dealt with at the meeting and
may include the text of a resolution that may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting. The
request may consist of several documents in like form and may be sent to the Company in hard copy form or in
electronic form and must be authenticated by the person(s) making it.

If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of the request proceed duly to convene a
general meeting for a day not more than 28 days after the date on which the notice convening a general meeting
is given, the members concerned or any of them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all
of them, may themselves convene a general meeting, provided that the general meeting so convened shall not
be held after the expiration of 3 months from such date.

The general meeting convened by such members shall be convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible,
as that in which general meetings are to be convened by the Directors.

*ETJ*“ AlGRPIF661F  MEBRRAE LRENEEBRRAREENE DS I ARABER » AIBRETARBRAK
g - ARAERELAIBANE LEENFTENARLE YRR ANE LEEDZXRNE LHRNRER

B BHEXREARZOHARLOXMN AR EBFEALAXEFHARARRFRL - ABAKLRELERD
THZE -
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Pursuant to section 615 of the Companies Ordinance, the members of the Company may request the Company
to give, to members of the Company entitled to receive notice of the annual general meeting, notice of a
resolution that may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting. The request may be sent
to the Company in hard copy form or in electronic form and must identify the resolution of which notice is to
be given, be authenticated by the person or persons making it and be received by the Company not later than
6 weeks before the annual general meeting to which the requests relates; or if later, the time at which notice is
given of that meeting.

The Company will give notice of a resolution if it has received the requests from (a) members representing at least
2.5% of the total voting rights of all the members who have a right to vote on the resolution to which the request
relate; or (b) at least 50 members who have a relevant right to vote on the resolution to which the request relate.

RIFQBGRPIZE615MF - AARRRAIBRARBAEREIBRRBFASRBENRRELRZRAS  MABRE
ERRBERAFAGLEAZESRIHNE LR - ERELENEBREATAREFHARARAERL - UAFHH
BFELBEMIURAESR BN ARAREERHOALIERRE  URARRLETERABBRRABAFASRITAHAN
E2E%(NBRR)EHERBFASBENSHXEFHELE -

RARBEREETIIALTELNERER  BHRBRBS  QFAEAREARRZRREN2BRREAREENED
25%2KE KO ZPE0REERBAABRINERARE -
As regards the procedures for proposing a person for election as a Director, please refer to the procedures made

available under the Corporate Governance section of the Company’s website at www.ebchinaintl.com.

BRARBENMALREERNIZF - F2H AR FBEwww.ebchinaint.comREEEIREF D HITRF °
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At the 2016 AGM, a separate resolution was proposed by the chairman of the meeting in respect of each
separate issue, including re-election of each retiring Director. All resolutions were duly passed by Shareholders
by way of poll at the meeting. The then Chairman was unable to attend the 2016 AGM due to other business
engagements. Certain Directors and members of committees attended the meeting to answer questions of
Shareholders. The Company announced the results of the poll in the manner prescribed under the Listing Rules.
No other general meeting was held during 2016. The attendance record of the Directors at the general meeting
is set out below:

R-ZF-AFERFAFAE  RIFNSRBUNFTRENREBLOREER  HTEREESRITEST MAERE
REBRRNZEZ LURERASTABS EREFTSTIFAHEBABRELFE T ANFRFEFAE - HES
REZEEMKBLEESHREERRNER - A2ARBELTRARENTARBRERRER - R_2—RFFER
WEARITEMBRAE - EFHFRERRG LM ¢

General meeting attended/held

Directors o EREASRE, 2HRERE
Mr. Cai Yunge Nete ! B E A N/A i A
Mr. Chen Xiaoping RN 1/1
Mr. Wang Tianyi FRELE 1/1
Mr. Wong Kam Chung, Raymond mipfA 1/1
Mr. Cai Shuguang BB A 1/1
Mr. Tang Shuangning Note2 [ BE 28 4 A2 0/1
Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip SBERSAE 0/1
Mr. Mar Selwyn BHEELE 1/1
Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey FTEELAE 1/1
Mr. Zhai Haitao BEELE 1/1
Notes #* :

(1) Mr. Cai Yunge was appointed as the Vice-chairman and Executive Director with effect from 10 November 2016 and was
subsequently re-designated as the Chairman of the Board with effect from 12 December 2016.
BAREERA-Z—ARF+-ATEREZCANTESHREAER HEH - XFT A+ -HREATRESESXR -

(2) Mr. Tang Shuangning was re-designated as a non-executive Director and ceased to be the Chairman of the Board with effect
from 12 December 2016.
HZZE—R"F+ZA+ZHE FEEELERFATRFNTESRTEEEEESER -
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The Company recognizes the importance of efficient and effective communications with the investor community.
Briefings and meetings with institutional investors and analysts are conducted regularly to provide them with
up-to-date and comprehensive information about the Group’s development. Besides, the Company facilitates
the initiation and coverage of the Company published by research analysts of well-received investment banks
which are instrumental in providing investors with independent and professional evaluations of the Company.
Moreover, the Group participates in different international forums and overseas non-deal roadshows to elaborate
on the Group’s business development plans to global investors. Furthermore, the Company arranges site visits
for investors and media to our key projects in China. Last but not least, the Company has established a function
dedicated to investor relations and engaged an external public relations company to take care of investor
relations matters. The Company also maintains a website (www.ebchinaintl.com) which renders Shareholders,
investors and the general public direct access to the information of the Group on a timely basis.

In order to enable Shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed manner, and to allow them to engage
actively with the Company, a Shareholders communication policy of the Company has been established.
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the Company via the Company’s website
at www.ebchinaintl.com. Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general meetings of the
Company.

RAGEEERBEREENSBIRELNER ARASITKERBREERSMEBTHRS LR - AESIE
HEPAEEEROEND2MEMAE - N AREHPMNENRERITHOARINMARATREDMBRE @ 1t
BEMNRREBHREEEEBEAAFTMNB Y RHEETMH - i FEEBHFETRANERREMEIINIIERZEE - @
PR EEMAAEBENXEBER;E - B BMEESAEHER  AREENEBRTIASEUNPEMNS
FEHEE - ARFACRBEEEREEBENIE  WEBINFLABALATNBEREEHENSEH - ARR 2@
(www.ebchinaintl.com) ARG R « WEE R ARALCERRERAREMAERS -

BTERREMBENBERTITEEREAERN  WEMMOEGIEART - AARFI T REBRMBOR - BEAIET
RS AR B AN A B A8 Hwww. ebchinaintl.com M AN A &) 8 i b M ) & A E T8 ORI RE © IR IR ] FE AN R R R BRK
erREFReREENR -
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Directors and Senior Management EENSHREEAE

DIRECTORS £%=

Executive Directors H{TEE

CAl YUNGE - CHAIRMAN

aged 45, is the Chairman of the Board. Mr. Cai is the Deputy General Manager of China Everbright Group Ltd.,
the Vice-chairman and General Manager of China Everbright Holdings Company Limited, and an Executive
Director and chairman of the board of directors of China Everbright Limited (the shares of which are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited). He holds a master degree in Business Administration from The
University of Warwick, UK and a doctoral degree in Economics from the Financial Research Institute of the
People’s Bank of China. He holds the title of Senior Economist. Before joining the Company, Mr. Cai has served
as the Secretary to the board and General Manager of Executive Office of China Everbright Bank Company
Limited, Deputy Chief of the Development and Reform Commission of Guangdong Province, and Division Chief
of the General Office and Deputy Division Chief of Banking Supervisory Department Il of the China Banking
Regulatory Commission. Mr. Cai joined the Board in November 2016 and was re-designated as the Chairman of
the Board in December 2016.

ERE(XE)

RFEASE EFQTFE - BEERTEAAREERN ARAEKE  FEAAEEERAFANESRK  AEELTE
KRAEBRERAF(EBRONRELSMAXZAERABD LM ATESREFEER - BELEFARBRER (F/R)X
SBTHEERTIEULRTREARBRTERAXAELMRESN - RAASNEBEMBE - ENAKRRFF - FERE
BEPEARRITBROBERAPNESTSWE PLAFTALE  BEREZEVNNEZESRITEULRPERTEEEE
BREENLERE  RITEE _MAERERE - HEEAER T R"F+-ANMAEZEIRN T F+-A#A
ETREZEELF -

CHEN XIAOPING — CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

aged 63, is the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Mr. Chen is also a Vice-chairman of All-China
Environmental Federation, a Deputy President of Chinese Ecological Civilization Research and Promotion
Association and a Standing Director of China Environmental Culture Promotion Association. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Chen had been a department head in the Bureau of Investigation & Supervision of The People’s Bank
of China, the Assistant Governor of China Everbright Bank Company Limited and the President of the Bank’s
Guangzhou Branch. He currently serves as a non-executive director and the chairman of China Everbright
Greentech Limited and had been a non-executive director and the chairman of China Everbright Water Limited,
the Company’s subsidiary listed in Singapore, until August 2015. He graduated from the Department of Finance
of the Southwest University in Finance and Economics, the PRC, finished the MBA class of the Research Institute
of Business Management of Sichuan University, the PRC and holds a Master’s Degree with a major in Money &
Banking from the Department of Finance and Trade of the China Research Institute of Social Science. He holds
the title of Senior Economist and Certified Public Accountant in the PRC. He had been engaged as a researcher
at the China International Economic Development Research Centre. He has rich experience and extensive
knowledge in banking, capital market and management. Mr. Chen joined the Board in August 2001.

BRNF(TTEAEE)

BRE63 - ARAITHAH - RELETRTERRBAGHIEF - PRARNAHTARLEZE G RMPBEIREL
RESEBEE - ENMAREER > RELABEBRTRARRITEXEERER LT B RBITITRYBREMN DT
TR - FRARBPENAGERARBRAPZIFATEERERE MG EF B AKBEER AR (RR BRI a9 Ht
BRAFRDMFATEETHREFTREE_TAF/\AL - WEXRTEABMEABRSHE - WIKXETHEEMITAHR
MBARIEAM R FAFEH ENBM ALV EMERRITERRLEME - RN BMBBEAZMEEER -
BABEASTEERKLEERRAETOMEER - FRBT EATSLREXEETERBLELRLEZMR - BRE
ER_ZT-F\AMAEES -
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Executive Directors (Continued) BT &% (#&)

WANG TIANYI — GENERAL MANAGER

aged 54, is the General Manager of the Company. Mr. Wang is also a non-executive director and the chairman
of China Everbright Water Limited, the Company’s subsidiary listed in Singapore. Prior to joining the Group,
he was the President of Shandong Academy of Science. He was formerly the Deputy Mayor of Jinan City of
Shandong Province. He had been the Vice President, Dean and Professor of Economic Management Faculty of
Yantai University of Shandong Province. He is currently also a part-time professor of Tsinghua University and
a Co-Director of Center for PPP of Tsinghua University. He is also a member of PPP Business Advisory Board
of UNECE and a member of Advisory Committee of China Business Research Centre of National University of
Singapore. He holds a Doctorate degree in Economics, a Master’s degree in Management and a Bachelor’s
degree in Electronics from Tsinghua University. He had pursued advanced studies at Harvard University and
University of California in the United States. Mr. Wang joined the Board in February 2010.

TR (MBI )

WELARR - ARFRRKIE - TRATR/PENAKBERDB (RARNH K EHHMERR)NIFRTESTRES
R EMAREER  BRALURENERREER - RABELUREEETATR - LEFUREESAZAIRE - £E
B R RHE - RIMEBERERBHUEFEERSPPPHAP LNHAREE - MEBEBMNECBEZESPPPERE
BeZR8  MNEBYARBTERBEMRPLEARE - REBFEABLEERBL  EEBBRINETESE LA -
WG EXERFEREBMIMNABEBRRE - TEAERN_T-—TF_ANAESES -

WONG KAM CHUNG, RAYMOND — CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

aged 53, is the Chief Financial Officer of the Company. Mr. Wong holds a Master of Business Administration
Degree, a Master of Management Degree in Information Technology Management from Macquarie University,
Australia, and a Bachelor of Arts with Honours Degree in Accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong. He
is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of England and Wales, a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
of United Kingdom and a member of the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada. He has extensive
experience in accounting, finance and auditing areas. Mr. Wong joined the Board in December 2002.

EIR (L)

RELIpR - ARAVBHEE - BEERARMERBRBTIEHERELM  TRSETA(EEEMRRER) UK
BEPTABREGHERENB LM YABAEMAEEE RERFHETHASEE RERKHFARGHHAE
BREEMNMEAFHAEXSHEHESE - REAFEEZE  MHBLZEER FLER_FT_F+_ANA
BFg-

CAl SHUGUANG - DEPUTY GENERAL MANAGER

aged 61, is the Deputy General Manager of the Company. Mr. Cai is the Vice-chairman of Everbright
Environmental Protection (China) Limited. He is also an executive director of China Everbright Water Limited, the
Company’s subsidiary listed in Singapore. Prior to joining the Group, he was formerly Deputy General Manager
of Shenzhen Kingway Brewery Limited. He graduated from the Department of Computer Science from Shanghai
Fudan University and holds a Master of Business Administration Degree from the University of Ballarat in
Australia. He holds the title of senior engineer. Mr. Cai has rich experience and extensive knowledge in corporate
management and project planning. Mr. Cai joined the Board in August 2010.

B (GIBAETE)

BFE615 > ARRIRRKEE - FRERIRRR(FE)ERAFNAESK - WITASTEXAKBAERRR(AAF
REFIE E TR B AR ITES - BELENMARNKER - SEBRINSHLEERAFAGEE - REXN LE
EERBERMER  UBFERANGENIRFARTHERB LR - AASRTIZAEME - L ELFERE
HERETERREELRNREZHE - ERER —_FT—TF\ANAES=E -
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Non-Executive Director #1TE%

TANG SHUANGNING - CHAIRMAN

aged 62, is Non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Tang is the representative of the 12th National People’s
Congress and the Vice-chairman of the Agriculture and Rural Affairs Committee of the 12th National People’s
Congress. He is also the Chairman of China Everbright Group Ltd., China Everbright Holdings Company Limited
and China Everbright Bank Company Limited. Mr. Tang is also the Director of Sun Life Everbright Life Insurance
Company Limited and a Non-executive Director of China Everbright Limited (the shares of which are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)). He was the non-executive director of Everbright
Securities Company Limited (the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange) until February 2017. He also
serves as the Vice Chairman of China Society for Finance and Banking and the Consultant of China Society for
Investment. He is a director of China Economic and Social Council and China Center for International Economic
Exchanges. Prior to joining the China Everbright Group, he was the Vice Chairman of the China Banking
Regulatory Commission. He holds a Master’s Degree in Economics from China Northeast University of Finance
& Economics. Mr. Tang has extensive knowledge and experience in finance management. Mr. Tang joined the
Board in July 2007, and was re-designated as a Non-executive Director of the Company in December 2016.

EEE(TE)

BEG2R  ARAZINTEE - BEAERFT _EEZ2EARKRARERAR 2EARRKRAGEXEENZE SR
TEZE  BARSTFEAREEARNAT PEXAEEARARRPEAABRITROERARESR - I BE
ERRAXKBASRBERAREERPEANAZRARQB(EBNRBEEBRERXSMER AR ([BZMA]) £H)
FERTESE - REEXABEFBNBERAR (EROPBRMM LTI FRTEFTEE _T—LF_ALL - FREPES
REgReR THERESCEM TELELSESERHES  PHEHEREEIRTOEHIES o RAEMATE
KAREER - EEFEBTEEEERZE A TIFEERY - FHEATERILUCABEESBELEM - BEEERS

Eﬁ%fiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ3Eﬁ)§iﬁ%ﬂ§‘éﬁ%&+%%§%#§% cEAER_ETEFLAMAESTE YR _FT—XRF+_AH
TRIFAITES -

Independent Non-Executive Directors B k#HTESE

FAN YAN HOK, PHILIP

aged 67, is Independent Non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Fan is an independent non-executive
director of the following Hong Kong listed public companies, namely Hysan Development Company Limited, First
Pacific Company Limited, China Aircraft Leasing Group Holdings Limited and PFC Device Inc. Mr. Fan is also
an independent director of Goodman Group, an Australian listed company and a member of the Asian Advisory
Committee of AustralianSuper, a pension fund established in Australia. He was formerly an independent director
of Zhuhai Zhongfu Enterprise Co., Ltd., a Shenzhen listed company and Suntech Power Holdings Co., Ltd.
(under official liquidation) until June 2013 and December 2013 respectively. He was also formerly an independent
non-executive director of HKC (Holdings) Limited and Guolian Securities Co., Ltd, both are Hong Kong listed
companies, until December 2014 and July 2016 respectively. Mr. Fan holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Industrial
Engineering, a Master’s Degree in Operations Research from Stanford University and a Master’s Degree in
Management Science from Massachusetts Institute of Technology. Before joining the Company in 1997, he was
an executive director of CITIC Pacific Limited in charge of industrial projects in China. He joined the Board in
November 1997 and was re-designated as the Non-executive Director and Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company in January 2010 and December 2012 respectively.

SBIC#E

BE6TH » ARAZBEIUFNTES - BRERZHXEBLTAR(AIFHEEERRAR - E—AFHARQAE - FH
REHEREIZRER AR RIMETHBRAR)MBILIFATES * SB5L4E TR BGoodman Group(—ZFKFRAMEE £
ME R A])H) I8 E = KAustralianSuper(— KR AMER I RARES)NDNAEALZEEKE - WEEHKETEE
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Independent Non-Executive Directors (Continued) B k8 1TEE (&)

MAR SELWYN

aged 81, is Independent Non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Mar graduated from the London School
of Economics, University of London. He is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of United
Kingdom and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is a director of Nexia Charles
Mar Fan Limited. He is also an independent non-executive director and chairman of the audit committee of
Minmetals Land Limited and Man Yue Technology Holdings Limited as well as an independent non-executive
director of PanAsialum Holdings Company Limited. He was formerly an independent non-executive director of
China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited until December 2015. He was the President of Hong Kong Society
of Accountants (now known as Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants) in 1991. Mr. Mar is an
Honorary Fellow of the Lingnan University. He joined the Board in September 2004.

B

RESIR  ARBZBIUFATES - FAEZEXNRIAERIALEERLER - RARBEFAARGHMAE R
BEEHMAGEREE - FALRAFTARESHEMTERAANESE - RIALBERARAFALEHRNREEA
BRARHBIINTEERECZEGLIR  URKRGEXEEEARAFZBIINITES - REETESAEEE
BRERARDNBLIFNTESR  BE_T-AF T AL - WER-AN—FHEFTBESHAMOGEER - FEETR
BERARRERL BN _ZETOFALAMAESTS -

LI KWOK SING, AUBREY

aged 67, is Independent Non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Li is the Chairman of IAM Holdings (Hong
Kong) Limited, a Hong Kong based investment firm, and has over 40 years’ experience in merchant banking and
commercial banking. He is also a non-executive director of The Bank of East Asia, Limited and an independent
non-executive director of Café de Coral Holdings Limited, Kunlun Energy Company Limited, Kowloon
Development Company Limited, Pokfulam Development Company Limited and Tai Ping Carpets International
Limited. Mr. Li has a Master of Business Administration from Columbia University and a Bachelor of Science in
Civil Engineering from Brown University. He joined the Board in November 1998.

FEZ

REOTE ARBZBIFATES - FRERELTEBRARAR(—RUERENBTER/EMZIARIZEER - B
ERERTEBRRITAEAEANTFER - WARRERITARAFZIFATEETLARLEEEFR AT - Bk
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ZHAI HAITAO

aged 48, is Independent Non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Zhai is the President and Partner of
Primavera Capital Group. He is also an independent director of China Everbright Water Limited, the Company’s
subsidiary listed in Singapore. He was formerly Managing Director of Goldman Sachs Asia LLC and Chief
Representative of Goldman Sachs Beijing Office. Prior to joining Goldman Sachs, Mr. Zhai worked at the
International Department of the People’s Bank of China in Beijing, and was Deputy Representative of the
People’s Bank of China Representative Office for the Americas based in New York. He holds a Master’s Degree
in International Relations from Columbia University, a Master of Business Administration Degree from New York
University and a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Economics from Peking University. He has extensive experience and
knowledge in banking, capital market and management. Mr. Zhai joined the Board in January 2011.

WRFA8HR  ARRZBUIFERITES - BAEABREEAAEENBEZEARA  BIATFEXAKKBERRAR(ARR]
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HU YANGUO

aged 50, is the Deputy General Manager of the Company, the General Manager of Everbright Environmental
Protection (China) Company Limited and a non-executive director of China Everbright Greentech Limited. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Hu was formerly the lecturer of mathematics at the Northeast Forestry University, the
person-in charge of the Accounting Department of Guangzhou Branch of the China Everbright Bank. Mr. Hu was
a director of Qinghai Spring Medicinal Resources Technology Co., Ltd. (formerly known as Qinghai Sunshiny
Mining Co., Ltd.). He holds a bachelor’s degree in mathematics and a master’s degree in Forestry Economy and
Management from Northeast Forestry University in the PRC. Mr. Hu is a Certified Public Accountant in the PRC.
He has comprehensive experience in accounting and settlement, administration management and construction
management. Mr. Hu joined the Group in April 2006.

AHAL B

BELS0% * BEARFRALE  AXRRFR(PE)ARAFBLELPBENALCRREBR AR ENITES - tAKE
EMAREER > ERIMERSEREBHEN - PEIARITEMNDTEAMEEARGEISEERERERNY
BEENERLA(AIEEEEKRBEERNEARATNES - REATERIIMEABHEEL BN MMELEEREL
B - AL RTEAMEHE - FRUKEE  THEBRIRERTEABAR KR LAE - HLER -_TTX
FOAMAREHE -

CHEN TAO

aged 53, is the Deputy General Manager of the Company. He is also the General Manager of Everbright
Environmental Protection Technological Development (Beijing) Ltd. and Everbright Environmental Protection
Technology Institute (Shenzhen) Ltd. Prior to joining the Group, he was formerly the lecturer and laboratory
supervisor of automation of Sichuan Light Chemistry Institute (presently known as East China University of
Science and Technology), the manager of Automation Department and the Assistant to General Manager of
Shenzhen Catic Intelligent System Co., Ltd. He graduated from the Department of Chemical Instrument and
Industrial Automation of East China Chemistry Institute (presently known as East China University of Science and
Technology) and holds a Master of Automation Degree from East China University of Science and Technology.
Mr. Chen holds the title of Certified Senior Engineer. He has comprehensive experience and knowledge in
construction management, technology development and administration management. Mr. Chen joined the
Group in April 2005.

=
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QIAN XIAODONG

aged 44, is the Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of China Everbright Greentech Limited and also
formerly Deputy General Manager of the Company. He holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Heat Energy Engineering
from the Department of Heat Energy Engineering of Dalian University of Technology in the PRC and a Master’s
Degree in Environment Engineering from Southeast University in the PRC. He has comprehensive experience
and knowledge in market development of environmental protection industry, national environmental policies and
industrial trend. Mr. Qian joined the Group in July 2003.

R

RELRE > STEAAGERREBRAFATEETRITRAH LA AR BALE - BRERFEPEEET KSR
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AN XUESONG

aged 46, is the Deputy General Manager of the Company. Mr. An is also the Executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer of China Everbright Water Limited, the Company’s subsidiary listed in Singapore. He holds
a Master of Business Administration Degree from Jinan University. Mr. An holds the title of Certified Public
Accountant in the PRC and International Internal Auditor. He has comprehensive experience in investment
management, financial management and risk management. Mr. An joined the Group in May 2002.

ZEH
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POON YUEN LING
aged 49, is the Company Secretary of the Company. She is an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute

of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. She joined the Group in
April 1994, with over 20 years of experience in company secretarial affairs.

SEpiE
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Report of the Directors
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The directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report
together with the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

China Everbright International Limited (the “Company”) is a
company incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its
registered office and principal place of business at Room 2703,
27th Floor, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong
Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries
are set out in note 45 to the financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical
locations of the operations of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) during the financial year are set out in note 4 to
the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a
discussion on the Group’s future business development are
provided in the Chairman’s Statement and Chief Executive
Officer’s Report on pages 8 to 47 of this Annual Report. In
particular, description of principal risks and uncertainties faced
by the Group can be found in the section headed “Principal
Risks and Uncertainties” in the Chief Executive Officer’s Report
on pages 43 to 44. An analysis of the Group’s performance
during the year using key performance indicators by each
business segment can be found in pages 18 to 37 of the
Chief Executive Officer’s Report. In addition, discussions on
the Group’s environmental policies, relationships with its key
stakeholders and compliance with relevant laws and regulations
which have a significant impact on the Group are provided in the
section headed “Environmental and Social Management” in the
Chief Executive Officer’s Report on page 45.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the major customers and
suppliers of the Group respectively during the financial year is
as follows:

TERZFRHEER
AEERAVBRFEEZETERP REEHER A
™

Percentage of
the Group’s total
EAEETI@E AL

Turnover Purchases
EERE HIBRE
The largest customer TARF 9%
Five largest customers in aggregate AREFEE 33%
The largest supplier BAEER 5%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate hARHEEEE 19%

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates
or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
customers and suppliers.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Deposit and loan service

On 14 May 2015, the Company entered into the Deposit
Services Framework Agreement and the Loan Services
Framework Agreement (collectively, the “Old Services
Framework Agreements”) with China Everbright Group Ltd.
(“China Everbright Group”). Pursuant to the Old Services
Framework Agreements, China Everbright Group will, through
its associate, China Everbright Bank Company Limited (“CE
Bank”), provide deposit, loan and related services to the
Group.

(@) Pursuant to the Deposit Services Framework Agreement,
China Everbright Group shall procure CE Bank to provide
to the Group deposit services (including current and fixed
term deposit) in accordance with rules and regulations
prescribed by the People's Bank of China (“PBOC”) and/
or other relevant rules and regulations within or outside the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”). The deposit services
to be provided by China Everbright Group shall be on
normal commercial terms and no less favourable than
the terms available to the Group from independent third
parties.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
Deposit and loan service (continued)

(a)

(continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the maximum
daily closing balance of the Group’s deposits (including
interests accrued thereon) placed in CE Bank amounted
to HK$762,526,000. This amount was below the annual
cap of HK$1,200,000,000 for the year ended 31 December
2016 which was proposed in the announcement made by
the Company on 14 May 2015.

The Loan Services Framework Agreement shall be on a
non-exclusive basis and the Company is at liberty to obtain
loan services from other third parties. Pursuant to the
Loan Services Framework Agreement, China Everbright
Group shall procure CE Bank to provide to the Group loans
(including revolving credit facility and fixed term loan) in
accordance with rules and regulations prescribed by the
PBOC and/or other relevant rules and regulations within
or outside the PRC. The loans services to be provided by
China Everbright Group shall be on normal commercial
terms and no less favourable than the terms available to
the Group from independent third parties.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the maximum
daily closing balance of the Group’s loans (excluding loans
which do not require security over the assets of the Group)
provided by CE Bank amounted to HK$432,415,000. This
amount was below the annual cap of HK$1,200,000,000
for the year ended 31 December 2016 which was
proposed in the announcement made by the Company on
14 May 2015.

On 7 December 2016, the Company entered into the New
Deposit Services Master Agreement and the New Loan
Services Master Agreement with China Everbright Group,
pursuant to which (i) the Company and China Everbright
Group have agreed to terminate the Old Services Framework
Agreements with effect from 1 January 2017 and (ii) China
Everbright Group will, through CE Bank, provide deposit, loan
and related services to the Group. Details are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 7 December 2016.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Lease of the premises

On 18 May 2016, China Everbright Environmental Group
Limited, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into an agreement (the “Tenancy Agreement”) with
Lane Bright Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of China Everbright Holdings Co. Ltd. (“CE Hong Kong”), in
relation to the leasing of the whole 36th Floor, Far East Finance
Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for a term of three
years commencing from 18 May 2016 to 17 May 2019 (both
days inclusive) at a monthly rent of HK$1,026,000 (exclusive of
rates, management fee, water, electricity, gas and other utility
charges payable to independent third parties not connected
with the Company in respect of the use of the premises during
the lease term).

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the rent paid or
payable to Lane Bright Limited under the Tenancy Agreement
amounted to HK$6,600,600. The amount did not exceed the
annual cap of HK$6,600,600 for the year ended 31 December
2016 which was proposed in the announcement made by the
Company on 18 May 2016.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed these connected transactions and confirmed that
such transactions were:

e entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group;

e conducted either on normal commercial terms or, if
there are not sufficient comparable transactions to judge
whether they are on normal commercial terms, on terms no
less favourable to the Group than terms available to or from
independent third parties; and

e in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Ernst & Young, the Company’s auditors, were engaged to
report to the Group’s continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information and with
reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Ernst & Young have issued their unqualified
letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of
the continuing connected transactions disclosed above by the
Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”). A copy of the auditor’s letter has
been provided by the Company to The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.
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RESULTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016
and the Group’s financial position at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 109 to 269.

RECOMMENDED DIVIDEND
An interim dividend of HK7.5 cents per share (2015: HK6.5
cents per share) was paid on 3 October 2016. The directors
now recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK13.0
cents per share (2015: HK12.0 cents per share) in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2016.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2016, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity holders of the Company,
as calculated under the provisions of sections 291, 297
and 299 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, was
HK$1,236,909,000 (2015: HK$857,814,000). After the end of
the reporting period, the directors proposed a final dividend
of HK13.0 cents per ordinary share (2015: HK12.0 cents
per ordinary share), amounting to HK$582,753,000 (2015:
HK$538,045,000).

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$4,014,000 (2015: HK$2,153,000).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 32 to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS

The directors during the financial year were:

Executive directors
Cai Yunge, Chairman  (appointed on 10 November 2016
as executive director and the Vice-
chairman, and re-designated
as executive director and the
Chairman with effect from 12
December 2016)

Liu Jun, Vice-chairman (resigned on 10 November 2016)

Chen Xiaoping, Chief Executive Officer

Wang Tianyi, General Manager

Wong Kam Chung, Raymond, Chief Financial Officer
Cai Shuguang, Deputy General Manager

Non-executive director

Tang Shuangning (re-designated from an executive
director and ceased to be the
Chairman with effect from 12
December 2016)

Independent non-executive directors
Fan Yan Hok, Philip

Mar Selwyn

Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey

Zhai Haitao
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DIRECTORS (continued)

In accordance with articles 73, 77, 78 and 79 of the
Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. Tang Shuangning, Mr.
Cai Yunge, Mr. Wang Tianyi, Mr. Cai Shuguang and Mr. Zhai
Haitao will retire from the board at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

The independent non-executive directors are appointed for a
specific term, subject to re-election. The current 4 independent
non-executive directors of the Company hold office for a term
until 31 December 2017. They are all subject to retirement
by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association as indicated above.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

To the best knowledge of the Board and based on the
information available, other than certain directors and senior
management named in the section headed “Directors and
Senior Management” as set out on pages 83 to 88 of this
Annual Report, the persons who have served on the boards of
the subsidiaries of the Company either during the year ended
31 December 2016 or up to the date of this report included
Mr. Chang Song, Mr. Chen Daning, Mr. Chen Dawei, Mr. Chen
Hengbao, Ms. Cheng Fong Yee, Fonda, Mr. Cheng Gang, Mr.
Cheung Lap Kei, Mr. Cui Debin, Mr. Cui Yuan, Mr. Ding Ritang,
Mr. Gao Jining, Mr. Hu Jianmin, Mr. Huang Mingsheng, Ms.
Huang Yiyi, Mr. Jiao Hai, Mr. Jin Renjie, Mr. Lee Wei Hsiung,
Mr. Li Guoqing, Mr. Li Shihua, Mr. Liang Haidong, Mr. Lim Yu
Neng, Paul, Mr. Lin An Tai, Mr. Lo Kam Fan, Ms. Lo Kong,
Grace, Mr. Luo Junling, Mr. Mao Li Ching, Mr. Niu Kesheng,
Mr. Qiu Bo, Mr. Sha Jianxin, Mr. Shao Qichao, Mr. Sheng
He, Mr. Shi Zhigiang, Mr. Su Quantong, Mr. Sun Linbo, Mr.
Tang Xianging, Mr. Tao Junjie, Mr. Tao Mingiang, Mr. Wang
Dianer, Mr. Wang Fuhao, Mr. Wang Guanping, Ms. Wang Wei,
Mr. Wang Weidong, Mr. Wang Weidong, Mr. Wang Xiuwei,
Mr. Wang Yuexing, Mr. Wang Yungang, Mr. Wang Zhen, Mr.
Wu Kai, Ms. Xu Hongna, Mr. Xu Ligun, Ms. Xu Nailing, Mr. Xu
Peng, Ms. Yang Rufen, Mr. Yang Shigiao, Mr. Yang Zhigiang,
Mr. Zang Hailong, Mr. Zhang Jianping, Mr. Zhang Jun, Mr.
Zhang Xiaoning, Mr. Zhang Xiaoquan, Ms. Zhang Yan, Mr.
Zhang Yunyue, Mr. Zhou Bo, Mr. Zhu Fugang, Mr. Zhu Haifeng
and Mr. Zhu Jie.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than normal
statutory obligations.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

The directors and chief executive of the Company who held
office at 31 December 2016 had the following interests in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company,
its holding companies, subsidiaries and other associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFQO”)) at that date as recorded in the
register of directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short
positions required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO:

Long position in shares of the Company
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Number of
Nature of interest shares Percentage
Name of director EEMNA EmtE hgnE-gE Bk
(ordinary shares)
(EmR)
Chen Xiaoping B /N Personal f& A 9,000,000 0.20%
Wong Kam Chung, Raymond el Personal f& A 2,000,000 0.04%
Fan Yan Hok, Philip BEE Personal & A 8,140,000 0.18%
Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey ZH 2 Personal f& A 1,000,000 0.02%

Apart from the foregoing, none of the directors and chief
executive of the Company or any of their spouses or children
under eighteen years of age has interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company,
or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or other
associated corporations, as recorded in the register required to
be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies.

DIRECTOR’S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, holding companies or fellow subsidiaries, a party
to any arrangements (other than a share option scheme of a
listed subsidiary of the Company referred to below) to enable
the directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER

PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS

IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

The Company has been notified of the following interests in the
Company’s issued shares at 31 December 2016 amounting to

5% or more of the ordinary shares in issue:

T B R E A TR RABBRD
MR 2R RRE
RARIEER _TE—RFE+= E+ H#ER AR
NAIBBETRO 2 EREC BT ERRS%IMA
EZBREAT
Long position
in ordinary
shares held
and percentage
of total
issued shares
ieca-glvd
Capacity Nature of interest {8 R 2 HE
a1 EmitE BIRHBSL

Central Huijin Investment Limited
(*Huijin”)
(notes (1) and (2))

China Everbright Group (note (2))

RRJ Capital Master Fund I, L.P.
(“RRJ Capital”) (note (3))

mRESREERETRA
GERNY)

(&)

RELARE
(MER)

RRJ Capital Master
Fund I, L.P.
(TRRJ Capital])
(PHEE(3)

Interest of controlled

Corporate interest

1,8565,951,910

corporation NS Approximately
REHARNER 41.40%
£941.40%

Interest of controlled

Corporate interest

1,865,951,910

corporation NIl 5 Approximately
REH R AR 41.40%
#41.40%

Interest of controlled Corporate interest 318,360,000
corporation ARER Approximately
REH A RER 7.10%
497.10%

Notes:

(1) Huijin is indirectly wholly-owned by the State Council of the People’s

GEX

(1

Republic of China and holds 55.67% equity interest of China

Everbright Group.

(2) China Everbright Group holds 100% of the issued shares of CE Hong

Kong. CE Hong Kong holds (1) 100% of the issued shares of Datten
Investments Limited (“Datten”) which in turn holds 55% of the issued
shares of Guildford Limited (“Guildford”); (2) 100% of the issued
shares of Everbright Investment & Management Limited (“EIM”); and
(3) 45% of the issued shares of Guildford, respectively. Out of the
1,855,951,910 ordinary shares, 1,758,215,910 ordinary shares are

held by Guildford. The remaining 97,736,000 ordinary shares are held

by EIM. Accordingly, China Everbright Group and Huijin are deemed
to be interested in 1,758,215,910 ordinary shares held by Guildford
and 97,736,000 ordinary shares held by EIM.

(3) The corporate interest of RRJ Capital was attributable on account
through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Dalvey Asset Holding Limited.

According to the register kept under section 336 of the SFO, as at
31 December 2016, RRJ Capital and its associates had interests of

318,360,000 ordinary shares.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(continued)

Apart from the foregoing, the Company had not been notified
of any other interests by prescribed notices which had been
recorded in the register kept under section 336 of the SFO as
at 31 December 2016.

SHARE OPTIONS ISSUED BY CHINA
EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED, A LISTED
SUBSIDIARY OF THE COMPANY

Share options

The Company completed a reverse takeover of HanKore
Environment Tech Group Limited (“HanKore”, now known
as China Everbright Water Limited) on 12 December 2014
(the “Completion Date”). On 15 November 2013, HanKore
granted 365,086,178 share options pursuant to its share
option scheme to certain key management personnel and
employees. The exercise period for the share options granted
is from 16 November 2014 to 15 November 2023. These share
options have been fully exercised as at 31 December 2014. No
share options were granted, exercised, cancelled, lapsed and
outstanding during the year ended 31 December 2016.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors of the
Company as at the date of this annual report, the Company
has maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing
Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Company’s Articles of Association provides that every
Director shall be indemnified out of the funds of the Company
against all liabilities incurred by him in relation to the Company
in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in
which judgement is given in his favour, or in which he is
acquitted. In addition, liability insurance for Directors and
senior management of the Company is maintained by the
Company with appropriate coverage for certain legal actions
against the Directors and senior management.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the above paragraphs headed “Share
options issued by China Everbright Water Limited, a listed
subsidiary of the Company”, no equity-linked agreements were
entered into during the year and subsisted at the end of the
year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
to which the Company, or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

COMPETING INTEREST

As at the date of this annual report, as far as the directors are
aware of, none of the directors or their respective associates
had any interests in a business which competes or may
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group or any other conflicts of interests with the Group.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS
Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group
as at 31 December 2016 are set out in note 29 to the financial
statements.

FIVE YEAR SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 270
and 271 of the annual report.

PROPERTIES

Particulars of the major properties of the Group are shown on
page 272 of the annual report.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Company provides retirement benefits to all local
eligible employees in Hong Kong under an approved defined
contribution provident fund (the “ORSO Scheme”). The ORSO
Scheme is administered by trustees, the majority of which are
independent, with its assets held separately from those of the
Company. The ORSO Scheme is funded by contributions from
employees and employers at 5% each based on the monthly
salaries of employees. Forfeited contribution may be used to
reduce the existing level of contribution by the Company.
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RETIREMENT SCHEMES (continued)

As from 1 December 2000, the Group also operates a
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance and not previously
covered by the ORSO Scheme. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution retirement scheme administered by independent
trustees. Under the Group’s MPF Scheme, the employer and
its employees are each required to make contributions to the
scheme at 10% and 5% of the employees’ relevant income,
respectively. Employee can choose to contribute with a cap of
monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.

The employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of
the retirement schemes operated by the local authorities. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of
their payroll to these schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to these schemes is the
required contributions under the schemes.

The Group’s total contributions to these schemes charged to
the consolidated income statement during the year ended 31
December 2016 amounted to HK$88,838,000.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

In accordance with the independence guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Board is of the view that
all independent non-executive directors are independent
and satisfy the requirements under Rule 3.13 (except that
for Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip under Rule 3.13(7), he had
been a non-executive director prior to his re-designation as
the independent non-executive director of the Company)
and the Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
directors of the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

KPMG retired as the auditors of the Company and did not seek
for re-appointment at 2016 annual general meeting (“2016
AGM”) of the Company held on 17 May 2016.

Ernst & Young was appointed as the auditors of the Company
at the 2016 AGM in place of the retiring auditors KPMG.

Ernst & Young retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment. A resolution for the reappointment of Ernst
& Yong as auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

Save as disclosed above, there has been no other change in
auditors of the Company in any of the preceding three years.

By order of the board

Cai Yunge
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 February 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF CHINA EVERBRIGHT
INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Everbright International Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 109 to 269, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2016, and the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. For each matter below, our description of
how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matter

BEETER

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

BEPNEFTNAEEREREESEE

Service concession arrangements

IR E R

The Group entered into Build-Operate-Transfer (“BOT”),
Transfer-Operate-Transfer (“TOT”) and Build-Operate-Own
(“BOQ”) arrangements in respect of its environmental energy
projects, environmental water projects and greentech
projects. The assessment on whether the BOT, TOT and
BOO arrangements fall within the scope of HK(IFRIC)
Interpretation 12 Service Concession Arrangements
requires significant management judgement. Management’s
assessment included whether the grantors control or
regulate what services the Group must provide with the
infrastructure, to whom it must provide them, and at what
price; and whether the grantors control, through ownership,
beneficial entittement or otherwise, any significant residual
interest in the infrastructure at the end of the term of the
arrangement.

EEEMETRRERER - BRKKIEE REEIRIRIER -
FlugE—Be —EB([BOT])  #%—EZ —#%([TOT))
Nk —EE— A ([BOO)) ZH - E&ABOT » TOTKBOO
ZHEEERNCES (BRI BREREZE®)RE) 125
[REHFFAZELH BEAR  ERETEEHERAE -
EREENNHEEREARSEHNESE SSENAERS
PEFTZEIR MRS - BV IRHE R R BER - ARKE
AEEBLHNARBPERE  ERBMER Ex=6#E
S HEAM T - I ERR G EAF SR ER o

The details of the Group’s service concession arrangements
are disclosed in notes 3 and 45 of the financial statements.
BEEENRBFIFEEELFFABNRIMBRRM TN E45
B o

We evaluated the management’s assessment
of the BOT, TOT and BOO arrangements of
the Group by reviewing and understanding
the terms of the respective agreements. In
particular, we evaluated the management’s
assessment as to whether the grantors control
or regulate what services the Group must
provide with the infrastructure, to whom it must
provide them, and at what price. In addition,
we evaluated the management’s assessment
as to whether the grantors control any
significant residual interest in the infrastructure
at the end of the term of the arrangements,
including whether the infrastructure for the
service concession arrangements is used for
its entire or substantially entire useful life.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

FREET SR

Key audit matter

HEETER

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

B E U R R R E TSR

Revenue and profit recognition for construction services

BRI 0 Wk K B T TERR

Revenue arising from construction services in relation to
environmental energy projects, environmental water projects
and greentech projects accounted for approximately 64%
of the Group’s total revenue during the year. Management
estimated the fair value of the revenue from construction
services with reference to the valuations performed by
independent professional valuers. In addition, revenue and
profit from construction contracts are recognised using
the percentage of completion method, which involved
significant management judgement and estimation on the
stage of construction work performed and the final outcome
of the construction contracts.
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The details of the Group’s revenue from construction
services in relation to its environmental energy projects,
environmental water projects and greentech projects are
disclosed in notes 2.4, 3 and 5 of the financial statements.
BEEEKREREERER F RRKBIEE REEIRRIEEEH
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We evaluated the management’s measurement
of the revenue from construction services by
assessing the appropriateness of the valuation
methodology and the reasonableness of
key assumptions, such as margins, with the
assistance of our valuation experts who have
made reference to the observable market data
and comparable companies in the industry.
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We also evaluated the management’s
assessment of percentage of completion
of construction services in relation to the
environmental energy projects, environmental
water projects and greentech projects by
discussing the status of significant projects
under construction with the management,
including finance and technical staff of the
Group, as well as examining independent
surveyors’ reports. We tested the
reasonableness of underlying data adopted
by independent surveyors, which included
checking to suppliers’ agreements and
invoices for construction costs of respective
construction work performed. We also
understood and reviewed the management’s
process of estimating the total budget cost and
costs to completion of incomplete construction
contracts.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
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Key audit matter

BEETER

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

B E AR EREREE SR

Impairment assessment of debtors

JEM IR I FEIREF I

Debtors of the Group amounted to HK$1,377,070,000 as
at 31 December 2016. The management performed an
impairment assessment of debtors based on the debtors’
ageing, customers’ credit-worthiness and historical write-
off experience, which involved significant management’s
judgement and estimation uncertainty.
MRZE-—RETA=1+—H  EBE5ENEUERLSEE
1,377,070,0007T - EREEREBEEURFHERR - TEHNER
MBEMERSR  HRURFIEL ARG - MUEPREXRE
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The details of the Group’s debtors are included in note 25 of
the financial statements.

BEBERKRRNFIFHN T BRKME25 ©

We evaluated the management’s impairment
assessment of debtors by testing the
debtors’ ageing analysis, discussing with the
management about the status of significant
overdue individual debtors’ balances, and
reviewing the historical settlement pattern of
individual debtors.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

FREET SR

Key audit matter

HEETER

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

B E U R R R E TSR

Impairment assessment of gooawill

BEFER

The Group is required to test goodwill acquired in business
combinations for impairment annually. The goodwill of the
Group amounted to HK$1,563,390,000 as at 31 December
2016 and was allocated to the relevant individual cash-
generating units (“CGUs”) or business segments. The
management’s impairment assessment of goodwill involved
the estimation of the recoverable amounts of the CGUs or
business segments to which the goodwill was allocated,
being the higher of the fair value less costs of disposal and
the value in use. For the recoverable amounts determined
using a value in use calculation, significant management
estimates were used to determine the key assumptions,
such as future revenue growth rate, operating margin,
terminal growth rate and discount rate, that are affected
by expected future market or economic conditions.
The assessment process also involved management
appropriately identifying the CGU.
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The details of the Group’s goodwill are included in notes 3
and 17 of the financial statements.
EEENHEFBHNMBHRRMIIRMFA7 -

Our procedures to evaluate the management’s
impairment assessment of goodwill included:
BB THEEREENEERBTAMETHIE
SR

— Assessing the appropriateness of
management’s identification of CGUs
based on the Group’s accounting policies
and our understanding of the Group’s
business;

Rz BEEENSAERXIEREMY S&5E
EBHNTH AHEEEHHSAERENLUN
BRIRERE

— Assessing the fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use calculation
methodologies adopted by management;
and
AEEREBMRANAAERE L EXARGT
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— Assessing the key assumptions, including
future revenue growth rate, operating
margin, terminal growth rate and discount
rate, based on our knowledge of the
Group’s business and the industry. We
also involved our valuation experts to
assist in the assessment of the above key
assumptions, which included reference
to the observable market data and
comparable companies in the industry.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
L 1% B R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (continued)

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 7 BRm R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Lai Wan Fung.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central

Hong Kong

28 February 2017
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Consolidated Income Statement
,.\., =2
an\A St 3%
Year ended 31 December 2016 HZE—Z— X E+_-_A=+—HILFE
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—hE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BsE BET T BT T
(Restated)
(E#R)
Revenue W 25 5 13,971,204 8,528,393
Direct costs and operating expenses BEEKARKEER (8,661,638) (4,625,701)
Gross profit EF 5,309,566 3,902,692
Other revenue Hblias 6 464,916 350,743
Other income and gains/(losses), net Hulg A Rlizs
(1R Fa 6 (39,775) 91,431
Administrative expenses THE A (1,059,294) (768,400)
Profit from operating activities  &&E8R1EEF] 4,675,413 3,576,466
Finance costs 5 ER 7 (639,584) (451,759)
Share of profits and losses of Friha & ¥R F REE
joint ventures 63,373 (6,046)
Share of profits and losses of associates Ff{f B & A &) & 7l & &5 18 (479) 140
Profit before tax IR 8 4,098,723 3,118,801
Income tax Fra® 11 (1,062,150) (783,275)
Profit for the year REER A 3,036,573 2,335,526
Attributable to: FEAEE81 -
Equity holders of the Company AAaE=FEAA 2,784,863 2,084,888
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR RE S 251,710 250,638
3,036,573 2,335,526
Earnings per share attributable ZAQFEZEE A
to equity holders of the (L B R & T
Company 13
- Basic and diluted —EARREE HK62.12 HK46.50
cents &l cents 7l
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

FREHERR

Year ended 31 December 2016 HZ —ZE—"F+_A=+—HIFE

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Profit for the year NERE R 3,036,573 2,335,526
Other comprehensive Hip2mW A (E8)
income/(loss)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) REZBAEAIEETHEEERER
that may be reclassified to profit or loss ~ ZH 2 EH A (E1E)
in subsequent periods:
Available-for-sale investments: FERE:
Changes in fair value ANIRIEE-EY) (190) 22,653
Income tax effect relating to changes AREEES 2 BEMEHEE
in fair value - (4,135)
Reclassification adjustment for STAGEBRRZWEZEH
gains included in the consolidated DR
income statement
— gain on disposal — HE W= - (92,711)
— income tax effect relating to the —HEFHEBEMEHTE
disposal = 13,907
(190) (60,286)
Exchange differences: MEH ZHE
Exchange differences on translation BREBIINEBEECIELZ5E
of foreign operations (1,922,087) (929,756)
Other comprehensive loss REEZEMEEEIRE
for the year, net of tax (EMBRTIE) (1,922,277) (990,042)
Total comprehensive income AEEETEBMALRTE
for the year 1,114,296 1,345,484
Attributable to: FEAEE1 -
Equity holders of the Company KArERFAA 1,072,829 1,199,388
Non-controlling interests FEVERR M 2 41,467 146,096
1,114,296 1,345,484
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Consolldated Statement of Financial Position
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an\ - /\jﬁa;lj(/ﬂl%
31 December 2016 —Z—X&E+-A=+—H
2016 2015
—E-REF —E—RHF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 BT T BT T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties LEYE 14 157,140 166,099
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENREE 15 3,029,417 2,350,265
Prepaid land lease payments A LA EF I8 16 152,091 151,047
3,338,648 2,667,411
Goodwill S 17 1,563,390 1,061,891
Intangible assets WL EE 18 5,686,374 3,357,187
Interests in joint ventures B EERERS 19 345,353 209,161
Interests in associates HE N AR 20 228,047 239,306
Gross amounts due from customers EWEEA& A4 TR
for contract work 1B Eg 23 19,464,201 15,822,848
Finance lease receivables & & e W EIE 24 17,273 19,062
Other financial assets HBI & E 21 33,332 24,800
Other receivables, deposits HMEUWRIE - ke Rk
and prepayments T FRIE 25 6,494,188 5,696,894
Deferred tax assets RIEFIBE 31 53,732 36,483
Total non-current assets ERBEELTE 37,224,538 29,135,043
Current assets MENEE
Inventories e 22 361,540 202,314
Gross amounts due from customers FEWE &4 TR
for contract work 458 23 1,569,027 1,546,505
Finance lease receivables RE T E el IE 24 526 531
Debtors, other receivables, FEUERTR  EAbEULGRIR
deposits and prepayments e RIEN IR 25 3,337,241 3,060,436
Tax recoverable Al Uk [B] 7 18 1,259 4,831
Pledged bank deposits BIEFIRITFER 26 653,054 555,277
Deposits with banks RITIE K 26 43,964 164,654
Cash and cash equivalents HeEMEESZEEY 27 6,340,579 5,953,481
Total current assets TmENEE AR 12,307,190 11,488,029
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

FRBBIRR R

31 December 2016 —E— X &E+=-A=+—H

2016 2015
—B—RE —E-ARF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 BT T BT T
Current liabilities RBEE
Creditors, other payables and FETBRFR ~ EfMbEFUIE
accrued expenses MIESTER 28 4,804,142 2,794,456
Interest-bearing borrowings FTREE 29
— Secured — B 1,175,213 1,947,620
- Unsecured — I 3,236,961 1,461,935
4,412,174 3,409,555
Tax payable FERT R 1A 97,474 119,295
Total current liabilities mEaEesE 9,313,790 6,323,306
Net Current Assets mMENEEFSA 2,993,400 5,164,723
Total Assets Less Current REERREAS
Liabilities 40,217,938 34,299,766
Non-current liabilities ERBAEE
Other payables H b fE S ZR1E 28 93,610 43,365
Interest-bearing borrowings SFEEE 29
— Secured — B 9,311,894 7,088,502
— Unsecured — {3 R 7,891,581 5,322,609
17,203,475 12,411,111
Deferred tax liabilities FEIERRIBEEE 31 3,075,645 2,424,749
Total non-current liabilities EMEB B EERE 20,372,730 14,879,225
Net Assets BEFHE 19,845,208 19,420,541
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2016 2015
—E-REF —hF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Lz BT T BT T
Equity M=
Equity attributable to equity KNAREmSE AEG
holders of the Company i

Share capital RN 32 7,405,414 7,405,414
Reserves s 33 9,983,888 9,790,740
17,389,302 17,196,154
Non-controlling interests FEPER 2,455,906 2,224,387
TOTAL EQUITY S KA %R 19,845,208 19,420,541

Chen Xiaoping
BN
Director

EZE

Wang Tianyi
EPN
Director

EZE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
TERREBR

Year ended 31 December 2016 HZ —ZE—"F+_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to eq}uﬁy holders of the Company

EREAAER
Goodwill Property
Share arising on revaluation
capital  consolidation reserve
HA%RE A
BA ErsEE i
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Mgk BETT BT BT
At 1 January 2015 W-8-%E-A—A 7,405,414 (986) 90,512
Profit for the year AEERA - _ _
Other comprehensive loss for the year: ~EEHMEEER:
Changes in fair value of available- FERELAEEY
for-sale investments, net of tax (BmpspE) - - -
Exchange differences on translation of BEBNEBEL BN ESR
foreign operations - - -
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year ~ AEEZREWA /(BB EF - - -
Dividend approved in respect of the previous year BALEELEE 7S 12 - - -
Dilution of interest in a subsidiary ME R EREE - -
Transfer to reserve fund BRZHES - -
Capital contributions received by FEEMBARIFER
non-wholly-owned subsidiaries BElmmEs L iE
from non-controlling shareholders - - -
Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders of 2B A FFERRE 2R E
subsidiaries - - -
Interim 2015 dividend o :gfﬁﬂﬂ Hﬁﬂ&% _________________ 7o - - -
At 31 December 2015 RZE-RF+-f=1—H 7,406,414 (986)* 90,512*
At 1 January 2016 W-E-AE-A-A 7,405,414 (986) 90,512
Profit for the year EERF - - -
Other comprehensive loss for the year: TEEHBEZEEE:
Changes in fair value of available- HERENNEED
for-sale investments, net of tax (CHFERER) - - -
Exchange differences on translation of RAEBNEBEL ERES
foreign operations - - -
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year ~ AEEZEWMA /(BB EF - = =
Dividend approved in respect of the previous year BALEZEE VS 12 - - -
Dilution of non-controling interests in WEAR L REREE
a subsidiary 45(f) - - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries KRB AR 35 - - -
Transfer to reserve fund ERzdEe - - =
Repurchase of shares DG 32 - - -
Capital contributions received by F2EMBARANLERREE
non-wholly-owned subsidiaries G-t
from non-controlling shareholders - - -
Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders of 2B A FFERRE 2K &
subsidiaries
Interim 2016 dividend :2—7@ iPHHH&% _________________ o - - -
At 31 December 2016 WZE-RE+-A=1+—H 7,405,414 (986)* 90,512*
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of — * ZEFRBRROEREMBRRAKRA TGS
HK$9,983,888,000 (2015: HK$9,790,740,000) in the consolidated {5 8 % 9,083,888,000 L (= F — A F : B ¥
statement of financial position. 9,790,740,0007T)
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Attributable to eqﬂmy holders of the Company
ARFRGEREAEE
Non-

Exchange Fair value Other Reserve Retained controlling Total
reserve reserve reserves fund profits Total interests equity
X DR EGEE E ki R {RE 2| ] SRR E i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BETT BETT BETT BETT BB BETT BETT
641,358 56,422 1,866,495 409,470 5,794,571 16,263,256 1,679,714 17,842,970

- - - - 2,084,888 2,084,888 250,638 2,335,526
- (60,286) - - - (60,286) - (60,286)
(825,214) - - - - (825,214) (104,542) (929,756)
(825,214) (60,286) - - 2,084,888 1,199,388 146,096 1,345,484
- - - (269,023) (269,023) - (269,023

(10,2006) - 304,180 - 293,974 365,789 659,763

- - 128,250 (128,250) - - -

- - - - - - 137,756 137,756

- - - - - - (4,968) (4,968)

,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, Dy e )

(194,062)" (3,864)" 2,170,675 537,720 7,190,745" 17,196,154 2,224,387 19,420,541
(194,062) (3,864) 2,170,675 537,720 7,190,745 17,196,154 2,224,387 19,420,541
- - - - 2,784,863 2,784,863 251,710 3,036,573

- (190) - - - (190) - (190)
(1,711,844) - - - - (1,711,844) (210,243) (1,922,087
(1,711,844) (190) - - 2,784,863 1,072,829 41,467 1,114,296
- - - - (538,045) (538,045) - (538,045)

- - 2,518 - - 2,518 (25,006) (22,488)

- - - - - 33,196 33,196

- - - 193,196 (193,196) - - -

- - - - (7,950) (7,950) - (7,950)

- = = = - - 214,000 214,000

- - - (32,138) (32,138)

- (336,204) (336,204) - (336,204)
(1,905,906)* (4,054)* 2,173,193* 730,916* 8,900,213* 17,389,302 2,455,906 19,845,208
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HEERBERER A

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FERERER

Year ended 31 December 2016 £ ZE —Z—NE+-A=+—HILFE

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—hF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
hE=2 BT T BT T
Cash flows from operating activities K& EEFAERELE
Profit before tax i T BT 2 A 4,098,723 3,118,801
Adjustments for: FREHER
Depreciation e 8 163,428 90,547
Amortisation of prepaid land TET L A & SR IR 5H
lease payments 8 5,699 1,204
Amortisation of intangible assets B EE 8 143,827 92,138
Finance costs % ER 7 639,584 451,759
Dividend income B B A 6 (8) (3,319
Interest income B WA 6 (46,439) (51,977)
Share of profits and losses of Frih& & ERF &
joint ventures E1E (63,373) 6,046
Share of profits and losses of FribEs & AT &R &
associates E1E 479 (140)
Change in fair value of derivative TEERMIARARE
financial instrument: 2a)
Derivative financial instrument — TSI A—
transactions not qualified as TEEERER
hedges HhzR5 6 28,528 -
Gain on sale of listed securities HE FHHEH IR 6 - (92,711)
Loss on disposal of property, HEDWE - BEMRE
plant and equipment, net 2 FEE 6 11,247 1,280
Effect of foreign exchange rates MEREE) s EFH
changes, net (142,775) (147,484)
4,838,920 3,466,144
Increase in inventories FEEM (166,356) (89,572)
Increase in gross amounts due from JEWEF A4 T2
customers for contract work 4B EF I (4,785,133) (3,315,959)

Increase in debtors, other receivables,

deposits and prepayments

FEUARAR - HoAb FEUL
IR~ e RFAR

SRIEIE AN (1,572,879) (1,735,295)

Increase in creditors, other payables JERTBRFR  E At FEAS

and accrued expenses SRIE N FERTE FE N 2,194,557 301,440
Cash generated from/(used in) KEE (e A) 2

operations B 509,109 (1,373,242)
Interest received 2R TS 46,439 51,977
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) B EARLFME

and overseas income taxes paid ([ B ) RGNS R (334,986) (217,210)
Net cash flows from/(used in) EESEENFTS (FRrEF)

operating activities ZIREMEFHE 220,562 (1,538,475)
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Consolldated Statement of Cash Flows
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Year ended 31 December 2016 £ ZE —Z—NE+-HA=+—HILFE
2016 2015
—E—RE —h4F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
ihE=3 BT T BT
Cash flows from investing activities BZ/EBAERESRE
Dividend received Bl B 8 3,319
Purchase of items of property, ﬁ%/\%% e ]
plant and equipment and ULt HEE
prepayment of land leases BT RIR (520,015) (660,729)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEE - WENMERE
property, plant and equipment FriS 308 62 4,700
Additions of intangible assets i‘ﬁﬁfté? (2,636,667) (421,260)
Acquisition of subsidiaries W BB HT /8 A 7 35 (1,042,391) (2,163,337)
Capital contributions to joint ventures EEEEE (101,856) (185,844)
Capital contributions to associates FEEE AR (4,099) -
Increase in non-current portion of T RIEFERNEAEL 19
prepayments by )li| (32,154) (131,268)
Repayment from finance lease REAE R FIRENR
receivables 495 491
Proceeds from sale of listed securities HE EMEASHIE - 223,186
Purchase of available-for-sale BEGEUKEE
financial assets (8,722) -
Decrease in deposits with banks REEAAE=BANLEZ
with original maturity of more than RITFEFOR A
three months 109,780 655,177
Net cash flows used in investing KEEHMHAZIRE
activities mEFEE (4,235,559) (2,675,565)
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HEERBERER A

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FEHRERER

Year ended 31 December 2016 £ ZE —Z—NE+-A=+—HILFE

2016 2015
ZEB-RF —T—hF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
hE=2 BT T BT T
Cash flows from financing activities @FtE&EEEMEHE SRS
New bank loans %R 1T ,T)\ 12,581,348 10,598,754
Repayment of bank loans and BRIBITERRENZE
notes payable (6,361,463) (3,806,215)
Repurchase of shares EE= S0 (7,950) -
Capital contributions received by IEEBH BN B IEIER
non-wholly-owned subsidiaries from RIS 2 &5
non-controlling shareholders 214,000 137,756
Acquisition of non-controlling interests U BE JEFE IS RE 2 45(f) (22,488) -
Proceeds from issuance of shares by FE2EWB R B MIEZER
a non-wholly-owned subsidiary to AR BTN FT1S RIR
non-controlling shareholders - 659,763
Increase in pledged bank deposits B RITFETIE N (134,570) (332,632)
Interest paid =ANEUESS (645,924) (457,818)
Interest element of finance lease mEMHERS NN
rental payments F B2 &5 (561) -
Capital element of finance lease BEHERSNR
rental payments PN =) (2,992) -
Dividend paid to equity holders of O AARIERFE AL
the Company R B, (874,249) (560,464)
Dividend paid to non-controlling ENWJ%@ET%T‘EHQ
shareholders of subsidiaries IR 2 AR B (32,138) (4,968)
Settlement of cross currency swap EERIWZ X EiZE] = (30,644)
Net cash flows from BMEFEMFSHES
financing activities mE 4,713,013 6,203,532
Net increase in cash and Re RReSEDEN
cash equivalents R RE 698,016 1,989,492
Cash and cash equivalents at FUREe LR EFEY
beginning of year 5,953,481 4,094,096
Effect of foreign exchange rates REE) BT
changes, net (310,918) (130,107)
Cash and cash equivalents at FRBENIRESEEY
end of year 27 6,340,579 5,953,481
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31 December 2016 —E—"&E+=-A=+—H

1

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
China Everbright International Limited (the “Company”) is
a limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. The
registered office of the Company is located at Room 2703,
27th Floor, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road,
Hong Kong.

During the year, the principal activities of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
are construction, environmental energy project operation
(waste-to-energy plants, methane-to-energy plants,
sludge treatment and disposal project and food waste
treatment projects), environmental water project operation
(waste-water treatment plants, reusable water treatment
plants and waste-water source heat pump projects),
greentech project operation (biomass integrated utilisation
projects, industrial solid waste and hazardous waste
treatment projects, solar energy projects and wind power
projects), envirotech (provision of environmental-related
technological service, design of environmental protection
projects, manufacturing and sales of environmental
protection project equipment) and investment holding.

The immediate holding company of the Company is
Guildford Limited, a limited liability company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands. In the opinion of the directors,
the ultimate holding entity of the Company is China
Investment Corporation, an entity established in the PRC.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for investment properties, available-
for-sale investments and derivative financial instrument
which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.
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Notes to Financial Statements
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2016. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2ARBELEE)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial
statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying the
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 Consolidation Exception
(2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations

Regulatory Deferral Accounts

Disclosure Initiative

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

HKFRS 14

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16

and HKAS 41
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate
(2011) Financial Statements
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of
2012-2014 Cycle HKFRSs

The adoption of the above new and revised HKFRSs
has had no significant financial effect on these financial
statements.
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23 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9
Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 15
Amendments to HKFRS 15
HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 7
Amendments to HKAS 12

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions?

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts?

Financial Instruments?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Clarifications to HKFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Leases?®

Disclosure Initiative’

Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses’

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

= No mandatory effective date yet determined but is available for

adoption

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is as follows:

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final
version of HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the
financial instruments project to replace HKAS 39 and all
previous versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces
new requirements for classification and measurement,
impairment and hedge accounting. The Group expects
to adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 January 2018. The Group is
currently assessing the impact of the standard.
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23 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

23ERMERARERZ BBV B RS

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account
for revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under
HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to
be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services
to a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a
more structured approach for measuring and recognising
revenue. The standard also introduces extensive
qualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements,
including disaggregation of total revenue, information
about performance obligations, changes in contract asset
and liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The standard will supersede
all current revenue recognition requirements under
HKFRSs. In June 2016, the HKICPA issued amendments
to HKFRS 15 to address the implementation issues on
identifying performance obligations, application guidance
on principal versus agent and licences of intellectual
property, and transition. The amendments are also
intended to help ensure a more consistent application
when entities adopt HKFRS 15 and decrease the cost and
complexity of applying the standard. The Group expects
to adopt HKFRS 15 on 1 January 2018 and is currently
assessing the impact of HKFRS 15 upon adoption.
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23 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

23ERMERARERZBENBERE

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease,
HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-
Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving
the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the
principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation
and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise
assets and liabilities for most leases. The standard includes
two recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of low-
value assets and short-term leases. At the commencement
date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make
lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset
representing the right to use the underlying asset during
the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). The right-of-use
asset is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses unless the right-
of-use asset meets the definition of investment property
in HKAS 40. The lease liability is subsequently increased
to reflect the interest on the lease liability and reduced for
the lease payments. Lessees will be required to separately
recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and the
depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees
will also be required to remeasure the lease liability upon
the occurrence of certain events, such as change in the
lease term and change in future lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate used to determine those
payments. Lessees will generally recognise the amount of
the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment
to the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under
HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from the accounting
under HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases
using the same classification principle as in HKAS 17 and
distinguish between operating leases and finance leases.
The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 16 on 1 January 2019
and is currently assessing the impact of HKFRS 16 upon
adoption.

Other than as further explained above regarding the impact
of HKFRS 9, HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 16, the Group is also
in the process of making an assessment of the impact of
the other new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application
but is not yet in a position to state whether these new and
revised HKFRSs would have any significant impact on its
results of operations and financial position.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING AT R HRME

POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity
voting rights and over which it is in a position to exercise
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of
the investee, but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at the Group’s share of net assets under the equity
method of accounting, less any impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of associates and joint
ventures is included in the consolidated income statement
and consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
respectively. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the associates or
joint ventures, the Group recognises its share of any
changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and its associates
or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s investments in the associates or joint ventures,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from
the acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included
as part of the Group’s investments in associates or joint
ventures.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING AT RS HRME(E)

POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases,
upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint
control over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate
or joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint
control and the fair value of the retained investment and
proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the
event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of
the acquiree.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2AFEZETBRME(E)

POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or
liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests in
the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and
other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets
acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised
in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective
of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING AT RS HRME(E)

POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative value
of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-
generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, available-
for-sale investments and derivative financial instrument at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2AFEZETBRME(E)

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING AT RS HRME(E)

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets, construction contract
assets, financial assets and investment properties), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs
of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the income statement in
the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but
not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment
loss is credited to the income statement in the period in
which it arises.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

() has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) bhas significant influence over the Group; or

(iiiy is @ member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the income
statement in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure
for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount
of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment
to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Freehold land
Leasehold land under

finance leases
Buildings

Not depreciated
Over the lease terms

Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 2% to 5%

Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 10%

4% to 20%

10% to 20%

8'/5% to 33"/3%

Leasehold improvements

Plant and machinery

Furniture and fixtures

Motor vehicles, electronic
equipment and others

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the income statement in the year
the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises
the direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing
costs on related borrowed funds during the period of
construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to
the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating
lease for a property which would otherwise meet the
definition of an investment property) held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured initially
at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value,
which reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting
period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values
of investment properties are included in the income
statement in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of
an investment property are recognised in the income
statement in the year of the retirement or disposal.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at the
date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at
least at each financial year end.

The following intangible assets are amortised from the date
they are available for use and their estimated useful lives
are as follows:

Environmental energy project operating rights 20 to 30 years
Environmental water project operating rights 20 to 32 years
Greentech project operating rights 20 to 30 years
Patents and trademarks 10 to 20 years

Computer software 5 years
Backlog contracts 3 years
Technology 10 years
Customer relations 7 years
Trade contracts 4 years

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use
or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the income statement in the year the
intangible asset is derecognised is the difference between
the net sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant intangible asset.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2AFEZETBRME(E)

POLICIES (continued)

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other than
legal title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the
inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease
payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase and
financing. Assets held under capitalised finance leases,
including prepaid land lease payments under finance
leases, are included in property, plant and equipment, and
depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of
such leases are charged to the income statement so as to
provide a constant periodic rate of charge over the lease
terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a
financing nature are accounted for as finance leases, but
are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

When the Group is a lessor under finance leases, an
amount representing the minimum lease payment
receivables and initial direct costs is included in the
statement of financial position as finance lease receivables.
Any unguaranteed residual value is also recognised at the
inception of the lease. The difference between the sum
of the minimum lease payment receivables, initial direct
costs, the unguaranteed residual value and their present
value is recognised as unearned finance income. Unearned
finance income is recognised over the period of the lease
using the effective interest rate method.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable
under the operating leases are credited to the income
statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under
operating leases net of any incentives received from
the lessor are charged to the income statement on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING AT RS HRME(E)

POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
investments, as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of
the financial assets, except in the case of financial assets
recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. After initial measurement, such assets
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method less any allowance
for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation and the loss arising from impairment are
recognised in the income statement.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments
Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity securities.
Equity securities classified as available for sale are
those which are neither classified as held for trading nor
designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the fair value reserve until the
investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative
gain or loss is recognised in the income statement in
other income, or until the investment is determined to be
impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified
from the fair value reserve to the income statement in
other gains or losses. Interest and dividends earned
whilst holding the available-for-sale financial investments
are reported as interest income and dividend income,
respectively and are recognised in the income statement
in accordance with the policy set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to
sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term
are still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the
Group is unable to trade these financial assets due to
inactive markets, the Group may elect to reclassify these
financial assets if management has the ability and intention
to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or until
maturity.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date
of reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and
any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the
remaining life of the investment using the effective interest
rate. Any difference between the new amortised cost and
the maturity amount is also amortised over the remaining
life of the asset using the effective interest rate. If the
asset is subsequently determined to be impaired, then the
amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the income
statement.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2AFEZETBRME(E)

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement.
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment
exists if one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence
of impairment may include indications that a debtor or
a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation and observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually
for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the
asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or
continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not yet been incurred).
The present value of the estimated future cash flows is
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised
in the income statement. Interest income continues to be
accrued on the reduced carrying amount using the rate
of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the
purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance are
written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been
transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off
is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the income
statement.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2AFEZETBRME(E)

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that an investment or a group of
investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised
in the income statement, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the income
statement.

In the case of equity securities classified as available for
sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below
its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost
of the investment and “prolonged” against the period in
which the fair value has been below its original cost. Where
there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss —
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
investment previously recognised in the income statement
— is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses
on equity securities classified as available for sale are not
reversed through the income statement. Increases in their
fair value after impairment are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to
which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING AT RS HRME(E)

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and
loans and borrowings, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include creditors, other
payables and accrued expenses and interest-bearing
borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of repurchasing in the
near term. This category includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Group that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships
as defined by HKAS 39. Gains or losses on liabilities held
for trading are recognised in the income statement. The net
fair value gain or loss recognised in the income statement
does not include any interest charged on these financial
liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss are designated at the date
of initial recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are
satisfied.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2AFEZETBRME(E)

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
income statement when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the income statement.

Financial guarantees contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial
guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability at its
fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial
guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the amount of the
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period; and
(i) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of
a new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the income statement.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING AT RS HRME(E)

POLICIES (continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as
cross-currency swaps, to hedge its foreign currency risk.
Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised
at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair
value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value
is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the income statement,
except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which
is recognised in other comprehensive income and later
reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged item affects
profit or loss.

Current versus non-current classification

Derivative instruments that are not designated as effective
hedging instruments are classified as current or non-
current or separated into current and non-current portions
on an assessment of the facts and circumstances (i.e., the
underlying contracted cash flows).

e When the Group expects to hold a derivative as
an economic hedge (and does not apply hedge
accounting) for a period beyond 12 months after the
end of the reporting period, the derivative is classified
as non-current (or separated into current and non-
current portions) consistently with the classification of
the underlying item.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2AFEZETBRME(E)

POLICIES (continued)

Derivative financial instruments and hedge

accounting (continued)

Current versus non-current classification (continued)

e Embedded derivatives that are not closely related to
the host contract are classified consistently with the
cash flows of the host contract.

e Derivative instruments that are designated as, and
are effective hedging instruments, are classified
consistently with the classification of the underlying
item. The derivative instruments are separated into
current portions and non-current portions only if a
reliable allocation can be made.

Inventories

Inventories, mainly comprise construction materials,
biomass fuel, spare parts and consumable used in the
repairs and maintenance of the environmental energy
projects, environmental water projects and greentech
projects, and are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average basis. Net realisable value is based on estimated
selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal. When inventories are consumed,
the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as
an expense in the income statement.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and at banks, including term deposits, and assets
similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in the income statement.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate
to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attaching conditions will be complied with.
When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised
as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the
costs, which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
credited to a deferred income account and is released to
the income statement over the expected useful life of the
relevant asset by equal annual instalments or deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset and released to
the income statement by way of a reduced depreciation
charge.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a)

from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over
the goods sold;

from construction contracts, on the percentage
of completion basis, as further explained in the
accounting policy for “Construction contracts” below;

from environment energy project, environmental water
project and greentech project operation services,
when the related services are rendered;

rental income, on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms;

finance and interest income, on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset; and

dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING AT RS HRME(E)

POLICIES (continued)

Construction contracts

Construction contracts are contracts specifically
negotiated with a customer for the construction of an asset
or a group of assets, where the customer is able to specify
the major structural elements of the design. Contract
revenue comprises (i) the agreed contract amounts
and appropriate amounts from variation orders, claims
and incentive payments in respect of the construction
services, and (i) construction revenue recognised under a
service concession arrangement. Contract costs incurred
comprise direct materials, the costs of subcontracting,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable
and fixed construction overheads. When the outcome of a
construction contract can be estimated reliably, contract
costs are recognised as an expense by reference to the
stage of completion of the contract at the end of the
reporting period. When the outcome of a construction
contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract costs are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

Revenue from the construction services is recognised
in proportion to the stage of completion of the contract,
by reference to the surveyors of work performed and
the proportion of costs incurred to date to the estimated
total cost of the relevant contract. When the outcome
of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably,
contract revenue is recognised only to the extent of
contract costs incurred that are likely to be recoverable. An
expected loss on a contract is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Revenue from the construction services under a service
concession agreement is estimated on a cost-plus
basis with reference to a prevailing market rate of gross
margin at the date of the agreement applicable to similar
construction services rendered, and is recognised based
on the stage of completion of the work performed, by
reference to the surveyors of work performed and the
proportion of costs incurred to date to the estimated total
cost of the relevant contract.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2AFEZETBRME(E)

POLICIES (continued)

Construction contracts (continued)

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they
are anticipated by management.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses exceed progress billings,
the surplus is treated as an amount due from contract
customers.

Where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred
to date plus recognised profits less recognised losses,
the surplus is treated as an amount due to contract
customers.

Employee benefits

Retirement schemes

The Company provides retirement benefits to all local
eligible employees in Hong Kong under an approved
defined contribution provident fund (the “ORSO Scheme”).
The ORSO Scheme is administered by trustees, the
majority of which are independent, with its assets held
separately from those of the Company. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries. Forfeited contributions may be used to reduce the
existing level of contributions by the Company.

As from 1 December 2000, the Group also operates
a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance and not previously covered
by the ORSO Scheme. Contributions are made based
on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with
the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme,
except for the Group’s employer voluntary contributions,
which are refunded to the Group when the employee
leaves employment prior to the contributions vesting fully in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme .
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING AT RS HRME(E)

POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Retirement schemes (continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate in a
central pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute
a certain percentage of their payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to the
income statement as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when
the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds.

Dividends
Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority to
declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends
are recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2AFEZETBRME(E)

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group
are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the income statement.

Differences on settlement or translation of monetary items
are recognised in the income statement with the exception
of monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge
of the Group’s net investment of a foreign operation.
These are recognised in other comprehensive income
until the net investment is disposed of, at which time the
cumulative amount is reclassified to the statement of profit
or loss. Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange
differences on those monetary items are also recorded in
other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value
is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference
on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING AT RS HRME(E)

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates are currencies other than the
Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting period,
the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates prevailing at the
end of the reporting period and their income statements
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component
of other comprehensive income relating to that particular
foreign operation is recognised in the income statement.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart
from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

Service concession arrangements

The Group entered into Build-Operate-Transfer (“BOT”),
Transfer-Operate-Transfer (“TOT”) and Build-Operate-
Own (“BOO”) arrangements in respect of its environmental
energy projects, environmental water projects and
greentech projects.

The Group concluded that all the BOT and TOT
arrangements and certain BOO arrangements are service
concession arrangements under HK(IFRIC) Interpretation
12 Service Concession Arrangements, because the
local government controls and regulates the services
that the Group must provide with the infrastructure at a
pre-determined service charge. In respect of BOT and
TOT arrangements, upon expiry of concession right
agreement, the infrastructure has to be transferred to
the local government at nil consideration. Infrastructure
for BOO arrangements is used in the service concession
arrangements for its entire or substantially entire useful life.

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases
on its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements, that it retains all the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties which are leased out on operating leases.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

Construction contracts

As explained in the accounting policies set out in note 2.4
to the financial statements for “Construction contracts”
and “Revenue recognition”, revenue and profit recognition
on an incompleted project is dependent on estimating
the final outcome of the construction contract, as well
as the work done to date. Based on the Group’s recent
experience and the nature of the construction activity
undertaken by the Group, the Group makes estimates
of the point at which it considers the work is sufficiently
advanced such that the costs to complete and revenue
can be reliably estimated. As a result, until this point is
reached, the “Gross amounts due from customers for
contract work” as disclosed in note 23 will not include
profit which the Group may eventually realise from the
work done to date. In addition, actual outcomes in terms
of revenue or costs may be higher or lower than estimated
at the end of the reporting period, which would affect
the revenue and profit recognised in future years as an
adjustment to the amounts recorded to date.

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts

The Group estimates impairment losses for bad and
doubtful debts resulting from the inability of the customers
to make the required payments. The Group bases the
estimates on the ageing of the receivables, customer
credit-worthiness, and historical write-off experience. If
the financial conditions of customers were to deteriorate,
actual write-offs would be higher than estimated. The
carrying amounts of gross amounts due from customers
for contract work and debtors, other receivables,
deposits and prepayments at 31 December 2016 were
HK$21,033,228,000 (2015: HK$17,369,353,000)
and HK$9,831,429,000 (2015: HK$8,757,330,000),
respectively, details of which are set out in notes 23 and 25
to the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment losses for goodwill

As explained in the accounting policy set out in note 2.4
to the financial statements for “Business combinations and
goodwill”, goodwill is allocated to a cash-generating unit
or to a group of cash-generating units that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination for
the purpose of impairment assessment, which requires
significant judgement. The Group determined that the
group of cash-generating units to which goodwill was
allocated reflected the lowest level at which goodwill
was monitored for internal reporting and was not larger
than an operating segment in accordance with HKAS 36
Impairment of assets.

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This involves an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating units to which the
goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use requires
the Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash
flows from the cash-generating units and also to choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill
at 31 December 2016 was HK$1,563,390,000 (2015:
HK$1,061,891,000). Further details are given in note 17 to
the financial statements.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Other impairment losses

If circumstances indicate that the carrying values of
investments in associates and joint ventures, property,
plant and equipment, prepaid land lease payments,
intangible assets and other financial assets may not be
recoverable, these assets may be considered impaired,
and an impairment loss may be recognised in accordance
with HKAS 36 Impairment of assets. The carrying amounts
of these assets are reviewed periodically in order to assess
whether the recoverable amounts have declined below the
carrying amounts. These assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their recorded carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
When such a decline has occurred, the carrying amount is
reduced to recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the greater of the fair value less costs of disposal and
the value in use. It is difficult to estimate precisely fair
values because quoted market prices for the Group’s
assets are not readily available. In determining the value
in use, expected cash flows generated by the asset
are discounted to their present value, which requires
significant judgement relating to revenue and amount
of operating costs. The Group uses all readily available
information in determining an amount that is a reasonable
approximation of recoverable amount, including estimates
based on reasonable and supportable assumptions and
projections of revenue and amount of operating costs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continueqd)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

As described in note 14 to the financial statements, the
Group’s investment properties were revalued at the end
of the reporting period based on the appraised market
value provided by independent firms of surveyors. Such
valuations were based on certain assumptions, which
are subject to uncertainty and might materially differ from
the actual results. In making the estimation, the Group
considers information from current prices in an active
market for similar properties and uses assumptions
that are mainly based on market conditions existing at
the end of each reporting period. The carrying amount
of investment properties at 31 December 2016 was
HK$157,140,000 (2015: HK$166,099,000). Further
details, including the key assumptions used for fair value
measurement and sensitivity analysis, are given in note 14
to the financial statements.

Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on
the future tax treatment of certain transactions. The Group
carefully evaluates the tax implications of transactions and
tax provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of
such transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into
account all changes in tax legislation. Deferred tax assets
are recognised for temporary deductible differences. As
those deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the unused tax credits can be
utilised, management’s judgement is required to assess
the probability of future taxable profits. Management
reassesses these estimates at the end of each reporting
period. Additional deferred tax assets are recognised if
it becomes probable that future taxable profits will allow
the deferred tax assets to be recovered. The carrying
value of deferred tax assets at 31 December 2016 was
HK$53,732,000 (2015: HK$36,483,000). Further details
are included in note 31 to the financial statements.
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4 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group manages its business by divisions, which
are organised by business lines. In a manner consistent
with the way in which information is reported internally
to the Group’s most senior executive management for
the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has presented four reportable
segments. No operating segments have been aggregated
to form the following reportable segments.

Environmental energy project construction and
operation: this segment engages in the construction
and operation of waste-to-energy plants, methane-
to-energy plants, sludge treatment and disposal
project and food waste treatment projects, to generate
revenue from construction services, revenue from
operation services as well as finance income.

Environmental water project construction and
operation: this segment engages in the construction,
upgrade and operation of waste-water treatment
plants, reusable water treatment plants, surface
water treatment plants and waste-water source heat
pump projects, to generate revenue from construction
services, revenue from operation services as well as
finance income.

Greentech project construction and operation: this
segment engages in the construction and operation of
biomass integrated utilisation projects, industrial solid
waste and hazardous waste treatment projects, solar
energy projects and wind power projects, to generate
revenue from construction services, revenue from
operation services as well as finance income.

Envirotech: this segment engages in the conduct of
environmental protection technology research and
development projects, the provision of environmental-
related technological services, design of environmental
protection projects and the manufacturing and sales
of environmental protection project equipment, from
which it generates revenue.

4

- BReRFRBEBRENEZ

Z<<< A/‘\ 4|§ éﬁ#

AEE s ¥BIREREEE D BZED I

IAER - B AR N E RS IR R KR

FEmmRASEE e EREEERENZ—8

AR AKEZ®RT THHEETRSE D

2o REBIWESGHEMRES DL - 4K

THATwEDE -

- RREFEREBEERERES  WEBDH
BRBEENELNIREER  ARES
s EREREEA RERNRERE
HE - UREEERS WS - EE RS
Was K BA RS UA o

- RERKBEERERES : WEBDH
FEREE - BCEREZISKEER « F
JKEFARRER - 2R KEE R &5 KR

ARIBE - ARBGEERE K= - B

HEWH&Z 5 MW o

CHEBSE
FRBRENBEEMERAFAER -
TEEREMGCERIEEE « KBERSE
HERREANBEEEE @ URIEERS
I ss ~ B RIS RS R BT TSI o

- REME G EBOHBEBETRER

HFROBR  RECRRIAE IR -
FHRREL  WERHERREE R
B - feeh BRERIK S -



Annual Report 2016
—E—REFEEFER

161

Notes to Financial Statements
B SRR T

31 December 2016 —E—"&E+=-A=+—H

4 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4 BEDEBEF(H)

(continued)

For the purpose of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s
senior executive management monitors the results, assets
and liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on
the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets, intangible
assets, goodwill, interests in associates and joint ventures,
deferred tax assets and current assets with the exception
of investments in other financial assets, intercompany
receivables and other corporate assets. Segment liabilities
include current taxation, deferred tax liabilities, creditors,
other payables and accrued expenses attributable to
the activities of the individual segment and borrowings
managed directly by the segments, with the exception of
intercompany payables.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to revenue generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation or amortisation
of assets attributable to those segments. However, other
than reporting inter-segment sales of equipment and
provision of technological services, assistance provided by
one segment to another, including technical know-how, is
not measured.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is “earnings
before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation”
(“EBITDA”). To arrive at EBITDA, the Group’s earnings
are further adjusted for items not specifically attributed
to the individual segment, such as directors’ and
auditor’s remuneration and other head office or corporate
administration costs.

A RERBRFERDBE2ERDEMS -
AEEZESEEEBRTIELEERRMEA
THRENBIESE  BERAE
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4

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
EBITDA, management is provided with segment
information concerning revenue (including inter-
segment sales and revenue from technological services),
depreciation and amortisation and additions to non-current
segment assets used by the segments in their operations.

During the year, the Group redefined its business divisions
to align with its organisational structure for the purpose of
managing its strategic direction. Accordingly, the segment
information of certain subsidiaries previously included
in the “Environmental technology and construction
management” segment has been reclassified to the
“Environmental energy project construction and operation”
segment and “unallocated head office and corporate
income, expenses, assets and liabilities”, and the segment
information of certain subsidiaries previously included in
“unallocated head office and corporate income, expenses,
assets and liabilities” has been reclassified to the
“Environmental energy project construction and operation”
segment, “Environmental water project construction and
operation” segment and “Greentech project construction
and operation” segment. In addition, the Group reclassified
the “Property investment” segment to “unallocated
head office and corporate income, expenses, assets
and liabilities” as a result of the diminishing importance
of the “Property investment” segment to the operation
of the Group. Accordingly, the comparative segment
information has been reclassified to conform to the current
year’s presentation, and the revenue, contributed by the
“Property investment” segment for the year ended 31
December 2015 of HK$6,138,000 was reclassified to other
revenue from revenue on the face of the consolidated
income statement.

4
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4 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities
Information regarding the Group’s reportable
segments as provided to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance for
the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 is set
out below.

For the year ended 31 December

Annual Report 2016
S agsy 103

(i) 7HEE - EEREE
BHE_ZTZ—RXER-_Z—HF+_-A
—T+—HALEFEE AEERBERIER
SEMREFEMEAIEBETEEEER
Bz AFHREDBERT ¢

HEF=A=1—ALEE

Environmental energy Environmental water Greentech project
project construction project construction construction
and operation and operation
RReFEE GeRRER Envirotech Tota
BERER BiERES REHR sg
2016 2015 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 215

Z85F ZR-1F ZBAE
HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$000
BT EETL RRTR

“Z-1F ZF-7F “F-1F ZE-xE -T-RF ZE-xE 33
HKS'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
BT BETn  AETr BETn AT BETn A%

(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(E®) (E%) (E%) (E%)
Segment revenue: AiE:
Revenue from extemal customers ENREENE 7905111 5401596 2494037 1815150 8,025,940 1176681 546,116 134966 13,971,204 8,528,393
Inter-segment revenue HBEhE - - - - - 867519 554420 867519 554420
Reportable segment revenue EFRE ANE 7905111 5401596 2,494,037 1815150 3,025,940 1,176,681 1,413,635 689,380 14,838,723 9,082,813
Reconciliation: bl
Elimination of inter-segment revenue papriclien (867,519) (554,420

Reportable segment revenue derived fom ~ REZEFSNREF 2 BT
the Group’s external customers BEADhR

13,971,204 8,528,393
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4 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4 LEDEHBER ()
(continued)
() Segment results, assets and liabilities (i) P3BEE BEERAEEE)
(continued)
For the year ended 31 December BE21-A=+—HIFFEF
Environmental energy Environmental water (Greentech project
project construction project construction construction
and operation and operation and operation
RR&FER RRKHER AERRER Envirotech Tota
BiEkES REhEs RahER REHR 4E

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
ZB-RE CT-1F ZB-iE CF-1F ZB-xE -F-1F ZB-nE -E3-1f I8 -E-1f
HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000
AR RETT BETR AETn BETR ARt BETR BETn BETR BT

(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(E%) (%) (%) (&%)
Segment results: LR
Reportable segment proft (EBITDA) ATREHTRHEBTDN 3299687 2670199 843973 795955 1,020,204 436460 416,554 170,606 5580418 4,073,220

Elimination of inter-segment profits BEBEER (433,718)  (253,956)

Reportable segment profit derived fomthe ~ REZEZNFRE 2

Group's external customers BYRENBEF 5,146,700 3,819,264
Finance costs HHER (639,584 (451,759)
Depreciation and amortisation, including ~~ FEREH(BEAIE

unallocated portion £4) (312,954)  (183,889)
Unallocated head office and FARBLARLERA

corporats income 18981 17,647
Unallocated head office and AORBLARAERR

corporate expenses (114,420) (82,462
Consolidated proft before tax GARTHER 4,008,723 3,118,801
Other segment information: AEAGER
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH 58,148 26,753~ 101,215 71,827 131,509 72,901 17,728 8110 ~ 308,660 179,591
Addiions to property, plant and equipment ~ £REENZ  BER

and prepayment of land leases FEUR LR

during the year EEL 59,125 31,275 11,865 10607 371,854 1,039,345 58,440 61,424~ 501,284 1,142,651
Aditions to infangible assets and EREERVEEREN

non-curtent portion of prepayments B DR

during the year 1,108,593 89,738 988 609,392 1,535,008 327,562 24141 12957 2,668,821 1,039,639
Additions to non-current portion of EREERHEYR

other receivables and deposits and HERES RER

gross amounts due from customers EPENTENE

for contract work during the year EhE ) 5,691,340 4488836 1,773,307 2,639,613 553421 261,435 = - 8018074 7379884
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4 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4 BESHERE)
(continued)
(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (i) PHEE EEREE(E
(continued)
Environmental energy Environmental water (Greentech project
project construction project construction construction
and operation and operation and operation
RReTEE RRKHAR GeRRES Envirotech Total
RERER BEhER BiElES REHR g

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
23 ZT-1F ZE-RE ZE-1f ZB-RE 3-1fF ZE-nE ZE-RF ZE-RF CE-nf
HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS000
AETn ARt RBTn  A%Tn BT ANt BRTn AkTr BETm AT

(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

(E8) (E8) (28) (&%) (&%)

Reportable segment assets ETRELAPEE 24,526,890 18,617,603 13,851,356 13,694,024 7,414,046 5464048 1,225995 667388 47,018,287 38,443,123

Non-current other financial assets ErBEn LR 33332 24,800
Unallocated head office and RORENAR

corporate assets hEEE 248009 2,155,149

Consolicated total assets GABERE 49,531,728 40,623,072

Reportable Seqment fbiltes BYREIHUAE 1087153 7408760 6662303 603135 8266307 192305 G843 494921 21481386 16230768
Unallocated head office and RAREDAR

corporate liabilties PEaE 8,205,134 4,971,763

Consolidated total liabilies GAgELE 29,686,520 21,202,531
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4 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)
(i) Geographic information

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue
from external customers, (ii) the Group’s investment
properties, property, plant and equipment, prepaid
land lease payments and intangible assets and (iii) the
Group’s non-current portion of other receivables,
deposits and prepayments and non-current portion of
gross amounts due from customers for contract work.
The geographical location of customers is based on
the location at which the services were provided. The
geographical location of the assets is based on the
physical location of the asset, in the case of investment
properties, property, plant and equipment and prepaid
land lease payments, and the location of the operation
to which they are allocated, in the case of other
receivables, deposits and prepayments, intangible
assets and gross amounts due from customers for
contract work.

Investment properties,

(i) HEZFR

TR BBAONAEERAINRETFZ
Wit - (I ANEEZREME - WE K
EREE - BANTHEASRERELE
ER{)AEBZEMEHRFE - BE
RENFRZ AP O REREF A
H TR 2 FFRNEIRR (0 2 PR E T
B o &P AT R 12 AR A5 1R 4 3t B B
D BEMENELREEBRAEE
(ABEME - ME - BB RRBARE
NEwBEERBEME) » KRR EB
ZFAE R (AR IR - e MR
MR- - BYEEREREFAHTRE
FEBEME)ED -

Non-current portion
of other receivables,
deposits and prepayments

property, plant and
equipment, prepaid land
lease payments

and gross amounts
due from customers
for contract work

and intangible assets Hh fElioR -
Revenue from RENE W% RERBRFTER
external customers VSR EREPEHTRE
RENREP Bt EESE TEBEY
¢ LEFEE FERNERER D
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
—E-RE ZEF-nf ZB-Rf —T-1F ZEBE-”F C—T-0f
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT E¥TT BETxz  E¥TT  BETx BT
(Restated)
(ER)
Hong Kong A
(place of domicile) (e %) - - 50,062 52,948 - -
Other parts of the PRC Bl E fir31[& 13,844,287 8,521,891 8,238,318 5,922,712 25,946,362 21,519,742
Germany = 5,995 6,502 43,814 48,938 - -
Poland Vi 120,922 - 692,828 - 12,027 -
Total ke 13,971,204 8,528,393 = 9,025,022 6,024,598 25,958,389 21,519,742
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4 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4 BEDHER (B)
(continued)
(iii) Information about a major customer
For the year ended 31 December 2016, the revenue
from the Group’s largest customer amounted to
less than 10% of the Group’s total revenue. For
the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group had
transactions with a local government authority in the
PRC from which the revenue arisen exceeded 10%
of the Group’s revenue. The revenue from that PRC
local government authority during the year ended
31 December 2015 amounted to HK$961,001,000
which were derived from the “Environmental energy
project construction and operation” segment and
the “Greentech project construction and operation”
segment.

(i) EBEEFER
HE-_ZT—A"F+-_A=+—81t#F
B REAEBZARFZ KR HEAE
BURFEBBLOMO% BE-_ZT—0F
+—A=+—RALFE AEESE—F
PREMBTREETRS  EERS
%Fzzw SIEAEEWRZB10% © B

—AF+-_A=+—HLEFE
XELL$I*mﬁﬁ%ﬁZW SAEE
#961,001,0007T * EEMER A [IRIR
BERBEEERES [ DBR [HEEBRR
HEEERESE DI -

5 REVENUE 5 &=
Revenue represents the revenue from construction 1451 BREEERB KRS KRERRERE
services, revenue from environmental energy projects, CIRIRKFEIBEB M BIRIRIBE 2B Z R
environmental water projects and greentech projects ﬁ"’WﬂZﬁn A - KRB R IHE RIRRIE
operation services, finance income, revenue from sales of Rtz Wz - FAEHERNSEETE
equipment and environmental protection project design Hﬂlﬁn HRlBEENT ¢
services. The amount of each significant category of
revenue recognised during the year is as follows:

2016 2015

— I =—hF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BT T

(Restated)

(E#R)
Revenue from environmental energy project  IB{RELIRIE B @& R

construction services Wz 5,779,429 3,715,228
Revenue from environmental water project RIRKIFIE B 2iE R

construction services Wz 1,133,784 591,890
Revenue from greentech project construction 4k @ IR{RIE B 2 IERTS

services Wz 2,073,986 608,731
Revenue from environmental energy project  IE{RELIRIE B 1B L R

operation services Wz 1,117,978 880,281
Revenue from environmental water project IRIRKFETE B 1B RS

operation services & 821,478 755,365
Revenue from greentech project operation FEIRRIBRESE RS

services W #5 914,988 549,260

Finance income IR N 1,583,445 1,292,672
Revenue from sales of equipment and RS MIRIRIBE R

environmental protection project SRS U 2
design services 546,116 134,966
13,971,204 8,528,393
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5 REVENUE (continued) 5 Wz (&)

The aggregated revenues from environmental
energy project construction and operation services,
environmental water project construction and operation
services, greentech project construction and operation
services and finance income derived from the local
government authorities in the PRC amounted to
HK$12,996,599,000 (2015: HK$8,183,491,000) for
the year ended 31 December 2016. The revenues are
included in “Environmental energy project construction
and operation”, “Environmental water project construction
and operation” and “Greentech project construction and
operation” segments as disclosed in note 4 to the financial
statements.

OTHER REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND
GAINS/(LOSSES), NET

An analysis of other revenue, other income and gains/
(losses), net is as follows:

HE-Z—XRFE+_A=1t—HBILEE %k
B EE R ZRFEREEZER
BERERE BEKEEEEZERELR
Bl EREREEHRBERELREKE
K B 7 WA 42 88 B 8 6 12,996,599,000 7T
—E—F4F : $%8,183,491,0007T) - A
BURETA [RFERBERERER |5
B [RFEKEBERERES DR [
ERABERERES | DA (FRUMERE
BizE4) o

Huplas - HplA Rdes/(Ei8)
FEE

Hipugzs ~ Habl A Rz (B598) B 580
MR

2016 2015
—F-RE —TIF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
(Restated)
(E®R)
Other revenue H At Wz
Rental income e WA 8,496 6,138
Interest income FMBWA 46,439 51,977
Dividend income A% B A 8 3,319
Government grants* YRR 36,045 49,314
Value-added tax refund** HEF R 311,170 206,141
Others Hith 62,758 33,854
464,916 350,743
Other income and gains/(losses), Hu A KWz,
net (B18)F8
Change in fair value of derivative financial MEeMIAAR
instrument: BEp -
Derivative financial instrument TESEBTA—
— transactions not qualified as hedges TEEERER
HHZ2RH (28,528) -
Gain on sale of listed securities HE FTmEHF W - 92,711
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BENMRE
plant and equipment, net ZEEFE (11,247) (1,280)
(39,775) 91,431
Total ] 425,141 442 174
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6 OTHER REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND 6 ﬁﬂHﬁZA < H WA RWES,(E8)

GAINS/(LOSSES), NET (continued) ()

Government grants of HK$36,045,000 (2015: HK$49,314,000) * Wﬁﬁ—g—ﬁiﬂ' A=+—HLE&E K
were granted during the year ended 31 December 2016 to & B2 BT 1 B © 75 536,045,000 T ( = F
subsidise certain environmental energy, environmental water and — R : #B#49,314,0007T) © U AEEE
greentech projects of the Group in the PRC and Poland. There TFrhEREBRRRER - REKEREERRE
are no unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies attached HE - BEBEBMZEHEE 2 AREKGRE
to the receipts of those grants. There is no assurance that the HskAEIR - BRITEREBEASER BEAST
Group will continue to receive such grants in the future. BERERZSEHPE -

** Value-added tax refund of HK$311,170,000 (2015: * REBEZZE-—ARF+A=T—HILFE  £&
HK$206,141,000) was received/receivable during the year BEPEZETRRER RIFEKBRECIRR
ended 31 December 2016 in relation to environmental energy, BEEEACDERNSEREBOLERRTBE
environmental water and greentech project operations of the 311,170,000 (ZZF— A 4F : #¥206,141,000
Group in the PRC. There are no unfulfiled conditions and other TT) o HEAR A B UER 2 F I E TR B 2 R ER R
contingencies attached to the receipts of such tax refund. There HREMBAEIE - BRITEHEREASERBE
is no assurance that the Group will continue to receive such tax 1 I B B 2 IR E R T
refund in the future.

7 FINANCE COSTS 7 HBEH

2016 2015
—RF —ET-RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T

Interest on bank advances and other loans RITERNEMER Z
%IJM 645,924 457,818
Interest on finance leases BEHEEZFE 561 -

Less: Interest expenses capitalised into B REZTIREERE
construction in progress* Z A B (6,901) (6,059)
639,584 451,759

*

The borrowing costs have been capitalised at rates ranging from

*

4.5% to 4.9% (2015: 5.0% to 5.5%) per annum during the year

ended 31 December 2016.

REE—Z—RE+-_A=+—HItEE  #=
RAENF4.5%F4.9%(ZFE—HF: 5.0%%
5.5%) 2 FFREITER(L ©
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8 PROFIT BEFORE TAX 8 BRTLATAN
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging: AEBEZBRBMAIANE MR
2016 2015
—F-—R"E —TIF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B aE BT T BT
Depreciation e 15 163,428 90,547
Amortisation s
— prepaid land lease payments — B IR ERIA 16 5,699 1,204
— intangible assets* —EmREE 18 143,827 92,138
Research and development costs % K A B pk AN 54,180 28,719
Minimum lease payments under KEHEREHEEEA
operating leases 17,384 11,740
Auditor’s remuneration ZEET <
— audit services — BRI 4,040 7,827
— other services — H M AR 7S 480 2,682
Employee benefit expense (excluding & 8@ (a1
directors’ remuneration (note 9)): EE=M e (FI3E9)) ¢
Wages, salaries, allowances and TE& - -Ha 2K
benefits in kind B = 804,194 678,908
Retirement scheme contributions BRIRET S 88,838 69,294
893,032 748,202
Foreign exchange differences, net PE W, F =50 72,742 58,945
Direct operating expenses HIHS 2 IREMFE L
(including repairs and maintenance) EEKLEER(BRE
arising from rental-earning HIERIRE)
investment properties 348 348

the consolidated income statement.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had no forfeited
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the
retirement schemes in future years (2015: Nil).

Included in “Direct costs and operating expenses” on the face of

* RTAGERER [EBERARKEER AT -

RZZE—RE+ZA=+—H XEEUIE
DR U BETKAT B DA FRL AN R B R SR R JR 2 R
WErBIER(ZE—0EF - |) -
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9 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 9 EEHM
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant BIEEMAR - FAECAA GG ) 5E383(1)
to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of (@~ (b)) C)ROEM(AR(HBEESHTE
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the BOBROD)FEoBEB L EFTFEMBLT -

Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

Group

KEE
2016 2015
—B-XREF —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Fees we 1,280 1,000

Other emoluments: HiENE -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EEREYRIZE 9,903 7,046
Discretionary bonuses BB IELL 11,430 13,000
Retirement scheme contributions RIRETEIHE R 605 557
21,938 20,603

23,218 21,603
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9 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

9 EZRFHME)

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benegfits scheme
in kind Discretionary contributions
Fees Fe o bonuses Rk Total
e REWFIE BB =R ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
2016 “E-RE
Executive directors HI1EZE
Cai Yunge (note (a)) 24 & (M) = = - - -
Tang Shuangning (note (b)) EEE (1) = = - - -
Liu Jun (note (c)) 2 (W) - - - - -
Chen Xiaoping" B/ - 3,334 6,230 - 9,564
Wang Tianyi IX% - 2,102 1,900 - 4,002
Wong Kam Chung, Raymond ERE - 2,164 1,700 571 4,435
Cai Shuguang B - 1,939 1,600 34 3,573
- 9,539 11,430 605 21,574
Non-executive director FHTES
Tang Shuangning (note (b)) EEE(fb) = - - - -
Independent BUFHTES
non-executive directors
Fan Yan Hok, Philip Hee 320 9 - = 416
Mar Selwyn SR 320 99 - - 419
Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey ZEE 320 83 - - 403
/hai Haitao 2z 320 86 - - 406
1,280 364 - - 1,644
1,280 9,903 11,430 605 23,218
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9 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 9 BEEFHME)
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits scheme
inkind  Discretionary  contributions
Fees Eo =t bonuses RIREE Total
we REWH R WEEL R B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BETIT BB BB BB BETTL
2015 —E-1F
Executive directors HITES
Tang Shuangning (note (o)) EEE(HED) - 15 - - 15
Liu Jun (note (c)) 2 #E (M) - 20 - - 20
Chen Xiaoping" BN - 2,199 6,800 - 8,999
Wang Tianyi TXE - 1,868 2,100 - 3,968
Wong Kam Chung, Raymond &5 - 1,422 2,100 525 4,047
Cai Shuguang BN - 1,302 2,000 32 3,334
- 6,826 13,000 557 20,383
Independent BUNTES
non-executive directors
Fan Yan Hok, Philip B 250 55 - - 305
Mar Selwyn Ear 250 55 - - 305
Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey ZEE 250 55 - - 305
Zhai Haitao 28z 250 55 - - 305
1,000 220 - - 1,220
1,000 7,046 13,000 557 21,603

A

Mr. Chen Xiaoping is also the chief executive officer of the Group.

A

BRANFARETAAEBETHRAER -
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9 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 9 EEFHME)
Notes: Mt 5
(a) Mr. Cai Yunge was appointed as executive director and the Vice- (a) BEAFRER-ZE-—R"FET—ATHEZERHN
chairman on 10 November 2016, and was re-designated as TEEREERE  AER-_ZE—RE+ZRA+=
executive director and the Chairman on 12 December 2016. HREARMITESHRER °
(b) Mr. Tang Shuangning ceased to be executive director and the b) BEELXER_T-—R"F+_A+_BTBLE
Chairman and was re-designated as non-executive director on HMITERREF @ LAERFEATESE -
12 December 2016.
(¢) Mr. Liu Jun resigned as executive director and the Vice-chairman ) BEAER-T—AR"F+—AtHBREIRTES
on 10 November 2016. FElERE -
There was no arrangement under which a director FAMBEITIEEXNFTETHRABRERF
or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any ERERMME 2 -
remuneration during the year.
10 FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10 A& HES
The five highest paid employees during the year included FARLEERFWEERFENZREERE(ZE
four directors (2015: four directors), details of whose —LF MBEF)  REZHMSFBHRN
remuneration are set out in note 9 above. Details of the EXE s FABT —B(ZE—HF : —
remuneration for the year of the remaining one (2015: one) B)RERNRBESZNIFETETHABZE
highest paid employee who is neither a director nor chief SEMEE 2 HFMFABOT ¢
executive of the Company are as follows:
2016 2015
—E—RE —EF—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EZENREYMH = 1,834 1,181
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAT 1,829 1,800
Retirement scheme contributions RIRETEIER R 36 33

3,699 3,014
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10 FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

11

The number of non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

Annual Report 2016
i R W

10 AR &R=¥FMER (&)

FHNFIATHE S REEEMEEETH
ANEREHFMEEZ ABDT :

Number of employees

EEA#
2016 2015
—E—RE “E—RF
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 753,000,001 7T £ %8 #3,500,0007T - 1
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 75 #.3,500,001 7T £ B #4,000,0007T 1 -
1 1

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the directors of the Company or any of the highest
paid employees who are not a director of the Company
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

INCOME TAX

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as
the Group did not generate any assessable profits arising
in Hong Kong for the year ended 31 December 2016
(2015: Nil).

Tax for the PRC operations is charged at the statutory
rate of 25% of the assessable profits under tax rules and
regulations in the PRC. During the year, certain PRC
subsidiaries are subject to tax at 50% of the standard tax
rate or fully exempted from income tax under the relevant
tax rules and regulations.

11

FA - ARETERNARAESHEMAILIE
ARBEFZRSHFTMNEE MMM
ERMAREBE SR INAR KB 2 BB
BERAHIE -

SRR
HRAEBREBE T R"F+_A=1—
FIEFEEEBLERBUEMERHAT -
BT EELRENGERERE( -1
FE) -

FREERBZHARETBEREAREKER
RERTBNAEER R25%TH - FA -
REBAREERIER  ETHEMBR
AIBRIBER R 250% B A MG HKEMF
MR R ©

2016 2015
ZEB-RF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T

Current — Elsewhere: AE—EMBIR -
Charge for the year REFEFHR 306,673 270,916

Underprovision/(overprovision) BEFERE

in prior years TR,/ (BEF) (3,048) 2,221
Deferred (note 31) BT (MI5E31) 758,525 510,138

Total tax expense for the year RNEZHIBMZ BT 1,062,150 783,275
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11 INCOME TAX (continued) 11 FTEFRL(E&)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit REARAR R RHEKXE G5B A 7R E
before tax at the statutory rates for the countries or Ry el EER ZEERETERTAIZT 2
jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority of MBS HERERB R E C BRI H 28
its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the BRINT:

effective tax rates is as follows:

2016 2015
—E-RE —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Profit before tax bR A5 A 2 7] 4,098,723 3,118,801
Tax at the statutory tax rate BEEBEFE 2BIR 1,054,217 808,891
Difference in tax rates enacted by local W EREm R
authorities =R (262,615) (183,833)
Effect of withholding tax on the distributable  FE}ZFr15 %1 ¥ 7 & E
and distributed profits of the Group’s B B B8 A B A] it o
PRC subsidiaries MEDREF 2 142,279 101,257
Adjustments in respect of current tax of B HE 2 BN AR 18
previous periods YEH 2 A% (3,048) 2,221
Profits and losses attributable to aEPERBERRZ
joint ventures and associates B R EE (15,723) -
Income not subject to tax BRI A (33,677) (18,610)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR F 166,369 76,565
Tax losses utilised from previous periods EF BT AR 2 AT 30
&8 (943) (4,861)
Tax losses not recognised RERAIENEE 6,564 1,645
Others HAb 8,727 -
Tax expense at the Group’s effective rate BAREEERMRERE
Z A 1,062,150 783,275
The share of tax attributable to joint ventures amounting to FTiE & &1 18 A8 % 30,394,000t (=
HK$30,394,000 (2015: Nil) is included in “Share of profits T—hEF: &) BiFAGREBmERIEE
and losses of joint ventures” in the consolidated income EREBMRBEIET -

statement.
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12 DIVIDENDS 12 IR B
2016 2015
—EB-ARF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Dividend attributable to the year: REERE :
Interim — HK7.5 cents (2015: HK6.5 cents) A EARR B — 3 A
per ordinary share 7T5BI(ZZE—RF -
6.5/811) 336,204 291,441
Proposed final - HK13.0 cents BRKRIRE — B
(2015: HK12.0 cents) per ordinary share LEBIR1B.0BM( ==
—FHF 12.081l) 582,753 538,045
918,957 829,486
Dividend paid during the year: FREMKRE:
Final in respect of the previous financial year I —{ERKEE 7
- HK12.0 cents (2015: HK6.0 cents) RHEARE B — B @R
per ordinary share 12,08 IW(ZF—RF :
6.07&11) 538,045 269,023

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to
the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. The final dividend
proposed after the end of the reporting period has not
been recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting
period.

13 EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO

EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings per share amount is
based on the profit for the year attributable to equity
holders of the Company of HK$2,784,863,000 (2015:
HK$2,084,888,000), and the weighted average number
of approximately 4,483,124,000 (2015: 4,483,712,000)
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in
issue during the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015.

AERZBZR DRI RBARBAFTARRBR
ERERRBFANSG EHERGAIEE - 1
BEPRREZD IR KRR E AL RERS

RREESFA ARG SRET

BERERBFSBEINEAR DA AR
1A E B 7 #2,784,863,000 T (= &
—FHF : B%2,084,888,0007T) A REAE
BT @R 2 NEE T84 4,483,124,000
R ( —ZF—FH4F : 4,483,712,0000% ) & 3@ I

BEZFT R"FR-F-HAFTZA=1—
AIEFE  AEREYRTADRTAEECS
EREZERK -
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14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14 I|LEYE

2016 2015
—E—RE —EF—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HZEAE 166,099 172,938
Exchange realignment M 5 (8,959) (6,839)

Carrying amount at 31 December R+—A=+—Hz
BRTE 157,140 166,099

The directors of the Company have determined that
the Group’s investment properties were commercial
investment properties based on the nature, characteristics
and risks of each property. The Group’s investment
properties were revalued on 31 December 2016 based
on valuations performed by Beijing Deping Daxin Assets
Appraisal Co, Ltd. and Shenzhen Zhong Heng Xin Assets
Appraisal Co., Ltd, independent firms of surveyors, at
HK$157,140,000. Each year, the management decides
to appoint which external valuer to be responsible
for the external valuations of the Group’s properties.
Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards are
maintained. The management has discussions with the
surveyors on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results twice a year when the valuation is performed for
interim and annual financial reporting.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases, further summary details of which are
included in note 37 to the financial statements.

Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties
are included on page 272.

BIESEWEZEE FERRR - ARF
EERTEASB B EVEBHREEY
¥ - N-_ZT—RET-_A=1+—0 " x&=H
WEYFEETEMN  BREMKEBELANE
MiTItREFEEREENHEREEAAK
R TR EEEENGBERAGMIEZHE
1T EHEEABK157,140,0007T © B
BERSEFTFELHSREZEBRINEME
NAIBEHAEEYEETINGMHE - BE
LERBEHEMIGZAHEE B2 - BU M
R BHERERKT - EEERASMETF
MR B B R F S B 7 R R i T A ERER
RiEEER 2 °

REMFERBEEHELATE=77 - 2
—FEMEH NP BERKRMEIT -

AEBRENE 2 E—TFBHENF2728 °

pslllg
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14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group’s investment properties:
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14 WEME(E)
DAERBRE
TREALEBRENEZ AR EHERE

ARl

Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2016 using

RZE—RF+-A=1+—H

FANTEEETAREHNE
Quoted Significant Significant
prices in observable  unobservable
active markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
ARG BERABR EATAEE
2B i A\ 2R LN €7 Total
(B—H) (B=%) (=) RS
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
BT BT T BT BEFT
Recurring fair value  T3|HEEB 2 &%t
measurement for: MAREE
Commercial investment EEd=7E
properties - - 157,140 157,140
Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2015 using
R-_E-—RF+-A=+—H
FANTEEETAREHNE
Quoted Significant Significant
prices in observable  unobservable
active markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
ARG BEAAEHE EATAUEE
2B i N B AR Total
(F—H) (BF=H) (=) mE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BB BT BT BETT
Recurring fair value  T3|HEEB 2 &%
measurement for: BMARERE
Commercial investment ERREME
properties - - 166,099 166,099
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14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14 WEMEHE(E)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) DARERBRE(E)
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value FABEREF_HCELEAREFE
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no B E-ANEAREFE2E ANE L
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2015: Nil). “ET—RF: &)
Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised DERANBERERFNE=F 2 AREF=
within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: ZEER
Commercial
investment
properties
EAREME
HK$’000
BT T
Carrying amount at 1 January 2015 R _ZE-—RF—A—RZEKAE 172,938
Exchange realignment PE 5 B (6,839)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2015 R-ZE—FRFE+-_A=+—HK
and 1 January 2016 —E-RF-HA—HZKHEEA 166,099
Exchange realignment bE 5 B (8,959)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2016 RZE—RFE+_A=+—H
Z BREE 157,140
No valuation gain or loss is recognised in the consolidated REEZZT—"EFRZFE—HF+=A
income statement for the years ended 31 December 2016 T —HBLEFEVEALGESBRREREM
and 2015 as there has been no change in the fair value of HERE  RERREMEZAAEE E—

the investment properties since previous valuations. IRAEE AR R B -
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14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14 REMZE (&)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) DARERBEBRB(E)
Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and TRB MR E Y EGERE A 2 b E R &
the key inputs to the valuation of investment properties: FEE -
Valuation techniques Significant unobservable inputs
fhE AT ERNAIBREE
Commercial investment Market comparison approach Premium (discount) on
properties MG EA quality of the buildings
HAKREME EHEEFEE 2 RE(ITE)

Adjustment on timing
of comparable transactions
AR S EH 2 HE

The fair value of investment properties is determined KEMEZ AR BETERATISLBIEERE
using market comparison approach by reference to HE2ZnHERYEREG T A RERESE
recent sales price of comparable properties on a price per FECAHERE  AERAKEEEFEEZ
square metre basis, adjusted for a premium or a discount FrEmEsk TR (B BEER FLLEME)
specific to the quality of the Group’s buildings compared ARAIHERRZ 5 2 HEELAE - WEF
to the recent sales and the timing on the comparable BEREUNBHEERS RMAIHERR 52
transactions. Higher premium for higher quality buildings RESRIELANRAE S8V EHEME
and a favourable adjustment on the timing of comparable ZARERS -

transactions will result in a higher fair value measurement.



182

RS ABERARAR

China Everbright International Limited

Notes to Financial Statements

IR A

31 December 2016 —E— X &E+=-A=+—H

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15 U3~ BENERE

Motor
Leasehold vehicles,
improvements,  electronic
furniture and ~ equipment
fixtures  and others
landand  Plantand ~ HEWE /7%« Construction
buildings ~ machinery 5. EFEER  inprogress Total
THEEF BEREEZE GAREE Aty FRIRE o)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BYTr  A%Tr  B%TT BT BT B%Tx
31 December 2016 “E-RF
TZA=1+-H
Cost: AR :
At 1 January 2016 RZE—"F—-HA—H 1,013,812 1,208,154 55,028 188,013 259,162 2,724,169
Additions BE 32,265 16,544 21,737 65,508 344,653 486,707
Acquisition of subsidiaries WERBAR
(note 35) (P3E35) 388,408 132,818 309 30,546 33,040 585,121
Disposals HE (355) (10,301) (4,196) (9,862) (3,160) (27,874)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHEAR - (18) (64) (389) - (471)
Transfers B 253,600 228,918 - 6,326  (488,844) -
Exchange realignment ERE% (103,667)  (107,094) (4515)  (14,87)  (13,318)  (243,465)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RE
+-A=1+—-H 1,584,063 1,469,021 74,299 265,271 131,533 3,524,187
Accumulated depreciation;  Zit&
At 1 January 2016 RZE-1"E5-H-H 133,910 115,306 25,842 98,846 - 373,904
Charge for the year AEEHE 46,519 73,628 10,925 32,356 - 163,428
Disposals L& (56) (4,496) (3,399) (8,614) - (16,565)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-ZXWBAF - (17) (20) (146) - (183)
Exchange realignment A% (6,359) (10,436) (1,844) (7,175) - (25,814)
At 31 December 2016 RZ8-RF
+ZR=1t—H 174,014 173,985 31,504 115,267 - 494,770
Net carrying amount: REFE -
At 31 December 2016 AZE—RF
+-A=1+—-H 1,410,049 1,295,036 42,795 150,004 131,533 3,029,417
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 W% « WFE M&iEE)
(continued)
Motor
Leasehold vehicles,
improvements,  electronic
fumniture and  equipment
fixtures  and others
landand  Plantand ~ HEWE /7 Construction
buildings ~ machinery KB ETERER  inprogress Total
THEEF BEREZE GAREE it ERIE k]
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT  BETR A%Fr BETr ABTR B%Tx
31 December 2015 “E-hE
+TZA=+-H
Cost: A :
At 1 January 2015 RZE-1%-F-H 832,145 588,825 35,563 172,477 185,173 1,814,183
Additions e 17,666 13,855 21,887 30,113 940,400 1,023,921
Acquisition of subsidiaries YWEHBRR
(note 35) (F15¥35) - - - 380 - 380
Disposals e - (5,239) (489) (7,355) - (13,089)
Transfers B 198,701 658,455 - - (857,156) -
Exchange realignment R (34,700) (47,742) (1,933) (7,602) (9,255)  (101,232)
At 31 December 2015 RZE-REF
+-A=1—H 1,013,812 1,208,154 55,028 188,013 269,162 2,724,169
Accumulated depreciation:  Zit&
At 1 January 2015 W_E-1%—F—H 110,383 88,231 20,169 84,522 - 308,305
Charge for the year rERME 25,998 33,144 6,936 24,469 - 90,547
Disposals HeE - (759) (309) (6,035) - (7,109)
Exchange realignment AR (2,471) (5,310) (954) (4,110) - (12,845)
At 31 December 2015 i
+-A=1+—H 133,910 115,306 25,842 98,846 - 373,904
Net carrying amount: REFME :
At 31 December 2015 R-Z-RF
+-A=t—H 879,902 1,092,848 29,186 89,167 259,162 2,350,265




1 84 China Everbright International Limited
HEERBERER A

Notes to Financial Statements
B SRR =T

31 December 2016 —E— X &E+=-A=+—H

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 156 M - WFER&REE)

(continued)

The net carrying amount of the Group’s items of property,
plant and equipment held under finance leases included
in the total amount of land and buildings at 31 December
2016 was approximately HK$51,521,000 (2015: Nil)
(note 29).

At 31 December 2016, certain of the Group’s items of
property, plant and equipment with an aggregate carrying
amount of HK$2,015,853,000 were pledged to secure
banking facilities granted to the Group, further details of
which are included in notes 29 and 36 to the financial
statements.

16 PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

RZEBE—RE+ZA=+—H XxEEAR
BEREHEREIFT AT HEEFTRENR
ZUE BEERXEBEEEFEHABE
51,521,0007c( = —RF : 8)(zE29) °

R—ZZTE—X"E+-_A=+—8 " K& H
ETYVE BEASB(EEAEEXK
2,015,853,0007T) B IFIE AR EEERIR
TREZRER  E#E—PFBEHARTBER
R FE29 M P 5E36 °

16 FEfT T & RIE

2016 2015

—E—RF —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HzEmE 151,047 35,717
Additions during the year FEREE 40,209 121,861
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 35) U BB B A Al (MI5E35) 670 -
Amortised during the year F N (5,699) (1,204)
Transfers to intangible assets (note 18) wEEmpEE(ME18) (23,861) -
Exchange realignment M A (10,275) (5,327)
Carrying amount at 31 December Rt+-_A=1+—RBZFEEE 152,091 151,047

At 31 December 20186, certain of the Group’s prepaid land
lease payments with an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$20,019,000 were pledged to secure banking facilities
granted to the Group, further details of which are included
in notes 29 and 36 to the financial statements.

RZFE—X"FEF+=-_A=+—H  ~&HE
HETHENETHBAEREB(RARESE
20,019,0007T ) B IFIE B AN & B EFK IR1T
MEZERR  HE—PFBIHRUBEE@E
MosE29 K fii7E36 o



Annual Report 2016
Sengsy 109

Notes to Financial Statements
B &SRR EE

31 December 2016 —E—"&E+=-A=+—H

17 GOODWILL 17 P52
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Cost and net carrying amount at 1 January »— H—H Z KA E K&
FREFE 1,061,891 834,845
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 35) U B B B 2 B (B 3%35) 617,820 271,822
Exchange realignment PE H 8% (116,321) (44,776)
Cost and net carrying amount R+—A=+—HZKAE
at 31 December KEEMFEE 1,563,390 1,061,891
Impairment testing of goodwill BEEENR
The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the Group’s TRIRESDHEAREFIRER S E Y
cash-generating units (“CGU”) identified according to HeHsESN([REeEESN )2 EEZE
business segment is as follows: EE:
2016 2015
—E-AF —TRF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Environmental energy project RIREBERIBE 2iEENES
construction and operation 581,737 11,255
Environmental water project RIRKBIEE B2ENER
construction and operation 981,653 1,050,636

1,563,390 1,061,891
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17 GOODWILL (continued) 17 B8 #E)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

Goodwill allocated to individual CGU

The goodwill of HK$570,482,000 (2015: Nil),
HK$11,255,000 (2015: HK$11,255,000) and
HK$9,538,000 (2015: HK$9,538,000) was allocated to
the individual CGU in the “Environmental energy project
construction and operation”, “Environmental energy
project construction and operation” and “Environmental
water project construction and operation” segments,
respectively. The goodwill of HK$570,482,000 as at 31
December 2016 (2015: Nil) is arising from the acquisition
of the entire equity interests in Arent Capital Sp. Z o.0.,
a company incorporated in the Republic of Poland, and
Uscudar Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the
Republic of Cyprus, (the “Poland Target Companies”) and
their subsidiaries in the current year (note 35(b)), which
is attributable mainly to the expected synergies from
combining operations of the Group and the acquirees.

The recoverable amount of the respective CGU is
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations use cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a five-year
period. Discount rates of 9% to 12% (2015: 10% to
12%) have been used for the value-in-use calculations.
Management determined the budgets based on service
agreements governing the relevant operations. The
discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks
relating to the relevant segments. No impairment is
considered necessary at 31 December 2015 and 2016.

BEZEBARE)

DR UIR e EEE T EE

2 5 570,482,000 ( = F — A 4F -
) B#11,255000c( T —RHF B
#11,255,0007T ) & & #9,538,000T (=&
—EH4F: B%9,538,000T)ERRNEE
[IRREERIBEEREENESL D - [RIREE
FREEEENEE | HE & [BRRKEIEE
BEREBEE | DR 2RI RS EESEN -
RZEBE—RE+ZA=+—"B2EEBE
570,482,0007T( —ZF— R4 : £ )RHFKE
JZ U B Arent Capital Sp. Z o.0. (5K B 4
B MRSz 2 A 7l) & Uscudar Holdings
Limited (R E R E T AR EMK L Z A F])
([EBEEEAR D UARFEEZHERRZI
B (FsE35(b)) * HEBRIBAEE KWK
BARESHESZEHBRKEMATE -

ERABSEESBMN 2 A RE S EIREFE R
BEAE FAESLAEREREEZAEZR
FUBEE A RERAGE - ARFE
FRAEECHRERINEIZH(ZZE—H
F10%E12%) - EEERIEEEEHE
B2RSHhax BEEBBEEE - FrEA /b
R B R WA o 205 e Rk 2 BB AT AL
BR - RNZE-—RER_FT—RHAF+=A
=+—H  BFEEREMAFEE-
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17 GOODWILL (continued) 17 B8 #E)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued) BEZEEBENRE)
Goodwill allocated to segment DHEDE < HE

The goodwill as at 31 December 2016 also comprised
of HK$249,115,000 (2015: HK$266,792,000) and
HK$723,000,000 (2015: HK$774,306,000), arising from
the acquisition of Dalian Dongda Water Co., Ltd (“Dalian
Dongda”) (note 35(c)) and HanKore Environment Tech
Group Limited, respectively, in previous years, which
is attributable mainly to the expected synergies from
combining operations of the Group and the acquirees.

For the purpose of impairment testing, such goodwill
has been allocated to the “Environmental water project
construction and operation” segment.

The recoverable amount of the “Environmental water
project construction and operation” segment was based
on fair value less costs of disposal.

The Group’s testing approach included a comparison
of the market capitalisation of the “Environmental water
project construction and operation” segment, which is
a group listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange, with
the net assets of this segment. Under this approach, the
market capitalisation is the fair value of the “Environmental
water project construction and operation” segment.
Costs of disposal were assessed as insignificant. The
market capitalisation was categorised as Level 1 fair value
measurement.

Under this approach, the estimated recoverable amount
exceeded the carrying amount and the Group concluded
that the goodwill was not impaired at 31 December 2015
and 2016.

None of the goodwill acquired is expected to be deductible
for tax purposes.

R-_E—RNFE+_A=Z=+—HZEER
PBRREBAFEVRBEREREKRBEAR
BAar ([ RERZE]) (M F35(c)) 2
W 249,115,000 c (T — A F : B
266,792,0007T ) & 2K B W ERIR BRI R &
EAR QG 2 B%723,000,0000(=ZE—H
& BET74,306,0007T) ¢ EEBRIBEASE
B I 4 W B R B A O 75 < T BR 15 R 3= i
REENEMS  EHEREERSEZRE IR
RAKBEEREREE DI -

[RFKBHREZEREZ | DA KEE
BIRARERELEKRAFTE -

AEBEZRARTEZRES [ RFRKBEEB
BEREZ |DR(RFMERSHAETLZ
SH)zERNTERL D B2 EEFRIEL
B e REBULTTE - BATWERS [IRFRKBEE
BRERELZ N2 ARE - HERAR
FESMTRE - EAMEESBRE R

DS fEEHE -

RELAE Bt kBB ERRE
B BAEEBENR_T—A"FK_FT—h
FHt-A=+T—HEBLELREE -

WEEFTSmES TRHH
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18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

18 B E&E

Environmentel - Environmental - Greentech
energy project  water project project
operafing ~ operating  operating
rights rights rights  Patentsand ~ Computer Backlog Customer Trade
RREE  RRKE BERR  tademaks  sofware  conracts  Technology  relafons  contracts Total
BREEE ERELE  BEERE  EARAE  SEEE  Anmen B EPBE  25ER #E
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AETr  BETn A¥fn BETn 8T BMTn AT AT BETr e
31 December 2016 “E-AEtZAZTA
Cost: WAE:
At 1 January 2016 R-E-7F-8-A 260,656 1,451,493 1,726,733 48,181 2,418 30,619 - - - 3,520,100
Additions %2 1,094,662 - 1,583,758 7,259 988 - - - - 2,636,667
Acquistion of subsiciaries WENB AR (H3Es)
(note 35) - - - 20,032 684 - 11,131 87,104 10,303 195,860
Transfer from prepaid land ERARNIHAESE
lease payments (note 16) (Hf3E16) - - 23,861 - - - - - - 23,861
Transfer out E (29,631) - - - - - - - - (206831)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-FHBAA - (3,385) - - - - - - - (3,385)
Exchange reaignment Ey32 6552 (96046 (18498 (5194 0% R0 6% (66T (191)  (367,455)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-1E
T-A=1-H 1,260,163 1,352,062 3,099,368 70,278 3,835 28,590 71,780 80,429 9512  5976,017
Accumulated amortisation:  Z:f5
At 1 January 2016 R-B-7E-F-H - 53,825 85,739 10,987 1,305 11,067 - - - 162,913
Amortisation provided EREHER
during the year 184 1,750 41,668 11,807 1,011 9,963 2,539 3,989 826 143,827
Exchange ealgnment Ej58 O 661 (a6 (1259) 18 (1,160 (101) (159) By (1700
At31 December 2016 RZZ-nE
T2R=t-H 176 118,901 119,838 21,625 2,188 19,854 2,438 3,830 93 289,643
Net carrying amount: ~ BEFE:
At31 December 2016 RZZ-nE
tZA=1-A 1,259,987 1,233,161 2,979,530 48,653 1,647 8,736 69,342 76,599 8,719 5,686,374
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18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 18 B EE(#)
Environmental  Environmental Greentech
energy project  water project project
operating operating operating
rights rights rights  Patents and Computer Backlog
BIRER RIRIKIE BERR  tademarks software contracts Total
BHEEE BEESE  BREEE  EHREER EREE  ATHAH 25
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BRI BRI BRI BRI BRI BRI
31 December 2015  —Z-T1&
+ZA=+-H
Cost: AR :
t 1 January 2015 R_Z-H1F-A-H 675,084 905,440 984,069 50,192 1,100 31,896 2,647,781
Additions BE 31,254 12,604 375,986 - 1,416 - 421,260
Acquisition of WEREA R
subsidiaries (note 35) (Ft5£35) - 574,252 - - - - 574,252
Reclassification BNHE 430,878) - 430,878 - - - -
Exchange realignment ER R (14,804) (40,803) (64,200) (2,011) (98) (1,217) (123,193)
At 31 December 2015 R-E-1F
+-B=1-H 260,656 1,451,493 1,726,733 48,181 2,418 30,619 3,520,100
Accumulated ZitE:
amortisation
At 1 January 2015 R-Z-1%-A-H - 14,025 56,518 5,270 78 884 76,775
Amortisation provided ~ EEEEE
during the year - 41,789 32,484 6,113 1,281 10,521 92,138
Exchange realignment SR - (1,989 (3,263 (396) (4) (348) (6,000)
At 31 December 2015 R-E-1F
TZA=1-H - 53,825 85,739 10,987 1,305 11,057 162,913
Net carrying amount: & %( :
At 31 December 2015 RZE-1F
TZA=T-H 260,656 1,397,668 1,640,994 37,194 1,113 19,562 3,367,187
As at 31 December 2016, certain of the Group’s R-_TB—XNE+-_A=+—8 AEEETF

concession rights of the environmental energy,
environmental water and greentech projects (comprising
operating rights, gross amounts due from customers for
contract work, debtors and other receivables) with an
aggregate carrying amount of HK$17,005,067,000 were
pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group,
further details of which are included in notes 29 and 36 to
the financial statements.

RIRA

LRIER -
B 2 R A

RIRKIEIA B MARBRRIA

#(BHmES

- rEEFPA

M TIEFRIEAEE « FEUCER 3 H b FE UK
1H) (BRE4{EB117,005,067,0007T) E%Ei
HIEAAEBERFETHREZERR  H
— BRI S IREM F20 R M 5E36 °
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19 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 10 62 bE#ER
2016 2015
—F—5x"F —TLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Share of net assets JEIEEEFE 345,353 209,161

Particulars of the Group’s joint ventures are as follows:

AEERECEZEMINT

Percentage
of ownership
Place of registration interest
Name Particulars of capital and business ~ #E#EMES  Principal activities
e BAGHE TR REBME B FEXH
Everbright Jiangdong Paid up PRC/ 50  Design, construction,
Environmental Energy capital of Mainland China operation and maintenance
(Ma’anshan) Company Limited Renminbi (‘RMB”) B/ B A of waste-to-energy plant
(“EB Energy (Ma’anshan)”) 150,000,000 (note (a))
RRTIRERERER(FEL) BRBRAARE Rt BIE - BERAE
BRAR(MAREER(FE&L)]) 150,000,0007C NREER (HiEa)
Everbright SITA Solid Waste Paid up PRC/ 50  Design, construction,
Treatment (Changzhou) Limited capital of Mainland China operation and maintenance
(“EB SITA Solid Waste") US$9,278,000 B R B AR of hazardous waste landfill
KAFEEREE(EM)BRAT HRBRA (note (b))
(TRATEERE]) 9,278,000% T RAT B BRRMEE
fEREEE % (M5t (b))
Sichuan Everbright Environmental Paid up PRC/ 49 Investment in waste-to-energy
Investment Company Limited capital of Mainland China plant (note (c))
(“Sichuan EB Investment”) RMB300,000,000 RE R EARE BESIREBEER ()
Mk RERERREEBR A A HBRBRAARE
(T ARE ) 300,000,0007¢
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19 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

Particulars of the Group’s joint ventures are as follows:
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10 BEERER(E)
AEMALOEZERNT : (8&)

(continued)
Percentage
of ownership
Place of registration interest
Name Particulars of capital and business  #EH#EEZE  Principal activities
e BAFE TR REBME BAL TEEK
Everbright Environmental Paid up PRC/ 64  Design, construction,
Energy (Suining) Co., Ltd. capital of Mainland China operation and maintenance
(“EB Energy Suining") RMB105,000,000 R/ B AR of waste-to-energy plant
HRBRRER(EE)ERAT HBEBRFARE (note (d))
(TRAREREE]) 105,000,0007T Rt BE - BER#EE
iﬂ&%’é@l?(ﬁﬁu £(d))
LA RRIRERER AR Paid up PRC/ 49 Design, construction,
([HeZeek]) capital of Mainland China operation and maintenance
RMB14,082,000 BB AR of waste-to-energy plant
HBRBRAARE (note (c))
14,082,0007C RAT B BERAE
SR E R (i ()
BLHRERARRESERAR Paid up PRC/ 42 Design, construction,
(EZeE®]) capital of Mainland China operation and maintenance
RMB100,000,000 BB A R of waste-to-energy plant
HBRBARARE (note (c))
100,000,0007T Rt B BERAEE

SR EER (FE(Q)
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19 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

Notes:

(@)

EB Energy (Ma’anshan) was established by the Group with
Ma’anshan City Development Investment Group Limited in the
PRC, the other investor to this joint venture, to carry out the
Group’s waste-to-energy business in specific areas in Ma’anshan
City.

EB SITA Solid Waste was established by the Group with SITA
Asia Pacific Limited in the PRC, the other investor to this joint
venture, to enhance the harmless disposal of hazardous waste of
Changzhou City.

Sichuan EB Investment was established by the Group with
Sichuan Energy Investment Limited in the PRC, the other investor
to this joint venture, to invest in the waste-to-energy sector in
Sichuan Province.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, Sichuan EB
Investment acquired 86% equity interest of EZ £ at a total
consideration of RMB105,678,000. In addition, Sichuan EB
Investment established a wholly-owned subsidiary, #%§£4%,
during the year.

EB Energy Suining was established by the Group with Sichuan
EB Investment in the PRC, the other investor to this joint venture,
to carry out the Group’s waste-to-energy business in Suining
City.

As at 31 December 2016, the above investments are held
by the Company’s subsidiaries.

AEERSRUTHEEETRAREEREE
ERERAR(MAEREZS —KREE)NHEK
MRREER(FEIL) - RBEBRILTIEE R E
TAREBEZ N REEE -

AEBRAETNERAR (MALELEZS—
REE)NAH BRI ERFEREEE - ARAFEM
M EECEREEIE T

AEBRUNAERRESEAREERR (I
BEMEZE—REE)NPBEMKZO)IYEREK
B ARERE)IE 2R REEE -

BE-_T—A"E+_A=+—RHIFE  mWIx
AIEEWERELAEIRC6%RIE BREBEAARYE
105,678,0007T ° bL4h » )11 RI&E R F AR
NEEWBARERER o

AEBROIAAKE(HAEEEZS —KE
F)RPRBIRIEREREE - AR BEEMETT
REE 2 LT EHBER -



Annual Report 2016
S agry 199

Notes to Financial Statements
B &SRR EE

31 December 2016 —E—"&E+=-A=+—H

19 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 19 && {5 (&)

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial TEREIFNAEFEENIBEBRERLEEDRE
information of the Group’s joint ventures that are not ZIEBEER

individually material:

2016 2015
—B-ARF —ZE-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Share of the joint ventures’ profit/(loss) DIREETNECFE
for the year &BH,/ (Ei8) 63,373 (6,046)
Share of the joint ventures’ other DEEEREZ
comprehensive income/(loss) Hip2mEUK A (EE) (29,037) 2,074
Share of the joint ventures’ total DMEEEREZ
comprehensive income/(l0ss) Z2EBA S (E518) @85 34,336 (3,972)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s AEBRAZREZIRE
investments in the joint ventures 2 ARE4B(E 345,353 209,161
20 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 20 B g AR R
2016 2015
—E—RF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T

Share of net assets FE{REE FER 228,047 239,306
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20 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Particulars of the Group’s associates are as follows:

20 Bt N A (#)
FEEMBERRZERHMT -

Percentage of
ownership interest

attributable
to the Group
AEREERAE
ERANL
Place of registration
Name Particulars of capital and business 2016 2015 Principal activities
2 BAHE BRkEwms —¥-3F —T-1F IEXH
Nanjing Jiangnan Environmental Paid up PRC/ 51 51 Design, construction, operation
Industrial Park Development capital of Mainland China and maintenance of
Company Limited (formerly known RMB320,000,000  E/HREARE environmental protection
as “Nanjing Jiangnan Veinous HRBARARE projects
Industrial Park Development 320,000,0007C Hit o BE BERME
Company Limited") (“Nanjing RRER
Jiangnan”) (note (a))
AR IERREXEERERAT
(A AR InEREXEER
ARAR ) (AR (M)
Everbright Environmental Energy Paid up PRC/ 20 - Design, construction, operation
(Xiangxiang) Limited capital of Mainland China and maintenance of
(“EB Energy Xiangxiang”) (note (b)) RMB16,680,000  WEl/EARE environmental protection
KARRRER () BRAT BRBRAEARE projects
(TR ARBERAA ) (M () 16,680,0007C Hat B BERME
RIRER
Qingdao Everbright Water Paid up PRC/ 49 99 Construction, operation and
Operating Limited capital of Mainland China maintenance of waste-water
(“Qingdao EB Water Operating”) US$350,845  E/HREIARE treatment plants
(note (c)) BRRA B BERAE
EERAKBECERRA 350,845 T KRR

f
(IBBRXAKEEE D) (W)
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20 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Notes:

(@)

Nanjing Jiangnan is established with a local government body
in Nanjing City, the PRC, which enables the Group to further
develop environmental protection projects in Nanjing City.

The Group has significant influence, but not control or joint
control, over Nanjing Jiangnan’s management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy decisions,
pursuant to the Articles of Association of Nanjing Jiangnan.
Accordingly, Nanjing Jiangnan is classified as an associate of the
Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, EB Energy Xiangxiang
was established with a local government body in Xiangxiang
City, the PRC, which enables the Group to further develop
environmental protection projects in Xiangxiang City.

The Group has significant influence, but not control or joint
control, over EB Energy Xiangxiang’s management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy decisions,
pursuant to the Articles of Association of EB Energy Xiangxiang.
Accordingly, EB Energy Xiangxiang is classified as an associate
of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group disposed
of a partial equity interest in Qingdao EB Water Operating to
Qingdao Water Group Co., Ltd (the “Transfer”). Upon completion
of the Transfer, the Group’s equity interest in Qingdao EB
Water Operating has been reduced from 99% to 49%. After the
Transfer, the Group has significant influence, but not control or
joint control, over Qingdao EB Water Operating’s management,
including participation in the financial and operating policy
decisions, pursuant to the Articles of Association of Qingdao EB
Water Operating. Accordingly, Qingdao EB Water Operating is
classified as an associate of the Group after the Transfer.

Qingdao EB Water Operating provides services to the Maidao
Waste Water Treatment Plant and Haibohe Waste Water
Treatment Plant in Qingdao.

As at 31 December 2016, the above investments are held
by the Company’s subsidiaries.
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20 Bt N R FERS ()

B -

(a)

E/\
ZN

R AR R E A 5k ] 2R b B R R 7 M BT A
R - EEAREFSUERRAME - FERIR
RIEE -

REMUIMAZARER  AKREANSEATZE
(MoFZEH ARG mIRcEE - BES
HEREEMEREEBR - Bt MARUTERD
BAREEZEZRE -

REBEZZ-—A"F+-A=+—HILFE kX
BE IR AR ph 7 55 8] 22 rh A 8 7 M BT A B
RIS - EEAREFUEMBTE - FERIR
RIEE -

RBARERABZ ARERR  REBEATERY
& (M IR b L REH) S RRe RS 2 B2
BRESEREEMBEIEEHER - Bt - KB
IR D BRAREE 2B E R E]

REBEZZ-—R"E+-A=+—HILFE K&
BHEBSRAKBELBNBETEBREE
BERAR(HEEER]) - EEEFHTKIE
REBEREEBTBRAKBEE ZBAEHIO%HRE
49% ° THETHBREFRE - REFTEHXAKEE
EZRRER  AREREATE(MIFEHH
ARZH)BEEAANKBELZER - BF24H
RERMIERBLBE - At - HETHEER
% BERRKBELR I BRAREZHBER
Al e

BERRKBELESBRERE TEETKE
I N R R 5 7K BRI RR ©

—E-RFTZA=+T—RH " LR EH
NEIMBARFEE °



1 96 China Everbright International Limited
HEERBERER A

Notes to Financial Statements
B SRR =T

31 December 2016 —E— X &E+=-A=+—H

20 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 20 Bt N At (&)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial TREFNEKRBE QNG MR LHEHBEER
information in respect of the material associate, Nanjing ME  HEREMNSFTHREEZRELFHE -
Jiangnan, adjusted for any differences in accounting B EAR S B S R TS AR E (B T AR

policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements:

2016 2015
ZEB-RF —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Current assets TMENEE 27,453 62,516
Non-current assets IEREBEE 329,634 321,033
Current liabilities mEEE (164) (624)
Net assets BEFE 356,923 382,925
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in EAEBRNERIEZ
Nanjing Jiangnan: Rt 2 HAR -
Proportion of the Group’s ownership NEE 7 HEBRELD 51% 51%
Group’s share of net assets of Nanjing ANEEEEERIE
Jiangnan BEFE 223,131 239,306
Carrying amount of the investment BB E ZRAEE 223,131 239,306
Profit/(loss) for the year FEAF,(E8) (659) 275
Other comprehensive loss H b2 mEEE (25,343) (24,276)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FEETHEEEERE (26,002) (24,001)
The following table illustrates the aggregate financial TEHNAEFBEBTBREA BN T
information of the Group’s associates that are not J BB TS ER
individually material:
2016 2015
—B-RF —T-1F
HK$°000 HK$’000

BB TR BETT

Share of the associates’ loss for the year D {REEE A8 2 FEEE (143) -
Share of the associates’ other paK[uy: /N

comprehensive loss HEM2HEEE (117) -
Share of the associates’ total DR &N R 2

comprehensive loss ZHEEEERE (260) -

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s &= B B4 A 7 2
investments in the associates KREZRERE 4,916 -
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21 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 21 HMM B & E
2016 2015
—E-RE —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Available-for-sale equity FERABE(AALE)
securities, at fair value
Listed in Hong Kong EB L™ 5,208 5,398
Unlisted in other parts of the PRC FERIEMMEIE LT 3,899 3,899
Unlisted overseas EINEET 24,225 15,503
28,124 19,402
33,332 24,800
During the year, the gross loss in respect of the Group’s ERN - AEBEEMEHEEBEERAZFER
available-for-sale investments recognised in other BB B BE190,000(ZE— R 4E -
comprehensive loss amounted to HK$190,000 (2015: I %5 # 5B B % 22,653,0007T ) + & I AT
gross gain of HK$22,653,000), and none of which OB EMETERAETOEERAEE Y
was reclassified from other comprehensive income BxaE(ZE—RF : Wz E%92,711,000
to the income statement for the year (2015: gain of IT) °
HK$92,711,000).
The above investments consist of investments in equity LB RIERABENE HWiETEES
securities which were designated as available-for-sale HENKREE BUVWERTIHBERE S

financial assets and have no fixed maturity date or coupon & o
rate.
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22 INVENTORIES 22 178§
2016 2015
—F—5x"F —TLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Raw materials and operating supplies BV REER M 97,916 76,909
Spare parts T AR 263,624 125,405
361,540 202,314
The analysis of amount of inventories recognised as an EEZABEST Wit A\IERXE 2 EESESHT
expense and included in profit or loss is as follows: mE
2016 2015
—E—XE —ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T

Carrying amount of inventories consumed B EAFE 2 RHEE 1,082,901 541,943




Notes to Financial Statements
B &SRR EE

31 December 2016 —E—"&E+=-A=+—H

23 GROSS AMOUNTS DUE FROM CUSTOMERS
FOR CONTRACT WORK
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23 EWEFPAATEHIAEEE

2016 2015
—E—XF —ET—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Contract costs incurred plus recognised BEEASLKANLEEER
profits less anticipated losses AR RTEEEE 27,760,449 22,944,995
Less: Progress billings B EE IR (6,727,221) (5,575,642)
Net contract work BT IR FHEE 21,033,228 17,369,353
Representing: (A3
Gross amounts due from customers BWEFA X TIRFIALRE
for contract work
- Non-current — FEBNEA 19,464,201 15,822,848
— Current — Bl HR 1,569,027 1,546,505
21,033,228 17,369,353

Included in “Gross amounts due from customers

[BREFAENIREKBLRE ST D5

for contract work” are amounts of HK$207,589,000
(2015: HK$161,293,000) and HK$134,484,000 (2015:
HK$157,685,000) which are due from a non-controlling
shareholder of a non-wholly-owned subsidiary and a
related company, respectively.

BREWEZENB R G ZIEERKRER
T8 7 ¥ 207,589,000 L (= —HF : &
# 161,293,000 70 ) K& FE Uk B8 Bt A B 58
B 134,484,000 L (Z T —HF : B
157,685,0007T) ©
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23 GROSS AMOUNTS DUE FROM CUSTOMERS

23 EWN B P AN TIERIBERE (£)

FOR CONTRACT WORK (continued)

“Gross amounts due from customers for contract
work” represent revenue from construction under BOT,
Build-Transfer (“BT”) and certain BOO arrangements
or upgrade services under TOT arrangements and
bear interest at rates ranging from 4.90% to 7.83%
(2015: 5.65% to 7.83%) per annum. Among the total
of HK$21,033,228,000 (2015: HK$17,369,353,000),
HK$15,502,312,000 (2015: HK$13,496,518,000) relates
to BOT, TOT and BOO arrangements with operations
commenced. The amounts for BOT, TOT and BOO
arrangements are not yet due for payment and will be
settled by revenue to be generated during the operating
periods of the service concession arrangements. The
amounts for BT arrangements will be settled according
to the respective repayment schedules as stated in the
agreements.

As at 31 December 2016, certain of the Group’s
concession rights of the environmental energy,
environmental water and greentech projects (comprising
operating rights, gross amounts due from customers for
contract work, debtors and other receivables) with an
aggregate carrying amount of HK$17,005,067,000 were
pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group,
further details of which are included in notes 29 and 36 to
the financial statements.

24 FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES

The Group leases machinery to its customer. This lease is
classified as a finance lease and has remaining lease term
of 19 years. The customer shall purchase or has an option
to purchase the leased machinery at the end of lease term
of the finance lease.

24

[EWEFPAEHITERELLEE]TIHBOT »
BE B ([BT)) REHBOOLH T 2
BERBSKRZIRETOTZE T 2ET
Rz HEFER490%27.83% (=
T—HF  565%%E7.83%)FEFEA -
TE 4B ER B %5 21,083,228,000 L ( —E— H
% B #17,369,353,0007T ) - H b
#15,502,312,000c (ZZF — A F | B
138,496,518,000 L ) B T E K A E & 2
BOT * TOT&BOOZLHE - HFBOT « TOT K
BOOLHE T 2 IAB AR B + WS LABR
AR BE BN ES T - BTR
BEN 2 3RIE AR B A [B AT %1 B /9 #E 78 18 SR
BESINE

RZBE—RE+-_A=+—8 x£EET
RREEIRIER « RIRKFIEB R BIRIRIEA
BRRiaeER(piREdEE BREFE
W T IEFRIAAEE - FEUCER 3R & H b & U5k
18) (BREAE{EB117,005,067,0007T) 2K
HIEAAEEERBITREZRFR  Hi
— BB H N I IS R 29 R T 536 ©

A E IR
AEBHERETARS - FRAERS B
RUEMAE  HTHEHARIF - RBERE
RPN ARRFARE A REER
EAMMERE -

2016 2015
—EB-RE —T—RHEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T AR IT
Finance lease receivables, non-current REHERKFIE -
portion FERNEAER D 17,273 19,062
Finance lease receivables, current portion  Fi& 10 & fE W 3018 —
B HAER {7 526 531
17,799 19,593
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24 FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (continued) 24 MEHERKFIAE)

At 31 December 2016, the total future minimum lease RZE—R"F+_A=+—H EREHE
receivables under finance leases and their present values H N AR &ER S EBGRIEERE R ARE
were as follows: R
Minimum lease Present value of minimum
receivables lease receivables
=IEAHE RN ERIE RIEAHEERKRIE ZIRE
2016 2015 2016 2015

—XRE —T—FHFE ZEB—RE —ZT—HF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT BT BT

Amounts receivable: JEURIR
Within one year —FR 1,575 1,687 526 531
In the second to fifth FE_ZFERF
years, inclusive (BREEEMT) 6,301 6,748 2,439 2,464
After five years HE%E 22,054 25,306 14,834 16,598

Total minimum finance  HEMHFIEHREEK

lease receivables =R 29,930 33,741 17,799 19,593
Unearned finance REIRFEIRA
income (12,131) (14,148)

Total net finance lease Bt &M EFEINGRIA

receivables il 17,799 19,593
Portion classified as DERRBEE
current assets 2 B0 (526) (531)
Non-current portion JEBNHRER 1D 17,273 19,062
No contingent income was recognised during the year REBEEZZ-—RFT_A=1T—HBILFE -
ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil). WEBERERKABRA(ZE—RF - &) -
Finance lease receivables that were neither past due nor BrEm HiTnEFEIE C Rt A T S W Fk B B i
impaired relate to customer for whom there was no recent Y EE R B ALS BREA -

history of default.
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25 DEBTORS, OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 25 EKER - EMEWRFIE « He &k

AND PREPAYMENTS TEAT I8
2016 2015
—E—XF —EF—hHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Debtors FEUBR 2Kk 1,377,070 1,237,155
Other receivables, deposits and HMERBFIE - He Kk
prepayments TR RIE 8,454,359 7,520,175
9,831,429 8,757,330
Less: Non-current portion B FEBNEAER (D
— other receivables, deposits and —HAEWFRIE « S
prepayments MIE A (6,494,188) (5,696,894)
Current portion BN ERER 17 3,337,241 3,060,436
Included in “Debtors, other receivables, deposits and [FEWERE X - M EWRIE - 12848 RTET K
prepayments” are debtors with the following ageing B IFBEEREKER  ERBESRRZRE
analysis as at the end of the reporting period: DT
2016 2015
—E—RF —E—hE
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Current BN ER 916,283 660,592
Within 1 month past due BHITZ RN —{E A 135,319 122,976
More than 1 month but within 3 months BHEE—EABRTEZR
past due =1@A 42,660 79,238
More than 3 months but within 6 months @ Ef#E:E =@ B ERZRN
past due 7~ 1E A 86,481 124,983
More than 6 months but within 12 months @ HIiB @/~ @ B ETRZ R
past due +=@A 137,214 174,260
More than 12 months past due wHERE T (@B 59,113 75,106
Amounts past due wHE 4 58 460,787 576,563

1,377,070 1,237,155
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25 DEBTORS, OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS

25 FEWRSN ~
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H WA -~ e M

AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)

The ageing analysis of debtors based on the date of
invoice (or date of revenue recognition, if earlier) as at the
end of the reporting period is as follows:

A KIB(£&)

RREBAR (AR UAREE
BE)TE  BRIEZNBEHRZERD
war :

2016 2015

—E—XRE —E-hHF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

Within 1 month TR —1EA 693,316 486,326

More than 1 month but within 2 months BiE—{EAEBENLRREAH 169,487 122,894

More than 2 months but within 4 months  #R:@M{E BB~ % A {E A 146,414 159,994

More than 4 months but within 7 months  #Bi@PO{E BB Z A +{E A 95,215 193,757
More than 7 months but within 13 months BiB-+1{& BB~ R

+=1&A 145,497 138,160

More than 13 months Bid+=1EA 127,141 136,024

1,377,070 1,237,155

Debtors are due within 30 to 90 days from the date of
billing. Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set
out in note 42 to the financial statements.

Included in “Debtors, other receivables, deposits
and prepayments” of the Group are debtors of
HK$1,377,070,000 (2015: HK$1,237,155,000), of
which HK$19,600,000 (2015: HK$13,312,000) and
HK$10,546,000 (2015: HK$8,628,000) are due from
a non-controlling shareholder of a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary and a related company, respectively. Debtors
represent revenue from the provision of operation services
for environmental energy projects, environmental water
projects and greentech projects. There was no recent
history of default in respect of the Group’s debtors. Since
most of the debtors are local government authorities in
the PRC and based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in
respect of the past due balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are
still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances. No impairment loss was
recognised by the Group at 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

EWERRERERAHREH=TZENTHAZ
B AEBEEBEK 2 #E— AN
42 o

AEBZ[EKER HM@lxE -
ReREMNKE]IF @ 2EEKERS
#1,377,070,000 L (Z T — A F : B
1,237,155,000 7T ) + £ A 7% # 19,600,000
TT(ZZT—FRF : B%13,312,0007T) kB
10,546,00070 (= Z— A F : #¥8,628,000
TP R ARKIEEEN B AR 2 IR
A K E R A R o [BIRER R AR
HIRREEIRIER - RIRKFEIEB R BIRIR
THEEEREAMEREE - AEEZ EWRR
BIEWHEBENLE - ERARIHEBAL A
PREEMKRAKE  BREBELR TEE
REEAT B R NG IE T FFIBEE
BEECETELRERNE (L MEBES
M8 AR 2HIKRE - NEEY ERZSLE
HEFEAEMNEER R_2FE—X<"F+=A
=+—H AEENTERRETAFEBREBR
“E—RHFE)o
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25 DEBTORS, OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS
AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)
“Debtors, other receivables, deposits and prepayments”
include balances totalling HK$6,568,288,000 (2015:
HK$5,946,927,000) which bear interest at rates ranging
from 4.90% to 7.83% (2015: 5.65% to 7.83%) per
annum and relate to the Group’s service concession
arrangements, of which HK$195,407,000 (2015:
HK$202,523,000) and HK$458,525,000 (2015:
HK$489,322,000) are due from a non-controlling
shareholder of a non-wholly-owned subsidiary and a
related company, respectively. The amounts are not yet
due for payment and will be settled by revenue to be
generated during the operating periods of the service
concession arrangements. No impairment loss was
recognised by the Group at 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

Included in “Other receivables, deposits and prepayments”
at 31 December 2016 are advances made to local
government authorities in relation to service concession
arrangements amounting to HK$103,458,000 (2015:
HK$35,882,000), of which HK$54,518,000 (2015:
HK$35,882,000) is unsecured, interest-bearing at rates
announced by the People’s Bank of China and will be
settled by instalments until 2017 and HK$48,940,000
(2015: Nil) is unsecured, interest-bearing at 10% over rates
announced by the People’s Bank of China and will be
settled by instalments until 2026.

Included in “Debtors, other receivables, deposits and
prepayments” at 31 December 2016 are debtors of
HK$153,574,000 (2015: Nil) due from the Group’s joint
venture, which are repayable on credit terms similar to
those offered to the customers of the Group, and advance
of HK$53,785,000 (2015: Nil) to the Group’s joint venture
for daily operation, which is unsecured, interest-bearing
at rates announced by the People’s Bank of China and
repayable within one year.

Included in “Other receivables, deposits and prepayments”
at 31 December 2016 are prepayments of HK$33,504,000
(2015: HK$7,644,000) to a non-controlling shareholder of
a non-wholly-owned subsidiary for construction related
works.

26 EUWERF - M EIEIR - e K

AN I (#)

[EUWERZ - Hb M RE « e KRB
I | BIE A L8 #6,568,288,000 7T ( —
T — FF : B #5046,927,000 T ) Z &
# o HIERFEBRA490%E7.83% (T —H
F :565%E7.83%) i EHEB o ZEXK
HRETAEB ZRGISFEEELTE &
AR 195,407,000 (ZZE — R F : BE
202,523,000 7T ) & & ¥ 458,525,000 7t ( =
T—FE : BH489,322,0007T) 7 Bl A FE U
JEREM B A A 2 FEERR IR R FRIB & E U 8
Bt A EIZRIE - BREAEM AR HER - Wi§
IARRIS A FF i B L 2 IS BRI S S A+
RZEBE—RNE+-A=+—"8 xEEIE
WRAEAFEEEE( S —RE &) -

E-ZE—XRFt+-_A=+t—Bz[HuEK
RIE - e RBBAREIF - S8FRE K
FHEELEBRESTEERELTE 2R
B # 108,458,000 C( —E— A F : B
35,882,000t ) + E 54,518,000 (=
T —F4F : B ¥35,882,0007T ) AEIK I |
EHPBEARBITAMZEEGTE - WigHH
BREZT—tF : BHNEM48,940,0007T
TE-RFEAAEER  RPBAR
BT A Z BERIMN10%EE - WD EER

EZT - RNFo

E-ZE—NF+-_A=+—BzZRKE
Mo B EWEIE - Re RFEMKEAF
BREERASESE X EBRERRER
153,574,000 c( — T —HF: &) HiRiE
HIAEEZF ZBUSEERRTIAES -
UEREFAEBAECEEATESH
B BB 53,785,000t (T — R F :
m) EAEEE  RPEARRBITAMZ
BRFE WAT—FRNEE-

E-ZE—RFt+t-A=t+—Bz[HutEK
FIE - BERBEMFEIFR - BiEREERE
MEBARZIFERBRES N EEEERET
2 2 B 5008 8 #33,504,000t ( ZFE—F
& B7,644,0007T) °
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25 DEBTORS, OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS
AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)
As at 31 December 2016, certain of the Group’s
concession rights of the environmental energy,
environmental water and greentech projects (comprising
operating rights, gross amounts due from customers for
contract work, debtors and other receivables) with an
aggregate carrying amount of HK$17,005,067,000 were
pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group,
further details of which are included in notes 29 and 36 to
the financial statements.

All of the current portion of the above balances are
expected to be recovered or recognised as expense within
one year.

26 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND DEPOSITS

WITH BANKS

As at 31 December 2016, bank deposits are pledged
to secure certain bank loans of the Group (note 29) and
are pledged to banks for the issuance of guarantees
by the banks to the grantors in respect of the specific
performance of the duties by the Group under certain
service concession agreements.

Deposits with banks with original maturity of more
than three months are not included in cash and cash
equivalents.

Included in “Pledged bank deposits” and “Deposits with
banks” at 31 December 2016 are deposits of
HK$2,234,000 (2015: Nil) and HK$94,928,000 (2015:
HK$80,135,000), respectively, placed with a related party
bank (note 39(h)).

Pledged bank deposits and deposits with banks earn
interest at the respective time deposit rates, and are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.

25

26
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RN - EMEIWHIE - He Kk
A KIB(£&)
R-B—RE+-A=1+—8 X&£EEET
RREEFIEE  RIRKBEE MEEIRIRE
BrHHCER(RRESE BREFS
WITIRFIBAE - JEURER IR I H b B L3R
1H) (BRME4AEB17,005,067,0007T) B K
HIEAREBERRITRECERR - Hi
— S BN SRR M 7E29 R M 536 ©

b ek 2 Fr A DB TR HI Al X — S Al
Ele R AR

BHEMBITFERRBITER

R-ZE—XRFE+_A=+—H  B7EHE
WIERAEBE TRITE R (M 7329) 21K
W UEBERETRITHRASEBES TR
BETRERTHE T 2HEERANTREMRE
EABEEER WEEFFEBET -

REBBEA=EANRLEZRITERTGETA
RehBReEEY -

RZZE—R"F+-_A=+—8 [EBEFR
THER R [RITFR ]9 B8 IETF BN BB
ATIRITZFRE2,234,000t(=ZF—H
o) B R94,028,000L( —E—RF ¢
75 #80,135,0007T ) (KizE39(h)) °

EERRITERRRITEFIZEREERER
BRFAE  YHFERRNEBRIFEMHY EE
KRR 2 BRTT ©



206 China Everbright International Limited
HEERBERER A

Notes to Financial Statements
B SRR =T

31 December 2016 —E— X &E+=-A=+—H

27 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

271 HEe MRS FEY

2016 2015

—E—RE —EF—hF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BT T

Deposits with banks RITHFER 878,704 901,813
Cash at banks and in hand RITHEHR AR E 5,461,875 5,051,668

6,340,579 5,953,481

Included in “Cash and cash equivalents” at 31
December 2016 are deposits of HK$491,797,000 (2015:
HK$545,233,000) placed with a related party bank (note
39(h)).

Included in “Cash and cash equivalents” at the end of the
reporting period are the following amounts denominated in
a currency other than the functional currency of the entity
to which they relate:

RZB-RFE+-_A=+—Bz2HE X
ReZEEYRRTHRNEHBALRITZT
TS M A491,797,000C( —ZE — R F : B
545,233,0007T) (FFEE39(N)) °

NBER2 [ReRASSED | 2E T
HOH - HOVEBER 2 EE AN 2
s

2016 2015

—E—XF —E—FHEF

US$’000 US$’'000

F =1 FET

United States dollar e 87,016 12,544

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash
equivalents of the Group denominated in RMB amounted
to HK$4,858,583,000. The RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies, however, under Mainland China’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

RIPEHR  REBUARBAEZEE R
RE&EEY BB 4,858,583,0000T - AR
MR ERERKEMER - A @ BIESP
Bl KB CHMNEE & IR R0 ) R (4B B~ &' R A
EEERTE)  AEEFEBERELEN
EEBZBRITEARBHBREMER -
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27 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued) 27 R& NMIREZEW(E)

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on RITHERIRFEEERETE - MEBEETIR

BERRTEREREE - RIEAKEZAD
RIRSF/RME - MHERFERZFREN
F-BE=BALE  XREBZEHTEH
FREERGFR - RITERRERFERTIFHR
PMEE R i BT HIN0 58 M40 8% 2 RTT o

daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are
made for varying period of between one day and three
months depending on the immediate cash requirements of
the Group, and earn interest at the respective short term
time deposit rates. The bank balances and time deposits
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default.

28 CREDITORS, OTHER PAYABLES AND 28 BRI - AN FRIARETE R

ACCRUED EXPENSES

2016 2015
ZEB-RF —ET-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Creditors FETBRE K 3,419,072 1,618,057
Other payables, accrued expenses and HaEMFIE - BstBR X
deferred income — government grants FEWA — T B2 1,450,152 1,219,764
4,869,224 2,837,821
Derivative financial instrument PTESBTA
— cross-currency swap — R X EEH 28,528 -
4,897,752 2,837,821
Less: Non-current portion R, FERVHAER (D
— other payables, accrued expenses —Hb 18 - fEEt
and deferred income — BA RREEWA —
government grants BT B & (93,610) (43,365)
Current portion BIHAZB (7 4,804,142 2,794,456
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28 CREDITORS, OTHER PAYABLES AND 28 JETERFR ~ E At FE (I 5RIR N fE 5t

ACCRUED EXPENSES (continued)

Included in “Creditors, other payables and accrued
expenses” are creditors with the following ageing analysis
based on the date of invoice as at the end of the reporting
period:

EME)

[ENER  EEAFEREAERITE
REMER - ZREBZEAMHE - HR®E
HIRZREBE DT -

2016 2015

—E—ARE “E—RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T B IT

Within 6 months N2 N ENE 3,047,205 1,324,332
Over 6 months AN E A 371,867 293,725
3,419,072 1,618,057

Creditors totalling HK$3,082,689,000 (2015:
HK$1,507,603,000) represent construction payables for
the Group’s BT, BOT and certain BOO arrangements,
of which HK$1,117,000 (2015: HK$1,196,000) is due
to a non-controlling shareholder of a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary. The construction payables are not yet due for
payment.

Included in “Other payables, accrued expenses and
deferred income — government grants” at 31 December
2016 is other payable of HK$1,555,000 (2015: Nil) due to
the Group’s associate, which is unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

The cross-currency swap will be settled in 2017, when the
Group will pay HK$646,365,000 and receive an agreed
amount of Euro75,000,000.

A 1 ¥3,082,689,000T (—E—FHE: B
#1,507,603,0007T) 2 FEISER R ATE A& B
BT « BOTKEHBOOLHE N 2 &k TI2ESR
FIE  EE#A1 117,000c( —E—RHF :
7#5#1,196,0007T) BE TIEE2EWB A A
ZIEERRRRIE c BETEENFIERR
BIEASZ AT o

E-ZE—RF+-A=+—B2Z [HibEN
B BAERREEKA -BFHE ]
o BREEMAEEBE NG 2 EMEMNRK
A 555,000t (—E— R4 &) H
BEEA  RERBREREE -

RXEBBBAER T —tFLEERIK |8
B NEB B 646,365,0007T ¢ I
W BN 1% € & %875,000,000 L 28 °
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29 INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 290 sTEEE
2016 2015
ZE-RF —T-hF
Maturity HK$’000 Maturity HK$'000
2|8 A BT T ZE A BEFIT
Current Ik
Finance lease payables MEMERMNFA 2017
(note 30) (H&E30) -l of -3 12,826 - -
Bank loans — secured RITER — AHEE 2017 or 2016 or
on demand on demand
—EB—+F5 “E—RFi
REXR 1,162,387 REK 1,947,620
Bank loans - unsecured IRITER — EEE 2017 or 2016 or
on demand on demand
—E—+t&y “E-RF
REXR 3,236,961 BRER 1,461,935
4,412,174 3,409,555
Non-current JERNER
Finance lease payables AR EENIE 2018 - 2021
(note 30) (K&E30) —E-N\EZE
—EBE-_—F 27,780 - -
Bank loans - secured RITER — HHEF 2018 - 2032 2017 - 2028
—E-N\EE —E—tEFE
—E=_F 9,284,114 —E-NE 7,088,502
Bank loans — unsecured RITER — EEE 2018 - 2026 2017 - 2024
—B-\EZ “ZT—tFF
—EC-RE 7,891,581 —E N4 5,322,609
17,203,475 12,411,111
21,615,649 15,820,666
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29 INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 29 FTEEE (&)
(continued)
2016 2015
—E—XF —EF—hHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Analysed into: oA
Bank loans repayable: AR THIHEEE
RITE K-

Within one year or on demand —FARIEEK 4,399,348 3,409,555
In the second year E_F 3,675,263 3,546,894

In the third to fifth years, inclusive FE=EFERF
(BiEERME) 10,270,623 6,694,846
Beyond five years hF% 3,229,809 2,169,371
21,575,043 15,820,666

Finance lease payables: BB E R FUE:

Within one year —FR 12,826 -
In the second year F_F 18,998 -

In the third to fifth years, inclusive FZEERF
(BRIEEEME) 8,782 -
40,606 -
21,615,649 15,820,666

As at 31 December 2016, certain banking facilities of the
Group are secured by certain revenue and receivables
in connection with the Group’s service concession
arrangements, bank deposits, mortgages over property,
plant and equipment and prepaid land lease payments
and shares of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Such
banking facilities, amounting to HK$14,769,690,000
(2015: HK$12,547,872,000), were utilised to the extent
of HK$10,446,501,000 (2015: HK$9,036,122,000)
at 31 December 2016. Among the secured banking
facilities, HK$1,968,984,000 (2015: HK$1,812,168,000)
are guaranteed by the Company and were utilised to the
extent of HK$1,331,291,000 (2015: HK$1,502,068,000) at
31 December 2016.

R-B—RE+-_A=+—HB A&£EE
TFHRITHMENANEERG T E AR
TzEFTRFZELEWZRE - RBITHEX D
¥ BMERZXEZIEBE BNIHMAER
BHEAEEETHETH BRG] ZKGIER
W R-BE—XRNE+_F=+—08 Lt
RITRE 2 £ 8 5B %14,769,690,000 7T
—E—F4F : B¥A12,547,872,0007T) ' B
) 5 #10,446,501,0007L ( —Z—F4F -
78 9,036,122,0007T ) ° Lt BHEFRT
B & E h S % 1,068,984,000t ( —E—H
% 1 B #1,812,168,0007T ) B AN A A /EHE
R R_BE—XNE+_A=+—HE#HH
75 #1,331,291,000c (=& —RF : B
1,502,068,0007T ) °
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29 INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 29 FHEEE (&)

(continued)

As at 31 December 2016, the unsecured banking
facilities, amounting to HK$18,744,310,000 (2015:
HK$9,534,155,000), were utilised to the extent of
HK$11,128,542,000 (2015: HK$6,784,544,000).
Among the unsecured banking facilities of the Group,
HK$1,235,338,000 (2015: HK$20,000,000) are
guaranteed by the Company and were utilised to the extent
of HK$1,012,781,000 (2015: Nil) at 31 December 2016.

As at 31 December 2016, banking facilities of
HK$18,652,083,000 (2015: HK$10,068,138,000) are
subject to the fulfilment of covenants relating to certain of
the Group’s financial ratios. If the Group were to breach
the covenants, the drawn down facilities would become
payable on demand. At 31 December 2016, such facilities
were utilised to the extent of HK$13,130,250,000 (2015:
HK$7,698,778,000). The Group regularly monitors its
compliance with these covenants. Further details of the
Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in note 42
to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2016, the finance lease payables were
secured by the underlying property, plant and equipment
(note 30).

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s bank loans of
HK$527,696,000 (2015: HK$2,263,042,000) bear interest
at fixed rates ranging from 2.88% to 3.50% (2015: 4.70%
to 6.00%) per annum, bank loans of HK$21,047,347,000
(2015: HK$13,557,624,000) bear interest at variable rates
ranging from 0.70% to 6.00% (2015: 1.47% to 5.88%)
per annum, and finance lease payables of HK$40,606,000
(2015: Nil) bear interest at rates ranging from 3% to 4% per
annum.

R-B—RE+-A=1+—8  EEIPET
A 245 A B 18,744,310,000 (= F
— R4 : B #9,534,155,0007T) © 2B
75 #11,128,542,000 L (T — R F © B
6,784,544,0007T) ° Ll RS B EEIFRTT
B & H % 1,235,338,000t( —E—Hh
F : B ¥20,000,0007C ) A AR BIEELR -
R-B—RE+-A=1+—8 DEBRABK
1,012,781,000c( = —H4F : &) °

RZZE—RE+-_A=+—8 £7@E
7S #18,652,083,000 L (ZE — A F : B
#:10,068,138,0007T ) BEF & & THABASE
BB E2RE - WASEBEREGHE
#c AR CREABEEREE - RN
—A"F+-_A=+—H8 EERMECHH
75 %13,130,250,000c( —E— R 4F : B
7,698,778,0007T) - A B2 FHERE#H
RHEzZBIIERL BEASEEERSES
R 2 E— T EREHR IR TR M 542 o

R-ZE—RE+_A=+—0  gt&HERE
NREABBEYE - BE &R & ERR (K
$30) o

R-ZE—RNE+-_A=+—H AEEZR
TEFRABEES27,696,000L( —E—HF | /B
#2,263,042,0007T ) IE N F2.88% £ 3.50%
“E—RF 470%%E6.00%) 2 EEFE
EEH B v R1TE KRB 21,047,347,000 7T
—T—hF : #B#¥13,557,624,0007T) LT
F0.70% £6.00%( ZZE—FF 1 1.47% &
5.88%) 2 )FBVFEEFE - UREEHENE
T FRIBE #40,606,000C( ZE—R4F © £)
ENT3%E4% 2 FERTE »
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29 INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 20 FtEfEE (&)

(continued)

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s bank loans of
HK$3,055,052,000 (2015: HK$1,944,283,000) are
denominated in United Stated dollars, HK$9,876,629,000
(2015: HK$8,992,200,000) are denominated in RMB,
HK$1,012,781,000 (2015: Nil) are denominated in Euro
dollars, HK$170,419,000 (2015: Nil) are denominated
in Polish zloty and HK$7,460,162,000 (2015:
HK$4,884,183,000) are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars.

Included in “Interest-bearing borrowings” at 31
December 2016 are loans of HK$464,914,000 (2015:
HK$238,373,000) from a related party bank (note 39(h)).

Included in loans from a related party bank are:

(i) bank loans of HK$32,499,000 (2015: HK$57,769,000)
which are unsecured, interest-bearing at rates
announced by the People’s Bank of China and will be
settled by instalments until 2018;

(i) bank loans of HK$248,997,000 (2015:
HK$167,447,000) which are secured, interest-bearing
at rates announced by the People’s Bank of China and
will be settled by instalments until 2023;

(i) bank loans of HK$12,061,000 (2015: HK$13,157,000)
which are secured, interest-bearing at rates
announced by the People’s Bank of China and will be
settled by instalments until 2025;

(iv) bank loans of HK$33,504,000 (2015: Nil) which are
secured, interest-bearing at 90% of rates announced
by the People’s Bank of China and will be settled by
instalments until 2021;

(v) bank loans of HK$80,008,000 (2015: Nil) which are
secured, interest-bearing at 95% of rates announced
by the People’s Bank of China and will be settled by
instalments until 2025; and

(vi) bank loans of HK$57,845,000 (2015: Nil) which are
secured, interest-bearing at 97% of rates announced
by the People’s Bank of China and will be settled by
instalments until 2030.

RZEBE—XRNE+-_A=+—8 " K£82
SRITE B #3,055,052,000c( —FE—FH
& 1 B #1,044,283,0007T ) LAE TTEHE
75 #9,876,629,000 (=T —FHF : B
8,992,200,0007L ) A AR B E - B
1,012,781,0007t (= — R F | &) AEE
sHE - B ¥170,419,000 L (ZE— R F ¢
£ ) LUK B 2L 2R 1R 5T B 6 7,460,162,000
T(ZZT— R4 : #%4,884,183,0007T ) LA
EILEME °

RZZE—ARNE+_A=+—HZ [ &
BEIREBEBATRTREZERS
W 464,014,000 T (ZFE — HF: B
238,373,0007T) (FFzE39(h)) °

B ALTRITREZERERE:

() RITEREM32,499,000L(—E—F
&£ B 57,769,000 ) 0 H A EK
B mRBEARBITAMZ BEETE
WER —F— \FaiH R

(iy SRITE B 248,997,0000t(=F—FH
& B HA167,447,0007T) - HABE
e ZPRARRITAMZEEGTE -
IR =T = =Fhin HHEE

(i) |ITERBH12,061,000(=ZE—H
£ B #13,157,000T) © HAHFIK
B EmPBEARBITAMZ BEETE
IR T -RFERIDHEE

(iv) $R77E B % 33,504,000 (— T —F
F:E) HAEHEM ERPHRARE
TRMHZERZIO%EE WK =F
——FRIoHBE

(v) RITEFE®80,008,000t(=F—H
Fom) EABEM  ZPBEARR
TRAMZBERZI5S%E R =
“THFERMOHEE R

(vi) $RITERE 57,845,000 (— T —F
Fo|E) HABHER RPRARET
P2 BERZIT%ETE  WHERZT=
TERIDHAHE -
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30 FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES
The Group leases certain of its buildings for its business
operation (note 15). These leases are classified as finance
leases and have remaining lease terms of 5 years.

At 31 December 2016, the total future minimum lease
payments under finance leases and their present values
were as follows:
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BMEMRERNEA

AEEARAE FRTEEREEZAM
H15) - FRRERS BARARE 4T
R REEF o

R-ZF—RFE+= ﬂf-I— H EREHE
BMARZEHEERBRERNMERENT

Present value of minimum

Minimum lease payments lease payments
RIEBRERE REHEEFREZRE
2016 2015 2016 2015
—NE —%% | ZB-AE —T-8F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT BETT BB T
Amounts payable: ANENEE
Within one year —FR 15,062 - 12,826 -
In the second year EF 20,376 - 18,998 -
In the third to fifth years, S=ZE£hE
inclusive (BIEEEMT) 9,705 - 8,782 -
Total minimum finance RERERERIE
lease payments 4B 45,143 - 40,606 -
Future finance charges RIRI 5 E (4,537) -
Total net finance lease BREHE RN FE
payables HER 40,606 -
Portion classified as PEERBERZ
current liabilities (note 29) ({5 (PfF3E29) (12,826) -
Non-current portion JERNEAER (R

(note 29) (HizE29) 27,780
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31 DEFERRED TAX

31 EIEFLIE

The movements in deferred tax assets/(liabilities) during BEEMBEE/(AB)NFRZEFHMT :
the year are as follows:
Temporary
differences
on assets
recognised
under
HK(IFRIC) Fair value
-Int 12 adjustments
RE(EE arfsing from ~~ Falr value
(R acquisition of  adjustment
BERE subsidiaries  on available-  Undistributed
28%) WE  forsde  profisof
RB)E1E  Revaaton  MEBRAF  investments  subsidiaries
BAZEE ofpopeties  FMEEZ  HERE HEAR Others Total
JERER  WEER DMAERE  DAERE AOREF i 2%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AEfT ANt B¥TR BNt B¥Tn BT B%Tx
At 1 January 2015 R-B-1E-A-A (1442898 (203%) -y Binge - (1,784967)
Deferred tax charged to the EnEGaERRIR

consolidated income statement BB B(FizE11)

during the year (note 11) (408,881) - - - (101,257) - [510,139)
Deferred tax crecited to other ~ EAEFAEMZERAL

comprehensive income ELHE

during the year - - - 9,772 - - 9,772
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEEHB AR (Hss)

(note 35 (185,105) - - S A1) 1458 (194708)
Exchange realignment [ 70,262 202 - - 21580 (269) 91,775
At 31 December 2015 and RIE-RETZA=+-BR

1 January 2016 e T I (1966617)  (20,124) - - 5784 14250 (2,388,266)
Deferred tax credited/(charged)  ERESABERIA/(1B)

to the consolidated income LEREBE(WEN)

statement during the year

(note 11) (644,269) - 2,675 - (125,299) 8,368 (758,525
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEEHB AR (Hss)

(note 35) - - (69971) - - (5008 (14,985
Exchange realignment 3 159,535 1,333 6,600 - 33,394 (999) 199,863
At 31 December 2016 RoE-RETZA=+-0 (2451851  (18,791)  (60,702) - (507,689 16,620 (3,021,913)
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31 DEFERRED TAX (continued) 31 RIEFRIA (&)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The following is an analysis of the
deferred tax balances of the Group for financial reporting
purposes:

%T%EIJEE@ ETEEHBEENRABEDR
REEE T EAR AR AIESE - TRARTIEH
HENMUAEEECHBELERER 2D
o

2016 2015

—E—RE —E—RHF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BT
Net deferred tax assets recognised RIERE TR R IER
in the consolidated statement of ZIRERIE & FEF R

financial position 53,732 36,483
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised é BB R R ER
in the consolidated statement of R IB & EF5E

financial position (3,075,645) (2,424,749)

(3,021,913) (2,388,266)

The Group has estimated tax losses arising in Hong Kong
of approximately HK$207,735,000 (2015: approximately
HK$252,904,000) that are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies
in which the losses arose. The Group also has estimated
tax losses arising in Mainland China of approximately
HK$65,545,000 (2015: approximately HK$54,850,000)
that will expire in one to five years for offsetting against
future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose. Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses arising
in Hong Kong of approximately HK$207,735,000 (2015:
approximately HK$252,904,000) and Mainland China
of approximately HK$65,545,000 (2015: approximately
HK$54,850,000) have not been recognised as they have
arisen in certain subsidiaries that have been loss-making
for some time and it is not considered probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses
can be utilised.

REBREASEEZGBARBEBEBELS
W 007,735,000 T ( —ZF — A F : HBH
252,904,000 70 ) A £ PR 4 B3 B 1 4K 88
EEBBECARBERERBTAER o 1o -
REEBRFREAREELEZHFHREBEBERY
7 65,545,000 T (Z T — FHF @ 48
54,850,0007T) + BB AERKEEE
B2 AR BRERTAT - HERR A
R—ERFRER BEREBEEZHIE
B 184978 1207,735,000t (ZE—RF : 4
71 252,904,0007T ) K F B A BE B AE 2 B IR
518 #) 78 65,545,000 (S —HF : 4
75 1654,850,00070 ) BRELERIBEE - R
AAEHEEBERBELRBE—BNEZS
FHBAR HK%IM\%BAE&TKT
CEARRHRANMSEBREBESBI

}Eﬁ o
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31 DEFERRED TAX (continued) 31 EEMIA (&)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be
applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and
the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the
applicable rate is 5% or 10%. The Group is therefore liable
for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

RIFPBEGEMAEHE  RAPBEAERIZZ
INELEMIBREETRRER - FiZ
10% 2 HEBEBENMH - ZRER_FFT
NE-—A—RRER  WERAR_-_ZTZTLF
TA=T—BZEREEZETN - WETEH
AEEGEINEREEMBRAERI B
ARGz R ERAREKZEIHRE - X
EEZERTERL%H10% - At © A&
EARNPEAREXRZIZMBEARE -TF
NF—RA—BBEEZENFADIKZ S
TR

KX ) [A) L BRUIR 3 BB 3 N A R AT PR A5
BIER -

32 SHARE CAPITAL 32 &
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—hEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Issued and fully paid: BT REEAR
4,482,712,000 (2015: 4,483,712,000) 4,482,712,0000%
ordinary shares (ZE2—F4F:
4,483,712,000/%)
TiER 7,405,414 7,405,414

During the year, the Company purchased 1,000,000
of its shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) for a total consideration
of HK$7,950,000 which was paid wholly out of retained
profits in accordance with section 257 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. The purchased shares were
cancelled during the year and the total amount paid for
the purchase of the shares of HK$7,950,000 has been
charged to retained profits of the Company.

FRN - ARAEERBERZIHER QA
([BE =2 Fr | ) B8 B 1,000,000% N A BIR% 15
AR B AEBMT7,950,0007T  HEREFH
NAEH E257 162 AR E BRI B - £
MEBARMDERNFRLNE - BE LR HB
2B ERIBEEE B 7,950,0007T 2 ARD
B ZIRBEF| P o
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33 RESERVES
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity of the financial
statements.

(i) Goodwill arising on consolidation

The goodwill arising on consolidation has been set
up and dealt with in accordance with the transitional
arrangements under HKFRS 3 (August 2004), goodwill
which had previously been taken directly to reserves
(i.e. goodwill which arose before 1 January 2001)
will not be recognised in profit or loss on disposal or
impairment of the acquired business, or under any
other circumstances.

(if) Property revaluation reserve

Certain properties previously occupied by the Group
as owner-occupied properties were transferred to
investment properties in prior years and a revaluation
surplus was credited to property revaluation reserve
to account for the difference between the carrying
amounts and the fair values of the properties at the
date of change in use, determined using market
comparison approach by independent firms of
surveyors.

The property revaluation reserve of the Group is not
distributable as at 31 December 2016 and 2015.

(iii) Exchange reserve
The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policy set out
in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

(iv) Fair value reserve
The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative
net change in the fair value of available-for-sale
investments held at the end of the reporting period and
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy
set out in note 2.4 to the financial statements.
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33 1
AEENAEERBTEEE HECERE

£*£

5l

U]

(ii)

HERMBRRPZEOESEDRE

RERAELEZHE
ARRBERBCE Y HIRE LR DFEIHR
(ZZEZEWMFNR) ZEEREXRI MR
BREREMEEZEE - Bk - B
WKL SR HRRER - AR
MEMERT BEEERSFAREZE
Z2AR=_ZTT-F A HZAELEZ
BE) TS ERER T HER

WMESHREE

ETRABAEEEBAZYE(BEAY
¥ NBEFEEEEREYE  YER
MEEHREBTAEGRES  UAERS
BYERARESFAHZERESEQA
BzHEMNER HABASATED
BHEAERE °

NR—ZE—RNFEFR_ZE—HF+=A
=+—H AEBEZYESHFHFHFLD
—”ﬁ/\/)—fi°

(iii) [E R %S

[E X A RREINERS M HRE
EAZHMBELEZRE - ARFAISRIE
BTSRRI E2.AFTE & 5t R R B IR 8
o

(iv) 2 R ERE

AAERBEERBEPRRTAEZIFE
BREQDAREBEZRFZEFERERENH
BRRME2. AT S HREHE
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33 RESERVES (continued)
(v) Other reserves

Other reserves comprise (i) the difference between the
consideration paid/received for the acquisition/dilution
of non-controlling interests and the carrying amount
of non-controlling interests at the transaction date,
less the foreign exchange movements on translation of
those subsidiaries attributable to the non-controlling
interests; and (ii) the difference between the fair
value of the Group’s equity interest in subsidiaries
transferred to the acquiree for the acquisition of
subsidiaries and the net assets value attributable to the
non-controlling interests in respect of the subsidiaries
transferred to the acquiree at the transaction date.

(vi) Reserve fund

Statutory reserve — wholly-foreign-owned enterprises
Subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC, which
are wholly-foreign-owned enterprises, follow
the accounting principles and relevant financial
regulations of the PRC applicable to wholly-foreign-
owned enterprises (“PRC GAAP — WFOE”), in the
preparation of its accounting records and financial
statements. Pursuant to the accounting regulations
for business enterprises (1t €& HE 812 (2000)25
9%1), the subsidiaries are required to appropriate
10% of the profit arrived at in accordance with PRC
GAAP - WFOE for each year to the statutory reserve.
The profit arrived at must be used initially to set off
against any accumulated losses. The appropriations
to the statutory reserve, after offsetting against
any accumulated losses, must be made before
the distribution of dividends to equity owners. The
appropriation is required until the statutory reserve
reaches 50% of the registered capital. This statutory
reserve is not distributable in the form of cash
dividends, but may be used to set off losses or be
converted into paid-in capital.

33 e (&)
(v) Hitofe

HinF B RE()KRE e RS
ZERM/BRRBEFEREZNZS
Bz REERZRRIFERERE
HHREZEMBRARAMEL ZERE
g R)AEEEDEZETREBEAQF
ZHBAR(RKRBHBLARMERE)
PRz AR EEFEREREGD
HETRUBARZMBARTNXZH
HeBEFEMIZH -

(vi) FEEE

FEERE — 2N B %
AEEBMNRFRZHBAR(Z2IEDR
E)VREBEERBRE2INELEZFRRSA
RAERBEETBER(FEAREE
RE—2NELE])  FESLE
M EHRE - BEBE(CESHFEHE
(2000)255%]) © B A AIZBASF iR R
[FREARSRA—2INERE|FE
8z BREFR10%SN B ETRHE -
BRBEEEBNKETMNRESE -
AN+ REEEIBATI (B MR I Rt
EiB%)BATERMER A ERERE A
DIKEE - B ARA—HEBAFE
AERE BEEACHEEZSEMEAER
50% &L - IWEERETEUARERKE
FEADIK  HAARIKEEERERE
BURRRA o
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34 PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 34 T ERIFERER ZIEEEME
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS NCT
Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material non- AREERTEEAREERES 2B AR Z 5
controlling interests are set out below. 1EHEHF T o
The information set out below represents the non- THBERBRNPRENEAKEER AR ([
controlling interests in China Everbright Water Limited KAKFE ) R EMTE A 7] 2 FEIERRERS -
(“CEWL”) and its subsidiaries.
2016 2015
—E—XF —EF—hF
Percentage of equity interest held by IR B 2 IR
non-controlling interests B 25.3% 25.6%
2016 2015
—E—XF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Profit for the year allocated to SBLTIEERER 2
non-controlling interests FEAF 88,513 99,287
Accumulated balances of non-controlling RiE B HEE R iR

interests at the reporting dates Z BETHEER 1,471,583 1,553,497
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34 PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial

NCIIE )

34 Mim ERIFIERE R

12 FEEME

TRIVR LB AR Z B ERE - 7

information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts FEZ2HEAEERNARIMEEEYHETZE
disclosed are before any inter-company eliminations: 5 o
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—hEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Revenue Wz 2,494,037 1,815,150
Profit for the year FEAF 372,615 423,668
Total comprehensive income/(loss) FE2EEBA(EB)
for the year BEE (225,985) 86,097
Current assets MENEE 3,297,412 3,314,627
Non-current assets ERBEE 9,802,167 9,631,727
Current liabilities mEaE (2,471,747) (2,922,282)
Non-current liabilities ERHAE (4,417,783) (3,719,646)
Non-controlling interests FEIERRHE = (393,515) (236,077)
Net cash flows from operating activities KEREFMERENE
HER 20,195 32,605
Net cash flows used in investing activities WE e AIRSRE
B (6,329)  (2,177,471)
Net cash flows from financing activities MESZHMERENE
SEE 142,364 2,954,083
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net & R & &) g/ 25 %48 (85,379) (19,998)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents He MR EE WL
HER 70,851 789,219
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35 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
(a) Acquisition of SI& & fist TR FTHARRERAA

35 ¥Ba6t
(a) WIS IH AT TREHMERGR

(“Jiangsu Design & Research Institute”)

On 7 April 2016, the Group acquired 100% equity
interest in Jiangsu Design & Research Institute
from an independent third party. Jiangsu Design
& Research Institute is engaged in the provision of
construction services, design of renewable energy
construction projects and research and development
of environmental protection equipment. The acquisition
was made as part of the Group’s strategy to expand
its market share of the “Envirotech” segment. The
total purchase consideration of HK$53,636,000
for the acquisition was in the form of cash, with
HK$11,959,000 paid in February 2016 and the

AE([IHEEE TRRFHER )
RZE—AR"EWNAtLH  XEER—F
B E =W &L B AE T2 R
FEBT100% AR HE © ST 258 Ehpe T2 :R T
T2 ¥ A RERERS - RFHB4E
REREETIRIER MR RRRE - &
BB AEBFREET [RERE D
AMBEEEZRENES IR - 1H
W g 2 B8 B (B 48585 % 53,636,0007T
IR R A - B &% 11,959,000
TER-ZE—RNF-_AXNM AT BK
41,677,000 MER-TE—RNF=ZAX
if o

remaining HK$41,677,000 paid in March 2016.

RUERH - TEHA M TRRTHR
Bzl Bl EERBBZ ARENT:

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
Jiangsu Design & Research Institute as at the date of
acquisition were as follows:

2016

—E-XEF

Fair value

recognised on

acquisition

BB 2

ARE

HK$’000

BT T

Property, plant and equipment mE - WERERE 715

Prepaid land lease payments A L E KA 670

Intangible assets mEEE 20,032
Debtors, other receivables, deposits and IR ~ Eqb U IR -

prepayments e RIERRIE 10,711

Cash and cash equivalents BEEBREEHEY 28,112
Creditors, other payables and accrued expenses  JETBREN « E#bfER FIE &

EEtEA (1,026)

Tax payable JE < 758 18 (570)

Deferred tax liabilities BEHIBEE (5,008)

Total identifiable net assets at fair value AR EE I FEERE
(AR1E) 53,636

Satisfied by cash LAIR & S 1+ 53,636
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35 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
(a) Acquisition of SI& & fist TR HARRBRAA

(“Jiangsu Design & Research Institute”)
(continued)

The fair values of the debtors and other receivables
as at the date of acquisition amounted to
HK$10,711,000. The gross contractual amount of
debtors and other receivables was HK$10,711,000,
none of which are expected to be uncollectible.

The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$110,000
for this acquisition. These transaction costs have
been expensed and are included in “Administrative
expenses” in the consolidated income statement.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the
acquisition of Jiangsu Design & Research Institute is as
follows:

36 XA Gt (#)
(a) W IHEHREIRRAMRERER

DEN([IHEE R TRRATER )
(&)

RS B ER - FE AR 3R R E A FE U ER IR
ZAREABEE10,711,0007T © FEUER
HEEMERRA L BENSEABE
10,711,0007T © JBHAE ATk [D -

AEERRBEBREIIEEZRDKA
A7 #110,000T - BEERZKAE R
RABERTH Wit ATTTHER] -

BRAME IS ME TIRRFAFTERLZ
BengasmmT :

2016

—E—XREF

HK$’000

BET T

Cash consideration RERE (53,636)

Cash and cash equivalents acquired WEMSHReMREEEY 28,112

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents FFAKRE GRS HRESRE

included in cash flows from investing activities B4 hESEEBYnt FaE (25,524)
Transaction costs of the acquisition included in SFAKLEHMEREREL

cash flows from operating activities W HE 22 5 A (110)

(25,634)
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35 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
(a) Acquisition of SI& & fist TR FTHARRERAA

(“Jiangsu Design & Research Institute”)
(continued)

Since the acquisition, Jiangsu Design & Research
Institute contributed HK$13,757,000 to the Group’s
revenue and a loss of HK$7,560,000 to the
consolidated profit for the year ended 31 December
2016.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning
of the year, the revenue of the Group and the
profit of the Group for the year would have been
HK$13,976,493,000 and HK$3,037,717,000,
respectively.

(b) Acquisition of the Poland Target Companies

and their subsidiaries (collectively the
“NOVAGO Group”)

During the year, the Group acquired 100% equity
interests in the Poland Target Companies from certain
independent third parties at a total consideration
of approximately Euro119,458,000 or Polish
zloty 525,087,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,022,102,000) (the “Poland Acquisition”).
The principal activities of the NOVAGO Group
involve the provision of solid waste treatment
service in the Republic of Poland. The Poland
Acquisition was completed in August 2016. The total
purchase consideration for the Poland Acquisition
of Euro119,458,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,022,102,000) was paid in the form of cash in
August 2016.

The Group has elected to measure the non-controlling
interests in the NOVAGO Group at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the identifiable net
assets of the related non-wholly owned subsidiaries of
the NOVAGO Group.
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36 XA Bt (&)
(a) W IHEHREIRRAMERER

AE([IHEEE TRRFHER )
(&)

BUCRB AR » T ERE BiRE TR R AT A 3E
bt & 7N & B & Bl Uk 25 8 ¥ 13,757,000
T YAEEE-ZE—XR"F+_A=1+—
BEFEZHRARFNERBEEBE
7,560,0007T °

WEBEHRENET  FRASE
BExRBERAEEZAZFE S F
A B B 13,976,493,000 T N B #&
3,037,717,0007T °

(b) WEKREELARARKEZHERF

(&% INOVAGOL£H |)

FR - AEERETBILE=HKE
W BIZE AR 100%# - AR EB AL
119,458,000 X % 3k 525,087,000 ) &
2R (B2 R 4% % 1,022,102,000
) (DEBEWIEEIE]) - NOVAGOEE
2 E B ERH R ATK B A B R 4 [ EE
BEERY - KBHWEBEEER-_Z—X
FNAEK - BFWKREZTEZHEE
R {B119,458,000 B & (8 M 478 #&
1,022,102,00070) ER =T —/~FE/\ A
B EFAL -

AL BIE BRI i a5 FEIENOVAGO
SEEBFEENBARZAHIEE
JFHEFTENOVAGOSRE 2 SR s -
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35 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
(b) Acquisition of the Poland Target Companies
and their subsidiaries (collectively the

“NOVAGO Group”) (continued)

35 FH A (&)
(b) WERMERRARKEZHMEAR
(A% [NOVAGO£E |) (#)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of RUCE B Hl - NOVAGOSE & 2 a] # 51l &
the NOVAGO Group as at the date of acquisition were EXEENT:
as follows:
2016
—EB—XRE
Fair value
recognised on
acquisition
WRB B RERR
ZARE
HK$’000
BT T
Property, plant and equipment ME - BRE KB 584,406
Goodwill S 4,775
Inventories ey 7,398
Intangible assets mEEE 175,828
Debtors, other receivables, deposits IR ~ EAb U IR -
and prepayments Ee RFENFIE 66,068
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMRESEED 5,235
Interest-bearing bank borrowings STRIRTITIEE (209,683)
Finance lease payables BEHERMNHIE (47,039)
Creditors, other payables and FETERFR « EfbENRIAER
accrued expenses EETER (54,632)
Tax payable FERTHE IR (20,126)
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIEBE (69,977)
Non-controlling interests AR A (33,196)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value AIRIEEFEERE(ARE) 409,057
Goodwill on acquisition WIS AT 1S & 613,045
Satisfied by cash PAIR & 2 1+ 1,022,102
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35 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
(b) Acquisition of the Poland Target Companies

and their subsidiaries (collectively the
“NOVAGO Group”) (continued)

The fair values of the debtors and other receivables
as at the date of acquisition amounted to
HK$66,068,000. The gross contractual amount of
debtors and other receivables was HK$66,068,000,
none of which are expected to be uncollectible.

The Group incurred transaction costs of
HK$25,989,000 for this acquisition. These transaction
costs have been expensed and are included in
“Administrative expenses” in the consolidated income
statement.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the
acquisition of the NOVAGO Group is as follows:
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35 XI56 bt (&)
(b) WEKMEBRARRKEZHEAH

(&% [NOVAGOLRE |) (#&)

RS B B - PR IR 3R R E A R I ER R
Z AR EAEEE6,068,0007T © fEUER
HEEMERRB L BENSEAEBE
66,068,0007T * FEERR AJ Uk E] -

AEBHREBERBERSELE 2R HKA
A7 E25989,0007T - AR HKAE
REFEIERRTH Wt AIfTHRER] -

HRIKENOVAGOR M 2 B4 R E ST
T :

2016

—E—KREF

HK$’000

BT T

Cash consideration BeKRE (1,022,102)

Cash and cash equivalents acquired WHEFTBSHR e RIS FEY 5,235

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents FAREEZHEEERE

included in cash flows from investing activities B4 hESEBYnt FE (1,016,867)
Transaction costs of the acquisition included in SFARSTEHBRERES

cash flows from operating activities WS A2 5 A (25,989)

(1,042,856)

Since the acquisition, the NOVAGO Group contributed
HK$120,922,000 to the Group’s revenue and a profit
of HK$12,896,000 to the consolidated profit for the
year ended 31 December 2016.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning
of the year, the revenue of the Group and the
profit of the Group for the year would have been
HK$14,175,361,000 and HK$3,062,958,000,
respectively.

B U B LASE - NOVAGOE B AREE T
B Uk 25 76 120,922,000 * S AEE
—E-RE+-RA=+-"BLFEZH
& BT R 2 F) B %12,896,0007T °

WEBMAEHRNFENET  FRAE
BExWamkAEBZAFE D5
A B ¥ 14,175,361,000 7T M B ¥
3,062,958,0007T °
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35 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
(c) Acquisition of Dalian Dongda

On 28 August 2015, CEWL and Beijing Everbright
Water Investment Management Co., Ltd (“BEWI”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of CEWL, entered into an
equity transfer agreement (the “Dongda Agreement”)
with Dongda Group Co., Ltd (the “Dongda Group”)
and Mr. Liu Yubao (together the “Dongda Sellers”),
pursuant to which BEWI agreed to acquire the entire
equity interest in Dalian Dongda and provide new
shareholder’s loan to Dalian Dongda as it retires
all outstanding debts due by the Dongda Group to
one of the Dongda Sellers, Dongda Group, at a total
consideration of RMB1,843,978,000 (approximately
equivalent to HK$2,238,866,000).

At the date of acquisition, Dalian Dongda and
certain of its subsidiaries had claims against relevant
PRC government authorities for RMB203,150,000
(approximately equivalent to HK$246,421,000) under
certain service concession arrangements. Any claim
amounts recovered from the relevant PRC government
authorities within three years from completion of
acquisition of 90% equity interest in Dalian Dongda by
BEWI on 4 November 2015 (the “Three-year Period”)
will be payable to Dongda Group. Dalian Dongda and
its subsidiaries will also bear taxes, if any, arising from
the actual receipt of these claims. Having considered
all currently available information, the directors of
the Company are of the view that the recovery of
the claims is not probable and that any tax liability in
relation to the receipt of these claims is remote.

The remaining 10% equity interest (the “Remaining
Interest”) will be transferred to BEWI each year in
the Three-year Period based on the proportion of
claims recovered. All of the Remaining Interest will be
transferred to BEWI regardless of how much claims are
recovered at the end of the Three-year Period.

Pursuant to the Dongda Agreement, upon the
completion of acquisition of the 90% equity interest
in Dalian Dongda, BEWI is entitled to the share of
profits or loss, assets and liabilities of Dalian Dongda
in respect of the Remaining Interest, even though the
Remaining Interest will be transferred to BEWI over the
Three-year Period.

35 FH A (&)
(c) WIBRERE

RZE—RENAZ+NRB » EAKS
RIERHARKBREEEFR AR ([
RHARKIE]  RRKBEZ2ERB A
AHEREEEARAR([REEE])
FRAETERE(ABIREEN ]I
Rz ([ RERHE]) o Bt
Ib T KK 7S [B) B U B KB 5 i 2 2P A%
o WIREHBRREER T AEBEREE - U
BEHEBRKBREEEEREP—FR
EBEHZMEBEAEEEE  BREAA
K #1,843,978,000 T (18 & M 4 78 &
2,238,866,0007T) °

RUKEBE  REREREETHEAR
AIRIEE TR EERLTHNA R
B BT 1 B B = A R 208,150,000
TT (FE R4 #246,421,0007T) ° £
ERAEARKER -_E—RAFE+—AMAB
ST AR U BB K SR Q0% AR AE HE 5F =
(IT=FHM1 A - BB+ HBUTH
U E v EREBERRIES T TRES
B RIEBEBREREWB AR MAAER
ERYCERBERRRIAMEE 2 FIAE (10
) KEEBEBRAMBZAHEERE &K
RAEERBET AL E AR EBERRK
T8 - 1 BB MCER Ll ER 2R RIA 1 EE A R TR
BEZHSMTERM -

FRT10% 2 BHE (T 82 T HEeE )R =F
HIM A& FAR IR B R AR 2 e o B ) 48
& TR IERKT - 2WMHTREFR
= FHIRE A R EE T AL AR
Ak El 2 DB RFIA -

REBEREWHE » A BB RERE
Q%R  BERTEAKN =FH
B8R T AL 50U AKF - L ROER
IKEBERERBR T REDEREREZR
B-BEERARE-
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35 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued) 35 EBastE)
(c) Acquisition of Dalian Dongda (continued) (c) WEBRERE (&)
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities RIWERE  REREZAIHFNEENR
of Dalian Dongda as at the date of acquisition were as BEZARBENT:
follows:

2015

—E-hF

Fair value

recognised

on acquisition

WEB R 2

ARE

HK$’000

BEET T

Property, plant and equipment VI - RS KR 380

Intangible assets mEEE 574,252
Gross amounts due from customers EWEF &N TIEFRIBETE

for contract work 1,558,620
Debtors, other receivables, deposits FEUER R~ E M EUEIE -

and prepayments Ee RFENFIE 216,318

Cash and cash equivalents ReERRSEEY 75,529
Creditors, other payables and accrued FERTERSR ~ Efb R IR R

expenses TEFtE A (75,182)

Interest-bearing borrowings FTEEE (161,282)

Tax payable JE 7 18 (26,883)

Deferred tax liabilities RIETRIBAE (194,708)

Total identifiable net assets at fair value Al R EE AR

(ARfE) 1,967,044

Goodwill on acquisition WHE RIS 2 271,822

Satisfied by cash NIRE T 2,238,866
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35 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
(c) Acquisition of Dalian Dongda (continued)
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the
acquisition of Dalian Dongda is as follows:

35 X E U (&)
(c) WEERERE(#)
BRRBAEREZASREATHT :

2015

—T—hF

HK$’000

BT T

Cash consideration HERE (2,238,866)

Cash and cash equivalents acquired WEMSHReRREEEY 75,529
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents FFARBESMBHREREY

included in cash flows from investing activities BeMBESEBY Rt F5E (2,163,337)

RBEE-_ZE—RHF+_A=1+—HBI*F
B BUEBBREHE-_ZT—RAF+=-A
=+ —HHA REREFRMKEEE
34,264,000 7T & & 7N & B F B F) & K
EH B ¥ 7,534,000 © M_—RERX S
R—_E—RAF—A—H#ET ~5E
ZFERNEEWRERBFED R AEEE
8,774,506,000 7T X /& # 2,404,915,000
T EETHSESEE  SEEBRRM

From the date of acquisition to 31 December 2015,
Dalian Dongda contributed revenue of HK$34,264,000
and profit of HK$7,534,000 to the Group’s net
profit for the year ended 31 December 2015. Had
the acquisition taken place on 1 January 2015, the
consolidated revenue and profit for the year of the
Group would have been HK$8,774,506,000 and
HK$2,404,915,000 respectively. In determining these
amounts, management assumed that the fair value
adjustments to the acquired assets and liabilities that _rEWER-_T—RF—AF—B%4%£
arose on the date of acquisition would have been the WEMSEERBGENIWERBRFRES
same if the acquisition had occurred on 1 January Z AR BEFABIANER -

2015.

AFARBESABRSRESR BN
BRI ZEAESREIFR:

Net cash outflow for the acquisition of subsidiaries
included in the cash flows from investing activities:

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—hE
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Acquisition of Jiangsu Design & Research Uk T &4 Ener TI2 2=t
Institute (note 35(a)) el (M5E35(a)) (25,524) -
Acquisition of the NOVAGO Group I BEENOVAGOE [ (Hf 5+
(note 35(b)) 35(b)) (1,016,867) -
Acquisition of Dalian Dongda Wt i K s B 2 (P 535(c))
(note 35(c)) - (2,163,337)

(1,042,391)  (2,163,337)




Notes to Financial Statements
B SRR T

31 December 2016 —E—"&E+=-A=+—H

36 PLEDGE OF ASSETS
Details of the Group’s banking facilities and finance lease
payables, which are secured by the assets of the Group,
are included in note 29 to the financial statements. The
aggregate net book value of assets and equity interests
in subsidiaries pledged amounted to HK$22,795,276,000
(2015: HK$20,487,905,000) as at 31 December 2016.

37 OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(a) As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 14
to the financial statements) under operating lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms
ranging from three to ten years. The terms of the
leases generally also require the tenants to pay security
deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments
according to the then prevailing market conditions.
None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

At 31 December 2016, the Group had total future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows:
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36 BEHE

AREFEBRTHRELBRERERMNRERBRA
SECZEEFEERZHFBHNMEHRRN
F29 e R—ZE—ARF+_A=+—H" B
BHEEMHBARKREZREmMFES
B 22,795,276,000L (Z T — A F : B
20,487,905,0007T) °

7 REHELHE

(a) EBEHEA
AEBERBECERETHLAEREY
¥ B BMRMT14)  BEEENF=
BETERE - o BEBKR—HBRTE
MEBAYMNRES YT EHRR
ERZMSERAZEAS - METME
ERFENAES -

RZF-—R"F+_A=1+—8 REX
SEEEBEPAVYZ MR MBREEN
B AEEARNREHERKFRL
BB

2016 2015

—REF —T-1F

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

Within 1 year —&FR 8,168 5,238
After 1 year but within 5 years —FREAFNA 23,721 14,711
After 5 years hFi& 8,199 11,448

40,088 31,397
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37 OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(continued)
(b) As lessee
The Group leases a number of properties under
operating leases, with leases negotiated for terms
ranging from one to twenty-nine years. None of the
leases includes contingent rentals.

At 31 December 2016, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

37 REMELHE (&)

(b) EREBAA
AEERBKEHEERBEDE &
EHANF—FE-TAFAF - i
ERHERFEAAES -

RoE—AET=A=+—8  BET
TRENEEEE - AEEEREMD
BERERRREN BT ¢

2016 2015

—E-RF —E-RHF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT

Within 1 year —FR 17,663 10,406
After 1 year but within 5 years —FERERFR 18,863 2,045
After 5 years hF® 9,400 -
45,926 12,451

38 COMMITMENTS
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed
in note 37 above, the Group had the following capital
commitments at the end of the reporting period:

(@) Purchase commitments outstanding in connection with
the Group’s construction contracts were as follows:

38 &IE
BT XK ES7 AT 2 ST E AR - R
WK - AEBINE U T EAEE

() BRAKERZERNZREAENT :

2016 2015
—E—RF —E—0EFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T

Contracted but not provided for SEESEER 3 4,393,106 2,728,184
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38 COMMITMENTS (continued)

(b)

At 31 December 2016, the Group had an outstanding
capital commitment relating to the purchase of a
limited partnership in an investment fund not provided
for in the financial statements of HK$14,554,000
(2015: HK$23,258,000).

At 31 December 2016, the Group had outstanding
capital commitments relating to the capital
contributions to joint ventures not provided for in
the financial statements of HK$174,371,000 (2015:
HK$288,793,000).

At 31 December 2016, the Group had outstanding
capital commitment relating to the capital contribution
to associates not provided for in the financial
statements of HK$23,643,000 (2015: HK$9,760,000).
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38 EIE(E)

b) RZZE—~"E+-A=+—8 K&H
WAREFBHRESR  SEELE @R
BEESHN—RBERETENRRIZER
AYE B 14,554,000 (T — R 4F ¢
7B 23,258,0007T ) 1B H B o

) R=ZFE—X"F+=-_A=+—8 " A58
WAREFBHREPAREELEETECE
AN AYE 174,371,000 (ZFE—F
& 1 B5288,793,0007T ) 1E H B o

d RZE—R"F+_A=+—08 "  ~5£H
WAEH BHmREPRELRAEEZ

BN EIER 23,643,000 (=ZF—F
£ 7E#9,760,0007T ) fEH B -

39 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 39 [t A LR 5
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed BRTHEMBRREMBOFAEZE LIRS R
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered EERAN - FAAREBET N T T3 E AR
into the following material related party transactions during TR5 -
the year:
(a) The Group entered into the following related party () ANEEE—REHALTRTEIZLT T
transactions with a related party bank: AT S
2016 2015
—RE T—hHTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Dividend income from listed securities mEHFRERA - 956
Interest income FBEUW A 1,774 3,490
Interest expense FMEZH 16,171 13,528
Details of the Group’s loans from a related party bank AEEZ BB ATRTERFBERNY

are included in note 29 to the financial statements.

TERRMIFE29 ©
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39 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 39 BB A TR 5 (#&)

(continued)

(b) The Group entered into the following related party
transactions with a non-controlling shareholder of a
non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group:

(o) AEEEHEIE2EME QR Z FFEBRAK
RETSZT THBEBMALRS ¢

2016 2015
—EB-RF —T-1F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T

Revenue from environmental water IRIRKIZIHE EE
project operation services PR U 47,668 70,271
Finance income RN 24,809 25,197

) AEEREEHARLREFZ2EMNBL
Bl Z BB R M B RBEILT T3

(c) The Group entered into the following related party
transactions with a related company and subsidiaries

of non-controlling shareholders of non-wholly-owned BBALRS :
subsidiaries of the Group:
2016 2015
—E—RE —EF—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Revenue from environmental water RIRKIEIEEES
project operation services i 39,737 52,400
Finance income R 3PN 47,157 50,687
(d) The Group entered into the following related party (d) AEBEHEESEMEILT NI B
transactions with joint ventures of the Group: TXR5
2016 2015
—E—RF —EF—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Revenue from environmental energy IRIREEIRIE B 21
project construction services PR 745 W 2= 301,004 -
Sales of machinery IH &S es 46,598 -

Interest income

B A 1,188
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39 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 39 BEE AT B (&)

(continued)

(e) The Group entered into the following related party () AEEBEEIZ2ENE R A 2 IFERAR
transactions with a non-controlling shareholder of a RETM T THBEEALTRS ¢
non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group:

2016 2015
ZEB-RF —T-1F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Prepayments to a non-controlling TRFIEEERBE AT Z
shareholder of a non-wholly-owned JEFERS AR 3R 2 s iR
subsidiary for construction TIRFERKIE
related works 33,504 -

() The Group entered into the following related party (H AEEHRERZRMBAGRILT TIE
transactions with a fellow subsidiary of the Group: ARG :

2016 2015

—E—RE —E—hF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

Rental expenses HeZE A 6,601 -
The rental expenses of an office were charged by a MAZHEEARLIEERRMMNBE AR
fellow subsidiary of the Group on mutually agreed RETHEBRRGTR - BEABERBE
terms at a fixed monthly amount of HK$1,026,000. 1,026,0007T - ARBIEERA ' HEE
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the AhEs2EEdRsmB5HeRARAE
rental expenses were determined by reference to the ByBUYEBRARGREEMEED

prevailing market rent and the rental valuation report of ZHeHEREMEE -

the premises conducted by an independent property
consulting firm engaged by the Company.
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39 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 39 BEE AT R Z (&)
(continued)
(@) The Group paid key management personnel () AEEEZRNTEZERE AR 2 WM
compensation as follows: N
2016 2015
—EB-ARF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T

Salaries and other short-term FeRhEMEEESREN
employee benefits 132,929 105,451
Retirement scheme contributions IRIRET I 3K 5,237 3,515
138,166 108,966

(h) During the year ended 31 December 2016, the hy REBEE_ZE—R"F+-HA=T—HLF
Group entered into certain continuing connected Z - KEIDT_LTEJFF#F@Lx% °
transactions. The Company’s independent non- ARARZBYENTESEEREEAR
executive directors have reviewed these transactions, 5 BERGHBEETEREFFE
details of which are disclosed under the paragraph FER S | — BT -

“Continuing connected transactions” in the report of
the directors.

(i) As disclosed in note 39(f), the Group has rental () M EESINFT#EE - BIFA S EEE
commitments with a fellow subsidiary of the Group B R B A A 5] 2 1Al B bR 48 & 7
under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as g AREZHASERENHIMOT
follows:

2016 2015

—E—-RE —E—1F

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

Within one year —FR 11,286 -
In the second to fifth years, inclusive 5 -_ZFAF(BIEEEMF) 15,903 -

27,189 -
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40 FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 40 TR ITEZ AR EBERAREBEREBERT

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, bank deposits, debtors, current portion
of other receivables, deposits and prepayments, creditors,
other payables and accrued expenses and interest-bearing
borrowings approximate to their carrying amounts largely
due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s finance management department is
responsible for determining the policies and procedures
for the fair value measurement of financial instruments. At
each reporting date, the finance management department
analyses the movements in the values of financial
instruments and determines the major inputs applied in the
valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the
chief financial officer. The valuation process and results are
discussed with the audit committee twice a year for interim
and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

The fair values of gross amounts due from customers
for contract work, the non-current portion of other
receivables, deposits and prepayments, and interest-
bearing borrowings have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities. The Group’s own non-performance
risk for interest-bearing borrowings as at 31 December
2016 was assessed to be insignificant.

The available-for-sale equity investment in Level 2
represents an investment in a property investment
company, with its investment properties (being significant
part of the total assets) stated at fair value. The fair value of
such investment is determined based on net asset value of
the investee which approximates to the fair value.

EEETEREeRACEEY  RIOIFEK -
W AR - HthBUGRIE ~ & RN K
B BAERR - RENRBERETERR
AEEEZABBN 2 AR EEEREER
5 TEHRZETARNEHRNEE -

AEBMBEERMEEETSRTAR
REFEZHERERF NREBEHRSBEH -
BERSMes e IAZEEES
VEEHEMERZIZHABUE - HER
MBRAEENLEL BERZEEETFMA
MmEEREFRER  AEELTHRFE
A MmE o

MHEERABZAOABRAZTARARR
577 (MIFREFBFREE)EMRZXH T 2R
RBEBAR - THTDERBRIIBRMAE
AVLIEEE

FBREFANTRAEMLTE - MUK
B BE RANREN R BEEZIEEH
Mz 2R BTEEBRLUER - EERE
RRGFEMZ TRAZRITERBNE  BHRA
HAKRASREZ D AFE - R_T—RF
T-A=+t—B B EREMST  A&E
REZTBEAORBRBEREM

F_MHERAREERN —FKPERER
AlZE  ZRRZREME(HEBREE
EABDIEIAEIR BRAKREZLAAR
ERBEREARCEEREET  AHE
EFERAAERE °
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40 FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
The fair value of unlisted available-for-sale equity
investment in Level 3 is estimated with reference to the
expected future cash flows of the investment.

The fair value of cross-currency swap in Level 2 is
estimated by the discounted cash flow approach,
assuming that the Group entered into an offsetting position
in the swap at the valuation date, such that the fair value
at the valuation date would be the sum of the present
value of the net payoffs from the original position and the
offsetting position on the scheduled payment dates. The
cash flows associated with the assumed offsetting position
on the scheduled payment dates were estimated based on
the forward exchange rates with matching maturities at the
valuation date. The net payoffs were discounted to present
values at the risk-free rates with matching maturities and
currencies.

Fair value hierarchy
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2016

40

EMTAZAREBERARBRERR
(%)

BERZFLTHERARAEZ AREIHE
SLEFRRE BRATRS REM A -

F_MRXXEE R 2 RAAEDNERESR
ERBUAMGRT  BRAKERGERBETL
MEREZEHEGH  AIRGBEARZAA
EXfERREEMN KBRS LE il
MERSEFEEERZAE - HERARE
ERN A NN SR8 TR A X & W PR
ZRMERRE [  FRAEEMT 28R
ERANEME 2 ERERR KD RRE
HIE -

D RBERBRA
TRIBAEEEMTAZAAE
A

ik
4',
Ll
IE]

BAALEEZEE:

R-EB-A"E+=-A=+—H

Fair value measurement using
ERNTSRETAAENE

Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
ERME  BAUBR BANTEER
Z5fE BARE BARR Total
(B—%) (F=8) (E=#) k)
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT
Available-for-sale investments: FERE
- Listed —tm 5,208 - - 5,208
- Unlisted o Al - 3,899 24,225 28,124
5,208 3,899 24,225 33,332
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40 FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 40 R TEZARBERARBEEBELR
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) (&)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) DARERBEBRE(E)
Assets measured at fair value: (continued) BAREFEZEE: (1B)
As at 31 December 2015 RZE—FRF+_A=+—H
Fair value measurement using
FRNTSREETAEHE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
BT EATEE EATTHE
(B BAHE BASE Total
(B—%) (B=H) (E=®}) S
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BT T BB BB BB
Available-for-sale investments: FERE
- Listed il 5,398 - - 5,398
- Unlisted —JEm - 3,899 15,503 19,402
5,398 3,899 15,503 24,800
The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 FZRAREFERFRNZEFHNT
during the year are as follows:
2016 2015
—EB-RE 0%
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Available-for-sale investments — unlisted: FEXE—I LT
At 1 January w—H—H 15,503 15,503
Purchases BE 8,722 -
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H 24,225 15,503
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40 FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 40 e TEZARBREAR
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) (&)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) ARERBERRB(E)
Liabilities measured at fair value: AL EFEZAE -

As at 31 December 2016

R-ZE—X"E+=-HA=+—H

Fair value measurement using

BEREHRR

FRANTEEETANENE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
I BAUEE EATAIER
ZHE AR BARE Total
(5—4) (B=&) (B=8) k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT BETT
Derivative financial instrument fTHEERIA - 28,528 - 28,528
The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at R-ZE—FRE+-_HA=+—H0  AEFLE
fair value as at 31 December 2015. EfEAREFNEZEMAE -
During the year ended 31 December 2016, there were no HE_ZE—XRNE+-_A=+—BHItEE ' &
transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and —MEBE B AL EFE 2B E T E
Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for both %o o ERUBEENBAG  E=HE

financial assets and financial liabilities (2015: Nil).

FRAIBASEH(ZT—RHF : &) o
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41 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
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RBEERR SERNEBTAZREELD

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as T:
follows:
2016 —E—REF
Available-
for-sale
Loans and financial
receivables assets Total
Financial assets BiGEE ERRERFE FEUBEE 4a=E
HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000
BT BT T BT T
Gross amounts due from JEREF A4
customers for contract work TIRNTE4EEE 21,033,228 - 21,033,228
Finance lease receivables BERERKFIA 17,799 - 17,799
Other financial assets Hib & E - 33,332 33,332
Financial assets included in SFAEUERSR - EAth
debtors, other receivables, FEWRIE ~ 124 &%
deposits and prepayments FENFIAE VB EE 8,585,854 = 8,585,854
Pledged bank deposits EEMRITER 653,054 - 653,054
Deposits with banks SRITTER 43,964 - 43,964
Cash and cash equivalents BeNBREEED 6,340,579 - 6,340,579
36,674,478 33,332 36,707,810
Financial
liabilities Financial
at fair value liabilities
through  at amortised
profit or loss cost
BARE REE
FrABZRZ MAFTEZ Total
Financial liabilities MBaE MBAaE MBEaE Gk
HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000
BT BT B IT
Financial liabilities included in sTAENERF ~ Eq
creditors, other payables JEASTFIE K ERHE A
and accrued expenses 2B aE 28,528 4,476,305 4,504,833
Interest-bearing borrowings FEEE - 21,615,649 21,615,649
28,528 26,091,954 26,120,482
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41 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

M RBERE D 2T AE)

RHBEEHR SENEBTAZEREELD

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as T : (&)
follows: (continued)
2015 —E—HEF
Available-
for-sale
Loans and financial
receivables assets Total
Financial assets W& E ERRERGIE FEUBEE BEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT IT BB TIT BT IT
Gross amounts due from EREFE AL
customers for contract work TiEFIE %S 17,369,353 - 17,369,353
Finance lease receivables BEREREKGIA 19,593 - 19,593
Other financial assets HEM B s & E - 24,800 24,800
Financial assets included in ST AFEURBRTR - HAth
debtors, other receivables, JEUNTRTE ~ e &
deposits and prepayments FENFIEZMBEE 7,874,594 - 7,874,594
Pledged bank deposits EHEIPRITFR 555,277 - 555,277
Deposits with banks |ITHFER 164,654 - 164,654
Cash and cash equivalents ReMBEEEED 5,953,481 - 5,953,481
31,936,952 24,800 31,961,752
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
REESH A AR
FEZ
Financial liabilities M%asE M%asE
HK$’000
BT
Financial liabilities included in SFAJERBRER - EAth
creditors, other payables, FERT B R ESTE R
and accrued expenses 2HEaE 2,792,050
Interest-bearing borrowings STEEE 15,820,666

18,612,716
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42 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 42 B Rk EIE B R KR

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
interest-bearing borrowings, cash and short term deposits.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to
finance the Group’s operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as debtors, other
receivables, deposits, finance lease receivables, gross
amounts due from customers for contract work, finance
lease payables and creditors, other payables and accrued
expenses, which arise directly from its operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions,
including principally cross-currency swaps. The purpose
is to manage the currency risks arising from the Group’s
operations and its sources of finance.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk, liquidity risk and equity price risk. The board of
directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below. The Group’s
accounting policies in relation to derivatives are set out in
note 2.4 to the financial statements.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from the
Group’s cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits and
bank loans. Borrowings issued at variable rates and at
fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively. The
Group does not use financial derivatives to hedge against
the interest rate risk. The Group’s interest rate profile as
monitored by management is set out in (i) below.

AEEZTIECRIABENREE RE

FEMER HEFERTAZTEZANER
%$%@Z¥%@¢hhéﬁ rEEER
HMEEERBE  BREWER - it
MR ~ e - MEMRERWFIA - B
EEAMTIRRIEMEE - BEHSENX
R AREMERR - RN RIANER &
B ERBERBEL -

SO - AERENEILOTETAR S - B R
BHERXX G - ﬁﬁ%&#%ﬁﬁgﬁ
EBEERESRRAEENEHERER

AEBeRMITAEEAZTIZRBREENXME

%~ SN FEHA‘ﬁ@ﬁﬁﬂA
BAERER - EF SR RIHEEESH
BREARKR <HE - BRABRMAR T - X

EEFBTETAZ S BERHENMEHRE
Mis¥2.4 o

F =R @ B

AEEAH N ERREIZEETEE 2R
kRS EEY  RITERRBITER - &7
ﬁﬂ¢&lﬁﬂ¢ﬂﬁ2FEA$E@ J
AEZBERENERREEALBENERR
$%l1ﬁﬂ%$ﬂm$IﬂXﬂﬁﬂzﬂ
B o AEBZAEPRAEREEBESR 7
RIX() °
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42 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Interest rate risk (continued)

(i) Interest rate profile
The following table details the interest rate profile of
the Group’s net borrowings (being interest-bearing
financial liabilities less bank deposits and cash and
cash equivalents) at the end of the reporting period.

42 B[R B IR B AR R UR ()

FEmbR(E)

(i) FIEBR
TRENAEERHRERRZEEFER
(AEtEMBRBERERTERRRE R
ReEBY) 2 MEHR -

2016 2015
—EB-AF —THF
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
BRAI= BRRA=
% HK$’000 % HK$'000
BT T AT

Net fixed rate borrowings/ TEEE/ (TR
(deposits): R
Bank loans and finance RITEFRBMERE
lease payables e 3R 2.
Less: Pledged bank deposits 3 : 2iEMBITER
Deposits with banks RITIE 0.

Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEYM O

88 - 4.00 568,302 4.70-6.00 2,263,042

045  (543,340) - -
15-2.76 (43,964) 1.55-2.17  (164,654)
35-2.96  (878,704) 1.00-2.80  (901,813)

(897,706) 1,196,575

Net variable rate borrowings/ [ &8fE&& /(173)
(deposits): FEE
Bank loans RITER 0.
Less: Other receivables, o E b EEIR
deposits and we RIERN
prepayments HIE 4.
Pledged bank deposits SRR ITER 0.
Cash and cash RekBRe
equivalents ZEY 0.

70-6.00 21,047,347 1.47-5.88 13,657,624

75-5.39  (103,458) 475 (35,882)
01-0.35  (109,714) 027-1.35  (555,277)

01-1.50 (5,461,875) 0.01-1.00 (5,051,669

15,372,300 7,914,797

Total net borrowings BIEEFE

14,474,594 9,111,372
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42 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Interest rate risk (continued)

(i) Sensitivity analysis

42 B[R Be E IR B AZ M BUR ()

F = [EL bz (42)
(i) RS

At 31 December 2016, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of one percent in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would decrease/
increase the Group’s profit before tax by approximately
HK$144,746,000 (2015: HK$91,114,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit before tax
that would arise assuming that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the end of the reporting period
and had been applied to remeasure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose the
Group to fair value interest rate risk at the end of the
reporting period. In respect of the exposure to cash
flow interest rate risk arising from floating rate non-
derivative instruments held by the Group at the end of
the reporting period, the impact on the Group’s profit
before tax is estimated as an annualised impact on
interest expense or income of such a change in interest
rates. The analysis was performed on the same basis
for 2015.

RZE—RF+ZA=+—8 ' A&
B wmFREE LA THIER
D MATBHEMTEREZHIZTTE
AEBZHRBAIRF B SR, 18 NE
144,746,000 ( —ZE—RF B
91,114,0007T) °

ERGEELSTELARE ZBBRA &
MATREEE Z A& H - GURE DR
RN EREHNBERRELEL - AE
AREHFTEAKEATH LN HREH
REAEE@ERALBENERR 2SR
TH -8R AKERBREHRRATE
ZEBNEFTETEMELEZRER
MERRE  EEAKEGRTAIANZF
EREANNEEIMELZF B HHK
WAEEE - BEADHIR_-F—RFZ
DT 2 R EREETT -

Foreign currency risk Sh it R B
(i) Exposure to currency risk () FAARZZEEELRE

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
from bank loans, cash and cash equivalents, other
financial assets, receivables and payables that are
denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a currency
other than the functional currency of the operations to
which they relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk
are primarily Hong Kong dollars, RMB, United States
dollars, Singapore dollars and Euro dollars.

The following table details the Group’s exposure at
the end of the reporting period to currency risk arising
from recognised assets or liabilities denominated in
a currency other than the functional currency of the
entity to which they relate. For presentation purposes,
the amounts of the exposure are shown in Hong
Kong dollars, translated using the spot rate at the
reporting period end date. Differences resulting from
the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group’s presentation currency are
excluded.

AEBEEH 2 EEEREERB AINE
(AARBEEHHEETBRINZEE)
AEZRTER  BeMhBREFEY -
HMPHEEE - BUEAR BN -
FPhEERARZEETER/EBE - AR
% XIT RTINS TT R BREE o

TRAVAEERBEHRACHERE
EXAE(ARBEERZNEER U
BRI MEECERRAR - RTIEZ2
HEKRARZEBNEBRENMEE
B2 BNEAME & 35 0 BB 5IR - 85N
BZHMBRRrBREREEEZRERRKE
EZER - AEFARBRER
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42 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued)

(i) Exposure to currency risk (continued)

42 B[R B IR B AR R UR ()

SRR (4E)

() ZEA&S

T RE R (&)

Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
As at 31 December 2016
RER 2 NE R

WBBHE)

RZE—R"E+ZA=+—H
United
Hong Kong States  Singapore Euro
dollars RMB dollars dollars dollars
B AR EYH 7 h03R T BE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BET T BT T BET T BETT BT T
Pledged bank deposits BEARTER - - 543,340 - -
Cash and cash equivalents B4 RIR&%(EY) 4,052 233,581 675,246 10,681 21,552
Other financial assets HnB s & - = 24,225 - -
Bank loans RITER - - (3,055,052) - (1,012,781)
Amounts due from/(to) JEN (R )EE
group companies (net) NEFIB(EE) 35,654 563,036 (223,391) 10,267 58,103
Creditors, other payables [ERBRTN « BN
and accrued expenses DEREER - (24,825) (30,379) (1,675) (520)
39,706 771,792  (2,066,011) 19,273 (933,646)
Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
As at 31 December 2015
REER 2 NE R
(AB%EE)
—hF+-A=1—H
United
Hong Kong States  Singapore
dollars RMB dollars dollars
B N ET HET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT
Cash and cash equivalents BeFReEEY 97,985 651,510 96,135 2,703
Other financial assets HiB A E - - 15,503 -
Bank loans %Eﬁf%m (684,974) - (1,751,629) -
Amounts due from/(to) group [/ (& NEIFZIE
companies (net) (@%ﬁ) (25,049) 456,336 (356,033) -
Creditors, other payables and RS - EtERRER
accrued expenses EER - (36,865) (2,338) -
(612,038) 1,070,981  (1,998,356) 2,703
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42 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 42 BRI EIR B2 MBUR (&)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued) SN R (E)
(i) Sensitivity analysis (i) RS

The following table indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit before tax that would
arise if foreign exchange rates to which the Group
has significant exposure at the end of the reporting
period had changed at that date, assuming all other
risk variables remained constant. In this respect, it is
assumed that the pegged rate between the Hong Kong
dollar and the United States dollar would be materially
unaffected by any changes in movement in value of
the United States dollar against other currencies.
The impact of foreign exchange rate fluctuations with
respect to the assets and liabilities denominated in
United States dollars is insignificant as the Hong Kong
dollar is pegged to the United States dollar.

TRETBRRBERRUYLAEEEE
AFEZEXNEALBREY  mMAE
Eﬁﬂﬂf&?ml%ﬁ%?“ ' ):'E%$%

mtm $%lﬂ?‘“%nﬁﬁ1‘@ ’ﬁ%
ZEEZ2 B IHETEITZEN
BBEXBREANTE - RMAXTFE
Zﬁé&ﬁﬂzﬁﬁm © BB T B S T
8 BULERRB 2 FEEM

As at 31 December

#t=A=t-8
2016 2015
ZE-KF —Z-hfF
Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in  (decrease)in  (decrease)in  (decrease)in
foreign  profit before foreign profit before
exchange tax exchange tax
rates BRBLAT rates FRBEAT
Ext#/  BFEM/ ExtA/  BREN/
(F&) (H2) (%) (Bi4)
% HK$’000 % HK$'000
BRI BB
Hong Kong dollars BE 10 3,971 10 (61,204)
(10) (3,971) (10) 61,204
RMB ARE 10 77,179 10 107,098
(10) (77,179) (10) (107,098)
United States dollars e 10 (607,755) 10 (110,999
(10) 607,755 (10) 110,999
Singapore dollars T 10 1,927 10 270
(10) (1,927) (10) (270)
Euro dollars B 10 (93,365) - -
(10) 93,365 - -
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42 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 42 rsR R E IR B IR RBUR (&)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued) 9I\“‘m"ﬂl“(€%)

(i) Sensitivity analysis (continued) (i) BEE W ()
Results of the analysis as presented in the above J:i%zﬁlJZ DT R T A EEEE
table represent an aggregation of the instantaneous AIATIAEE e BB E 2 BRIRATR
effects on each of the Group entities’ profit before FzAEEE  BETEUmERRZ
tax measured in the respective functional currencies, EXFTEHABEEZW -

translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rate ruling at the end of the reporting period for
presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change BRESMNDBEEZTEEHEARNERN
in foreign exchange rates had been applied to HEAEBMBESASENREHR
remeasure those financial instruments held by the E‘?ﬁﬁ\\ﬁgﬂﬁﬁZ%%ﬂIﬂ CBIESER
Group which expose the Group to foreign currency NAIANERARBRAZEE B A
risk at the end of the reporting period, including inter- SN BB 2 B FOE R SRR -
company payables and receivables within the Group TEINETE 2 ﬁﬁ“&ﬁi‘%%ﬁl S REBEERE
which are denominated in a currency other than the BINEECER T AEKRER -
functional currencies of the lender or the borrower. The A Feﬁﬁﬁh\?:?*ﬂiZﬁ?ﬁZ*H ez
analysis excludes differences that would result from AEHETT ©

the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group’s presentation currency. The
analysis was performed on the same basis for 2015.
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42 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 42 B EkREIE B R RECR (£)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk

Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to credit risk are monitored on an ongoing
basis. Debts are usually due within 30 to 90 days from the
date of billing.

Debtors of the Group represent receivables in respect of
revenue from environmental energy, environmental water
and greentech project operation services which are settled
on a monthly basis. In addition, the Group has gross
amounts due from customers for contract work and other
receivables in respect of the BT, BOT, TOT and certain
BOO arrangements.

At the end of the reporting period, debtors, other
receivables, deposits and prepayments and gross
amounts due from customers for contract work of
the Group amounted to HK$9,831,429,000 (2015:
HK$8,757,330,000) and HK$21,033,228,000
(2015: HK$17,369,353,000) respectively, of which
HK$1,281,527,000 (2015: HK$249,495,000) and
HK$3,742,075,000 (2015: HK$3,214,540,000) were due
from the largest customer and the five largest customers
in aggregate of the Group, respectively. The maximum
exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset in the statement of financial
position. Since the parties to BT, BOT, TOT and BOO
arrangements are local government authorities in the PRC,
the Group considers the credit risk is low. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which would
expose the Group or the Company to credit risk. Further
quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from “Gross amounts due from
customers for contract work” as well as “Debtors, other
receivables, deposits and prepayments” are set out in
notes 23 and 25 to the financial statements, respectively.

FERR
EEERETHREN foﬂl  WHAR R
SEFfEYzEERR BEEBEHOESA

HEdA=1t=A1+H WZ@JE&@ °

RNEB 2 BRIRRIERBIRRER « IRIFRK
B RHEERRIEBEB 2ESERBE WS 2 UK
B BERERAKE o 1IN - NEBITE
W KRBT » BOT * TOTRZMHBOOL 2 fE Uk
REAHIRF BB REMERZE -

RB|ERR - AEB 2 [BUERF - EfbE
WHIE e hBAREIRIBREFE
W TRFIBEBE D B AE%9,831,429,000
T (ZF — A F : & % 8,757,330,000
7T ) KB #21,033,228,000t (ZZE — Hh
& 8 #17,369,353,000 7T ) © H & ik
¥ 1,281,527,000 L (Z T — A F : B
249,495,000t ) K & #3,742,075,0007T (=
T—FF : B#3,214,540,0007T) 2 Bl A2
SESEREFARRAREFAFTRK - 2
BERBz &S EERTBKNERFIZRSEG
BEEZEEEZY - 3BT« BOT » TOT
MBOOZHE T 2 51497539 B Bl & Hb BT 1
W RAEERAEERREBER - AEE
B EERFEEAERRD -

ANEEE A AR (] & S A K B s AR D Rl
ZEERRBZER ASE[BEEFEH
HD*@EZ"%EJ&H‘&‘M&BEM H b & YK

RS RENFBEIAEERR 2 #—
%/F%(%F?&E%’ Euﬁﬁéﬁﬂ%#ﬁ%mﬂsxzw
5E25 ©
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42 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands, subject
to approval by the parent company’s board when the
borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels of
authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash and adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s
non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the end of the reporting period)
and the earliest date the Group can be required to pay.

42 B R

N
7=y

TREE & E R
AEBETBYLEEEEAATAERS
BT E?ﬁﬁ@%ﬁﬁz%i,ﬁ)%?xﬁ&ﬁ%f
FAREMTERRE SR K - ENEEBLETE
B RIAESRRESS ZHER 7]
BB - AEB v HRERRECHERRSESH
EREREWERZEZETERL  BRE
B R R R IR R E B SRS EX
ﬁﬂ%%%aZf?é VA B A~ 52 B & = B

TRINTAEERHERRZIETETE
BEBZHGELWHRIBR - WAFTLIARE,
RRSRE(BBEZANFERZ(NBEZE)
BEREARBITZHNEFE ZFE) RAR
SEABRAEMRIEBZ T HBHRREEMS
ﬁ °

2016
T
Total More than More than
contractual Within 1 year 2 years
undiscounted 1 year or but within but within
Carrying cashflow  on demand 2 years 5years  More than
amount  FTAIREE  —FREH —Ef mEk 5 years
REE Renzss BEX {ERmER BRER nEk
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AETT AT AT AT EETT EETT
Financial liabilties inclued in T ABRER - AR
creditors, other payables and FERETERL
accrued expenses BHRE 4,504,833 4,504,833 4,479,668 10,509 14,656 -
Interest-bearing borrowings iTEEE 21,615,649 24,563,432 5058014 4,351,791 11,490,729 3,662,898
26,120,482 29,068,265 9,537,682 4,362,300 11,505,385 3,662,898
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42 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 42 s e E IR B R RBUR (&)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) REBESRKR(EZ)
2015
—E-n%
Total More than More than
contractual Within 1 year 2 years
undiscounted 1 year or but within but within
Carrying cashflow  ondemand 2 years 5years  More than
amount  GTAARER  —ERF —Ef mEk 5 years
BHE Henshd BER [EmER BRERA ik
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BT BETT BETT
Financial liabilties included in T AR - Eft R
creditors, other payables and FERESERL
acorued expenses nBaE 2,792,050 2,792,050 2,792,050 - - -
Interest-bearing borrowings iTEEE 15,820,666  17,948300 3995811 4018632 7442049 2491808
18,612,716 20,740,350 6,787,861 4,018,632 7,442,049 2,491,808
Equity price risk BRAERE

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from
equity investments classified as available-for-sale equity
investments (note 21). The Group’s listed investments
are listed on the Stock Exchange. The Group’s unquoted
investments are held for long term strategic purposes.
The management monitors regularly the performance of
the investments against expectation, together with an
assessment of their relevance to the Group’s long term
strategic plans.

AEEARZBPARE(RBE/FTERAR
B AWE21) 2R AERESRR - A&
B EMEESEBIM LT - AEEZ3F
ETREHARPREBENMITR - B2
ETHMERSARECERERYRR - ¥
HEBERARERERAARE 2 R ARG

g -
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42 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Equity price risk (continued)

At 31 December 2016, it is estimated that an increase/
decrease of 10% (2015: 10%) in that relevant stock market
index (for listed investments) or the price/earning ratios of
comparable listed companies (for unquoted investments)
as applicable, with all other variables held constant, would
have increased/decreased the Group’s other components
of consolidated equity as follows:

42 B[R B IR B AR R UR ()

IR B RS (42)
R-ZE—RNE+-_A=+—8 BEAEEG
o mEERTEK(ERR LEMIRE) &
AR ETARCTAER(ERRIELT
BE)(BAEEA) LA/ THI0%(ZF
—HF I 10%) MABAEM N ERAZER

N REBE 2 ixE w2 HME e
jJD/xEEQZZDT-

2016 2015
Effect of Effect of
other components other components
of equity of equity
— N —F-RF
ERzHtHB 228 B HthEth o 28
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BETT
Change in the relevant equity BRI ANBRERER T E R E
price risk variable: a2 |
Increase A 10% 3,333 10% 2,480
Decrease T 10% (3,333) 10% (2,480)

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group’s other components of consolidated equity
that would arise assuming that the changes in the stock
market index or other relevant risk variables had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and had been applied to
remeasure those financial instruments held by the Group
which expose the Group to equity price risk at the end
of the reporting period. It is also assumed that the fair
values of the Group’s equity investments would change in
accordance with the historical correlation with the relevant
stock market index or the relevant risk variables, that
none of the Group’s available-for-sale investments would
be considered impaired as a result of the decrease in the
relevant stock market index or other relevant risk variables,
and that all other variables remain constant. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2015.

ERBRESTEH AR 2 AR ZHE
m%@T EEEZERES - FRESTR
REMEHREMERRR TN ERRZES)
RBERREKLELE  YEAREHNFER
£ B A5 A WA R 5 HI R 8 AN & 1B o (e AU AR
ERERZEBIAE - 1t TERRAEE
AR E 2 R EERIEEARRE AT 158k
HERR T ERE 2 BFENELEBIEM
EEEY  AREZHFERETSEAREH
P T 45 Bk B b AR B AL B T E B R N K T AR
BRELRFER - UARABEEMTEREEZE
FAE - FRASIMR_T—AFZ2HMZME
RIEEHETT o
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42 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Capital management
The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to maintain a strong credit rating and healthy capital
ratios in order to support its business and maximise
shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. The Group reviews the capital structure on a
regular basis and considers the cost of capital and the
associated risks. Based on recommendations of the board
of directors, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through adjusting the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, new shares issues or new debt financing.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the years ended 31
December 2016 and 2015.

The Group monitors capital with reference to its debt
position. The Group’s strategy was to maintain the equity
and debt in a balanced position and ensure there were
adequate working capital to service its debt obligation.
The Group’s gearing ratio, being the Group’s total liabilities
over its total assets, as at 31 December 2016 was 60%
(2015: 52%).

Except for the banking facilities which require the fulfilment
of covenants relating to certain of the Group’s financial
ratios as disclosed in note 29 to the financial statements,
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject
to externally imposed capital requirements.

43 COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS
As set out in note 4, certain comparative amounts have
been reclassified to conform with the current year’s
presentation and disclosures.
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42 B[R Be E IR B AZ M BUR ()

EXEE
AEBEREAZIZEANEZRERERD
EEFRRBRNERL R  AXFEKE
1E » W RBEREREAN = -

AEBEEBEEARBORE  TEeREL
ERA BBHEARNRBIELAR - XEHE
SEMBIEARNRRE » WINAZEEEARKA
RABAR - REE=ZQ@ 22 A5EE
BRBFH N TRRZBEEE - BITHK
NABEFNEGRE  HHFHELER
Aig - RBE_F-—RER_FT-—AFt+=
A=t—HALmMEFERN EEEAZE
12 BRIBEFERFTE -

AEBEEBLRBREBBEERRERERER -
REBMZKRE  EREFESBEBENEE T
& BRECHEEESINEL W%
—NE+-A=1+—B AEBZEEAE
hR(AEBMZABERIBEEMSZ
H)E60%(—T—FF : 52%) °

B TSR M 2B RITREAT S
ETEBARER B R 2 ZEI  ARF]
REALAINER B HEZINEMZ EARR
FEFTIR S o

43 LEEBHF
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44 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the

44 RRBZ M BEARR K

ATRRBERARETRABMBEARARKRZE

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: ¥
2016 2015
—E-XKE “T-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R NREE 3,223 3,167
Interests in subsidiaries S NG X 15,283,307 12,109,370
Prepayments BT RIE 5,917 -
Other financial assets BB EE 3,899 3,899
Total non-current assets EMENE EBTE 15,296,346 12,116,436
Current assets MBEE
Other receivables, deposits and HMEUWRIE - ke &k
prepayments SCENE S 27,012 76,189
Cash and cash equivalents HeRFESZEY 1,069,289 571,934
Total current assets MEEERT 1,096,301 648,123
Current liabilities mENEE
Other payables and accrued expenses H N RIE R ERT B R 59,422 38,114
Interest-bearing borrowings STEEE
- Secured —AEH - 75,000
- Unsecured — R 586,223 -
586,223 75,000
Total current liabilities MEBERTE 645,645 113,114
Net Current Assets MENEEFRE 450,656 535,009
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities #&ER i8I & & 15,747,002 12,651,445
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44 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY (continued)

Information about the statement of financial position of the
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44 KRB Z A TSAN R ()

ATBRBERARARBDMBERARKRZE

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: wB(8)
(continued)
2016 2015
—F—7»"F —T-LF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT
Non-current liabilities EMBEE
Interest-bearing borrowings TREE
- Secured — B 1,000,000 500,000
— Unsecured — 4 6,067,083 3,816,869
7,067,083 4,316,869
Due to subsidiaries RNl PNGIE ] 37,596 71,348
Total non-current liabilities e B EEE 7,104,679 4,388,217
Net Assets BEEFE 8,642,323 8,263,228
Equity =
Share capital N 7,405,414 7,405,414
Reserves R 1,236,909 857,814
TOTAL EQUITY R EE 8,642,323 8,263,228
Chen Xiaoping Wang Tianyi
BR /N FR=E
Director Director
EBE EFE
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44 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 44 R B Z BTSN R (&)

THE COMPANY (continued)

Note: M3t -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: ARRZEEREOT:
Special Retained
reserve profits Total
FEREE REEF “RFE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT T BT T
At 1 January 2015 R-_ZE—RF—HF—H - 800,047 800,047
Total comprehensive income for the year FE2ERALE - 618,231 618,231
Final 2014 dividend declared PER-_ZE—NERAKRE - (269,023) (269,023)
Interim 2015 dividend —E-hEPHRE - (291,441) (291,441)
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 R=—ZT—hR4E&+-A=+—HK
—E—-XF—H—H - 857,814 857,814
Total comprehensive income for the year FEEZMRALE - 1,253,344 1,253,344
Final 2015 dividend declared PER-E—AFEREAKRE - (5638,045) (5638,045)
Interim 2016 dividend —ERERERE - (336,204) (336,204)
At 31 December 2016 R-ZE—XRF+=-_A=+—H - 1,236,909 1,236,909
A E

On 5 January 2004, the Company announced its intention to put
forward a proposal for the reduction of the Company’s share premium
account by the sum of HK$2,372,172,824 (i.e. accumulated losses
of the Company as at 30 September 2003) and the application of
the same amount of credit arising from such reduction towards the
elimination of the accumulated losses of the Company. The reduction
of the share premium account, approved by the shareholders at
the extraordinary general meeting held on 2 February 2004, was
confirmed by an order made by the High Court of Hong Kong (the
“Court”) on 2 March 2004 and became effective upon registration of
the said order by the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong on the
same date.

ZNE—ARR  ARFRAMERRESRS
BB R B AR (0@ (B BR B % 2,372,172,824 L (BIA A
RABZE-_ZZT=FNA=+HZRHBE) LG4
ARG BERFTE A 2 R — ST RS EAREHEA
RAZ BFHEE - AR S ERFEER-_ZTH
FZAZHABRTZREFIAG FERESE - R
—EENFE= A BREEHR S AR (AR ) EL S
LT UBREKRAARER B RES R B ME SR
EMBESEEMR -
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44 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

Note: (continued)

To safeguard the interests of the Company’s creditors, the Company
undertakes to the Court to create a special reserve upon the reduction
of the share premium account on the terms set out below:

1)

@

that for so long as there shall remain outstanding any debt of
or claim against the Company which, if the date on which the
reduction of the share premium account of the Company (the
“Effective Date”) were the commencement of the winding-up of
the Company, would be admissible to proof in such winding-
up and the person entitled to the benefit thereof shall not have
consented to the said reduction of the share premium account or
agreed otherwise, the Company shall credit to a special reserve
in the books of the Company (the “Special Reserve”):

any amount arising by reason of a release of any provision
taken into account in establishing the accumulated losses
of the Company shown in the statement of financial position
of the management accounts of the Company for the nine
months ended 30 September 2003; or

any amount received by the Company as profit by way of
distribution from a corporation which was a subsidiary or an
associated company of the Company at the Effective Date
(a “subsidiary” or an “associated company” respectively)
which is made by such subsidiary or associated company
out of profits available for distribution prior to the Effective
Date or any dividend paid to the Company in respect of
any liquidation of a subsidiary or an associated company
commencing prior to the Effective Date; and

the Special Reserve:

shall not be treated as realised profits of the Company; and

shall, for so long as the Company shall remain a limited
company, be treated as an undistributable reserve of the
Company for the purposes of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance or any statutory modification or re-enactment
thereof.
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(1) ERARRHERB D EERERE R (TERA
) (EZBRARBERRFMIGH) R ADLAEER
RBERBHARTHERR - MUSEBLRRS
AAREREE I HMEEER  BREER
F AR AR E Ll RO &
EBEREE  AAQAARTRERCALRR AR
BZERIREE(TRRIREDT

— RABOEFARRAHE_TZT=FNA
=+HENERERERE 2B R
PRBEBERZEMBREMEEZSE
B

— ARAR-R2ARBASERENDIK
2 BERARRERABMAARA N
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ZBNXZAM - AR BRERE HAE R
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44 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

Note: (continued)

Provided always that:

1

@

the Special Reserve may be applied for the same purposes as a
share premium account may lawfully be applied;

the amount standing to the credit of the Special Reserve may be
reduced by an amount equal to any increase, after the Effective
Date, in the share premium account of the Company which
results from an issue of shares (other than for the purposes of
any redemption or purchase by the Company of its own shares)
for cash or other consideration or by way of the capitalisation
of distributable profits or reserves, and the Company shall be
at liberty to transfer the amount so reduced to the general
reserves of the Company and the same shall become available
for distribution;

the amount credited to the Special Reserve in accordance with
the foregoing provisions of this undertaking shall not at any time
exceed HK$1,762,999,500 (the “Limit”);

the Limit may be reduced by the amount of any increase, after
the Effective Date, in the paid-up share capital or share premium
account of the Company which results from an issue of shares
(other than for the purposes of any redemption or purchase by
the Company of its own shares) for cash or other consideration or
by way of the capitalisation of distributable profits or reserves;

the Limit may be reduced upon the liquidation, disposal or other
realisation, after the Effective Date, of a subsidiary, an associated
company or any of the financial assets or property, plant and
equipment of the Company by the amount of the provision made
in relation to such subsidiary, associated company or financial
assets or property, plant and equipment as at 30 September
2003 less such amount (if any) as credited to the Special Reserve
as a result of such liquidation, disposal or realisation; and

44 KRB ZBATEANLER (48)

ffE: (&)

;3

(1)

@)

FrRlRET BEERNRDEERZAERE

FrRlREER SR REDR - BERELEMAH
% - FABTERN (AARRMEEKEE RS KD
ERNBRBR G RE MR EIEBENEA D
& 2 ) 3 5 8 1 51 BN 2 B AR {0 i (B ARG n 2
B ARFNEHERERIRDZBEARFZ
—REE - MABSREAIHRIIKZA

BB Z Ll TR ARG SBEER
B 5B BB%1,762,999,5007T ([ A BE
PREE])

EEMBBE  ABETRO(BARREDRE
BERGBRONHERIN LIRS X EMAERER
BRIk B M R T 5l A R F 2 BB
AFEBRBERE M BABIERDBRARE

REZBHE  EF8  HEINEMT XER
MEAR - BERBRARRREMSBEEELY
¥ BELEER R-ZT=FAA=1+A%
ERMBAR BMERARKMBEERDE B
ERFBRERBZEFSFR LABR  HEX
BREFMELZFIRBEERSB(WME)Z
2o RERDERRE K
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44 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 44 NN Z BTSN R (&)

THE COMPANY (continued)

Note: (continued)
Provided always that: (continued)

(6) in the event that the amount standing to the credit of the Special
Reserve at any time exceeds the Limit after any reduction of the
Limit pursuant to provisos (4) and/or (5) above, the Company
shall be at liberty to transfer the amount of any such excess to
the general reserves of the Company and the same shall become
available for distribution.

The Special Reserve of HK$112,016,000 credited in 2004
was reduced to Nil during the year ended 31 December
2006 due to an increase in the share premium account of
the Company which resulted from an issue of shares in
2006.

After the Effective Date, shares were issued during the
prior years through the placing and exercise of share
options. Pursuant to the proviso (4) above, the Limit was
reduced by the amount of any increase in the paid-up
share capital or share premium account of the Company
which results from an issue of shares for cash or other
considerations. At 31 December 2016, the Limit was
reduced to Nil and no further amount will be credited to the
Special Reserve.

Mzt (&)
e (#)

(6) fWIRIE EXE @) R (B EEIR B BRER RS
PliFEz ERSBERAEBRE  AQRIATAH
HEREZBEARARZ —MEHE TEBSE
AHDIERZA -

RBEE-_ZEZENF+_A=+—HIEHF
B RZZEZEWNFARZFERREESE
112,016,000t BEE - REAAARA R =
T RNFRITRMO AR & ERIE T
g(o

EEBRARE  RNBEFE ARFREES
FELBREETEMETRND - RELX
FA)iE FETRNMBIRSIEMKEM
SIEARA Z BB AN S A 0 i B IR IE iz
BERERLEBRE - R-_T—RF1+=
A=+t—H0 BHERBEERET  ULBE
El e B AR RIFERE -
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45 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 45 = ZB A

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

AIER

ARRFR 2B RABFBWT:

follows:
Place of Issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary share/ equity attributable
registration paid up to the Company
and business capital  ARFEIEERE DL
Name A/ BETLERR/ Direct Indirect  Principal activities
2 BRREBE #RRE BE Rk FEEH
CEWL" (note (f)) Bermuda  HK$2,609,908,001 - 75%  Investment holding
EARKE"(HEE) AE#E 5%2,609,908,0017T RERHR
Everbright Alternative Energy (Dangshan) PRC/ HK$125,800,000 - 100%  Design, construction, operation
Company Limited " (note (c)) Mainland China  7%125,800,0007T and maintenance of biomass
RAFER(BIWL)ERRA " (M) FE/HE AR direct combustion project
niu-‘- LL L &ZE
EMEEMER
Everbright Biomass Energy PRC/ HK$127,000,000 - 100%  Design, construction, operation
(Hanshan) Gompany Limited"* (note (c)) Mainland China  7&%127,000,0007C and maintenance of biomass
KREMER(BIL)BRAR E/REARE direct combustion project
(Wuﬂ )) EXIJ-‘- LL L &Zﬁ
EMEEMER
Everbright Biomass Energy PRC/ RMB75,600,000 - 100%  Design, construction, operation
(Sugian) Company Limited " (note (c)) Mainland China AR %75,600,0007 and maintenance of biomass
KAEMER(ER)BRAT FE /AR direct combustion project
(M) Hat B EERAE
EMEEMER
Everbright Biomass Energy PRC/ US$16,500,000 - 100%  Design, construction, operation
(Xuyi) Company Limited™" (note (c)) Mainland China 16,500,000%7T and maintenance of biomass
KAEMEER (Fi)BRAR R E/HEARE direct combustion project
(muﬂ )) EXIJ-‘- LL L &Zﬁ

EMEEMER
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45 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 45 =EWBARIER (&)
(continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as RRREEMBRARIGEAT : (&)
follows: (continued)

Place of Issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary share/ equity attributable
registration paid up to the Company
and business capital  KAAFEEEREDL
Name Ealave BETEER/ Direct Indirect  Principal activities
! BRREKE BRBRA Ek A IREH
Everbright Changzhou Hi-tech PRC/ US$23,000,000 - 60%  Design, construction, operation
Environmental Energy (Changzhou) Mainland China 23,000,000% T and maintenance of waste-to-
Co., Ltd.""(note (d)) HE /B AR energy plant
KRERIMERER(EM) #it B BERME
BRAR (M) SREER
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC/  RMB138,986,300 - 100%  Design, construction, operation
(Boluo) Ltd." " (note (d) Mainland China A K% 138,986,3007T and maintenance of waste-to-
KRBRER(BE)BRAR" /B AR energy plant
(M) #it B BERME
NREER
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC/  RMB137,520,000 - 100%  Design, construction, operation
(Changzhou) Co., Ltd. * (note (d)) Mainland China - A &#%137,520,0007 and maintenance of waste-to-
ERBERER(EMERAE" E/REARE energy plant
(M) #it B BERME
NREER
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC/ US$46,579,196 - 100%  Design, construction, operation
(Jiangyin) Ltd.”" (note (d)) Mainland China 46,579,196 T and maintenance of waste-to-
KABRER(IR)BRAR " E /A AR energy plants
(M) #it B BERAE

SREEH
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45 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 45 =ZERBARIER (&)
(continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as RRREEMBRRIFEAT : (&)
follows: (continued)

Place of Issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary share/ equity attributable
registration paid up to the Company
and business capital  AAFEEEREDHL
Name L/ BETERR/ Direct Indirect  Principal activities
] T BRBA Ek Rk FEEHK
Everbright Environmental Energy (Jinan) PRC/  RMB305,406,000 - 100%  Design, construction, operation
Co., Ltd."*(note (d)) Mainland China A E#%305,406,0007C and maintenance of waste-to-
¥ ARRER(ER) BRAR BE /B AR energy plant
(M) Hit B BERAE
SREER
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC/ RMB680,000,000 - 100%  Design, construction, operation
(Nanjing) Ltd."" (notes (c) and (d) Mainland China A E#%680,000,0007C and maintenance of waste-to-
KABRRER (AR BRAA " RE/REAR energy plants
(M) R(d) Hit B BERME
SREER
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC/ RMB250,000,000 - 80%  Design, construction, operation
(Ningbo) Co., Ltd.** (note (d)) Mainland China A E#%250,000,0007C and maintenance of waste-to-
KABRER(ER)BRA RE/REAR energy plants
(M) Hit B BERME
SREER
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC/ HK$135,300,000 - 100%  Design, construction, operation
(Pizhou) Ltd. " (note (d)) Mainland China  /%%135,300,0007C and maintenance of waste-to-
KABRGR(BM)ERAT " E /B AR energy plant
(M) Hit B BERAE

HREER
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45 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 45 =EZWEB A ArIE R (&)
(continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
follows: (continued)

AATEEMBATFENT : ()

Place of Issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary share/ equity attributable
registration paid up to the Company
and business capital  KAAFEEEREDL
Name Ealave BETEER/ Direct Indirect  Principal activities
! EEWES k] BRBRA Ek A IREH
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC/  RMB116,500,000 - 100%  Design, construction, operation
(Rizhao) Limited"* (note (d) Mainland China A % 116,500,0007 and maintenance of waste-to-
KARRER(BR)BRAA /B AR energy plant
(M) #it B BERME
NREER
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC/ RMB528,000,000 - 70%  Design, construction, operation
(Hangzhou) Limited " (note (d) Mainland China A E#528,000,0007 and maintenance of waste-to-
KABRER M) BRAF E/REARE energy plant
(M) #it B BERME
NREER
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC/  RMB124,053,000 - 100%  Design, construction, operation
(Yiyang) Ltd."* (note (d)) Mainland China A E#124,053,0007C and maintenance of waste-to-
KARRER (S5 BRAF E/REARE energy plant
(M) #it B BERME
NREER
Everbright Environmental Energy (Yixing) PRC/ US$11,520,000 - 100%  Design, construction, operation
Ltd."" (note (d)) Mainland China 11,520,000% T and maintenance of waste-to-
KARRER(EE)ERAA E /A AR energy plants
(M) #it B BERAE
NREER
Everbright Environmental Energy (Sanya) PRC/ HK$222,000,000 - 100%  Design, construction, operation

Co., Ltd.""(note (d))
KRERER(ZR)BRLA "
(P3E(d)

Mainland China
HE /B AR

7%:222,000,0007C

and maintenance of waste-to-
energy plants

REBE - BEREE
HREER
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(continued)

China Everbright International Limited

Notes to Financial Statements
gy & E

31 December 2016 —E— X &E+=-A=+—H

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows: (continued)

45 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 45 X ZWBARIER (&)

ARBEEMBRBFBOT : (&)

Place of Issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary share/ equity attributable
registration paid up to the Company
and business capital  AAFEEEREDHL
Name L/ BETERR/ Direct Indirect  Principal activities
] T BRBA Ek Rk FEEHK
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC/ HK$138,430,000 - 100%  Design, construction, operation
(Shouguang) Co., Ltd."" (note (d)) Mainland China /% 138,430,000 and maintenance of waste-to-
¥ARRER(BF)BERAF E /B AR energy plant
(MEH() Hit B BERAE
SIREER
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC/ US$28,700,000 - 100%  Design, construction, operation
(Sugian) Ltd.” (note (d)) Mainland China 28,700,000% T and maintenance of waste-to-
KABRER(BE)BRAR" RE/REAR energy plants
(MEH() Hit B BERAE
SIREER
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC/  RMB568,000,000 - Note (a)  Design, construction, operation
(Suzhou) Ltd. (“EB Energy Mainland China A& 568,000,0007C Mt () and maintenance of waste-to-
(Suzhou)" )" (note (d) BE /B AR energy plants
KARRRER(EM)BRAT Hit B BERAE
(TR REER (ERM) )+ NEEER
(M)
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC/ US$30,990,000 - 100%  Design, construction, operation
(Weifang) Co., Ltd."" (note (d)) Mainland China 30,990,000 T and maintenance of waste-to-
¥ARRER () BRAR FE/HE AR energy plants

(FraE())

RGBS BEREE
HREER



(continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows: (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements
B &SRR EE

31 December 2016 —E—"&E+=-A=+—H
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45 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 45 X ZBARIER (&)

ARFEEMBATENT : (4)

Place of Issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary share/ equity attributable
registration paid up to the Company
and business capital  KAAFEEEREDL
Name Ealave BETEER/ Direct Indirect  Principal activities
! BRREKE BRBRA Ek A IREH
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC/  RMB262,000,000 - 100%  Design, construction, operation
(Zhenjiang) Co., Ltd."* (note (d)) Mainland China A E#%262,000,0007 and maintenance of waste-to-
KARRERET)ERRA E /A AR energy plants
(M) #it B BERME
NREER
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC/ RMB83,340,000 - 100%  Design, construction, operation
(Dangshan) Company Limited * (note (d)) Mainland China A £7%83,340,0007 and maintenance of
KARRER (B BRAA E/REARE integrated biomass and
(B(d) waste-to-energy project
Rt B BEREEENE
RAREER—BI(LER
Everbright Environmental Technical PRC/ RMB131,000,000 - 100%  Manufacturing of environmental
Equipment (Changzhou) Limited " Mainland China A & #131,000,0007 protection equipment
ARBRREMEE(EMN)BRA" hEl/ EAE BERRR
Everbright Environmental Protection PRC/ US$46,000,000 100% - Provision of construction
(China) Limited " Mainland China 46,000,000 T management services and
KARR(PE)ERAF E /R AR investment holding

R TREEREIREER
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(continued)

China Everbright International Limited

Notes to Financial Statements
gy & E

31 December 2016 —E— X &E+=-A=+—H

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows: (continued)

45 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 45 X ZWBARIER (&)

ARBEEMBRBFBOT : (&)

Place of Issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary share/ equity attributable
registration paid up to the Company
and business captal  ARFEMERE DL
Name L/ BETERR/ Direct Indirect  Principal activities
] T BRBA Ek Rk FEEHK
Everbright Water (Jiangyin) Limited*" PRC/ RMB180,000,000 - 70%  Design, construction, operation
(notes (c) and (e)) Mainland China A #%180,000,0007C and maintenance of waste-
KAKBOIR)BRAR RE/REAR water treatment plants
GEEE) Hit B BERAE
KRR
Everbright Water (Ji'nan) Limited " PRC/ 1S$53,750,000 - 100%  Design, construction, operation
(note (g)) Mainland China 53,750,000% T and maintenance of waste-
K AKB (BB BRAR" RE/REAR water treatment plants
(MizHe) Hit B BERAE
KRR
Everbright Water PRC/ RMB148,530,000 - 100%  Design, construction, operation

(Ji'nan Licheng) Limited"" (note (€))
RAKBEEER) BRG]
(H3E(e)

Mainland China A X% 148,530,0007C
e/ hE AR

and maintenance of waste-
water treatment plants and
reusable water treatment
plant

Wit B BEREE
KEER R KERRER
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45 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 45 =EWBARIER (&)
(continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as RRREEMBRARIGEAT : (&)
follows: (continued)

Place of Issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary share/ equity attributable
registration paid up to the Company
and business capital  KAAFEEEREDL
Name Ealave BETEER/ Direct Indirect  Principal activities
& B REBE BRRE BE A TEXRK
Everbright Water (Xinyi) Limited* PRC/ HK$174,590,000 - 100%  Design and construction of
KRR FR ) BRAR Mainland China  7%174,590,0007C waste-water treatment plant
e/ B AR and surface water treatment
plant
R RBEETKEERR
RKEERH
Everbright Water (Zibo) Limited " PRC/ US$31,158,000 - 100%  Design, construction, operation
(note (e)) Mainland China 31,158,000%7T and maintenance of waste-
FARKBCEE)BRRE " (MiEe) HE /PR AR water treatment plants and
reusable water treatment
plants
Hit B BEREE
KRR Rk E B RER
Everbright Water (Qingdao) Limited PRC/ US$15,257,000 - Note (b) ~ Construction, operation and
(EB Water Qingdao)*" (note (g)) Mainland China 15,257,000% T M (o) maintenance of waste-water
KAKB(ES)BRAT e/ B AR treatment plants
(TRAKBEEE ) (Hite) i BERME

KRR
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Notes to Financial Statements
B SRR =T

31 December 2016 —E— X &E+=-A=+—H

45 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 45 =EWEB A ARIE R (&)
(continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
follows: (continued)

ARTEEMBAREENT ¢ (4)

Place of Issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary share/ equity attributable
registration paid up to the Company
and business capital  AAFEEEREDHL

Name L/ BETERR/ Direct Indirect  Principal activities
] T BRBA Ek Rk FEEHK
Everbright Wind Power (Ningwu) PRC/ RMB258,360,000 - 100%  Design, construction, operation

Company Limited"" Mainland China A & #258,360,0007T and maintenance of wind
KARE(ZER)BRAA" RE/REAR power projects

Hit BE EERAEEEER

Suzhou Wujiang Everbright PRC/  RMB306,925,500 - 100%  Design, construction, operation

Environmental Energy Ltd. " (note (d)) Mainland China  AX%306,925,5007C and maintenance of waste-to-
BMRIHARRER WE/hEARE energy plant

ARAE(HEHd) Hit B BERAE

HREER

Everbright Environmental Energy PRC/  RMB120,110,000 - 100%  Design, construction, operation

(Pingdu) Ltd. "(note (d)) Mainland China A K #120,110,0007C and maintenance of waste-to-
KABRER(EE)BRAR " RE /B AR energy plant

(MEE() Wit B ERRME

HREER

Registered under the laws of the PRC as foreign investment
enterprises.

Registered under the laws of the PRC as sino-foreign co-
operation joint ventures.

Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member
firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

Notes:

(@)

Everbright Environmental Energy (Suzhou) Holdings Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and the foreign
joint venture partner of EB Energy (Suzhou), is committed to
contribute the full amount of EB Energy (Suzhou)’s registered
capital. Net profit, after payment of an agreed sum of
RMB880,000 annually to the PRC joint venture partner of EB
Energy (Suzhou), is fully attributable to Everbright Environmental
Energy (Suzhou) Holdings Limited.

o

(@)

REHBEEREMAIEREDRE

RIBPBEREAMATIGIESERE -

WIF BB LK G R EB MR LK ER
el s — 8B BBMEX -

B

AAElz 2 ENE AR REEREM) 2T
AEBBE - RBREREMN)IERERA T
AEEEAR KRR GRM) 2EGEME AR o K KEE
BREN) 2 FRF(EEFX A BERBARE
880,0007T T RNER(BRM) P H A& ERHE)
B2 F NIRRT (BN IZRERAFIE ©
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45 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)
Notes: (continued)

(0)

Everbright Water (Qingdao) Holdings Limited (“EW (Qingdao)
Holdings”, formerly known as EB-VW HK Holding Company
Limited), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and the
foreign joint venture partner of EB Water Qingdao, is committed
to contribute 60% of EB Water Qingdao’s registered capital. The
remaining 40% registered capital is contributed by the PRC joint
venture partner. EW (Qingdao) Holdings is fully entitled to the
net profit of EB Water Qingdao for the first 14 years of the joint
venture period. From the 15th year of the joint venture period
onwards, the net profit of EB Water Qingdao is to be shared by
EW (Qingdao) Holdings and the PRC joint venture partner on a
98:2 basis.

These subsidiaries of the Group entered into service concession
arrangements with the local government authorities in the
PRC (the “Grantors”). Pursuant to the service concession
arrangements, the Group was granted rights to construct,
operate and maintain environmental energy, environmental
water and greentech projects in the PRC for a period of 20 to
30 years. The service fees are based on the extent of services
rendered and are subject to the approvals from the relevant local
government authorities. During the operating period, the Group
will be responsible for maintaining the environmental energy,
environmental water and greentech projects in good condition.

The service concession arrangements do not contain renewal
options. Both the Grantor and the Group have the rights to
terminate the agreements in the event of a material breach of the
terms of the agreements.

Operating rights of the environmental energy, environmental
water and greentech projects are recognised as intangible
assets.
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45 T EMBRRIER (#)

izt : (&)

(b)

ARBZ2EMBREVFARNKBES 2T E
ERHE-ARKB(FES)ERERAR (AKX
(BB ER] - AIBX KRB KB EBIZERE
BRRR)) A AN KK S S560%FMEAR -
BRTA0%IFERP T EERHELE - KRN (FS)E
BRRELHETHFARHZANANKBEETEZ
SFEF - MAFETREFAEHR  KAKBEES
ZERBAGANKR(FE)ERKRFFTE SRR
98:2,2 thfjl# 5 -

AN I Y ) B ep B i U A A (TR AEA D)
RIS RIS AT ST - REBRISH L2
ZH AREERBEAETEEZE  EEREER
REER - BRRKBREABIRRIEAR R _-_t+=
=t+%F - RBEBRERHEZREHE - YAFE
MR M BUT B ER T AEE - NEZHAN -
AEBEREERRRER RERKEREER
RIAE B RAFARMR

RIGFAFEE LA BELERE - REARK
SELERRBHEGEREENER 2BER TR
BRI o

RREER RRKBRGERRAR ZES

TR
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Notes to Financial Statements
B SRR =T

31 December 2016 —E— X &E+=-A=+—H

45 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)
Notes: (continued)

(d)

These subsidiaries of the Group entered into service concession
arrangements with the Grantors. Pursuant to the service
concession arrangements, the Group has to design, construct,
operate and maintain waste-to-energy plants in the PRC for
a period of 25 to 30 years. The Group has the obligation to
maintain the waste-to-energy plants in good condition. The
Grantors guarantee the Group will receive minimum annual
payments in connection with the arrangements. Upon expiry of
the concession periods, the waste-to-energy plants and related
facilities will be transferred to the local government authorities.

The service concession arrangements do not contain renewal
options. The standard rights of the Grantors to terminate the
agreements include failure of the Group to construct or operate
the waste-to-energy plants and in the event of a material breach
of the terms of the agreements. The standard rights of the Group
to terminate the agreements include failure to receive payments
for solid waste treatment service from the Grantors and in the
event of a material breach of the terms of the agreements.

Revenue relates to the construction services provided in
constructing the waste-to-energy plants is recognised as “Gross
amounts due from customers for contract work” in the financial
statements.

45 T EMBRRIER (#)

it : (&)

(d)

REEM B R R EREAGT L RG IR E R
B REBERBBIFEERRZY  AKREART
BRet  2iE EEREELREER /Y
“TRE=TF - ARBEBEEAEFREER
BRI o« REEALR  BBRERHMS - K
SEB A SFUMKERERER - FRHFELH
JEmE - SRR M AR RS 8 R B R AT
WREAFRE -

RGP B LY BBLE R - REAFTT
EIRERERR L HE 2 BN EE: NREERE
ERERNPBHEBARBGHRGHREERER -
AEEATEREREMNKR L BEZBEREE - R
REAEREADRCSERENEEREE - AR
GHREERNER -

B 2 i 3R B B RR T B2 R E AR S P 1S 2 AR R IR
SEMBHRRPERS [BREFPANITENE
el -
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45 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)
Notes: (continued)

©

These subsidiaries of the Group entered into service concession
arrangements with the Grantors. Pursuant to the service
concession arrangements, the Group has to design, construct
and/or upgrade, operate and maintain waste-water treatment
plants in the PRC for a period of 25 to 30 years. The Group has
the obligation to maintain the waste-water treatment plants in
good condition. The Grantors guarantee the Group will receive
minimum annual payments in connection with the arrangements.
Upon expiry of the concession periods, the waste-water
treatment plants and the related facilities will be transferred to the
local government authorities.

The service concession arrangements do not contain renewal
options. The standard rights of the Grantors to terminate the
agreements include failure of the Group to construct, upgrade
or operate the waste-water treatment plants and in the event of
a material breach of the terms of the agreements. The standard
rights of the Group to terminate the agreements include failure
to receive payments for waste-water treatment service from the
Grantors and in the event of a material breach of the terms of the
agreements.

Revenue relates to the construction services provided in
constructing or upgrading the waste-water treatment plants is
recognised as “Gross amounts due from customers for contract
work” in the financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, CEWL bought back
an aggregate of 8,283,400 ordinary shares in its issued and paid
up capital pursuant to a share buy-back mandate, and allotted
and issued 10,177,139 new ordinary shares to its ordinary
shareholders who had elected to participate in the scrip dividend
scheme of CEWL. After the aforementioned transactions, the
Group’s equity interest in CEWL changed to 74.7% as at 31
December 2016 from 74.4% as at 31 December 2015.

46 APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 28 February 2017.

Annual Report 2016
—E-NEER

269

45 TEHBRARIER (£&)

MfaE : (4&)

(e

REEM B R R EREAG L RG IR E R
BE o RIBRBHFFRLERLY - ARBEANTE
WAt BERRHE  EEREESTKERE
B R TAE=1%F AEEFEEERS
IKEEEEREY REFIR o IRAEAER - SLERARHE
M5 ARESTSFRMKEFREFE © 55
AP HATE R 1R © 057K BE IR AR B AR B AR B % B BR
HIERTHE TS

=10,

i3

RIS E LR HE W EMALRIE - REATIT
EIREREMNEZ L HHRZBERERE + REBREE
@& BUESE RS KEBIER - AR GG ES
RiER - AEEAITEREEFZ LR ER
B REEERBRABISTKEEREE - UKk
BRIETEERER -

R e 5 ol i i 5 7K B T AR T 4R (IR AR TS P S
HRRSEMBRRTERR [BEEFENT

TEFIREE] -

REBEE-Z—X"F+-_A=+—HBLEFEE %
AKISRIBIR OB LI XRE - BEHD TR
RIRA & $£8,283,4000% E @A - I Ac 2 K T
710,177,139 ¥ & 18 I% T 3 12 2 81 3¢ KK 7S
ARREFTEZEBRKRR - EET LR S
& REERARKGzBREB-ZE—RF+=
R=+—H®M74.4%  BR-ZF—X"F+=A
=+—HBH74.7% °

46 /&M B HREK

BEeRN_E—+E-_A -+ N \BHELH
T HHRE -
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Five Year Summary #HfF3

China Everbright International Limited

At 31 December

RTZA=t—H
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
“E-NE -—T-F& -—T-mE -—T-=F —T—-F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT BETT BETT
Assets and liabilities BENER
Investment properties, REME Mm% -
property, plant and BB R afE
equipment and prepaid DA
land lease payments HERE 3,338,648 2,667,411 1,719,533 1,587,319 1,471,047
Goodwil BES 1,563,390 1,061,891 834,845 20,793 20,793
Intangible assets BREE 5,686,374 3,357,187 2,571,006 1,006,453 613,564
Interests in joint ventures SR ERES 345,353 209,161 27,289 - -
Interests in associates BENAER 228,047 239,306 254,339 254,380 -
Gross amounts due from BREFAHTRE
customers for contract work FURREE 19,464,201 15,822,848 12,630,020 9,035,315 6,889,550
Finance lease receivables BEHEEWTE 17,273 19,062 20,411 21,485 21,384
Other financial assets HEBBEE 33,332 24,800 229,012 176,710 196,692
Other receivables, deposits Hipfelz0E -
and prepayments e RFENFZUR 6,494,188 5,696,894 4,376,789 3,023,616 2,603,369
Deferred tax assets EERIEEE 53,732 36,483 49,455 10,966 27,508
Net current assets MEEEFH 2,993,400 5,164,723 3,505,685 4,671,973 1,854,906
40,217,938 34,209,766 26,218,384 19,899,010 13,698,813
Non-current liabilities FRBERE (20,372,730) (14,879,225)  (8,375,414)  (6,119,889)  (5,028,404)
NET ASSETS BEFH 19,845,208 19,420,541 17,842,970 13,779,121 8,670,409
Share capital e 7,405,414 7,405,414 7,405,414 448,371 403,841
Reserves G 9,983,888 9,790,740 8,857,842 12,925,893 7,945,918
Total equity attributable to equity XA FEZEE A
holders of the Company [ElhRRBE 17,389,302 17,196,154 16,263,256 13,374,264 8,349,759
Non-controlling interests R R 2,455,906 2,224,387 1,579,714 404,857 320,650
TOTAL EQUITY BnEE 19,845,208 19,420,541 17,842,970 13,779,121 8,670,409
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Five Year Summary fZFEZ£EHE
For the year ended 31 December
BET-A=+t—HULEE
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
“E-RF —T-1F —Z-mF —E-=F —T-CF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT AR BRI BT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(E#R) (E#) (ER) (ER)
Results E
Continuing operations FBELEER
Revenue g 13,971,204 8,528,393 6,350,295 5,316,124 3,409,484
Profit from operating activities RETEE TSR 4,675,413 3,576,466 2,680,443 2,127,232 1,483,202
Finance costs BHEER (639,584)  (451,759)  (380,775)  (315579)  (312,640)
Shares of profits and losses of Pt A4 RERF R
joint ventures B 63,373 (6,046) (594) - -
Shares of profits and losses of Bt B & AT EFIE
associates BB (479) 140 @1) - -
Profit before tax BRI A2 4,098,723 3,118,801 2,299,033 1,811,653 1,170,562
Income tax BiaH (1,062,150) (783,275  (533,990) (447,455  (266,554)
Profit from continuing operations  #E&& & #752 A7 3,036,573 2,335,526 1,765,043 1,364,198 904,008
Discontinued operation — #& P& %%
Profit from discontinued operation 4% |FE &£ 7 B 7
(net of tax) (B#i%) - - - - 250,096
Profit for the year AEE AT 3,036,573 2,335,526 1,765,043 1,364,198 1,154,104
Attributable to: FE(GE R
Equity holders of the Company A B#EZEE A 2,784,863 2,084,888 1,703,147 1,324,667 1,123,269
Non-controlling interests eV R S 251,710 250,638 61,896 39,531 30,835
Profit for the year AEFEF 3,036,573 2,335,526 1,765,043 1,364,198 1,154,104
Basic earnings per share FRERZF| HK62.12 HK46.50 HK37.99 HK32.60 HK29.65
centsiEAl centsB centsi Il centsi# L centsi{lL

The consolidated operation results of certain subsidiaries,
which were disposed of by the Group during the year ended 31
December 2012, are presented as discontinued operation in
the financial statements.

EPBEREAN - AEEREEZE_F——F+=_A
=t HEFEHREZETHBRARZEAKE
EEZNERIEEEER o
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Major Properties held by the Group A&£BEfiFEEEYE

Location

Ho b

Existing use
W&

Term of lease

HEFH

Percentage
of interest

Frib#Ezm A D

Units 2703 and 2704, 27th Floor
Far East Finance Centre

16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

BEBERBEBE T
BRESEA L
Tt EE =R AETENOE

25th Floor to 28th Floor

Block A, Oriental Xintiandi Plaza
No. 1003 Shennan Avenue
Futian District, Shenzhen
IR EE

HRFE KB 100355

R R ESARE25E =288

Units 3 and 4, 11th Floor
Qingsong South Lane
Dalian Development Zone
the PRC

RE RS ER SRS
+—EB=RkMET

Room 1301-1309

Central Business Building

No. 88 Fuhua Road One

Futian District

Shenzhen, Guangdong Province
the PRC
PEERERITEAR
BE— 8\ /\ B LB AR

—=F—F—=FNE

24th Floor

Tower of Education

Science & Technology Building
Zhuzilin, Futian District
Shenzhen, Guangdong Province
the PRC

A Bl E R AR
BHEERT R
HAERBEANE=+MNE

Block JO7, Zhongguancun Science Park

No. 156 Wenquan Town
Haidian District
Beijing, the PRC
PR R R
R B — TN
PR REREHXEJO7 5

Commercial

CES

Commercial

CES

Residential
F=

Commercial

CES

Commercial

CES

Commercial

CES

Medium

&

Medium

5

Medium

&

Medium

&

Medium

&

Medium

5

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%



An enterprise is not only the Creator of Wealth
but also the Safeguard of Environmental and Social Responsibility
CETERMERENRIEE
FERARBEEETANAESE

E A o

Everbright International

FSC
CHINA EVERBRIGHT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED "
q:l%j(%ﬁlzﬁi\\a Paper from

responsible sources

FSC™ C017167

www.ebchinaintl.com
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